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Preface

A MODERN APPROACH TO ADVANCED ACCOUNTING

Like the nine editions preceding it, Modern Advanced Accounting, 10e, provides students with
the tools necessary to succeed in the modern world of accounting. The emphasis throughout
the book is on financial accounting concepts and on the application of those concepts to prob-
lems arising in both business and nonbusiness organizations. Specialized accounting entities
such as partnerships and affiliated companies and topics such as international accounting
standards and business segments are dealt with in terms of current-day accounting issues. The
book continues to earn high praise from reviewers and adopters for the following:

Case Studies That Challenge Students to Get Beyond the Basics

Modern Advanced Accounting, 10e, continues to emphasize case studies involving analyti-
cal and conceptual thinking on both accounting and ethical issues, some of which require
students to research suggested references on the Internet. These cases challenge students to
stretch their thinking beyond the basic accounting issues.

A Special Emphasis on Ethics

Modern Advanced Accounting begins with a chapter on ethical issues in accounting, and in-
tegrates coverage of ethics as appropriate in the subsequent chapters. Coverage of ethical
issues in those chapters is denoted by a special icon. The ethics codes of the AICPA, FEI,
and IMA are presented, along with summaries of numerous SEC Accounting and Auditing
Enforcement Releases and illustrations of financial accounting and reporting from public
companies’ financial reports.

Extensive End-of-Chapter Material to Ensure Mastery of the Material

The learning and assignment material provided at the end of the chapter is divided into four
groups: review questions, exercises, cases, and problems. Review questions may be used by
students as a self-testing and review device to measure comprehension of key points. Exer-
cises typically cover a specific point or topic and do not require extensive computations.
Cases require analytical reasoning, but generally require little or no quantitative data. Stu-
dents are required to analyze business situations, to apply accounting standards, and to pro-
pose or evaluate a course of action. Finally, the problems demonstrate the concepts presented
in the theoretical discussion included in the chapter. Ample opportunity exists to vary
homework assignments from term to term.

A UNIQUE ORGANIZATION TO FACILITATE LEARNING

Following the first chapter on ethical issues in advanced accounting, the remaining 18 chap-
ters are grouped into five areas of concentration to facilitate the planning and presentation
of the subject matter and make it easier for students to learn and retain the concepts and
procedures presented.

Part One: Accounting for Partnerships and Branches (Chapters 2 through 4)
Following ethical issues in Chapter 1, the first section deals with the accounting principles
and procedures for partnerships, joint ventures, and branch operations. Partnerships (lim-
ited liability, general, and limited) and joint ventures are covered in Chapters 2 and 3, which
take the student from the basic concepts of partnership accounting often presented in an
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introductory accounting course to the more complex problems of income sharing, realign-
ment of partners’ equities, and liquidation. Chapter 4, which deals with home office—branch
relationships and combined financial statements, provides a logical stepping-stone to the
six chapters dealing with business combinations and consolidated financial statements.

Part Two: Business Combinations and Consolidated Financial

Statements (Chapters 5 through 10)

The sequencing of topics in Chapters 5 through 10 is designed to take the student from the
less complex date-of-business combination accounting and financial statement display is-
sues to the more rigorous features of post-combination accounting and display matters.
Where appropriate, provisions of the FASB’s proposed Statement, “Consolidated Financial
Statements: Purpose and Policy,” are discussed in Chapters 6 through 10.

Part Three: International Accounting: Reporting of Segments, for Interim
Periods, and to the SEC (Chapters 11 through 13)

The many complex matters involved in international accounting are discussed in Chapters 11
and 12, which emphasize the increasing importance and impact of the International Ac-
counting Standards Board. The three topics covered in Chapter 13 are indirectly related to
the subject matter of Chapters 11 and 12 and thus are included here.

Part Four: Accounting for Fiduciaries (Chapters 14 and 15)

The fourth section of the book includes chapters entitled “Bankruptcy: Liquidation and Re-
organization” and “Estates and Trusts.” Although some instructors may not cover these two
traditional topics in their courses, I believe that it is imperative to include them for those
who wish to do so. Many accountants in today’s practice environment must assist clients
with problems of bankruptcy, liquidation, reorganization, and the accounting for estates and
trusts.

Part Five: Accounting for Nonbusiness Organizations (Chapters 16 through 19)
In Chapters 17 through 19, students progress from accounting and financial statement display
issues for a governmental entity’s general fund through its other governmental-type funds to
its proprietary and fiduciary funds and its comprehensive annual financial report. No specific
type of nonprofit organization is emphasized in Chapter 16; instead, an overview of account-
ing and reporting issues for various such organizations are dealt with; and in Chapter 19 stu-
dents are referred to a Journal of Accountancy that illustrates a city’s financial statements.

NEW TO THE TENTH EDITION

The text and supplementary materials have been revised to reflect the latest accounting pro-
nouncements and standards, including:

e The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and its creation, the Public Company Accounting Over-
sight Board, in Chapters 1 and 13.

e The Financial Accounting Standards Board’s reexamination of purchase accounting for
business combinations in Chapter 5.

o Variable interest entities and special purpose entities in Chapter 6.

» Financial Accounting Standards Board/International Accounting Standards Board con-
vergence project in Chapter 11.

o FASB Interpretation No. 46 (original and revised), “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities” in Chapter 6.
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o FASB Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets” in Chapter 13.

e GASB Statement No. 42, “Accounting and Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets
and for Insurance Recoveries” in Chapter 18.

* GASB Statement No. 41, “Budgetary Comparison Schedules—Perspective Differences”
in Chapter 19.

*  GASB Statement No. 44, “Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section” in
Chapter 19.

A COMPREHENSIVE ARRAY OF SUPPLEMENTS TO FACILITATE
TEACHING AND LEARNING

Modern Advanced Accounting, 10e, is accompanied by a comprehensive package of sup-
plementary items for both students and instructors.

The Study Guide/Working Papers (ISBN: 007299116X) supplement is available for
students to purchase. The Study Guide, prepared by the author, is designed to help students
measure their progress by providing immediate feedback. It contains an outline of the im-
portant points for each chapter, plus a variety of objective questions, short exercises, and a
case. Answers to the questions, exercises, and case are at the end of each Study Guide chap-
ter to help students evaluate their understanding of the subject matter.

Accounting Working Papers for the problems are included in the same supplement as the
Study Guide. On these working papers the organization names, problem numbers, numer-
ous headings, and some preliminary data (such as trial balances) have been entered to save
students time and to facilitate review by the instructor.

The Instructor’s Resource CD-rom (IRCD, ISBN: 0072993995), prepared by the au-
thor of the text, is a comprehensive resource for instructors combining several teaching
supplements into one easy-to-use format. The IRCD contains the following:

o Instructor’s Resource Guide: This teaching aid is designed to assist instructors in prepar-
ing assignments and in covering the material in class. It includes a description of end-of-
chapter coverage, suggested assignments, objectives of chapter and suggested teaching
approach, and review of the chapter.

e Solutions Manual: The Solutions Manual contains answers to all review questions, ex-
ercises, cases, and problems in the text. In addition, at the beginning of each chapter,
there are short descriptions, time estimates, and difficulty ratings for each of the prob-
lems to help instructors to choose problems that best fit the needs of their individual
courses in terms of scope, level, and emphasis.

o Test Bank: The Test Bank contains true/false and multiple choice questions, short problems,
and a case for each chapter. Complete answers are provided for all questions, problems,
and cases.

e Computerized Test Bank: It can be used to create different versions of the same test,
change the answer order, edit and add questions, and conduct online testing.

e PowerPoint ® Slides: PowerPoint ® lecture outlines are provided for all chapters.

Online Learning Center with PowerWeb (URL: www.mhhe.com/larsen10e) is a book-
specific website that includes the following:

e PowerWeb: This feature is a unique website that extends the learning experience beyond
the core textbook and includes the following learning aids:

e Current readings with assessments
 Study tips and self-quizzes
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 Links to related sites
e Web research guide

e Access to Northern Light Search Engine providing Internet access to additional
articles

* Online Quizzes: Interactive quizzes provide an additional opportunity for self-study and
review

o Text Updates: As appropriate, new standards and pronouncements are posted to the
Online Learning Center.

» Professional Resources: Links to appropriate professional resources are also provided.
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Chapter One

Ethical Issues in
Advanced Accounting

Scope of Chapter

Ethics—right conduct—has been a subject of discussion for centuries. For example:

In Nicomachean Ethics, Book 11, Aristotle (384—322 BC) wrote:

[I]t is no easy task to be good. . . . wherefore, goodness is both rare and laudable and noble.
In Meditations, Books I1I and VII, Marcus Aurelius (121-180 AD) declared:

A man then must stand erect, not kept erect by others. . . . Be thou erect or be made erect.
William Shakespeare (1564—-1616) provided the following speeches in two of his plays:

lago. Good name in man and woman, dear my lord,
Is the immediate jewel of their souls,

Who steals my purse steals trash; ’tis something, nothing;
’Twas mine, ’tis his, and has been slave to thousands;
But he that filches from me my good name

Robs me of that which not enriches him

And makes me poor indeed.

(Othello, 3.3. 155-160)

Mowbray, The purest treasure mortal times afford

Is spotless reputation: . . .

Mine honour is my life; both grow in one;

Take honour from me, and my life is done. . . .

(The Tragedy of King Richard I, 1.1. 177-183)

Recent highly publicized accounting scandals have made it clear that ethical conduct of
accountants has not met the standards inherent in the foregoing quotations. In the article
“Scandal Scorecard,” The Wall Street Journal described 12 egregious accounting frauds in-
volving publicly owned business enterprises; many of the frauds involved the chief finan-
cial officer, controller, chief accounting officer, and other accountants of the enterprises.!
One outcome of those and other scandals was the enactment of the federal Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (SOX), which authorized the establishment of a Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board to regulate the conduct of accountants both in public practice and in pub-
licly owned business enterprises.

The vocabulary of accounting now includes the following terms:

Cute accounting to describe stretching the form of accounting standards to the limit,
regardless of the substance of the underlying business transactions or events

Cooking the books to indicate fraudulent financial reporting

! “Scandal Scorecard,” The Wall Street Journal, October 3, 2003, p. B1.
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Many topics of advanced accounting have been the subject of both cute accounting and
cooking the books by accounting executives of business enterprises. Because the chief fi-
nancial officer, the controller, the chief accounting officer, and the accounting staffs of busi-
ness enterprises have the primary responsibility for preparing financial statements and
financial reports and disseminating them to users, this chapter deals with the ethical stan-
dards appropriate for those preparers. In this and subsequent chapters, Securities and Ex-
change Commission (SEC) enforcement actions dealing with fraudulent financial reporting
are described for the topics covered in those chapters.

WHAT IS FRAUDULENT FINANCIAL REPORTING?

The following covers misstatements in financial statements that are caused by fraudulent fi-
nancial reporting, and the reasons for and methods of committing fraud:

Misstatements arising from fraudulent financial reporting are intentional misstatements or
omissions of amounts or disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement
users. Fraudulent financial reporting may involve acts such as the following:

* Manipulation, falsification, or alteration of accounting records or supporting documents
from which financial statements are prepared

» Misrepresentation in, or intentional omission from, the financial statements of events, trans-
actions, or other significant information

+ Intentional misapplication of accounting principles relating to amounts, classification, man-
ner of presentation, or disclosure

Fraud frequently involves the following: (a) a pressure or an incentive to commit fraud
and (b) a perceived opportunity to do so. . . . For example, fraudulent financial reporting may
be committed because management is under pressure to achieve an unrealistic earnings target.

Fraud may be concealed through falsified documentation, including forgery. For example,
management that engages in fraudulent financial reporting might attempt to conceal mis-
statements by creating fictitious invoices.

Fraud also may be concealed through collusion among management, employees, or third
parties. For example, through collusion, false evidence that control activities have been per-
formed effectively may be presented.?

AN EXAMPLE OF FRAUDULENT FINANCIAL REPORTING

The SEC’s Accounting and Auditing Enforcement Release No. 923, “Securities and Ex-
change Commission v. Joseph C. Allegra, David Hersh, J. Ledd Ledbetter and H. Flynn
Clyburn .. .” (AAER 923), issued June 11, 1997, provides an example of fraudulent finan-
cial reporting carried out by the president and chief executive officer; the chief financial of-
ficer, treasurer, and secretary; the chief operating officer and senior executive vice
president; and another executive vice president of a national provider of alternate site health
care services. According to the SEC, the four officers overstated the company’s net income
for the quarters ended December 31, 1992, and March 31, 1993, by taking the following
“cooking the books™ actions:

1. Recognizing January 1993 revenues in December 1992 and April 1993 revenues in
March 1993, and artificially accelerating product delivery schedules at the end of both
quarters, an artifice termed channel stuffing.

2. Deferring writeoffs of uncollectible accounts past the end of the appropriate quarter.

2 AICPA Professional Standards, vol. 1,”U.S. Auditing Standards,” sec. 316.



Chapter 1 Ethical Issues in Advanced Accounting 3

Also, according to the SEC, the chief financial officer (a CPA) overstated quarterly
income by:

1. Recognizing in the quarter ended March 31, 1993, a gain from the sale of an asset dur-
ing the quarter ended June 30, 1993.

2. Recognizing as assets certain expenses incurred during the quarters ended December 31,
1992, and March 31, 1993.

3. Making fictitious journal entries in connection with business combinations accom-
plished in March 1993, the effect of which was to understate doubtful accounts
expense.

In a “consent decree” in which the four officers neither admitted nor denied the SEC’s alle-
gations, they agreed to numerous monetary and other penalties.

ETHICAL STANDARDS FOR PREPARERS OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL REPORTS

Many past efforts to develop ethical standards for accountants focused on CPAs in the
practice of public accounting—primarily auditing. For example, although the first code of
ethics of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) was adopted in
1917, prior to 1988 few of its provisions applied to AICPA members in industry. The
Institute of Management Accountants (IMA), an organization devoted primarily to the in-
terest of accountants in industry, first issued its Standards of Ethical Conduct for Mem-
bers in 1983. The Financial Executives International (FEI), an organization of financial
vice presidents, controllers, and treasurers of business enterprises, first issued its Code of
Ethics in 1985.

Presumably, the lack of formal ethical standards for management accountants and fi-
nancial executives prior to 1983 stemmed from the view that the first line of defense against
improper financial reporting was provided by independent CPAs, subject to ethics codes of
their states of licensure, who audited financial statements of business enterprises, and that
preparers of those statements had only a secondary role in assuring quality financial re-
porting. This view was prevalent even though the AICPA had long included statements such
as the following in its pronouncements on auditing:

The financial statements are management’s responsibility. The auditor’s responsibility is to
express an opinion on the financial statements. Management is responsible for adopting
sound accounting policies and for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
that will, among other things, record, process, summarize, and report financial data that is
consistent with management’s assertions embodied in the financial statements. The internal
control structure should include an accounting system to identify, assemble, analyze, classify,
record, and report an entity’s transactions and to maintain accountability for the related assets
and liabilities. The entity’s transactions and the related assets and liabilities are within the
direct knowledge and control of management. The auditor’s knowledge of these matters is
limited to that acquired through the audit. Thus, the fair presentation of financial position,
results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples is an implicit and integral part of management’s responsibility. The independent audi-
tor may make suggestions about the form or content of the financial statements or draft them,
in whole or in part, based on information from management’s accounting system. However,
the auditor’s responsibility for the financial statements he has audited is confined to the
expression of his opinion on them.?

3 AICPA Professional Standards, vol. 1, “U.S. Auditing Standards,” sec. 110.02 (prior to amendment).
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Significant Events in the Establishment of Ethical Standards
for Management Accountants and Financial Executives

The Seaview Symposium of 1970

An early effort to establish ethical standards for preparers of financial statements occurred
at a 1970 symposium of members of the AICPA, the FEI, the Financial Analysts Federation,
and the Robert Morris Associates (an organization of credit grantors), which took place at
Seaview Country Club, Absecon, New Jersey. Papers and discussions at this symposium
criticized the lack of a code of ethics for members of the FEI, given that the other three par-
ticipating organizations had such codes.*

The Equity Funding Fraud of 1973

In 1973, a major fraud, of about nine years’ duration, was discovered at Equity Funding
Corporation of America (Equity), a seller of mutual fund shares that were pledged by the
investors to secure loans to finance life insurance premiums. During the nine-year period,
at least $143 million of fictitious pretax income was generated—a period in which Equity
reported a total net income of $76 million, instead of the real pretax losses totaling more
than $67 million.> The fraud was carried out by at least 10 executives of Equity, including
the chief executive officer (CEO), chief financial officer (CFO), controller, and treasurer;
several of the executives were CPAs with public accounting experience. The fraudulent
conduct of these CPAs, all of whom presumably had at one time been subject to the
AICPA’s Code of Professional Ethics during their public accounting careers, furnished
clear evidence of the need for ethics codes for management accountants and other financial
executives.

Action by the IMA

In 1983, the IMA issued Standards of Ethical Conduct for Practitioners of Management
Accounting and Financial Management, the third in a series of Statements on Manage-
ment Accounting. The current IMA standards, which are presented in Appendix 1 at the
end of this chapter (pages 8 through 10), cover the management accountant’s obligations as
to competence, confidentiality, integrity, and objectivity, and they provide guidance for res-
olutions of ethical conflict. Noteworthy in the preamble to the standards (pages 8-9) is the
management accountant’s obligation not to condone violations of the standards by others in
the organization.

Action by the FEI

The Code of Ethics first promulgated by the FEI in 1985 and as subsequently amended is
in Appendix 2 (pages 10—11). Although briefer than the IMA standards, the FEI’s code cov-
ers essentially the same areas of professional conduct as do the IMA standards.

Treadway Commission Recommendations

The National Commission on Fraudulent Financial Reporting (Treadway Commission),
which had been sponsored by the AICPA, the IMA, the FEI, the American Accounting As-
sociation (composed primarily of accounting educators), and the Institute of Internal Audi-
tors, issued its report in 1987. Defining fraudulent financial reporting as “intentional or
reckless conduct, whether act or omission, that results in materially misleading financial

4 John C. Burton, ed., Corporate Financial Reporting: Ethical and Other Problems (New York: AICPA, 1972),
pp. 7, 51-52, 109, 420-421.

> Report of the Trustee of Equity Funding Corporation of America, October 31, 1974, p. 12.
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statements,”® the Treadway Commission made 49 recommendations for curbing such
reporting. The recommendations dealt with the public company; the independent public ac-
countant; the SEC, financial institution regulators, and state boards of accountancy; and ed-
ucation. Stating that “the responsibility for reliable financial reporting resides first and
foremost at the corporate level,”” the Treadway Commission included the following among
its recommendations for the public company:

Recommendations: Public companies should maintain accounting functions that are
designed to meet their financial reporting obligations.

A public company’s accounting function is an important control in preventing and detect-
ing fraudulent financing reporting. The accounting function must be designed to allow the
company and its officers to fulfill their statutory financial disclosure obligations.

As a member of top management, the chief accounting officer helps set the tone of the or-
ganization’s ethical conduct and thus is part of the control environment. Moreover, the chief
accounting officer is directly responsible for the financial statements, and can and should
take authoritative action to correct them if necessary. He generally has the primary responsi-
bility for designing, implementing, and monitoring the company’s financial reporting system
and internal accounting controls. The controller may serve as the chief accounting officer, or
the chief financial officer also may perform the functions of a chief accounting officer.

The chief accounting officer’s actions especially influence employees who perform the ac-
counting function. By establishing high standards for the company’s financial disclosures, the
chief accounting officer guides others in the company toward legitimate financial reporting.

Moreover, the chief accounting officer is in a unique position. In numerous cases, other
members of top management, such as the chief executive officer, pressure the chief account-
ing officer into fraudulently manipulating the financial statements. An effective chief ac-
counting officer is familiar with the company’s financial position and operations and thus
frequently is able to identify unusual situations caused by fraudulent financial reporting per-
petrated at the divisional level.

The chief accounting officer has an obligation to the organization he serves, to the public,
and to himself to maintain the highest standards of ethical conduct. He therefore must be pre-
pared to take action necessary to prevent fraudulent financial reporting. His efforts may en-
tail bringing matters to the attention of the CEO, the CFO, the chief internal auditor, the audit
committee, or the entire board of directors.

The Financial Executives [International] (FEI) and the [Institute of Management Accountants
(IMA)] play active roles in enhancing the financial reporting process by sponsoring research,
technical professional guidance, and continuing professional education and by participating in
the shaping of standards. Both organizations also have promulgated codes of conduct that
strongly encourage reliable financial reporting. Public companies should encourage their ac-
counting employees to support these organizations and adhere to their codes of conduct.?

Revision of AICPA Ethics Rules

In 1988, the members of the AICPA approved a revised Code of Professional Conduct to
replace the Code of Professional Ethics that previously had been in effect. This action was
triggered by the 1986 Report of the Special Committee on Standards of Professional Con-
duct for Certified Public Accountants (Anderson Committee), which recommended re-
structuring the AICPA’s ethics code to improve its relevance and effectiveness.’ A key
element of the Anderson Committee recommendations was extension of applicability of the
Rules of Professional Conduct of the revised Code of Professional Conduct to AICPA

6 Report of the National Commission on Fraudulent Financial Reporting (New York: 1987), p. 2.
7 lbid., p. 6.
8 |bid., pp. 36-37.

9 Report of the Special Committee on Standards of Professional Conduct for Certified Public Accountants
(New York: AICPA, 1986), p. 1.
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members who are not practicing in a CPA firm.'” Thus, Rules 102, 201, 202, 203, 302, and
501 of the Code of Professional Conduct in Appendix 3 (pages 11 through 20) apply to all
AICPA members, including those in private industry, governmental entities, nonprofit or-
ganizations, and academia.

Authority of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

Title I of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 authorized the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board to establish ethical standards for audits of publicly owned companies. As
of the date of this writing, no such standards had been issued.

Analysis of Ethical Standards for Management Accountants
and Financial Executives

A review of the contents of the IMA, FEI, and AICPA ethics pronouncements in Appen-
dixes 1, 2, and 3 reveals several similarities. All three require members of the respective or-
ganizations to be competent, act with integrity and objectivity, maintain confidentiality of
sensitive information, avoid discreditable acts, and avoid conflicts of interest. Only the IMA
and FEI codes specifically require communication of complete information to users of their
members’ reports; AICPA members indirectly are comparably obligated by Rule 202.

Rule 203 of the AICPA code requires compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles. One might prefer that both the IMA and the FEI codes had comparable explicit
provisions, given management accountants’ and financial executives’ primary responsibil-
ity for financial statements and financial reports.

Another difference among the three ethics codes is that the IMA and FEI standards in
essence require members to report violations of the standards by members of their organiza-
tions to responsible officials of the organizations. The AICPA code has no such requirement.

The issues of conflicts of interest and discreditable acts are discussed further in the fol-
lowing sections.

Conflicts of Interest

Conflicts of interest result when individuals reap inappropriate personal benefits from their
acts in an official capacity. For example, a chief accounting officer might cook the books to
overstate pretax income of the employer corporation in order to obtain a larger performance
bonus. Alternatively, the controller of a publicly owned corporation might engage in insider
trading'' to maximize gains or minimize losses on purchases or sales of the employer cor-
poration securities. For example, in Accounting and Auditing Enforcement Release
(AAER) 344 (December 10, 1991), the SEC reported the permanent disbarment from prac-
tice of the controller, a CPA, of a publicly owned company, who had allegedly engaged in
insider trading and thus avoided losses of more than $73,000 on sales of the employer com-
pany’s common stock. According to the SEC, the controller had acted with senior manage-
ment of the company to overstate the company’s earnings by more than $38,000,000 over a
two-and-one-half-year period. The controller was ordered to disgorge the $73,000 and pay
a penalty of the same amount.

Discreditable Acts

None of the three ethics codes presented in appendixes to this chapter defines discreditable
acts. Probably the term cannot be adequately defined or circumscribed; what is a discreditable

0bid., p. 23.

1 Section 21A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 defines insider trading as “purchasing or selling a
security while in possession of material, nonpublic information . . . or . . . communicating such information
in connection with a securities transaction.”
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act to one observer might not be so construed by another. For example, might a member of
the IMA, FEI, or AICPA observing another member’s substance abuse construe the act as
discreditable to the abusive member, the member’s employer, the organization, or other en-
tities? Such questions are difficult to answer in a society in which some condone personal
actions that are condemned by others.

Concluding Observations

In considering episodes of cooking the books, described in subsequent chapters, the reader
should keep in mind that, although the Treadway Commission stated, “The incidence of
fraudulent financial reporting cannot be quantified with any degree of precision,”!? it also

gave the following data:

1. The number of SEC proceedings against reporting companies from 1981 to 1986 was
less than 1% of the number of financial reports filed with the SEC during that period.

2. The chairman of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation contended that manage-
ment fraud (presumably including cooking the books) contributed to one-third of bank
failures.

3. Ten percent of total bankruptcies in a study authorized by the Treadway Commission in-
volved fraudulent financial reporting.

4. Former SEC chairman John Shad estimated that all fraudulent securities activities

amount to a fraction of 1% of the $50 billion of corporate and government securities
traded daily."?

Thus, cooking the books episodes, though serious and despicable, apparently do not indi-
cate a wholesale breakdown of ethical conduct by management accountants and financial
executives of business enterprises.

An important question to consider is: Can the codes of conduct for management ac-
countants and financial executives established by the IMA, the FEI, and AICPA help those
key players in corporate financial reporting to resist pressures, often from top management
but sometimes from within themselves, to falsify financial statements and financial reports?
Or is it too much to expect such individuals, whose livelihoods and careers depend a great
deal on what is in those statements and reports, to be completely impartial in their prepara-
tion? Ralph E. Walters, CPA, former director of Professional Conduct for The California
Society of Certified Public Accountants, has considered this thorny question:

An obligation to be impartial seems to me to place a new and possibly unrealistic burden on the
management accountant. Traditionally, most employees have felt an obligation, within the bounds
of honesty and integrity, to put the best face upon their employer’ affairs. For example, there is
still some latitude in selection and judgment in the application of GAAP [generally accepted ac-
counting principles]. Some managers consistently opt for the most aggressive principle or appli-
cation. The aggregate effect is to bias the financial statements. They may be in accordance with
GAARP, but the quality of earnings is suspect. They are not impartial. This condition is not un-
common in practice (it is a principal reason we need independent auditors). An accountant asso-
ciated with this condition is literally violating the AICPA Code. The [IMA] Code is less clear.

[s this interpretation realistic? Do management accountants generally understand this?
I doubt it. In fairness to their members and to the public, the AICPA and the [IMA] need to
put their heads together and agree how much objectivity management accountants can be
expected to live with, including some examples in real-life situations. The positions should
be consistent and must be made clear to all management accountants.'*

12 Report of the National Committee on Fraudulent Financial Reporting, p. 25.
13 bid., pp. 25-26.
14 Ralph E. Walters, “Ethics and Excellence,” Management Accounting, January 1990, p. 12.
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The questions raised in the foregoing paragraph are difficult to answer. However, the
SEC has emphasized the importance of objectivity as follows, in rejecting the “good
soldier” rationalization of unethical conduct by a corporate controller (a CPA):

The Commission cannot condone [the controller’s] conduct. [The controller] has or had available
to him more than sufficient information to be aware that the financial statements he prepared and
the periodic reports he signed were materially inaccurate. Under the circumstances, and as a se-
nior level financial officer and the highest level CPA within [the corporation] involved in the fi-
nancial reporting process, [the controller] owed a duty to [the corporation] and its shareholders
not to assist in, or even acquiesce in, [the corporation’s] issuance of such financial statements.
Although [the controller] may have made the appropriate recommendations to his corporate su-
pervisors, when those recommendations were rejected, [the controller] acted as the “good sol-
dier,” implementing their directions which he knew or should have known were improper.'s

In like vein, the SEC commented as follows on the behavior of a corporate controller
who, despite his knowledge of cooking the books activities directed by the company’s for-
mer CEO and former CFO, took no remedial actions:

As controller, [the CPA] had a duty to satisfy himself that [the company’s] financial state-
ments were properly stated under GAAP. [The controller] knew or recklessly disregarded
facts indicating that, as a result of the fraudulent entries, [the company’s] reported financial
statements during fiscal year 1990 . . . were materially false and misleading. Although [the
company’s] former CEO and CFO devised and directed the improper practices resulting in
[the company’s] false recording and reporting, in the Commission’s view, this does not justify
[the controller’s] failure to take sufficient steps to satisfy himself that the transactions were
properly recorded . . . This failure was inconsistent with his duties as . . . controller.!®

At the beginning of their professional careers, students of advanced accounting might
well reflect on their sense of ethical values and decide on a course of action if they find
themselves in a position such as the foregoing ones.

IMA Standards of Ethical Conduct for Members®

In today’s modern world of business, individuals in management accounting and financial
management constantly face ethical dilemmas. For example, if the accountant’s immediate
superior instructs the accountant to record the physical inventory at its original costs when
it is obvious that the inventory has a reduced value due to obsolescence, what should the ac-
countant do? To help make such a decision, here is a brief general discussion of ethics and
the “Standards of Ethical Conduct for Members.” Ethics, in its broader sense, deals with
human conduct in relation to what is morally good and bad, right and wrong. To determine
whether a decision is good or bad, the decision-maker must compare his/her options with
some standard of perfection. This standard of perfection is not a statement of static position
but requires the decision-maker to assess the situation and the values of the parties affected
by the decision. The decision-maker must then estimate the outcome of the decision and be
responsible for its results. Two good questions to ask when faced with an ethical dilemma

S AAER 93, .. . In the Matter of Michael R. Maury,” March 26, 1986.
6 AAER 538, “ .. . In the Matter of Michael V. Barnes,” March 11, 1994.
* Source: Ethics Hotline (for members only) © 2000, Institute of Management Accountants, Inc.
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are, “Will my actions be fair and just to all parties affected?” and “Would I be pleased to
have my closest friends learn of my actions?”

Individuals in management accounting and financial management have a unique set of
circumstances relating to their employment. To help them assess their situation, the Insti-
tute of Management Accountants (IMA) has developed the following “Standards of Ethical
Conduct for Members.”

STANDARDS OF ETHICAL CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS

Members of IMA have an obligation to the public, their profession, the organizations they
serve, and themselves to maintain the highest standards of ethical conduct. In recognition
of this obligation, the IMA has promulgated the following standards of ethical conduct for
its members. Members shall not commit acts contrary to these standards nor shall they con-
done the commission of such acts by others within their organizations.

Members shall abide by the more stringent code of ethical conduct, whether that is the
standards widely practiced in their country or IMA’s Standards of Ethical Conduct. In no
case will a member conduct herself or himself by any standard that is not at least equiva-
lent to the standards identified for members in IMA’s Standards of Ethical Conduct.

The standards of ethical conduct for IMA members are published in SMA (Statement on
Management Accounting) 1C.

Competence

Members have a responsibility to:

* Maintain an appropriate level of professional competence by ongoing development of
their knowledge and skills.

* Perform their professional duties in accordance with relevant laws, regulations, and
technical standards.

* Prepare complete and clear reports and recommendations after appropriate analyses of
relevant and reliable information.

Confidentiality

Members have a responsibility to:

* Refrain from disclosing confidential information acquired in the course of their work ex-
cept when authorized, unless legally obligated to do so.

» Inform subordinates as appropriate regarding the confidentiality of information acquired
in the course of their work and monitor their activities to assure the maintenance of that
confidentiality.

* Refrain from using or appearing to use confidential information acquired in the course
of their work for unethical or illegal advantage either personally or through third parties.

Integrity

Members have a responsibility to:

* Avoid actual or apparent conflicts of interest and advise all appropriate parties of any po-
tential conflict.

» Refrain from engaging in any activity that would prejudice their ability to carry out their
duties ethically.

» Refuse any gift, favor, or hospitality that would influence or would appear to influence
their actions.

» Refrain from either actively or passively subverting the attainment of the organization’s
legitimate and ethical objectives.
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* Recognize and communicate professional limitations or other constraints that would
preclude responsible judgment or successful performance of an activity.

» Communicate unfavorable as well as favorable information and professional judgments
or opinions.
» Refrain from engaging in or supporting any activity that would discredit the profession.

Objectivity

Members have a responsibility to:

+ Communicate information fairly and objectively.

» Disclose fully all relevant information that could reasonably be expected to influence an
intended user’s understanding of the reports, comments, and recommendations presented.

RESOLUTION OF ETHICAL CONFLICT

In applying the standards of ethical conduct, members may encounter problems in identi-
fying unethical behavior or in resolving an ethical conflict. When faced with significant eth-
ical issues, members should follow the established policies of the organization bearing on
the resolution of such conflict. If these policies do not resolve the ethical conflict, such
members should consider the following courses of action.

» Discuss such problems with the immediate superior except when it appears that the su-
perior is involved, in which case the problem should be presented initially to the next
higher managerial level. If a satisfactory resolution cannot be achieved when the prob-
lem is initially presented, submit the issues to the next higher managerial level. If the im-
mediate superior is the chief executive officer, or equivalent, the acceptable reviewing
authority may be a group such as the audit committee, executive committee, board of di-
rectors, board of trustees, or owners. Contact with levels above the immediate superior
should be initiated only with the superior’s knowledge, assuming the superior is not in-
volved. Except where legally prescribed, communication of such problems to authorities
or individuals not employed or engaged by the organization is not considered appropriate.

» Clarify relevant ethical issues by confidential discussion with an objective advisor (e.g.,
IMA Ethics Counseling Service) to obtain a better understanding of possible courses of
action. Consult your own attorney as to legal obligations and rights concerning the eth-
ical conflict.

+ If the ethical conflict still exists after exhausting all levels of internal review, there may
be no other recourse on significant matters than to resign from the organization and to
submit an informative memorandum to an appropriate representative of the organiza-
tion. After resignation, depending on the nature of the ethical conflict, it may also be ap-
propriate to notify other parties.

From Institute of Management Accountants, Statements on Management Accounting: Standards
of Ethical Conduct for Management Accountants, Statement No. 1C (10 Paragon Drive, Montvale, NJ
07645, April 1997). Reprinted with permission.

FEI Code of Ethics

FEI’s mission includes significant efforts to promote ethical conduct in the practice of fi-
nancial management throughout the world. Senior financial officers hold an important and
elevated role in corporate governance. While members of the management team, they are
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uniquely capable and empowered to ensure that all stakeholders’ interests are appropriately
balanced, protected and preserved. This Code provides principles to which members are
expected to adhere and advocate. They embody rules regarding individual and peer re-
sponsibilities, as well as responsibilities to employers, the public, and other stakeholders.
Violations of FEI’s Code of Ethics may subject the member to censure, suspension or ex-
pulsion under procedural rules adopted by FEI’s Board of Directors.

All members of FEI will:

1. Act with honesty and integrity, avoiding actual or apparent conflicts of interest in per-
sonal and professional relationships.

2. Provide constituents with information that is accurate, complete, objective, relevant,
timely and understandable.

3. Comply with applicable rules and regulations of federal, state, provincial, and local
governments, and other appropriate private and public regulatory agencies.

4. Act in good faith, responsibly, with due care, competence and diligence, without mis-
representing material facts or allowing one’s independent judgment to be subordinated.

5. Respect the confidentiality of information acquired in the course of one’s work except
when authorized or otherwise legally obligated to disclose. Confidential information
acquired in the course of one’s work will not be used for personal advantage.

6. Share knowledge and maintain skills important and relevant to constituents’ needs.

7. Proactively promote ethical behavior as a responsible partner among peers, in the work
environment and the community.

8. Achieve responsible use of and control over all assets and resources employed or
entrusted.

9. Report known or suspected violations of this Code in accordance with the FEI Rules
of Procedure.

10. Be accountable for adhering to this Code.

Source: Financial Executives International Code of Ethics

AICPA Code of Professional Conduct”
COMPOSITION, APPLICABILITY, AND COMPLIANCE

The Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute of Certified Public Accoun-
tants consists of two sections— (1) the Principles and (2) the Rules. The Principles provide
the framework for the Rules, which govern the performance of professional services by
members. The Council of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants is autho-
rized to designate bodies to promulgate technical standards under the Rules, and the bylaws
require adherence to those Rules and standards.

The Code of Professional Conduct was adopted by membership to provide guidance and
rules to all members—those in public practice, in industry, in government, and in education—
in the performance of their professional responsibilities.

* From American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Code of Professional Conduct. Copyright ©
2000 by American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Inc. (New York). Reprinted with permission.
(Not included are the Statements on Standards for Tax Services incorporated in the Code in 2000.)



12 Chapter 1

Ethical Issues in Advanced Accounting

Compliance with the Code of Professional Conduct, as with all standards in an open so-
ciety, depends primarily on members’ understanding and voluntary actions, secondarily on
reinforcement by peers and public opinion, and ultimately on disciplinary proceedings,
when necessary, against members who fail to comply with the Rules.

OTHER GUIDANCE

Interpretations of Rules of Conduct consist of interpretations which have been adopted, af-
ter exposure to state societies, state boards, practice units and other interested parties, by
the professional ethics division’s executive committee to provide guidelines as to the scope
and application of the Rules but are not intended to limit such scope or application. A mem-
ber who departs from such guidelines shall have the burden of justifying such departure in
any disciplinary hearing. /nterpretations which existed before the adoption of the Code of
Professional Conduct on January 12, 1988, will remain in effect until further action is deemed
necessary by the appropriate senior technical committee.

Ethics Rulings consist of formal rulings made by the professional ethics division’s exec-
utive committee after exposure to state societies, state boards, practice units and other
interested parties. These rulings summarize the application of Rules of Conduct and Inter-
pretations to a particular set of factual circumstances. Members who depart from such rul-
ings in similar circumstances will be requested to justify such departures. Ethics Rulings
which existed before the adoption of the Code of Professional Conduct on January 12,
1988, will remain in effect until further action is deemed necessary by the appropriate
senior technical committee.

Publication of an Interpretation or Ethics ruling in The Journal of Accountancy consti-
tutes notice to members. Hence, the effective date of the pronouncement is the last day of
the month in which the pronouncement is published in The Journal of Accountancy. The
professional ethics division will take into consideration the time that would have been rea-
sonable for the member to comply with the pronouncement.

A member should also consult, if applicable, the ethical standards of his state CPA soci-
ety, state board of accountancy, the Securities and Exchange Commission, and any other
governmental agency which may regulate his client’s business or use his report to evaluate
the client’s compliance with applicable laws and related regulations.

SECTION I: PRINCIPLES

Preamble

Membership in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants is voluntary. By ac-
cepting membership, a certified public accountant assumes an obligation of self-discipline
above and beyond the requirements of laws and regulations.

These Principles of the Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute of Cer-
tified Public Accountants express the profession’s recognition of its responsibilities to the
public, to clients, and to colleagues. They guide members in the performance of their pro-
fessional responsibilities and express the basic tenets of ethical and professional conduct.
The Principles call for an unswerving commitment to honorable behavior, even at the sac-
rifice of personal advantage.

Article I: Responsibilities

In carrying out their responsibilities as professionals, members should exercise sensitive
professional and moral judgments in all their activities.

As professionals, certified public accountants perform an essential role in society. Consis-
tent with that role, members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants have
responsibilities to all those who use their professional services. Members also have a
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continuing responsibility to cooperate with each other to improve the art of accounting,
maintain the public’s confidence, and carry out the profession’s special responsibilities for
self-governance. The collective efforts of all members are required to maintain and enhance
the traditions of the profession.

Article II: The Public Interest

Members should accept the obligation to act in a way that will serve the public interest,
honor the public trust, and demonstrate commitment to professionalism.

A distinguishing mark of a profession is acceptance of its responsibility to the public. The
accounting profession’s public consists of clients, credit grantors, governments, employers,
investors, the business and financial community, and others who rely on the objectivity and
integrity of certified public accountants to maintain the orderly functioning of commerce.
This reliance imposes a public interest responsibility on certified public accountants. The
public interest is defined as the collective well-being of the community of people and insti-
tutions the profession serves.

In discharging their professional responsibilities, members may encounter conflicting
pressures from among each of those groups. In resolving those conflicts, members should
act with integrity, guided by the precept that when members fulfill their responsibility to the
public, clients’ and employers’ interests are best served.

Those who rely on certified public accountants expect them to discharge their responsi-
bilities with integrity, objectivity, due professional care, and a genuine interest in serving
the public. They are expected to provide quality services, enter into fee arrangements, and
offer a range of services—all in a manner that demonstrates a level of professionalism con-
sistent with these Principles of the Code of Professional Conduct.

All who accept membership in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
commit themselves to honor the public trust. In return for the faith that the public reposes
in them, members should seek continually to demonstrate their dedication to professional
excellence.

Article IlI: Integrity

To maintain and broaden public confidence, members should perform all professional re-
sponsibilities with the highest sense of integrity.

Integrity is an element of character fundamental to professional recognition. It is the qual-
ity from which the public trust derives and the benchmark against which a member must
ultimately test all decisions.

Integrity requires a member to be, among other things, honest and candid within the
constraints of client confidentiality. Service and the public trust should not be subordinated
to personal gain and advantage. Integrity can accommodate the inadvertent error and the
honest difference of opinion; it cannot accommodate deceit or subordination of principle.

Integrity is measured in terms of what is right and just. In the absence of specific rules,
standards, or guidance, or in the face of conflicting opinions, a member should test deci-
sions and deeds by asking: “Am I doing what a person of integrity would do? Have I re-
tained my integrity?” Integrity requires a member to observe both the form and the spirit of
technical and ethical standards; circumvention of those standards constitutes subordination
of judgment.

Integrity also requires a member to observe the principles of objectivity and indepen-
dence and of due care.

Article IV: Objectivity and Independence

A member should maintain objectivity and be free of conflicts of interest in discharging pro-
fessional responsibilities. A member in public practice should be independent in fact and
appearance when providing auditing and other attestation services.
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Objectivity is a state of mind, a quality that lends value to a member’s services. It is a distin-
guishing feature of the profession. The principle of objectivity imposes the obligation to be
impartial, intellectually honest, and free of conflicts of interest. Independence precludes rela-
tionships that may appear to impair a member’s objectivity in rendering attestation services.

Members often serve multiple interests in many different capacities and must demon-
strate their objectivity in varying circumstances. Members in public practice render attest,
tax, and management advisory services. Other members prepare financial statements in the
employment of others, perform internal auditing services, and serve in financial and man-
agement capacities in industry, education, and government. They also educate and train
those who aspire to admission into the profession. Regardless of service or capacity, mem-
bers should protect the integrity of their work, maintain objectivity, and avoid any subordi-
nation of their judgment.

For a member in public practice, the maintenance of objectivity and independence re-
quires a continuing assessment of client relationships and public responsibility. Such a
member who provides auditing and other attestation services should be independent in fact
and appearance. In providing all other services, a member should maintain objectivity and
avoid conflicts of interest.

Although members not in public practice cannot maintain the appearance of indepen-
dence, they nevertheless have the responsibility to maintain objectivity in rendering pro-
fessional services. Members employed by others to prepare financial statements or to
perform auditing, tax, or consulting services are charged with the same responsibility for
objectivity as members in public practice and must be scrupulous in their application of
generally accepted accounting principles and candid in all their dealings with members in
public practice.

Article V: Due Care

A member should observe the profession’s technical and ethical standards, strive continu-
ally to improve competence and the quality of services, and discharge professional respon-
sibility to the best of the member s ability.

The quest for excellence is the essence of due care. Due care requires a member to dis-
charge professional responsibilities with competence and diligence. It imposes the obliga-
tion to perform professional services to the best of a member’s ability with concern for the
best interest of those for whom the services are performed and consistent with the profes-
sion’s responsibility to the public.

Competence is derived from a synthesis of education and experience. It begins with a
mastery of the common body of knowledge required for designation as a certified public
accountant. The maintenance of competence requires a commitment to learning and
professional improvement that must continue throughout a member’s professional life. It
is a member’s individual responsibility. In all engagements and in all responsibilities, each
member should undertake to achieve a level of competence that will assure that the quality of
the member’s services meets the high level of professionalism required by these Principles.

Competence represents the attainment and maintenance of a level of understanding and
knowledge that enables a member to render services with facility and acumen. It also
establishes the limitations of a member’s capabilities by dictating that consultation or
referral may be required when a professional engagement exceeds the personal competence
of a member or a member’s firm. Each member is responsible for assessing his or her own
competence—of evaluating whether education, experience, and judgment are adequate for
the responsibility to be assumed.

Members should be diligent in discharging responsibilities to clients, employers, and the
public. Diligence imposes the responsibility to render services promptly and carefully, to
be thorough, and to observe applicable technical and ethical standards.
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Due care requires a member to plan and supervise adequately any professional activity
for which he or she is responsible.

Article VI: Scope and Nature of Services

A member in public practice should observe the Principles of the Code of Professional
Conduct in determining the scope and nature of services to be provided.

The public interest aspect of certified public accountants’ services requires that such ser-
vices be consistent with acceptable professional behavior for certified public accountants.
Integrity requires that service and the public trust not be subordinated to personal gain and
advantage. Objectivity and independence requires that members be free from conflicts of
interest in discharging professional responsibilities. Due care requires that services be pro-
vided with competence and diligence.

Each of these Principles should be considered by members in determining whether or
not to provide specific services in individual circumstances. In some instances, they may
represent an overall constraint on the nonaudit services that might be offered to a specific
client. No hard-and-fast rules can be developed to help members reach these judgments,
but they must be satisfied that they are meeting the spirit of the Principles in this regard.

In order to accomplish this, members should

» Practice in firms that have in place internal quality-control procedures to ensure that ser-
vices are competently delivered and adequately supervised.

* Determine, in their individual judgments, whether the scope and nature of other services
provided to an audit client would create a conflict of interest in the performance of the
audit function for that client.

* Assess, in their individual judgments, whether an activity is consistent with their role as
professionals.

SECTION II: RULES
Applicability

The bylaws of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants require that members
adhere to the Rules of the Code of Professional Conduct. Members must be prepared to jus-
tify departures from these Rules.

Definitions'’

[Pursuant to its authority under the bylaws (BL § 3.6.2.2) to interpret the Code of Profes-
sional Conduct, the Professional Ethics Executive Committee has issued the following
definitions of terms appearing in the code effective November 30, 1989.]

Attest engagement. An attest engagement is an engagement that requires indepen-
dence as defined in AICPA Professional Standards.

Attest engagement team. The attest engagement team consists of individuals partic-
ipating in the attest engagement, including those who perform concurring and second
partner reviews. The attest engagement team includes all employees and contractors
retained by the firm who participate in the attest engagement, irrespective of their
functional classification (for example, audit, tax, or management consulting services).
The attest engagement team excludes specialists as discussed in SAS No. 73, Using
the Work of a Specialist [AU section 336], and individuals who perform only routine
clerical functions, such as word processing and photocopying.

Client. A client is any person or entity, other than the member’s employer, that engages
a member or a member’s firm to perform professional services or a person or entity

7 As adopted, January 12, 1988, unless otherwise indicated
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with respect to which professional services are performed. For purposes of this paragraph,
the term “employer” does not include—
a. Entities engaged in the practice of public accounting; or
b. Federal, state, and local governments or component units thereof provided the
member performing professional services with respect to those entities—
i. Is directly elected by voters of the government or component unit thereof
with respect to which professional services are performed; or
it. Is an individual who is (1) appointed by a legislative body and (2) subject to
removal by a legislative body; or
iii. Is appointed by someone other than the legislative body, so long as the ap-
pointment is confirmed by the legislative body and removal is subject to
oversight or approval by the legislative body.

Close relative. A close relative is a parent, sibling, or nondependent child.
Council. The Council of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Covered member. A covered member is—

a. An individual on the attest engagement team;

b. An individual in a position to influence the attest engagement;

c. A partner or manager who provides nonattest services to the attest client begin-
ning once he or she provides ten hours of nonattest services to the client within
any fiscal year and ending on the later of the date (i) the firm signs the report on
the financial statements for the fiscal year during which those services were pro-
vided or (ii) he or she no longer expects to provide ten or more hours of nonat-
test services to the attest client on a recurring basis;

d. A partner in the office in which the lead attest engagement partner primarily

practices in connection with the attest engagement;
The firm, including the firm’s employee benefit plans; or
/- An entity whose operating, financial, or accounting policies can be controlled

(as defined by generally accepted accounting principles [GAAP] for consolidation

purposes) by any of the individuals or entities described in (@) through (e) or by

two or more such individuals or entities if they act together.

Q

Financial institution. A financial institution is considered to be an entity that, as part
of its normal business operations, makes loans or extends credit to the general public.
In addition, for automobile leases addressed under interpretation 101-5, Loans From
Financial Institution Clients, an entity would be considered a financial institution if it
leases automobiles to the general public.

Financial statements. A presentation of financial data, including accompanying
notes, if any, intended to communicate an entity’s economic resources and/or obliga-
tions at a point in time or the changes therein for a period of time, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles or a comprehensive basis of accounting other
than generally accepted accounting principles.

Incidental financial data to support recommendations to a client or in documents
for which the reporting is governed by Statements on Standards for Attestation
Engagements and tax returns and supporting schedules do not, for this purpose, consti-
tute financial statements. The statement, affidavit, or signature of preparers required
on tax returns neither constitutes an opinion on financial statements nor requires a dis-
claimer of such opinion.

Firm. A firm is a form of organization permitted by law or regulation whose character-
istics conform to resolutions of the Council of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants that is engaged in the practice of public accounting. Except for purposes
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of applying Rule 101: /ndependence, the firm includes the individual partners thereof.
[Revised November, 2001.]

Institute. The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Interpretations of rules of conduct. Pronouncements issued by the division of pro-
fessional ethics to provide guidelines concerning the scope and application of the rules
of conduct.

Member. A member, associate member, or international associate of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Practice of public accounting. The practice of public accounting consists of the perfor-
mance for a client, by a member or a member’s firm, while holding out as CPA(s), of the
professional services of accounting, tax, personal financial planning, litigation support ser-
vices, and those professional services for which standards are promulgated by bodies des-
ignated by Council, such as Statements of Financial Accounting Standards, Statements on
Auditing Standards, Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services, State-
ments on Standards for Consulting Services, Statements of Governmental Accounting
Standards, and Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements.

However, a member or a member’s firm, while holding out as CPA(s), is not considered
to be in the practice of public accounting if the member or the member’s firm does not per-
form, for any client, any of the professional services described in the preceding paragraph.
Professional Services. Professional services include all services performed by a
member while holding out as a CPA.

RULES
Rule 101 Independence

A member in public practice shall be independent in the performance of professional ser-
vices as required by standards promulgated by bodies designated by Council.

Rule 102 Integrity and Objectivity

In the performance of any professional service, a member shall maintain objectivity and in-
tegrity, shall be free of conflicts of interest, and shall not knowingly misrepresent facts or
subordinate his or her judgment to others.

Rule 201 General Standards

A member shall comply with the following standards and any interpretations thereof by
bodies designated by Council.

A. Professional Competence. Undertake only those professional services that the
member or the member’s firm can reasonably expect to be completed with profes-
sional competence.

B. Due Professional Care. Exercise due professional care in the performance of pro-
fessional services.

C. Planning and Supervision. Adequately plan and supervise the performance of pro-
fessional services.

D. Sufficient Relevant Data. Obtain sufficient relevant data to afford a reasonable basis for
conclusions or recommendations in relation to any professional services performed.

Rule 202 Compliance with Standards

A member who performs auditing, review, compilation, management consulting, tax, or
other professional services shall comply with standards promulgated by bodies designated
by Council.
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Rule 203 Accounting Principles

A member shall not (1) express an opinion or state affirmatively that the financial state-
ments or other financial data of any entity are presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles or (2) state that he or she is not aware of any material mod-
ifications that should be made to such statements or data in order for them to be in confor-
mity with generally accepted accounting principles, if such statements or data contain any
departure from an accounting principle promulgated by bodies designated by Council to
establish such principles that has a material effect on the statements or data taken as a
whole. If, however, the statements or data contain such a departure and the member can
demonstrate that due to unusual circumstances the financial statements or data would
otherwise have been misleading, the member can comply with the rule by describing the
departure, its approximate effects, if practicable, and the reasons why compliance with the
principle would result in a misleading statement.

Rule 301 Confidential Client Information

A member in public practice shall not disclose any confidential client information without
the specific consent of the client.

This rule shall not be construed (1) to relieve a member of his or her professional oblig-
ations under rules 202 and 203, (2) to affect in any way the member’s obligation to comply
with a validly issued and enforceable subpoena or summons, or to prohibit a member’s com-
pliance with applicable laws and government regulations, (3) to prohibit review of a mem-
ber’s professional practice under AICPA or state CPA society or Board of Accountancy
authorization, or (4) to preclude a member from initiating a complaint with, or responding
to any inquiry made by, the ethics division or trial board of the Institute or a duly constituted
investigative or disciplinary body of a state CPA society or Board of Accountancy.

Members of any of the bodies identified in (4) above and members involved with pro-
fessional practice reviews identified in (3) above shall not use to their own advantage or dis-
close any member’s confidential client information that comes to their attention in carrying
out those activities. This prohibition shall not restrict members’ exchange of information in
connection with the investigative or disciplinary proceedings described in (4) above or the
professional practice reviews described in (3) above.

Rule 302 Contingent Fees'®

A member in public practice shall not

1. Perform for a contingent fee any professional services for, or receive such a fee from, a
client for whom the member or the member’s firm performs
a. an audit or review of a financial statement; or
b. a compilation of a financial statement when the member expects, or reasonably might
expect, that a third party will use the financial statement and the member’s compila-
tion report does not disclose a lack of independence; or
c¢. an examination of prospective financial information;
or
2. Prepare an original or amended tax return or claim for a tax refund for a contingent fee
for any client.

The prohibition in (1) above applies during the period in which the member or the mem-
ber’s firm is engaged to perform any of the services listed above and the period covered by
any historical financial statements involved in any such listed services.

'8 Laws or board of accountancy rules of some states prohibit the receipt of contingent fees by CPAs.
(Author’s note)
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Except as stated in the next sentence, a contingent fee is a fee established for the per-
formance of any service pursuant to an arrangement in which no fee will be charged unless
a specified finding or result is attained, or in which the amount of the fee is otherwise de-
pendent upon the finding or result of such service. Solely for purposes of this rule, fees are
not regarded as being contingent if fixed by courts or other public authorities, or, in tax mat-
ters, if determined based on the results of judicial proceedings or the findings of govern-
mental agencies.

A member’s fees may vary depending, for example, on the complexity of services
rendered.

Rule 401 [Reserved]
Rule 501 Acts Discreditable

A member shall not commit an act discreditable to the profession.

Rule 502 Advertising and Other Forms of Solicitation

A member in public practice shall not seek to obtain clients by advertising or other forms
of solicitation in a manner that is false, misleading, or deceptive. Solicitation by the use of
coercion, over-reaching, or harassing conduct is prohibited.

Rule 503 Commissions and Referral Fees'®
A. Prohibited Commissions

A member in public practice shall not for a commission recommend or refer to a client any
product or service, or for a commission recommend or refer any product or service to be
supplied by a client, or receive a commission, when the member or the member’s firm also
performs for that client

a. an audit or review of a financial statement; or

b. a compilation of a financial statement when the member expects, or reasonably might
expect, that a third party will use the financial statement and the member’s compilation
report does not disclose a lack of independence; or

c¢. an examination of prospective financial information.

This prohibition applies during the period in which the member is engaged to perform
any of the services listed above and the period covered by any historical financial state-
ments involved in such listed services.

B. Disclosure of Permitted Commissions

A member in public practice who is not prohibited by this rule from performing services
for or receiving a commission and who is paid or expects to be paid a commission shall
disclose that fact to any person or entity to whom the member recommends or refers a
product or service to which the commission relates.

C. Referral Fees

Any member who accepts a referral fee for recommending or referring any service of a
CPA to any person or entity or who pays a referral fee to obtain a client shall disclose such
acceptance or payment to the client.

Rule 504
[There is currently no rule 504.]

19 Laws or board of accountancy rules of some states prohibit the payment or receipt of commissions by
CPAs. (Author’s note)
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Rule 505 Form of Organization and Name

A member may practice public accounting only in the form of organization permitted by
law or regulation whose characteristics conform to resolutions of Council.

A member shall not practice public accounting under a firm name that is mislead-
ing. Names of one or more past owners may be included in the firm name of a successor
organization.

A firm may not designate itself as “Members of the American Institute of Certified Pub-
lic Accountants” unless all of its owners are members of the Institute.

Review 1. What are cute accounting and cooking the books?

[

Questions Why is the Equity Fun('iing Corppration of America fraud significant for management

accountants and financial executives?

3. Identify the four components of ethical conduct for management accountants, set
forth in Standards of Ethical Conduct for Members of the Institute of Management
Accountants.

4. How did the National Commission on Fraudulent Financial Reporting (Treadway
Commission) define fraudulent financial reporting?

5. What Rules of Professional Conduct of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants apply to all members of the AICPA, including management accountants?

6. Do the ethics codes of the Institute of Management Accountants and the Financial
Executives International require their members to comply with generally accepted ac-
counting principles? Explain.

7. What is insider trading of corporate securities?

8. Does the Securities and Exchange Commission accept a “good soldier” rationalization
for fraudulent financial reporting? Explain.

9. What are the obligations of management accountants regarding conflicts of interest?

10. Does the Code of Ethics of the Financial Executives International require FEI mem-
bers to maintain the confidentiality of information acquired in the course of their work
in all circumstances? Explain.

11. Does the Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants require AICPA members in industry to maintain the appearance of inde-
pendence? Explain.

12. What classes of accountants are subject to regulation by the Public Company Account-
ing Oversight Board?

Exercises
(Exercise 1.1) Select the best answer for each of the following multiple-choice questions:

1. The bylaws of the AICPA require members to adhere to the Code of Professional Con-
duct section entitled:
a. Principles
b. Rules
c. Interpretations
d. Ethics Rulings
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. A rule of the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct that does not apply to AICPA
members in private industry is:

. Rule 101 Independence.

. Rule 102 Integrity and Objectivity.
. Rule 201  General Standards.

d. Rule 203 Accounting Principles.
e. None of the foregoing.

a
b
c

. Conduct of a member’s personal affairs is addressed in the ethics code or codes of:

a. The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants only.

b. The Financial Executives International.

c. The Institute of Management Accountants only.

d. None of the three organizations cited above.

. According to the National Commission on Fraudulent Financial Reporting (Treadway
Commission), the responsibility for reliable financial reporting lies first and foremost:
a. At the corporate level.

b. With the SEC.

c. With independent auditors.

d. With state boards of accountancy.

. Does fraudulent financial reporting include:

Cooking the Books? Cute Accounting?
a. No Yes
b. No No
@, Yes Yes
d. Yes No

. According to the AICPA, are financial statements of a business enterprise that have
been drafted by the enterprise’s independent auditors on its behalf the representations
of the enterprise’s:

Management? Independent Auditors?
a. Yes Yes
b. Yes No
c. No Yes
d. No No

. Standards of Ethical Conduct for Members of the Institute of Management Accoun-
tants deal with all of the following except:

a. Competence

b. Confidentiality

c. Independence

d. Integrity

e. Objectivity

. The Report of the National Commission on Fraudulent Financial Reporting did not
include recommendations for:

a. Financial institution regulators.

b. Legal counsel of business enterprises.

c¢. Educators.

d. State boards of accountancy.
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9. Are conflicts of interest addressed directly in the ethics codes of the:

IMA? FEI? AICPA?

a. Yes Yes Yes
b.  Yes No Yes
c. No Yes Yes
d. No No Yes

10. Compliance with generally accepted accounting principles is required by the ethics
code of the:
a. AICPA only.
b. AICPA and FEL
c. AICPA and IMA.
d. AICPA, FEI, and IMA.

11. According to Standards of Ethical Conduct for Members of the Institute of Manage-
ment Accountants, management accountants faced with significant ethical issues
should first:

a. Discuss the issue with the immediate superior, except when it appears the superior
is involved.

b. Clarify relevant concepts by confidential discussion with an objective adviser.

c¢. Discuss the issue with the audit committee of the board of directors.

d. Follow the established policies of the business enterprise bearing on the resolution
of such issues.

12. The section of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Code of Profes-
sional Conduct that governs the performance of professional services by AICPA mem-
bers is the:

a. Principles

b. Rules

c. Bylaws

d. Technical standards

Cases

(Case 1.1) Suppose you were to participate in a debate of the following resolution:

Resolved, that the following sentence from the Preamble to Section I: Principles of the
AICPA Code of Professional Conduct is overly idealistic in today’s society:

The Principles call for an unswerving commitment to honorable behavior, even at the sacrifice of
personal advantage.

Instructions
Would you support the affirmative or the negative side of the debate? Explain.

(Case 1.2) In his Meditations, the Roman emperor Marcus Aurelius Antoninus wrote as follows (Books IIT
and VII):

A man must stand erect, not be kept erect by others. . . .
Be thou erect or be made erect.

Instructions
Evaluate the usefulness of the ethics rules of the AICPA, FEI, and IMA in relation to the
foregoing quotations.




(Case 1.3)

(Case 1.4)

(Case 1.5)

(Case 1.6)

(Case 1.7)

(Case 1.8)

(Case 1.9)
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Chief executive officers (CEOs) of business enterprises often pressure enterprise chief
financial officers (CFOs) or controllers to cook the books.

Instructions
Evaluate the ethics rules of the IMA, FEI, and AICPA as guidelines for resisting the pres-
sures described above.

General Instruction D(2)(a) of Form 10-K, Annual Report, requires the report, filed with
the SEC, to be signed by the registrant company’s principal financial officer and controller
or principal accounting officer. Similarly, General Instruction G of Form 10-Q, Quarterly
Report, requires the report, filed with the SEC, to be signed by the principal financial or
chief accounting officer of the registrant company.

Instructions

How should the chief financial officer (CFO) and the controller of an SEC registrant enter-
prise view the obligation to sign the registrant’s Form 10-K and Form 10-Q reports to the
SEC? Explain.

According to Ralph E. Walters (page 7 of the text): “An obligation to be impartial seems to
me to place a new and possibly unrealistic burden on the management accountant.”

Instructions
Do you agree with Walters? Explain.

An earlier version of the Financial Executives International Code of Ethics required FEI
members to conduct their personal affairs, as well as their business affairs, with honesty
and integrity. The current version does not have that requirement.

Instructions
Did the FEI err in removing the foregoing requirement from its ethics code? Explain.

Vernon Cass, chief financial officer of Tingley Corporation, a publicly owned enterprise,
asked his subordinate, John Conroy, CPA and controller of Tingley, if any accounting
changes might be made before the forthcoming close of the fiscal year to enhance Tingley’s
earnings for the year. Conroy suggested that he might extend economic lives of plant assets,
reduce the percentage used to estimate doubtful accounts expense based on net credit sales,
and defer, rather than expense, certain advertising costs that consistently had been recog-
nized as expenses in prior years. Cass instructed Conroy to formalize a proposal incorpo-
rating those suggestions, for consideration by the audit committee of Tingley’s board of
directors.

Instructions

Evaluate the actions of Vernon Cass and John Conroy. (Suggestion: Consider the provisions
of APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes,” and Statement on Auditing Standards
No. 57, “Auditing Accounting Estimates,” in your discussion.)

The following excerpt is from Standards of Ethical Conduct for Members of the Institute
of Management Accountants:

If [an] ethical conflict still exists after exhausting all levels of internal review, there may be no
other recourse on significant matters than to resign from the organization and to submit an infor-
mative memorandum to an appropriate representative of the organization.

Instructions
What is your opinion of the foregoing excerpt? Explain.

Certified public accountants (CPAs) typically are subject to codes of ethics or conduct en-
acted by state boards of accountancy that license the accountants.
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(Case 1.10)

(Case 1.11)

Instructions

Given that CPAs are subject to oversight by state boards of accountancy, what is the
incentive—if any—for CPAs in management accounting to be members of the AICPA, the
FEL or the IMA? Explain.

You are the chief financial officer of Playthings, Inc., a newly organized, publicly owned
manufacturer of toys and games. Roy Weber, the chairman of the audit committee of the
company’s board of directors, asks you to consider at what point, under generally accepted
accounting principles, the company can recognize revenue for “bill and hold” sales of toys
to retailers. He stresses that it is imperative for the company to comply with federal and
state securities laws.

Instructions
Prepare a memorandum to answer the audit committee chairman after you have researched
the following:

Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 6, “Elements of Financial
Statements,” pars. 78, 79.

Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 5, “Recognition and Measurement
in Financial Statements of Business Enterprises,” pars. 83, 84.

Uniform Commercial Code, secs. 401, 501.

SEC Accounting Series Release No. 292, “ . . . In the Matter of Arthur Andersen & Co.”

SEC Accounting and Auditing Enforcement Release No. 108, * . . . In the Matter of
Stewart Parness.”

SEC Accounting and Auditing Enforcement Release No. 817, . . . In the Matter of
Cypress Bioscience Inc. . . .”

In a September 1998 speech, former Securities and Exchange Commission Chairman
Arthur Levitt used the term cookie-jar reserves to describe a “cooking the books™ tech-
nique used by some publicly owned companies to manage earnings. The technique involved
establishing fictitious liabilities for bogus expenses or realized and earned revenues in a
highly profitiable quarter or fiscal year, and reversing the liabilities in subsequent low earn-
ings periods.

Instructions

a. Obtain and study SEC AAER 1140, “In the Matter of W. R. Grace & Co., Respondent”
(June 30, 1999) and describe the “cookie-jar reserves” technique used by Grace.

b. Review the Staff Accounting Bulletins issued by the SEC subsequent to June 30, 1999,
and briefly describe the provisions of a Bulletin dealing with the Grace matter and the
SEC staff’s resultant requirements.
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The Uniform Partnership Act, which has been adopted by most of the states, defines a part-
nership (often referred to as a firm) as “an association of two or more persons to carry on,
as co-owners, a business for profit.” In this definition, the term persons includes individu-
als and other partnerships, and in some states, corporations. Partnerships generally are as-
sociated with the practice of law, medicine, public accounting, and other professions, and
also with small business enterprises. In some states licensed professional persons such as
CPAs are forbidden to incorporate because the creation of a corporate entity might weaken
the confidential relationship between the professional person and the client. However, a
number of states have approved legislation designed to permit professional corporations,
which have various requirements as to professional licensing of stockholders, transfers of
stock ownership, and malpractice insurance coverage.

The traditional form of partnership under the Uniform Partnership Act has been the
general partnership, in which all partners have unlimited personal liability for unpaid
debts of the partnership. However, laws of several states now permit the formation of lim-
ited liability partnerships (LLPs), which have features of both general partnerships and
professional corporations. Individual partners of LLPs are personally responsible for their
own actions and for the actions of partnership employees under their supervision; how-
ever, they are not responsible for the actions of other partners. The LLP as a whole, like a
general partnership, is responsible for the actions of all partners and employees. Since
many of the issues of organization, income-sharing plans, and changes in ownership of
now-prevalent LLPs are similar to those of general partnerships, LLPs are discussed in
this section. The organization of limited liability partnerships and income-sharing plans
and changes in ownership of such partnerships are discussed and illustrated first, followed
by an explanation of the characteristics of, accounting for, and financial statements of
limited partnerships (which differ significantly from LLPs). The chapter ends with a
description of SEC enforcement actions involving unethical violations of accounting stan-
dards for partnerships.
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ORGANIZATION OF A LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP

Characteristics of an LLP
The basic characteristics of an LLP are:

Ease of Formation In contrast with a corporation, a limited liability partnership may be
created by an oral or a written contract between two or more persons, or may be implied by
their conduct. This advantage of convenience and minimum cost of the formation of a part-
nership in some cases may be offset by certain difficulties inherent in such an informal or-
ganizational structure. LLPs that are accounting or law firms generally must register with
the state licensing authority.

Limited Life An LLP may be ended by the death, retirement, bankruptcy, or incapacity of
a partner. The admission of a new partner to the partnership legally dissolves the former
partnership and establishes a new one.

Mutual Agency Each partner has the authority to act for the limited liability partnership
and to enter into contracts on its behalf. However, acts beyond the normal scope of business
operations, such as the obtaining of a bank loan by a partner, generally do not bind the part-
nership unless specific authority has been given to the partner to enter into such transactions.
Co-Ownership of Partnership Assets and Earnings When individuals invest assets in an
LLP, they retain no claim to those specific assets but acquire an ownership equity in net assets
of the partnership. Every member of an LLP also has an interest in partnership earnings; in
fact, participation in earnings and losses is one of the tests of the existence of a partnership.

Deciding between an LLP and a Corporation

One of the most important considerations in choosing between a limited liability partner-
ship and the corporate form of business organization is the income tax status of the enter-
prise and of its owners. An LLP pays no income tax but is required to file an annual
information return showing its revenue and expenses, the amount of its net income, and
the division of the net income among the partners. The partners report their respective
shares of the ordinary net income from the partnership and such items as dividends and
charitable contributions in their individual income tax returns, regardless of whether they
received more or less than this amount of cash from the partnership during the year.

A corporation is a separate legal entity subject to a corporate income tax. The net income,
when and if distributed to stockholders as dividends, often has been taxable income to stock-
holders. Certain corporations with few stockholders may elect to be taxed as partnerships, pro-
vided their net income or loss is assumed by their stockholders. These corporations file
information returns as do partnerships, and their stockholders report their respective shares of
the year’ net income or loss on individual tax returns. Thus, a limited liability partnership may
incorporate as a Subchapter S Corporation to retain the advantages of limited liability but at the
same time elect to be taxed as a partnership. Income tax rates and regulations are subject to fre-
quent change, and new interpretations of tax laws often arise. The tax status of the owners also
is likely to change from year to year. For these reasons, management of a business enterprise
should review the tax implications of the limited liability partnership and corporate forms of or-
ganization so that the enterprise may adapt most successfully to the income tax environment.

The burden of taxation is not the only factor influencing a choice between the limited li-
ability partnership and the corporate form of organization. Perhaps the factor that most of-
ten tips the scales in favor of incorporation is the opportunity for obtaining larger amounts
of capital when ownership may be divided into shares of capital stock, readily transferable,
and offering the advantages inherent in the separation of ownership and management.
Another reason for choosing the corporate form of organization is the limited liability of
all stockholders for unpaid debts of the corporation.
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Is the LLP a Separate Entity?

In accounting literature, the legal status of partnerships sometimes has received more em-
phasis than the fact that they are business enterprises. It has been common practice to dis-
tinguish a partnership from a corporation by saying that a partnership is an “association of
persons” and a corporation is a separate entity. Such a distinction stresses the legal form
rather than the economic substance of the business organization. In terms of managerial
policy and business objectives, limited liability partnerships are as much business and ac-
counting entities as are corporations. Limited liability partnerships typically are guided by
long-range plans not likely to be affected by the admission or withdrawal of a single part-
ner. In these firms the accounting policies should reflect the fact that the partnership is an
accounting entity apart from its owners.

Treating the LLP as an economic and accounting entity often will aid in developing fi-
nancial statements that provide the most meaningful presentation of financial position and
results of operations. Among the accounting policies to be stressed is continuity in asset
valuation, despite changes in the income-sharing ratio and changes in ownership. Another
appropriate policy may be recognizing as operating expenses the salaries for personal ser-
vices rendered by partners who also hold managerial positions. In theoretical discussions,
considerable support is found for treating every business enterprise as an accounting entity,
apart from its owners, regardless of the form of organization. A managing partner under
this view is both an employee and an owner, and the salary for the personal services ren-
dered by a partner is an operating expense of the partnership.

The inclusion of partners’ salaries among operating expenses has been opposed by some
accountants on grounds that partners’ salaries may be set at unrealistic levels and that a
partnership is an association of individuals who are owners and not employees of the part-
nership, despite their managerial or other functions.

A limited liability partnership has the characteristics of a separate entity in that it may hold
title to property, may enter into contracts, and in some states may sue or be sued as an entity.
In practice, most accountants treat limited liability partnerships as separate entities with con-
tinuity of accounting policies and asset valuations not interrupted by changes in ownership.

The Partnership Contract

Although a partnership may exist on the basis of an oral agreement or may be implied by
the actions of its members, good business practice requires that the partnership contract be
in writing. The most important points covered in a contract for a limited liability partner-
ship are the following:

1. The date of formation and the planned duration of the partnership, the names of the part-
ners, and the name and business activities of the partnership.

2. The assets to be invested by each partner, the procedure for valuing noncash invest-
ments, and the penalties for a partner’s failure to invest and maintain the agreed amount
of capital.

3. The authority of each partner and the rights and duties of each.

4. The accounting period to be used, the nature of accounting records, financial statements,
and audits by independent public accountants.

5. The plan for sharing net income or loss, including the frequency of income measure-
ment and the distribution of the income or loss among the partners.

6. The salaries and drawings allowed to partners and the penalties, if any, for excessive
withdrawals.

7. Insurance on the lives of partners, with the partnership or surviving partners named as
beneficiaries.
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8. Provision for arbitration of disputes and liquidation of the partnership at the end of the
term specified in the contract or at the death or retirement of a partner. Especially im-
portant in avoiding disputes is agreement on procedures such as binding arbitration for
the valuation of the partnership assets and the method of settlement with the estate of a
deceased partner.

One advantage of preparing a partnership contract with the aid of attorneys and accoun-
tants is that the process of reaching agreement on specific issues will develop a better under-
standing among the partners on many issues that might be highly controversial if not settled at
the outset. However, it is seldom possible to cover in a partnership contract every issue that
may later arise. Revision of the partnership contract generally requires the approval of all partners.

Disputes arising among partners that cannot be resolved by reference to the partnership
contract may be settled by binding arbitration or in the courts. A partner who is not satis-
fied with the handling of disputes always has the right to withdraw from the partnership.

Ledger Accounts for Partners

Accounting for an LLP differs from accounting for a single proprietorship or a corporation
with respect to the sharing of net income and losses and the maintenance of the partners’
ledger accounts. Although it might be possible to maintain partnership accounting records
with only one ledger account for each partner, the usual practice is to maintain three types
of accounts. These partnership accounts consist of (1) capital accounts, (2) drawing or per-
sonal accounts, and (3) accounts for loans to and from partners.

The original investment by each partner is recorded by debiting the assets invested, cred-
iting any liabilities assumed by the partnership, and crediting the partner’s capital account
with the current fair value of the net assets (assets minus liabilities) invested. Subsequent
to the original investment, the partner’s equity is increased by additional investments and
by a share of net income; the partner’s equity is decreased by withdrawal of cash or other
assets and by a share of net losses.

Another possible source of increase or decrease in partners’ ownership equity results
from changes in ownership, as described in subsequent sections of this chapter.

The original investment of assets by partners is recorded by credits to the capital ac-
counts; drawings (withdrawals of cash or other assets) by partners in anticipation of net in-
come or drawings that are considered salary allowances are recorded by debits to the
drawing accounts. However, a large withdrawal that is considered a permanent reduction in
the ownership equity of a partner is debited directly to the partner’s capital account.

At the end of each accounting period, the net income or net loss in the partnership’s In-
come Summary ledger account is transferred to the partners’ capital accounts in accordance
with the partnership contract. The debit balances in the drawing accounts at the end of the
period also are closed to the partners’ capital accounts. Because the accounting procedures
for partners’ ownership equity accounts are not subject to state regulations as in the case of
capital stock and other stockholders’ equity accounts of a corporation, deviations from the
procedures described here are possible.

Loans to and from Partners

Occasionally, a partner may receive cash from the limited liability partnership with the in-
tention of repaying this amount. Such a transaction may be debited to the Loans Receivable
from Partners ledger account rather than to the partner’s drawing account.

Conversely, a partner may make a cash payment to the partnership that is considered a
loan rather than an increase in the partner’s capital account balance. This transaction is
recorded by a credit to Loans Payable to Partners and generally is accompanied by the is-
suance of a promissory note. Loans receivable from partners are displayed as assets in the
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partnership balance sheet and loans payable to partners are displayed as liabilities. The clas-
sification of these items as current or long-term generally depends on the maturity date, al-
though these related party transactions may result in noncurrent classification of the
partners’ loans, regardless of maturity dates.

If a substantial unsecured loan has been made by a limited liability partnership to a part-
ner and repayment appears doubtful, it is appropriate to offset the receivable against the
partner’s capital account balance. If this is not done, partnership total assets and total part-
ners’ equity may be misleading. In any event, the disclosure principle requires separate list-
ing of any receivables from partners.

Valuation of Investments by Partners

The investment by a partner in the firm often includes assets other than cash. It is impera-
tive that the partners agree on the current fair value of nonmonetary assets at the time of
their investment and that the assets be recognized in the accounting records at such values.
Any gains or losses resulting from the disposal of such assets during the operation of the
partnership, or at the time of liquidation, generally are divided according to the plan for
sharing net income or losses. Therefore, equitable treatment of the individual partners re-
quires a starting point of current fair values recorded for all noncash assets invested in the
firm. Thus, partnership gains or losses from disposal of noncash assets invested by the part-
ners will be measured by the difference between the disposal price and the current fair
value of the assets when invested by partners, adjusted for any depreciation, amortization,
or impairment losses to the date of disposal.

INCOME-SHARING PLANS FOR LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIPS

Partners’ Equity in Assets versus Share in Earnings

The equity of a partner in the net assets of the limited liability partnership should be dis-
tinguished from a partner’s share in earnings. Thus, to say that David Jones is a one-third
partner is not a clear statement. Jones may have a one-third equity in the net assets of the
partnership but have a larger or smaller share in the net income or losses of the firm. Such
a statement might also be interpreted to mean that Jones was entitled to one-third of the net
income or losses, although his capital account represented much more or much less than
one-third of the total partners’ capital. To state the matter concisely, partners may agree on
any type of income-sharing plan (profit and loss ratio), regardless of the amount of their
respective capital account balances. The Uniform Partnership Act provides that if partners
fail to specify a plan for sharing net income or losses, it is assumed that they intended to
share equally. Because income sharing is of such great importance, it is rare to find a situ-
ation in which the partnership contract is silent on this point.

Division of Net Income or Loss

The many possible plans for sharing net income or loss among partners of a limited liabil-
ity partnership are summarized in the following categories:

1. Equally, or in some other ratio.

2. In the ratio of partners’ capital account balances on a particular date, or in the ratio of
average capital account balances during the year.

3. Allowing interest on partners’ capital account balances and dividing the remaining net
income or loss in a specified ratio.

4. Allowing salaries to partners and dividing the resultant net income or loss in a specified
ratio.
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Ledger Accounts
for Alb and Bay

5. Bonus to managing partner based on income.

6. Allowing salaries to partners, allowing interest on capital account balances, and divid-
ing the remaining net income or loss in a specified ratio.

These alternative income-sharing plans emphasize that the value of personal services
rendered by individual partners may vary widely, as may the amounts of capital invested by
each partner. The amount and quality of managerial services rendered and the amount of
capital invested often are important factors in the success or failure of a limited liability
partnership. Therefore, provisions may be made for salaries to partners and interest on their
respective capital account balances as a preliminary step in the division of income or loss.
Any remaining income or loss then may be divided in a specified ratio.

Another factor affecting the success of a limited liability partnership may be that one of
the partners has large personal financial resources, thus giving the partnership a strong credit
rating. Similarly, a partner who is well known in a profession or an industry may make an
important contribution to the success of the partnership without participating actively in the
operations of the partnership. These two factors may be incorporated in the income-sharing
plan by careful selection of the ratio in which any remaining net income or loss is divided.

The following examples show how each of the methods of dividing net income or loss
may be applied. This series of illustrations is based on data for Alb & Bay LLP, which had
a net income of $300,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005, the first fiscal year of
operations. The partnership contract provides that each partner may withdraw $5,000 cash
on the last day of each month; both partners did so during 2005. The drawings are recorded
by debits to the partners’ drawing accounts and are not a factor in the division of net income
or loss; all other withdrawals, investments, and net income or loss are entered directly in the
partners’ capital accounts.

Partner Alb invested $400,000 on January 1, 2005, and an additional $100,000 on April 1.
Partner Bay invested $800,000 on January 1, 2005, and withdrew $50,000 on July 1. These
transactions and events are summarized in the following Capital, Drawing, and Income
Summary ledger accounts:

Alb, Capital Bay, Capital
2005 2005 2005
Jan. 1 400,000 July 1 50,000 | Jan.1 800,000

Apr. 1 100,000

Alb, Drawing Bay, Drawing

2005 2005
Jan.-Dec. 60,000 Jan.—Dec. 60,000

Income Summary

2005
Dec. 31 300,000

Division of Earnings Equally or in Some Other Ratio

Many limited liability partnership contracts provide that net income or loss is to be divided
equally. Also, if the partners have made no specific agreement for income sharing, the Uni-
form Partnership Act provides that an intent of equal division is assumed. The net income
of $300,000 for Alb & Bay LLP is transferred by a closing entry on December 31, 2005,
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from the Income Summary ledger account to the partners’ capital accounts by the follow-
ing journal entry:

Income Summary 300,000
Alb, Capital 150,000
Bay, Capital 150,000

To record division of net income for 2005.

The drawing accounts are closed to the partners’ capital accounts on December 31,
2005, as follows:

Alb, Capital 60,000

Bay, Capital 60,000
Alb, Drawing 60,000
Bay, Drawing 60,000

To close drawing accounts.

After the drawing accounts are closed, the balances of the partners’ capital accounts
show the ownership equity of each partner on December 31, 2005.

If Alb & Bay LLP had a net loss of, say, $200,000 during the year ended December 31,
2005, the Income Summary ledger account would have a debit balance of $200,000. This
loss would be transferred to the partners’ capital accounts by a debit to each capital account
for $100,000 and a credit to the Income Summary account for $200,000.

If Alb and Bay share earnings in the ratio of 60% to Alb and 40% to Bay and net income
was $300,000, the net income would be divided $180,000 to Alb and $120,000 to Bay. The
agreement that Alb should receive 60% of the net income (perhaps because of greater
experience and personal contacts) would cause Partner Alb to absorb a larger share of the
net loss if the partnership operated unprofitably. Some partnership contracts provide that a net
income is to be divided in a specified ratio, such as 60% to Alb and 40% to Bay, but that a
net loss is divided equally or in some other ratio. Another variation intended to compensate
for unequal contributions by the partners provides that an agreed ratio (60% and 40% in
this example) shall be applicable to a specified amount of income but that any additional
income shall be shared in some other ratio.

Division of Earnings in Ratio of Partners’ Capital Account Balances
Division of partnership earnings in proportion to the capital invested by each partner is most
likely to be found in limited liability partnerships in which substantial investment is the princi-
pal ingredient for success. To avoid controversy, it is essential that the partnership contract spec-
ify whether the income-sharing ratio is based on (1) the original capital investments, (2) the
capital account balances at the beginning of each year, (3) the balances at the end of each year
(before the division of net income or loss), or (4) the average balances during each year.
Continuing the illustration for Alb & Bay LLP, assume that the partnership contract pro-
vides for division of net income in the ratio of original capital investments. The net income
of $300,000 for 2005 is divided as follows:

Alb: $300,000 X $400,000/$1,200,000 = $100,000
Bay: $300,000 X $800,000/$1,200,000 = $200,000
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Division of Net
Income in Ratio of
End-of-Year Capital
Account Balances

The journal entry to close the Income Summary ledger account would be similar to the
journal entry illustrated on page 31.

Assuming that the net income is divided in the ratio of capital account balances at the
end of the year (before drawings and the division of net income), the net income of
$300,000 for 2005 is divided as follows:

Alb: $300,000 X $500,000/$1,250,000 = $120,000
Bay: $300,000 X $750,000/$1,250,000 = $180,000

Division of net income on the basis of (1) original capital investments, (2) yearly begin-
ning capital account balances, or (3) yearly ending capital account balances may prove in-
equitable if there are material changes in capital accounts during the year. Use of average
balances as a basis for sharing net income is preferable because it reflects the capital actu-
ally available for use by the partnership during the year.

If the partnership contract provides for sharing net income in the ratio of average capi-
tal account balances during the year, it also should state the amount of drawings each part-
ner may make without affecting the capital account. In the example for Alb & Bay LLP, the
partners are entitled to withdraw $5,000 cash monthly. Any additional withdrawals or in-
vestments are entered directly in the partners’ capital accounts and therefore influence the
computation of the average capital ratio. The partnership contract also should state whether
capital account balances are to be computed to the nearest month or to the nearest day.

The computations of average capital account balances to the nearest month and the
division of net income for Alb & Bay LLP for 2005 are as follows:

ALB & BAY LLP
Computation of Average Capital Account Balances
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Average

Increase Capital Fraction Capital

(Decrease) Account of Year Account
Partner Date in Capital Balance Unchanged Balances
Alb Jan. 1 400,000 400,000 Va 100,000
Apr.1 100,000 500,000 a 375,000

475,000

Bay Jan. 1 800,000 800,000 2 400,000
July 1 (50,000) 750,000 2 375,000

775,000

Total average capital account balances for Alb and Bay 1,250,000
Division of net income: -
To Alb: $300,000 x $475,000/$1,250,000 114,000
To Bay: $300,000 x $775,000/$1,250,000 186,000

Total net income 300,000

Interest on Partners’ Capital Account Balances with Remaining

Net Income or Loss Divided in Specified Ratio

In the preceding section, the plan for dividing the entire net income in the ratio of partners’
capital account balances was based on the assumption that invested capital was the domi-
nant factor in the success of the partnership. However, in most cases the amount of invested
capital is only one factor that contributes to the success of the partnership. Consequently,
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many partnerships choose to divide only a portion of net income in the capital ratio and to
divide the remainder equally or in some other specified ratio.

To allow interest on partners’ capital account balances at 15%, for example, is the same
as dividing a part of net income in the ratio of partners’ capital balances. If the partners
agree to allow interest on capital as a first step in the division of net income, they should
specify the interest rate to be used and also state whether interest is to be computed on cap-
ital account balances on specific dates or on average capital balances during the year.

Again refer to Alb & Bay LLP with a net income of $300,000 for 2005 and capital ac-
count balances as shown on page 30. Assume that the partnership contract allows interest
on partners’ average capital account balances at 15%, with any remaining net income or
loss to be divided equally. The net income of $300,000 for 2005 is divided as follows:

Alb Bay Combined
Interest on average capital account balances:

Alb: $475,000 X 0.15 $ 71,250 $ 71,250
Bay: $775,000 X 0.15 $116,250 116,250
Subtotal $187,500

Remainder ($300,000 — $187,500)
divided equally 56,250 56,250 112,500
Totals $127,500 $172,500 $300,000

The journal entry to close the Income Summary ledger account on December 31, 2005,
is similar to the journal entry illustrated on page 31.

As a separate case, assume that Alb & Bay LLP had a net loss of $10,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2005. If the partnership contract provides for allowing interest on cap-
ital accounts, this provision must be enforced regardless of whether operations are prof-
itable or unprofitable. The only justification for omitting the allowance of interest on
partners’ capital accounts during a loss year would be in the case of a partnership contract
containing a specific provision requiring such omission. Note in the following analysis that
the $10,000 debit balance of the Income Summary ledger account resulting from the net
loss is increased by the allowance of interest to $197,500, which is divided equally:

Alb Bay Combined

Interest on average capital account balances:
Alb: $475,000 X 0.15 $ 71,250 $ 71,250
Bay: $775,000 X 0.15 $116,250 116,250
Subtotal $ 187,500

Resulting deficiency ($10,000 + $187,500)
divided equally (98,750) (98,750) 197,500
Totals $ (27,500) $ 17,500 $ (10,000)

The journal entry to close the Income Summary ledger account on December 31, 2005,
is shown below:

Alb, Capital 27,500
Income Summary 10,000
Bay, Capital 17,500

To record division of net loss for 2005.
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At first thought, the idea that a net loss of $10,000 should cause one partner’s capital to
increase and the other partner’s capital to decrease may appear unreasonable, but there is
sound logic to support this result. Partner Bay invested substantially more capital than did
Partner Alb; this capital was used to carry on operations, and the partnership’s incurring of
a net loss in the first year is no reason to disregard Bay’s larger capital investment.

A significant contrast between two of the income-sharing plans discussed here (the capital-
ratio plan and the interest-on-capital-accounts plan) is apparent if one considers the case of a
partnership operating at a loss. Under the capital-ratio plan, the partner who invested more
capital is required to bear a larger share of the net loss. This result may be considered unrea-
sonable because the investment of capital presumably is not the cause of a net loss. Under the
interest plan of sharing earnings, the partner who invested more capital receives credit for this
factor and is charged with a lesser share of the net loss, or may even end up with a net credit.

Using interest allowances on partners’ capital accounts as a technique for sharing partner-
ship earnings equitably has no effect on the measurement of the net income or loss of the part-
nership. Interest on partners’ capital accounts is not an expense of the partnership, but interest
on loans from partners is recognized as expense and a factor in the measurement of net income
or loss of the partnership. Similarly, interest earned on loans to partners is recognized as part-
nership revenue. This treatment is consistent with the point made on pages 28-29 that loans to
and from partners are assets and liabilities, respectively, of the limited liability partnership.

Another item of expense arising from dealings between a partnership and one of its part-
ners is commonly encountered when the partnership leases property from a lessor who is
also a partner. Rent expense is recognized by the partnership in such situations. The lessor,
although a partner, also is a lessor to the partnership.

Salary Allowance with Resultant Net Income or Loss Divided in Specified Ratio

Salaries and drawings are not the same thing. Because the term salaries suggests weekly or
monthly cash payments for personal services that are recognized as operating expenses by
the limited liability partnership, accountants should be specific in defining the terminology
used in accounting for a partnership. This text uses the term drawings in only one sense: a
withdrawal of cash or other assets that reduces the partner’s equity but has no part in the di-
vision of net income. In the discussion of partnership accounting, the word salaries means
an operating expense included in measuring net income or loss. When the term salaries is
used with this meaning, the division of net income is the same, regardless of whether the
salaries have been paid.

A partnership contract that authorizes partners to make regular withdrawals of specific
amounts should state whether such withdrawals are intended to be a factor in the division
of net income or loss. For example, assume that the contract states that Partner Alb may
make drawings of $3,000 monthly and Partner Bay $8,000. If the intent is not clearly stated
to include or exclude these drawings as an element in the division of net income or loss,
controversy is probable, because one interpretation will favor Partner Alb and the opposing
interpretation will favor Partner Bay.

Assuming that Partner Alb has more experience and ability than Partner Bay and also
devotes more time to the partnership, it seems reasonable that the partners will want to rec-
ognize the more valuable contribution of personal services by Alb in choosing a plan for di-
vision of net income or loss. One approach to this objective would be to adopt an unequal
ratio: for example, 70% of net income or loss to Alb and 30% to Bay. However, the use of
such a ratio usually is not a satisfactory solution, for the same reasons mentioned in criti-
cizing the capital ratio as a profit-sharing plan. A ratio based only on personal services may
not reflect the fact that other factors are important in determining the success of the part-
nership. A second point is that if the partnership incurs a loss, the partner rendering more
personal services will absorb a larger portion of the loss.
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A solution to the problem of recognizing unequal personal services by partners is to
provide in the partnership contract for different salaries to partners, with the resultant net
income or loss divided equally or in some other ratio. Applying this reasoning to the
continuing illustration for Alb & Bay LLP, assume that the partnership contract provides for
an annual salary of $100,000 to Alb and $60,000 to Bay, with resultant net income or loss
to be divided equally. The salaries are paid monthly during the year. The net income of
$140,000 for 2005 is divided as follows:

Alb Bay Combined

Salaries $100,000 $ 60,000 $160,000
Net income ($300,000 — $160,000)

divided equally 70,000 70,000 140,000

Totals $170,000 $130,000 $300,000

The following journal entries are required for the foregoing:

1. Monthly journal entries debiting Partners’ Salaries Expense,
$13,333 (§160,000 + 12 = $13,333) and crediting Alb, Capital,
$8,333 (§100,000 + 12 = $8,333) and Bay, Capital,
$5,000 ($60,000 + 12 = $5,000).

2. Monthly journal entries debiting Alb, Drawing, $8,333 and Bay, Drawing, $5,000 and
crediting Cash, $13,333.

3. End-of-year journal entry debiting Income Summary, $140,000, and crediting Alb,
Capital, $70,000 and Bay, Capital, $70,000.

Bonus to Managing Partner Based on Income

A partnership contract may provide for a bonus to the managing partner equal to a speci-
fied percentage of income. The contract should state whether the basis of the bonus is net
income without deduction of the bonus as an operating expense or income after the bonus. For
example, assume that the Alb & Bay LLP partnership contract provides for a bonus to Part-
ner Alb of 25% of net income (without deduction of the bonus) and that the remaining income
is divided equally. The net income is $300,000. After the bonus of $75,000 ($300,000 X
0.25 = $75,000) to Alb, the remaining $225,000 of income is divided $112,500 to Alb and
$112,500 to Bay. Thus, Alb’s share of income is $187,500 ($75,000 + $112,500 =
$187,500), and Bay’s share is $112,500; the bonus is not recognized as an operating expense
of the limited liability partnership.

If the partnership contract provided for a bonus of 25% of income after the bonus to
Partner Alb, the bonus is computed as follows:

Bonus + income after bonus = $300,000

Let X = income after bonus
0.25X = bonus
Then 1.25X = $300,000 income before bonus
X = $300,000 + 1.25
X = $240,000
0.25X = $60,000 bonus to Partner Alb'

! An alternative computation consists of converting the bonus percentage to a fraction. The bonus then may
be computed by adding the numerator to the denominator and applying the resulting fraction to the income
before the bonus. In the preceding example, 25% is converted to %; and adding the numerator to the

denominator, the % becomes %4 + 1 = 5). One-fifth of $300,000 equals $60,000, the bonus to Partner Alb.



36 Part One Accounting for Partnerships and Branches

Division of Net
Income after Salaries
Expense

Thus, the prebonus income of $300,000 in this case is divided $180,000 ($60,000 +
$120,000 = $180,000) to Alb and $120,000 to Bay, and the $60,000 bonus is recognized as
an operating expense of the partnership.

The concept of a bonus is not applicable to a net loss. When a limited liability partner-
ship operates at a loss, the bonus provision is disregarded. The partnership contract also
may specify that extraordinary items or other unusual gains and losses are to be excluded
from the basis for the computation of the bonus.

Salaries to Partners with Interest on Capital Accounts

Many limited liability partnerships divide income or loss by allowing salaries to partners
and also interest on their capital account balances. Any resultant net income or loss is di-
vided equally or in some other ratio. Such plans have the merit of recognizing that the
value of personal services rendered by different partners may vary, and that differences
in amounts invested also warrant recognition in an equitable plan for sharing net income
or loss.

To illustrate, assume that the partnership contract for Alb & Bay LLP provides for the
following:

1. Annual salaries of $100,000 to Alb and $60,000 to Bay, recognized as operating expense
of the partnership, with salaries to be paid monthly.

2. Interest on average capital account balances, as computed on page 33.
3. Remaining net income or loss divided equally.

Assuming income of $300,000 for 2005 before annual salaries expense, the $140,000
net income [$300,000 — ($100,000 + $60,000) = $140,000] is divided as follows:

Alb Bay Combined

Interest on average capital account balances:
Alb: $475,000 X 0.15 $71,250 $ 71,250
Bay: $775,000 X 0.15 $116,250 116,250
Subtotal $187,500

Resulting deficiency ($187,500 — $140,000)
divided equally (23,750) (23,750) (47,500)
Totals $47,500 $ 92,500 $140,000

The journal entries to recognize partners’ salaries expense, partners’ withdrawals of the
salaries, and closing of the Income Summary ledger account are similar to those described
on page 35.

Financial Statements for an LLP

Income Statement

Explanations of the division of net income among partners may be included in the part-
nership’s income statement or in a note to the financial statements. This information is re-
ferred to as the division of net income section of the income statement. The following
illustration for Alb & Bay LLP shows, in a condensed income statement for the year ended
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December 31, 2005, the division of net income as shown above and the disclosure of
partners’ salaries expense, a related party item:

ALB & BAY LLP
Income Statement
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Net sales $3,000,000
Cost of goods sold 1,800,000
Gross margin on sales $1,200,000
Partners’ salaries expense $160,000
Other operating expenses 900,000 1,060,000
Net income $ 140,000
Division of net income: -
Partner Alb $ 47,500
Partner Bay 92,500
Total $140,000

Note that because a partnership is not subject to income taxes, there is no income taxes
expense in the foregoing income statement. A note to the partnership’s financial statements
may disclose this fact and explain that the partners are taxed for their shares of partnership
income, including their salaries.

Statement of Partners’ Capital

Partners and other users of limited liability partnership financial statements generally want
a complete explanation of the changes in the partners’ capital accounts each year. To meet
this need, a statement of partners’ capital is prepared. The following illustrative statement
of partners’ capital for Alb & Bay LLP is based on the capital accounts presented on page 30
and includes the division of net income illustrated in the foregoing income statement.

ALB & BAY LLP
Statement of Partners’ Capital
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Partner Alb Partner Bay Combined
Partners’ original investments,
beginning of year $400,000 $800,000 $1,200,000
Additional investment
(withdrawal) of capital 100,000 (50,000) 50,000
Balances before salaries,
net income, and drawings $500,000 $750,000 $1,250,000
Add: Salaries 100,000 60,000 160,000
Net income 47,500 92,500 140,000
Subtotals $647,500 $902,500 $1,550,000
Less: Drawings 100,000 60,000 160,000
Partners’ capital, end of year $547,500 $842,500 $1,390,000

Partners’ capital at end of year is reported as owners’ equity in the December 31, 2005,
balance sheet of the partnership that follows.
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Balance Sheet
A condensed balance sheet for Alb & Bay LLP on December 31, 2005, is presented below.

ALB & BAY LLP
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 50,000 Trade accounts payable $ 240,000
Trade accounts Long-term debt 370,000
receivable 40,000 Total liabilities $ 610,000
Inventories 360,000 Partners’ capital:
Plant assets (net) 1,550,000 Partner Alb $547,500
Partner Bay 842,500 1,390,000
Total liabilities and
Total assets $2,000,000 partners’ capital $2,000,000
Statement of Cash Flows

A statement of cash flows is prepared for a partnership as it is for a corporation. This fi-
nancial statement, the preparation of which is explained and illustrated in intermediate ac-
counting textbooks, displays the net cash provided by operating activities, net cash used in
investing activities, and net cash provided or used in financing activities of the partnership.
A statement of cash flows for Alb & Bay LLP under the indirect method, which includes the
net income from the income statement on page 37 and the investments and combined draw-
ings from the statement of partners’ capital on page 37, is as follows:

ALB & BAY LLP

Statement of Cash Flows (indirect method)
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 140,000

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Partners’ salaries expense $ 160,000
Depreciation expense 20,000
Increase in trade accounts receivable (40,000)
Increase in inventories (360,000)
Increase in trade accounts payable 240,000 20,000
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 160,000
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of plant assets $(1,200,000)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Partners’ investments $1,300,000
Partner’s withdrawal (50,000)
Partners’ drawings (160,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,090,000
Net increase in cash (cash at end of year) $ 50,000

Exhibit | Noncash investing and financing activity:
Capital lease obligation incurred for plant assets $ 370,000
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Correction of Partnership Net Income of Prior Period

Any business enterprise, whether it be a single proprietorship, a partnership, or a corpora-
tion, will from time to time discover errors made in the measurement of net income in prior
accounting periods. Examples include errors in the estimation of depreciation, errors in in-
ventory valuation, and omission of accruals of revenue and expenses. When such errors are
discovered, the question arises as to whether the corrections should be treated as part of the
measurement of net income for the current accounting period or as prior period adjust-
ments and entered directly to partners’ capital accounts.

The correction of prior years’ net income is particularly important when the partner-
ship’s income-sharing plan has been changed. For example, assume that in 2005 the net in-
come for Alb & Bay LLP was $300,000 and that the partners shared the net income equally,
but in 2006 they changed the income-sharing ratio to 60% for Alb and 40% for Bay. Dur-
ing 2006 it was determined that the inventories at the end of 2005 were overstated by
$100,000 because of computational errors. The $100,000 reduction in the net income for
2005 should be divided $50,000 to each partner, in accordance with the income-sharing
ratio in effect for 2005, the year in which the error occurred.

Somewhat related to the correction of errors of prior periods is the treatment of nonop-
erating gains and losses. When the income-sharing ratio of a partnership is changed, the
partners should consider the differences that exist between the carrying amounts of assets
and their current fair values. For example, assume that Alb & Bay LLP owns land acquired
for $20,000 that had appreciated in current fair value to $50,000 on the date when the
income-sharing ratio is changed from 50% for each partner to 60% for Alb and 40% for
Bay. If the land were sold for $50,000 just prior to the change in the income-sharing ratio,
the $30,000 gain would be divided $15,000 to Alb and $15,000 to Bay; if the land were sold
immediately after establishment of the 60 : 40 income-sharing ratio, the gain would be di-
vided $18,000 to Alb and only $12,000 to Bay.

A solution sometimes suggested for such partnership problems is to revalue the partner-
ship’s assets to current fair value when the income-sharing ratio is changed or when a new
partner is admitted or a partner retires. In some cases the revaluation of assets may be jus-
tified, but in general the continuity of historical cost valuations in a partnership is desirable
for the same reasons that support the use of that valuation principle in accounting for cor-
porations. A secondary objection to revaluation of assets is that, with a few exceptions such
as marketable securities, satisfactory evidence of current fair value is seldom available. The
best solution to the problem of a change in the ratio of income sharing usually is achieved
by making appropriate adjustments to the partners’ capital accounts rather than by a re-
statement of carrying amounts of assets.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP OF LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIPS

Accounting for Changes in Partners

Most changes in the ownership of a limited liability partnership are accomplished without
interruption of its operations. For example, when a large LLP promotes one of its employ-
ees to partner, there is usually no significant change in the finances or operating routines of
the partnership. However, from a legal viewpoint a partnership is dissolved by the retire-
ment or death of a partner or by the admission of a new partner.

Dissolution of a partnership also may result from the bankruptcy of the firm or of any
partner, the expiration of a time period stated in the partnership contract, or the mutual
agreement of the partners to end their association.? Thus, the term dissolution may be

2The dissolution of a partnership is defined by the Uniform Partnership Act as “the change in the
relation of the partners caused by any partner ceasing to be associated in the carrying on as distinguished
from the winding up of the business.”
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used to describe events ranging from a minor change of ownership interest not affecting
operations of the partnership to a decision by the partners to terminate the partnership.
Accountants are concerned with the economic substance of an event rather than with its
legal form. Therefore, they must evaluate all the circumstances of the individual case to de-
termine how a change in partners should be recorded. The following sections of this chapter
describe and illustrate the principal kinds of changes in the ownership of a partnership.

Accounting and Managerial Issues

Although a partnership is ended in a legal sense when a partner withdraws or a new partner
is admitted, the partnership often continues operations with little outward evidence of change.
In current accounting practice, a partner’s interest often is considered a share in the part-
nership that may be transferred, much as shares of a corporation’s capital stock are trans-
ferred among stockholders, without disturbing the continuity of the partnership. For example,
if a partner of a CPA firm retires or a new partner is admitted to the firm, the contract for
the change in ownership should be planned carefully to avoid disturbing client relation-
ships. In a large CPA firm with hundreds of partners, the decision to promote an employee
to the rank of partner generally is made by a committee of partners rather than by action of
all partners.

Changes in the ownership of a partnership raise a number of accounting and managerial
issues on which an accountant may serve as consultant. Among these issues are the setting
of terms for admission of a new partner, the possible revaluation of existing partnership
assets, the development of a new plan for the division of net income or loss, and the deter-
mination of the amount to be paid to a retiring partner.

Admission of a New Partner

When a new partner is admitted to a firm of two or three partners, it is particularly appro-
priate to consider the fairness and adequacy of past accounting policies and the need for
correction of errors in prior years’ accounting data. The terms of admission of a new
partner often are influenced by the level and trend of past earnings, because they may be
indicative of future earnings. Sometimes accounting policies such as the use of the com-
pleted-contract method of accounting for construction-type contracts or the installment method
of accounting for installment sales may cause the accounting records to convey a misleading
impression of earnings in the years preceding the admission of a new partner. Accordingly, ad-
justments of the partnership accounting records may be necessary to restate the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities to current fair values before a new partner is admitted.

As an alternative to revaluation of the existing partnership assets, it may be preferable to
evaluate any differences between the carrying amounts and current fair values of assets and
adjust the terms for admission of the new partner. In this way, the amount invested by the
incoming partner may be set at a level that reflects the current fair value of the net assets of
the partnership, even though the carrying amounts of existing partnership assets remain un-
changed in the accounting records.

The admission of a new partner to a partnership may be effected either by an acquisition
of all or part of the interest of one or more of the existing partners or by an investment of
assets by the new partner with a resultant increase in the net assets of the partnership.

Acquisition of an Interest by Payment

to One or More Partners

If a new partner acquires an interest from one or more of the existing partners, the event is
recorded by establishing a capital account for the new partner and decreasing the capital ac-
count balances of the selling partners by the same amount. No assets are received by the
partnership; the transfer of ownership is a private transaction between two or more partners.
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As an illustration of this situation, assume that Lane and Mull, partners of Lane & Mull
LLP, share net income or losses equally and that each has a capital account balance of
$60,000. Nash (with the consent of Mull) acquires one-half of Lane’s interest in the part-
nership by a cash payment to Lane. The journal entry to record this change in ownership
follows:

Lane, Capital ($60,000 X ') 30,000
Nash, Capital 30,000
To record transfer of one-half of Lane’s capital to Nash.

The cash paid by Nash for half of Lane’s interest may have been the carrying amount of
$30,000, or it may have been more or less than the carrying amount. Possibly no cash price
was established; Lane may have made a gift to Nash of the equity in the partnership. Re-
gardless of the terms of the transaction between Lane and Nash, the journal entry illustrated
above is all that is required in the partnership’s accounting records; no change has occurred
in the partnership assets, liabilities, or fotal partners’ capital.

To explore further some of the implications involved in the acquisition of an interest by
a new partner, assume that Nash paid $40,000 to Lane for one-half of Lane’s $60,000 eq-
uity in the partnership. Some accountants have suggested that the willingness of the new
partner to pay $10,000 [$40,000 — ($60,000 X %) = $10,000] in excess of the carrying
amount for a one-fourth interest in the total capital of the partnership indicates that the to-
tal capital is worth $40,000 ($10,000 =~ 0.25 = $40,000) more than is shown in the ac-
counting records. They reason that the carrying amounts of partnership assets should be
written up by $40,000, or goodwill of $40,000 should be recognized with offsetting credits
of $20,000 each to the capital accounts of the existing partners, Lane and Mull. However,
most accountants take the position that the payment by Nash to Lane is a personal transac-
tion between them and that the partnership, which has neither received nor distributed any
assets, should prepare no journal entry other than an entry recording the transfer of one-half
of Lane’s capital to Nash.

What are the arguments for these two opposing views? Those who advocate a write-up
of assets stress the legal concept of dissolution of the former partnership and formation of
a new partnership. This change in identity of owners, it is argued, justifies a departure from
the going-concern principle and the revaluation of partnership assets to current fair values
to achieve an accurate measurement of the capital invested by each member of the new
partnership.

The opposing argument, that the acquisition of an interest by a new partner requires
only a transfer from the capital account of the selling partner to the capital account of the
new partner, is based on several points. First, the partnership did not participate in nego-
tiating the price paid by Nash to Lane. Many factors other than the valuation of partner-
ship assets may have been involved in the negotiations between the two individuals.
Perhaps Nash paid more than the carrying amount because Nash was allowed generous
credit terms by Lane or received more than a one-fourth share in partnership net income.
Perhaps the new partner was anxious to join the firm because of the personal abilities of
Lane and Mull or because of the anticipated growth of the partnership. Further, goodwill,
defined as the excess of the cost of an acquired company over the sum of its identifiable
net assets,? attaches only to a business as a whole.* For these and other reasons, one may

3 FASB Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” par. F1.
4 Ibid.
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New Partner Invests
Land

Recording Bonus to
Existing Partners

conclude that the cash paid for a partnership interest by a new partner to an existing
partner does not provide sufficient evidence to support changes in the carrying amounts of
the partnership’s assets.

Investment in Partnership by New Partner

A new partner may gain admission by investing assets in the limited liability partnership,
thus increasing its total assets and partners’ capital. For example, assume that Wolk and
Yary, partners of Wolk & Yary LLP, share net income or loss equally and that each has a
capital account balance of $60,000. Assume also that the carrying amounts of the partner-
ship assets are approximately equal to current fair values and that Zell owns land that might
be used for expansion of partnership operations. Wolk and Yary agree to admit Zell to the
partnership by investment of the land; net income and losses of the new firm are to be
shared equally. The land had cost Zell $50,000, but has a current fair value of $80,000. The
admission of Zell is recorded by the partnership as follows:

Land 80,000
Zell, Capital 80,000
To record admission of Zell to partnership.

Zell has a capital account balance of $80,000 and thus owns a 40% [$80,000 =+ ($60,000 +
$60,000 + $80,000) = 0.40] interest in the net assets of the firm. The fact that the three
partners share net income and losses equally does not require that their capital account bal-
ances be equal.

Bonus or Goodwill Allowed to Existing Partners

In a profitable, well-established firm, the existing partners may insist that a portion of the
investment by a new partner be allocated to them as a bonus or that goodwill be recog-
nized and credited to the existing partners. The new partner may agree to such terms be-
cause of the benefits to be gained by becoming a member of a firm with high earning
power.

Bonus to Existing Partners

Assume that in Cain & Duke LLP, the two partners share net income and losses equally
and have capital account balances of $45,000 each. The carrying amounts of the part-
nership net assets approximate current fair values. The partners agree to admit Eck to a
one-third interest in capital and a one-third share in net income or losses for a cash in-
vestment of $60,000. The net assets of the new firm amount to $150,000 ($45,000 +
$45,000 + $60,000 = $150,000). The following journal entry gives Eck a one-third interest
in capital and credits the $10,000 bonus ($60,000 — $50,000 = $10,000) equally to Cain
and Duke in accordance with their prior contract to share net income and losses equally:

Cash 60,000
Cain, Capital ($10,000 X '4) 5,000
Duke, Capital ($10,000 X %) 5,000
Eck, Capital ($150,000 X ') 50,000

To record investment by Eck for a one-third interest in capital,
with bonus of $10,000 divided equally between Cain and Duke.
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Goodwill to Existing Partners

In the foregoing illustration, Eck invested $60,000 but received a capital account balance
of only $50,000, representing a one-third interest in the net assets of the firm. Eck might
prefer that the full amount invested, $60,000, be credited to Eck’s capital account. This
might be done while still allotting Eck a one-third interest if goodwill is recognized by the
partnership, with the offsetting credit divided equally between the two existing partners. If
Eck is to be given a one-third interest represented by a capital account balance of $60,000,
the indicated total capital of the partnership is $180,000 ($60,000 X 3 = $180,000), and
the total capital of Cain and Duke must equal $120,000 ($180,000 X 245 = $120,000). Be-
cause their present combined capital account balances amount to $90,000, a write-up of
$30,000 in the net assets of the partnership is recorded as follows:

Cash 60,000

Goodwill ($120,000 — $90,000) 30,000
Cain, Capital ($30,000 X '4) 15,000
Duke, Capital ($30,000 X %) 15,000
Eck, Capital 60,000

To record investment by Eck for a one-third interest in capital, with credit
offsetting goodwill of $30,000 divided equally between Cain and Duke.

Evaluation of Bonus and Goodwill Methods

When a new partner invests an amount larger than the carrying amount of the interest
acquired, the transaction should be recorded by allowing a bonus to the existing partners.
The bonus method adheres to the valuation principle and treats the partnership as a going
concern.

The alternative method of recording the goodwill implied by the amount invested by
the new partner is not considered acceptable by the author. Use of the goodwill method
signifies the substitution of estimated current fair value of an asset rather than valuation
on a cost basis. The goodwill of $30,000 recognized in the foregoing example was not
paid for by the partnership. Its existence is implied by the amount invested by the new
partner for a one-third interest in the firm. The amount invested by the new partner may
have been influenced by many factors, some of which may be personal rather than eco-
nomic in nature.

Apart from the questionable theoretical basis for such recognition of goodwill, there are
other practical difficulties. The presence of goodwill created in this manner is likely to
evoke criticism of the partnership’s financial statements, and such criticism may cause the
partnership to write off the goodwill.> Also, if the partnership were liquidated, the goodwill
would have to be written off as a loss.

Fairness of Asset Valuation

In the foregoing examples of bonus or goodwill allowed to the existing partners, it was as-
sumed that the carrying amounts of assets of the partnership approximated current fair val-
ues. However, if land and buildings, for example, have been owned by the partnership for
many years, their carrying amounts and current fair values may be significantly different.
To illustrate this problem, assume that the net assets of Cain & Duke LLP, carried at
$90,000, were estimated to have a current fair value of $120,000 at the time of admission

> As indicated on page 41, only acquired goodwill should be recognized, and, as explained in Chapter 5,
it currently must be written off, in whole or in part, when it is determined to be impaired.
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Recording Bonus to
New Partner

of Eck as a partner. The previous example required Eck to receive a one-third interest in
partnership net assets for an investment of $60,000. Why not write up the partnership’s
identifiable assets from $90,000 to $120,000, with a corresponding increase in the capital
account balances of the existing partners? Neither a bonus nor the recognition of goodwill
then would be necessary to record the admission of Eck with a one-third interest in net as-
sets for an investment of $60,000 because this investment is equal to one-third of the total
partnership capital of $180,000 ($120,000 + $60,000 = $180,000).

Such restatement of asset values would not be acceptable practice in a corporation when
the market price of its capital stock had risen. If one assumes the existence of certain con-
ditions in a partnership, adherence to cost as the basis for asset valuation is as appropriate
a policy as for a corporation. These specific conditions are that the income-sharing ratio
should be the same as the share of equity of each partner and that the income-sharing ratio
should continue unchanged. When these conditions do not exist, a restatement of net assets
from carrying amount to current fair value may be the best way of achieving equity among
the partners.

Bonus or Goodwill Allowed to New Partner

A new partner may be admitted to a limited liability partnership because it needs cash or
because the new partner has valuable skills and business contacts. To ensure the admission
of the new partner, the present firm may offer the new partner a larger equity in net assets
than the amount invested by the new partner.

Bonus to New Partner

Assume that the two partners of Farr & Gold LLP, who share net income and losses equally
and have capital account balances of $35,000 each, offer Hart a one-third interest in net as-
sets and a one-third share of net income or losses for an investment of $20,000 cash. Their
offer is based on a need for more cash and on the conviction that Hart’s personal skills and
business contacts will be valuable to the partnership. The investment of $20,000 by Hart,
when added to the existing capital of $70,000, gives total capital of $90,000 ($20,000 +
$70,000 = $90,000), of which Hart is entitled to one-third, or $30,000 ($90,000 X /5 =
$30,000). The excess of Hart’s capital account balance over the amount invested represents
a $10,000 bonus ($30,000 — $20,000 = $10,000) allowed to Hart by Farr and Gold. Be-
cause those partners share net income or losses equally, the $10,000 bonus is debited to
their capital accounts in equal amounts, as shown by the following journal entry to record
the admission of Hart to the partnership:

Cash 20,000
Farr, Capital ($10,000 X V52) 5,000
Gold, Capital ($10,000 X '4) 5,000
Hart, Capital 30,000

To record admission of Hart, with bonus of $10,000 from Farr and Gold.

In outlining this method of accounting for the admission of Hart, it is assumed that the
net assets of the partnership were valued properly. If the admission of the new partner to a
one-third interest for an investment of $20,000 was based on recognition that the net assets
of the existing partnership were worth only $40,000, consideration should be given to writ-
ing down net assets by $30,000 ($70,000 — $40,000 = $30,000). Such write-downs would
be appropriate if, for example, trade accounts receivable included doubtful accounts or if
inventories were obsolete.
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Goodwill to New Partner

Assume that the new partner Hart is the owner of a successful single proprietorship that Hart
invests in the partnership rather than making an investment in cash. Using the same data as in
the preceding example, assume that Farr and Gold, with capital account balances of $35,000
each, give Hart a one-third interest in net assets and net income or losses. The identifiable tan-
gible and intangible net assets of the proprietorship owned by Hart are worth $20,000, but, be-
cause of its superior earnings record, a current fair value for the fotal net assets is agreed to
be $35,000. The admission of Hart to the partnership is recorded as shown below:

Identifiable Tangible and Intangible Net Assets 20,000
Goodwill ($35,000 — $20,000) 15,000
Hart, Capital 35,000

To record admission of Hart; goodwill is attributable to superior
earnings of single proprietorship invested by Hart.

The point to be stressed is that generally goodwill is recognized as part of the investment
of a new partner only when the new partner invests in the partnership a business enterprise
of superior earning power. 1f Hart is admitted for a cash investment and is credited with a
capital account balance larger than the cash invested, the difference should be recorded as
a bonus to Hart from the existing partners, or undervalued tangible or identifiable intangi-
ble assets should be written up to current fair value. Goodwill should be recognized only
when substantiated by objective evidence, such as the acquisition of a profitable business
enterprise.

Retirement of a Partner

A partner retiring from a limited liability partnership usually receives cash or other assets
from the partnership. It is also possible that a retiring partner might arrange for the sale of
his or her partnership interest to one or more of the continuing partners or to an outsider.
Because the accounting principles applicable to the latter situation already have been con-
sidered, the discussion of the retirement of a partner is limited to the situation in which the
retiring partner receives assets of the partnership.

An assumption underlying this discussion is that the retiring partner has a right to with-
draw under the terms of the partnership contract. A partner always has the power to
withdraw, as distinguished from the right to withdraw. A partner who withdraws in viola-
tion of the terms of the partnership contract, and without the consent of the other partners,
may be liable for damages to the other partners.

Computation of the Settlement Price

What is a fair measurement of the equity of a retiring partner? A first indication is the re-
tiring partner’s capital account balance, but this amount may need to be adjusted before it
represents an equitable settlement price. Adjustments may include the correction of errors
in accounting data or the recognition of differences between carrying amounts of partner-
ship net assets and their current fair values. Before making any adjustments, the accountant
should refer to the partnership contract, which may contain provisions for computing the
amount to be paid to a retiring partner. For example, these provisions might require an
appraisal of assets, an audit by independent public accountants, or a valuation of the part-
nership as a going concern according to a prescribed formula. If the partnership has not
maintained accurate accounting records or has not been audited, it is possible that the
partners’ capital account balances are misstated because of incorrect depreciation expense,
failure to provide for doubtful accounts expense, and other accounting deficiencies.
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Bonus Paid to Retiring
Partner

If the partnership contract does not contain provisions for the computation of the retir-
ing partner’s equity, the accountant may obtain written authorization from the partners to
use a specific method to determine an equitable settlement price.

In most cases, the equity of the retiring partner is computed on the basis of current fair
values of partnership net assets. The gain or loss indicated by the difference between the
carrying amounts of assets and their current fair values is divided in the income-sharing ra-
tio. After the equity of the retiring partner has been computed in terms of current fair val-
ues for assets, the partners may agree to settle by payment of this amount, or they may
agree on a different amount. The computation of an estimated current fair value for the re-
tiring partner’s equity is a necessary step in reaching a settlement. An independent decision
is made whether to recognize the current fair values and the related changes in partners’
capital in the partnership’s accounting records.

Bonus to Retiring Partner

The partnership contract may provide for the computation of internally generated goodwill
at the time of a partner’s retirement and may specify the methods for computing the good-
will. Generally, the amount of the computed goodwill is allocated to the partners in the
income-sharing ratio. For example, assume that partner Lund is to retire from Jorb, Kent &
Lund LLP. Each partner has a capital account balance of $60,000, and net income and
losses are shared equally. The partnership contract provides that a retiring partner is to re-
ceive the balance of the retiring partner’s capital account plus a share of any internally gen-
erated goodwill. At the time of Lund’s retirement, goodwill in the amount of $30,000 is
computed to the mutual satisfaction of the partners. In the opinion of the author, this
goodwill should not be recognized in the accounting records of the partnership by a
$30,000 debit to Goodwill and a $10,000 credit to each partner’s capital account.

Serious objections exist to recording goodwill as determined in this fashion. Because
only $10,000 of the goodwill is included in the payment for Lund’s equity, the remaining
$20,000 of goodwill has not been paid for by the partnership. Its display in the balance
sheet of the partnership is not supported by either the valuation principle or reliable evi-
dence. The fact that the partners “voted” for $30,000 of goodwill does not meet the need for
reliable evidence of asset values. As an alternative, it would be possible to recognize only
$10,000 of goodwill and credit Lund’s capital account for the same amount, because this
amount was paid for by the partnership as a condition of Lund’s retirement. This method is
perhaps more justifiable, but reliable evidence that goodwill exists still is lacking. (As in-
dicted on page 41, FASB Statement No. 142, “Accounting for Goodwill . . . ,” provides that
goodwill attaches only to a business as a whole and is recognized only when a business is
acquired.) The most satisfactory method of accounting for the retirement of partner Lund is
to record the amount paid to Lund for goodwill as a $10,000 bonus. Because the settlement
with Lund is for the balance of Lund’s capital account of $60,000, plus estimated goodwill
of $10,000, the following journal entry to record Lund’s retirement is recommended:

Lund, Capital 60,000
Jorb, Capital ($10,000 X ') 5,000
Kent, Capital ($10,000 X ') 5,000
Cash 70,000

To record payment to retiring partner Lund, including a bonus of $10,000.

The bonus method illustrated here is appropriate whenever the settlement with the
retiring partner exceeds the carrying amount of that partner’s capital. The agreement for
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settlement may or may not use the term goodwill; the essence of the matter is the determi-
nation of the amount to be paid to the retiring partner.

Bonus to Continuing Partners

A partner anxious to escape from an unsatisfactory business situation may accept less than
his or her partnership equity on retirement. In other cases, willingness by a retiring partner
to accept a settlement below carrying amount may reflect personal problems. Another pos-
sible explanation is that the retiring partner considers the net assets of the partnership to be
overvalued or anticipates less partnership net income in future years.

In brief, there are many factors that may induce a partner to accept less than the carry-
ing amount of his or her capital account balance on withdrawal from the partnership. Be-
cause a settlement below carrying amount seldom is supported by objective evidence of
overvaluation of assets, the preferred accounting treatment is to leave net asset valuations
undisturbed unless a large amount of impaired goodwill is carried in the accounting
records as a result of the prior admission of a partner as described on page 45. The differ-
ence between the retiring partner’s capital account balance and the amount paid in settle-
ment should be allocated as a bonus to the continuing partners.

For example, assume that the three partners of Merz, Noll & Park LLP share net in-
come or losses equally, and that each has a capital account balance of $60,000. Noll retires
from the partnership and receives $50,000. The journal entry to record Noll’s retirement
follows:

Noll, Capital 60,000
Cash 50,000
Merz, Capital ($10,000 X ') 5,000
Park, Capital ($10,000 X '%2) 5,000

To record retirement of Partner Noll for an amount less than carrying
amount of Noll’s equity, with a bonus to continuing partners.

The final settlement with a retiring partner often is deferred for some time after the part-
ner’s withdrawal to permit the accumulation of cash, the measurement of net income to date
of withdrawal, the obtaining of bank loans, or other acts needed to complete the transaction.

Death of a Partner

Limited liability partnership contracts often provide that partners shall acquire life insur-
ance policies on each others’ lives so that cash will be available for settlement with the es-
tate of a deceased partner. A buy-sell agreement may be formed by the partners, whereby
the partners commit their estates to sell their equities in the partnership and the surviving
partners to acquire such equities. Another form of such an agreement gives the surviving
partners an option to buy, or right of first refusal, rather than imposing on the partnership
an obligation to acquire the deceased partner’s equity.

LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

The legal provisions governing limited partnerships (not to be confused with limited lia-
bility partnerships) are provided by the Uniform Limited Partnership Act. Among the fea-
tures of a limited partnership are the following:

1. There must be at least one general partner, who has unlimited liability for unpaid debts
of the partnership.



48 Part One

Accounting for Partnerships and Branches

2. Limited partners have no obligation for unpaid liabilities of the limited partnership; only
general partners have such liability.

3. Limited partners have no participation in the management of the limited partnership.

4. Limited partners may invest only cash or other assets in a limited partnership; they may
not provide services as their investment.

5. The surname of a limited partner may not appear in the name of the partnership.

6. The formation of a limited partnership is evidenced by a certificate filed with the
county recorder of the principal place of business of the limited partnership. The cer-
tificate includes many of the items present in the typical partnership contract of a lim-
ited liability partnership (see pages 27-28); in addition, it must include the name and
residence of each general partner and limited partner; the amount of cash and other
assets invested by each limited partner; provision for return of a limited partner’s in-
vestment; any priority of one or more limited partners over other limited partners; and
any right of limited partners to vote for election or removal of general partners, termi-
nation of the partnership, amendment of the certificate, or disposal of all partnership
assets.

Membership in a limited partnership is offered to prospective limited partners in units
subject to the Securities Act of 1933. Thus, unless provisions of that Act exempt a lim-
ited partnership, it must file a registration statement for the offered units with the Secu-
rities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and undertake to file periodic reports with the
SEC. The SEC has provided guidance for such registration and reporting in Industry
Guide 5: Preparation of Registration Statements Relating to Interests in Real Estate
Limited Partnerships.

Large limited partnerships that engage in ventures such as oil and gas exploration and
real estate development and issue units registered with the SEC are termed master limited
partnerships.

Accounting for Limited Partnerships

The accounting for business transactions and events of limited partnerships parallels the ac-
counting for limited liability partnerships, except that limited partners do not have periodic
drawings debited to a Drawing ledger account. With respect to additions and retirements of
limited partners, who may be numerous, the limited partnership should maintain a sub-
sidiary limited partners’ ledger, similar to the stockholders’ ledger of a corporation, with
capital accounts for each limited partner showing investment units, increases for net in-
come and decreases for net losses, and decreases for retirements.

Financial Statements for Limited Partnerships

In Staff Accounting Bulletin 40, the SEC provided standards for financial statements of
limited partnerships filed with the SEC, as follows.®

The equity section of a [limited] partnership balance sheet should distinguish between
amounts ascribed to each ownership class. The equity attributed to the general partners
should be stated separately from the equity of the limited partners, and changes in the num-
ber of equity units . . . outstanding should be shown for each ownership class. A statement of
changes in partnership equity for each ownership class should be furnished for each period
for which an income statement is included.

6 Staff Accounting Bulletin 40, Topic F, Securities and Exchange Commission (Washington, DC: 1981).
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The income statements of [limited] partnerships should be presented in a manner which
clearly shows the aggregate amount of net income (loss) allocated to the general partners and
the aggregate amount allocated to the limited partners. The statement of income should also
state the results of operations on a per unit basis.

Although the foregoing standards are mandatory only for limited partnerships subject to the
SEC’s jurisdiction, they are appropriate for other limited partnerships.

To illustrate financial statements for a limited partnership, assume that Wesley Randall
formed Randall Company, a limited partnership that was exempt from the registration re-
quirements of the Securities Act of 1933. On January 2, 2005, Wesley Randall, the general
partner, acquired 30 units at $1,000 a unit, and 30 limited partners acquired a total of 570 units
at $1,000 a unit. The limited partnership certificate for Randall Company provided that lim-
ited partners might withdraw their net equity (investment plus net income less net loss) only
on December 31 of each year. Wesley Randall was authorized to withdraw $500 a month at
his discretion, but he had no drawings during 2005. Randall Company had a net income of
$90,000 for 2005, and on December 31, 2005, two limited partners withdrew their entire
equity interest of 40 units.

The following condensed financial statements (excluding a statement of cash flows) in-
corporate the foregoing assumptions and comply with the provisions of Staff' Accounting
Bulletin 40:

RANDALL COMPANY (a limited partnership)
Income Statement
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenue $400,000
Costs and expenses 310,000
Net income $ 90,000

Division of net income ($150* per unit based on 600
weighted-average units outstanding):

To general partner (30 units) $ 4,500
To limited partners (570 units) 85,500
Total $90,000

*$90,000 + 600 units outstanding throughout 2005 = $150.

RANDALL COMPANY (a limited partnership)
Statement of Partners’ Capital
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

General Partner Limited Partners Combined
Units Amount Units Amount Units Amount
Initial investments, beginning of year 30 $30,000 570 $570,000 600 $600,000
Add: Net income - 4,500 . 85,500 e 90,000
Subtotals 30 $34,500 570 $655,500 600 $690,000
Less: Redemption of units - 40 46,000* 40 46,000
Partners’ capital, end of year 30 $34,500 530 $609,500 560 $644,000

*40 X $1,000) + (40 X $150) = $46,000.
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RANDALL COMPANY (a limited partnership)
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Current assets $ 240,000 Current liabilities $ 100,000
Other assets 760,000 Long-term debt 256,000
Total liabilities $ 356,000

Partners’ capital ($1,150%
per unit based on 560
units outstanding):

General partner $ 34,500
Limited partners 609,500 644,000
Total liabilities and
Total assets $1,000,000 partners’ capital $1,000,000

*$644,000 + 560 = $1,150.

SEC ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS DEALING WITH
WRONGFUL APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR PARTNERSHIPS

In 1982, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) initiated a series of Accounting
and Auditing Enforcement Releases (AAERs) to report its enforcement actions involving
accountants. Following are summaries of two AAERs dealing with violations of account-
ing standards for partnerships.

AAER 202

AAER 202, “Securities and Exchange Commission v. William A. MacKay and Muncie A.
Russell” (September 29, 1988), deals with a general partnership formed by the former chief
executive officer (CEO) and chief financial officer (CFO) (a CPA) of American Biomateri-
als Corporation, a manufacturer of medical and dental products. The SEC alleged that the
partnership, Kirkwood Associates, ostensibly an executive search firm, had received more
than $410,000 from American Biomaterials for nonexistent services. The partnership had
no offices or employees, and its telephone number and address were those of a telephone
answering and mail collection service. Although its CEO and CFO directly benefited from
the $410,000 payments, American Biomaterials did not disclose this related-party trans-
action in its report to the SEC. The CEO and the CFO, without admitting or denying the
SEC’s allegations, consented to the federal court’s permanently enjoining them from vio-
lating the federal securities laws.

AAER 214

In AAER 214, “Securities and Exchange Commission v. Avanti Associates First Mortgage
Fund 84 Limited Partnership et al.” (January 11, 1989), the SEC reported on a federal
court’s entry of a permanent injunction against the general partner (a CPA) of a limited
partnership that in turn was the general partner of a second limited partnership that made
and acquired short-term first mortgage loans on real property. According to the SEC, the
financial statements of the second limited partnership, filed with the SEC in Form 10-K, in-
cluded a note that falsely reported the amount and nature of a related-party transaction.
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Correct reporting of the related-party transaction would have disclosed that the CPA had
improperly profited from a kickback scheme involving payments made by borrowers from
the limited partnership to a distant relative of the CPA. In a related enforcement action, re-
ported in AAER 220, . . . In the Matter of Richard P. Franke . . .” (March 24, 1989), the
SEC permanently prohibited appearing or practicing before it by the CPA who had ostensi-
bly audited the limited partnership’s financial statements that were included in Form 10-K.

Review
Questions

10.

11.

. In the formation of a limited liability partnership, partners often invest nonmonetary

assets such as land, buildings, and machinery, as well as cash. Should nonmonetary as-
sets be recognized by the partnership at current fair value, at cost to the partners, or at
some other amount? Explain.

Some large CPA firms have thousands of staff members, and hundreds of partners, and
operate on a national or an international basis. Would the professional corporation
form of organization be more appropriate than the limited liability partnership form for
such large organizations? Explain.

. Explain the limited liability partnership balance sheet display of loans to and from

partners and the accounting for interest on such loans.

Explain how partners’ salaries should be displayed in the income statement of a lim-
ited liability partnership, if at all.

List at least five items that should be included in a limited liability partnership
contract.

List at least five methods by which net income or losses of a limited liability partner-
ship may be divided among partners.

Ainsley & Burton LLP admitted Paul Craig to a one-third interest in the firm for his
investment of $50,000. Does this mean that Craig would be entitled to one-third of the
partnership’s net income or losses?

Duncan and Eastwick are negotiating a partnership contract, with Duncan to invest
$60,000 and Eastwick $20,000 in the limited liability partnership. Duncan suggests
that interest at 8% be allowed on average capital account balances and that any re-
maining net income or losses be divided in the ratio of average capital account bal-
ances. Eastwick prefers that the entire net income or losses be divided in the ratio of
average capital account balances. Comment on these proposals.

The partnership contract of Peel & Quay LLP is brief on the sharing of net income and
losses. It states: “Net income is to be divided 80% to Peel and 20% to Quay, and each
partner is entitled to draw $2,000 a month.” What difficulties do you foresee in imple-
menting this contract? Illustrate possible difficulties under the assumption that the
partnership had a net income of $100,000 in the first year of operations.

Muir and Miller operated Muir & Miller LLP for several years, sharing net income and
losses equally. On January 1, 2005, they agreed to revise the income-sharing ratio to
70% for Muir and 30% for Miller, because of Miller’s desire for semiretirement. On
March 1, 2005, the partnership received $10,000 in settlement of a disputed amount re-
ceivable on a contract completed in 2004. Because the outcome of the dispute had been
uncertain, no trade account receivable had been recognized. Explain the accounting
treatment you would recommend for the $10,000 cash receipt.

Should the carrying amounts of a limited liability partnership’s assets be restated to
current fair values when a partner retires or a new partner is admitted to the firm?
Explain.
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12. A new partner admitted to a limited liability partnership often is required to invest an
amount of cash larger than the carrying amount of the interest in net assets the new
partner acquires. In what way might such a transaction be recorded? What is the prin-
cipal argument for each method?

13. Two partners invested $2,000 each to form a limited liability partnership for the con-
struction of a shopping center. The partnership obtained a bank loan of $800,000 to fi-
nance construction, but no payment on this loan was due for two years. Each partner
withdrew $50,000 cash from the partnership from the proceeds of the loan. How
should the investment of $4,000 and the withdrawal of $100,000 be displayed in the fi-
nancial statements of the partnership?

14. A CPA firm was asked to express an auditors’ opinion on the financial statements of a
limited partnership in which a corporation was the general partner. Should the finan-
cial statements of the limited partnership and the auditors’ report thereon include the
financial statements of the general partner?

15. How do the financial statements of a limited partnership differ from those of a limited
liability partnership?

16. Differentiate between a limited liability partnership (LLP) and a limited partnership.

Exercises
(Exercise 2.1) Select the best answer for each of the following multiple-choice questions:

1. The partnership contract of Lowell & Martin LLP provided for salaries of $45,000 to
Lowell and $35,000 to Martin, with any remaining income or loss divided equally.
During 2005, pre-salaries income of Lowell & Martin LLP was $100,000, and both
Lowell and Martin withdrew cash from the partnership equal to 80% of their salary
allowances. During 2005, Lowell’s equity in the partnership:

a. Increased more than Martin’s equity.

b. Decreased more than Martin’s equity.

¢. Increased the same amount as Martin’s equity.
d. Decreased the same amount as Martin’s equity.

2. When Andrew Davis retired from Davis, Evans & Fell LLP, he received cash in excess
of his capital account balance. Under the bonus method, the excess cash received by
Davis:

a. Reduced the capital account balances of Evans and Fell.

b. Had no effect on the capital account balances of Evans and Fell.
c. Was recognized as goodwill of the partnership.

d. Was recognized as an operating expense of the partnership.

3. A large cash withdrawal by Partner Davis from Carr, Davis, Exley & Fay LLP, which
is viewed by all partners as a permanent reduction of Davis’s ownership equity in the
partnership, is recorded with a debit to:

a. Loan Receivable from Davis.
b. Davis, Drawing.

c¢. Davis, Capital.

d. Retained Earnings.

4. The partnership contract for Gore & Haines LLP provided that Gore is to receive an
annual salary of $60,000, Haines is to receive an annual salary of $40,000, and the
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net income or loss (after partners’ salaries expense) is to be divided equally between
the two partners. Net income of Gore & Haines LLP for the fiscal year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2005, was $90,000. The appropriate closing entry for net income on December 31,
2005, is a debit to Income Summary for $90,000 and credits to Gore, Capital and
Haines, Capital, respectively, of:
a. $54,000 and $36,000.
b. $55,000 and $35,000.
c. $45,000 and $45,000.
d. Some other amounts.

5. Which of the following is an expense of a limited liability partnership?
a. Interest on partners’ capital account balances.
b. Interest on loans from partners to the partnership.
c. Bothaandb.
d. Neither a nor b .

6. The CPA partners of Tan, Ullman & Valdez LLP shared net income and losses 25%,
35%, and 40%, respectively. On January 31, 2006, by mutual consent of the partners,
Julio Valdez withdrew from the partnership, receiving $162,000 for his $150,000 cap-
ital account balance. The preferable journal entry (explanation omitted) for the part-
nership on January 31, 2006, is:

(a) Valdez, Capital 150,000
Tan, Capital ($12,000 X 25/60) 5,000
Ullman, Capital ($12,000 X 35/60) 7,000
Cash 162,000
(b) Valdez, Capital 162,000
Goodwill 12,000
Valdez, Capital ($162,000 — $150,000) 12,000
Cash 162,000
(c) Goodwill ($12,000 + 0.40) 30,000
Valdez, Capital 162,000
Tan, Capital ($30,000 X 0.25) 7,500
Ullman, Capital ($30,000 X 0.35) 10,500
Valdez, Capital ($30,000 X 0.40) 12,000
Cash 162,000
(d) Valdez, Capital ($12,000 X 0.40) 4,800
Valdez, Capital ($150,000 — $4,800) 145,200
Tan, Capital ($12,000 X 0.25) 3,000
Ullman, Capital ($12,000 X 0.35) 4,200
Loss on Withdrawal of Partner 4,800
Cash 162,000

7. The two partners of Adonis & Brutus LLP share net income and losses in the ratio of

7 : 3, respectively. On February 1, 2005, their capital account balances were as follows:
Adonis $70,000
Brutus 60,000
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10.

11.

12.

Adonis and Brutus agreed to admit Cato as a partner on February 1, 2005, with a one-
third interest in the partnership capital and net income or losses for an investment
0f $50,000. The new partnership will begin with total capital of $180,000. Immediately
after Cato’s admission to the partnership, the capital account balances of Adonis,
Brutus, and Cato, respectively, are:

a. $60,000, $60,000, $60,000.

b. $63,000, $57,000, $60,000.

c. $63,333, $56,667, $60,000.

d. $70,000, $60,000, $50,000.

e. Some other amounts.

According to this text, the recognition of goodwill in the accounting records of a lim-
ited liability partnership may be appropriate for:

a. The admission of a new partner for a cash investment.
b. The retirement of an existing partner.

c. Either of the foregoing situations.

d. Neither of the foregoing situations.

The partnership contract for Clark & Davis LLP provides that “net income or losses
are to be distributed in the ratio of partners’ capital account balances.” The appro-
priate interpretation of this provision is that net income or losses should be distrib-
uted in:

a. The ratio of beginning capital account balances.

b. The ratio of average capital account balances.

c. The ratio of ending account balances (before distribution of net income or loss).

d. One of the foregoing methods to be specified by partners Clark and Davis.

Salaries to partners of a limited liability partnership typically should be accounted
for as:

a. A device for sharing net income.

b. An operating expense of the partnership.

¢. Drawings by the partners from the partnership.

d. Reductions of the partners’ capital account balances.

The income-sharing provision of the contract that established Early & Farber LLP pro-
vided that Early was to receive a bonus of 20% of income after deduction of the bonus,
with the remaining income distributed 40% to Early and 60% to Farber. If income be-
fore the bonus of Early & Farber LLP was $240,000 for the fiscal year ended August 31,
2005, the capital accounts of Early and Farber should be credited, respectively, in the
amounts of:

a. $120,000 and $120,000.

b. $124,800 and $115,200.

c. $96,000 and $144,000.

d. $163,200 and $76,800.

e. Some other amounts.

Which of the following typical expense of a corporation is not relevant for a limited
liability partnership?

a. Salaries expense.

b. Interest expense.

¢. Income taxes expense.
d. Pension expense.

e. None of the above.



(Exercise 2.2)

CHECK FIGURE
Credit Dody, capital,
a total of $9,975.

(Exercise 2.3)

CHECK FIGURE
b. Net income to Yu,
$28,000.

(Exercise 2.4)
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13. Are the results of operations on a per unit basis displayed in the income statement of a:

Limited Liability Partnership? Limited Partnership?

a. Yes Yes
b. Yes No
c. No Yes
d. No No

On January 2, 2005, Carle and Dody established Carle & Dody LLP, with Carle investing
$80,000 and Dody investing $70,000 on that date. The income-sharing provisions of the
partnership contract were as follows:

1. Salaries of $30,000 per annum to each partner.
2. Interest at 6% per annum on beginning capital account balances of each partner.
3. Remaining income or loss divided equally.

Pre-salary income of Carle & Dody LLP for the month of January 2005 was $20,000. Nei-
ther partner had a drawing for that month.

Prepare journal entries for Carle & Dody LLP on January 31, 2005, to provide for part-
ners’ salaries and close the Income Summary ledger account. Show supporting computa-
tions in the explanations for the entries.

Activity in the capital accounts of the partners of Webb & Yu LLP for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005, follows:

Webb, Capital Yu, Capital

Balances, Jan. 1 $40,000 $80,000
Investment, July 1 20,000
Withdrawal, Oct. 1 40,000

Net income of Webb & Yu LLP for the year ended December 31, 2005, amounted to
$48,000.

Prepare a working paper to compute the division of the $48,000 net income of Webb &
Yu LLP under each of the following assumptions:

a. The partnership contract is silent as to sharing of net income and losses.

b. Net income and losses are divided on the basis of average capital account balances (not
including the net income or loss for the current year).

c. Net income and losses are divided on the basis of beginning capital account balances.

d. Net income and losses are divided on the basis of ending capital account balances (not
including the net income or loss for the current year).

The partnership contract of Ray, Stan & Todd LLP provided that Ray was to receive a bonus
equal to 20% of income and that the remaining income or loss was to be divided 40% each
to Ray and Stan and 20% to Todd. Income of Ray, Stan & Todd LLP for 2005 (before the
bonus) amounted to $127,200.

Explain two alternative ways in which the bonus provision might be interpreted, and pre-
pare a working paper to compute the division of the $127,200 income of Ray, Stan & Todd
LLP for 2005 under each interpretation.
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(Exercise 2.5)

CHECK FIGURE
Net income to Jones,
$27,000.

(Exercise 2.6)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit bonus expense,
$10,000.

(Exercise 2.7)

CHECK FIGURE
Net income to Bates,
$42.,400.

(Exercise 2.8)

The partnership contract of Jones, King & Lane LLP provided for the division of net in-
come or losses in the following manner:

1. Bonus of 20% of income before the bonus to Jones.
2. Interest at 15% on average capital account balances to each partner.
3. Residual income or loss equally to each partner.

Net income of Jones, King & Lane LLP for 2005 was $90,000, and the average capital
account balances for that year were Jones, $100,000; King, $200,000; and Lane,
$300,000.

Prepare a working paper to compute each partner’s share of the 2005 net income of
Jones, King & Lane LLP.

The partnership contract of Ann, Bud & Cal LLP provides for the remuneration of partners
as follows:

1. Salaries of $40,000 to Ann, $35,000 to Bud, and $30,000 to Cal, to be recognized annu-
ally as operating expense of the partnership in the measurement of net income.

2. Bonus of 10% of income after salaries and the bonus to Ann.
3. Remaining net income or loss 30% to Ann, 20% to Bud, and 50% to Cal.

Income of Ann, Bud & Cal LLP before partners’ salaries and Ann’s bonus was $215,000 for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005.

Prepare journal entries for Ann, Bud & Cal LLP on December 31, 2005, to (1) accrue
partners’ salaries and Ann’s bonus and (2) close the Income Summary ledger account
(credit balance of $100,000) and divide the net income among the partners. Show support-
ing computations in the explanation for the second journal entry.

The partnership contract for Bates & Carter LLP provided for salaries to partners and the
division of net income or losses as follows:

1. Salaries of $40,000 a year to Bates and $60,000 a year to Carter.
2. Interest at 12% a year on beginning capital account balances.
3. Remaining net income or loss 70% to Bates and 30% to Carter.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, Bates & Carter LLP had presalaries income
of $200,000. Capital account balances on January 1, 2005, were $400,000 for Bates and
$500,000 for Carter; Bates invested an additional $100,000 in the partnership on Septem-
ber 30, 2005. In accordance with the partnership contract, both partners drew their salary
allowances in cash from the partnership during the year.

Prepare journal entries for Bates & Carter LLP on December 31, 2005, to (1) accrue
partners’ salaries and (2) close the Income Summary (credit balance of $100,000) and
drawing accounts. Show supporting computations in the journal entry closing the Income
Summary account.

Emma Neal and Sally Drew are partners of Neal & Drew LLP sharing net income or losses
equally; each has a capital account balance of $200,000. Sally Drew (with the consent of
Neal) sold one-fifth of her interest to her daughter Paula for $50,000, with payment to be
made to Sally Drew in five annual installments of $10,000, plus interest at 15% on the un-
paid balance.

Prepare a journal entry for Neal, Drew & Drew LLP to record the change in ownership,
and explain why you would or would not recommend a change in the valuation of net as-
sets in the accounting records of Neal, Drew & Drew LLP.



(Exercise 2.9)
CHECK FIGURE

Credit Clemon, capital,
$14,000.

(Exercise 2.10)

CHECK FIGURE
b. Credit Arne, capital,
$19,500.

(Exercise 2.11)

(Exercise 2.12)

CHECK FIGURE
b. Credit Crade, capital,
$34,000.

(Exercise 2.13)

CHECK FIGURE
Sept. 30, credit Major,
capital, $24,000.
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On January 31, 2005, Nancy Ross and John Clemon were admitted to Logan, Marsh &
Noble LLP (CPA firm), which had net assets of $120,000 prior to the admission and an
income-sharing ratio of Logan, 25%; Marsh, 35%; and Noble, 40%. Ross paid $20,000 to
Carl Logan for one-half of his 20% share of partnership net assets on January 31, 2005, and
Clemon invested $20,000 in the partnership for a 10% interest in the net assets of Logan,
Marsh, Noble, Ross & Clemon LLP. No goodwill was to be recognized as a result of the
admission of Ross and Clemon to the partnership.

Prepare separate journal entries on January 31, 2005, to record the admission of Ross
and Clemon to Logan, Marsh, Noble, Ross & Clemon LLP.

Partners Arne and Bolt of Arne & Bolt LLP have capital account balances of $30,000 and
$20,000, respectively, and they share net income and losses in a 3 : 1 ratio.

Prepare journal entries to record the admission of Cope to Arne, Bolt & Cope LLP
under each of the following conditions:

a. Cope invests $30,000 for a one-fourth interest in net assets; the total partnership capital
after Cope’s admission is to be $80,000.

b. Cope invests $30,000, of which $10,000 is a bonus to Arne and Bolt. In conjunction
with the admission of Cope, the carrying amount of the inventories is increased by
$16,000. Cope’s capital account is credited for $20,000.

Lamb and Meek, partners of Lamb & Meek Limited Liability Partnership who share net in-
come and losses 60% and 40%, respectively, had capital account balances of $70,000 and
$60,000, respectively, on June 30, 2005. On that date Lamb and Meek agreed to admit
Niles to Lamb, Meek & Niles Limited Liability Partnership with a one-third interest in total
partnership capital of $180,000 and a one-third share of net income or losses, for a cash
investment of $50,000.

Prepare a working paper to compute the balances of the Lamb, Capital, Meek, Capital
and Niles, Capital ledger accounts on June 30, 2005, following the admission of Niles to
Lamb, Meek & Niles Limited Liability Partnership.

Floyd Austin and Samuel Bradford are partners of Austin & Bradford LLP who share net
income and losses equally and have equal capital account balances. The net assets of the
partnership have a carrying amount of $80,000. Jason Crade is admitted to Austin, Bradford &
Crade LLP with a one-third interest in net income or losses and net assets. To acquire this
interest, Crade invests $34,000 cash in the partnership.

Prepare journal entries to record the admission of Crade in the accounting records of
Austin, Bradford & Crade LLP under the:

a. Bonus method.
b. Revaluation of net assets method, assuming partnership inventories are overstated.

On August 31, 2005, Logan and Major, partners of Logan & Major Limited Liability Part-
nership who had capital account balances of $80,000 and $120,000, respectively, on that
date and who shared net income and losses in a 2 : 3 ratio, agreed to admit Nelson to Logan,
Major & Nelson Limited Liability Partnership with a 20% interest in net assets and net in-
come in exchange for a $60,000 cash investment. Logan and Major were to retain their
prior income-sharing arrangement with respect to the 80% remainder of net income (100% —
20% = 80%). On September 30, 2005, after the closing of the partnership’s revenue and
expense ledger accounts, the Income Summary ledger account had a credit balance of
$50,000.
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(Exercise 2.14)

CHECK FIGURE
Credit Ole, capital,
$52,000.

(Exercise 2.15)

CHECK FIGURE
May 31, 2005, credit
Loy, capital, a total
of $72,000.

(Exercise 2.16)

Prepare journal entries for Logan, Major & Nelson Limited Liability Partnership to
record the admission of Nelson on August 31, 2005, and to close the Income Summary
ledger account on September 30, 2005.

On January 31, 2005, partners of Lon, Mac & Nan LLP had the following loan and capital
account balances (after closing entries for January):

Loan receivable from Lon $ 20,000 dr
Loan payable to Nan 60,000 cr
Lon, Capital 30,000 dr
Mac, Capital 120,000 cr
Nan, Capital 70,000 cr

The partnership’s income-sharing ratio was Lon, 50%; Mac, 20%; and Nan, 30%.

On January 31, 2005, Ole was admitted to the partnership for a 20% interest in total
capital of the partnership in exchange for an investment of $40,000 cash. Prior to Ole’s
admission, the existing partners agreed to increase the carrying amount of the partnership’s
inventories to current fair value, a $60,000 increase.

Prepare journal entries on January 31, 2005, for Lon, Mac, Nan & Ole LLP to record the
$60,000 increase in the partnership’s inventories and the admission of Ole for a $40,000
cash investment.

On May 31, 2004, Ike Loy was admitted to Jay & Kaye LLP by investing Loy Company, a
highly profitable proprietorship having identifiable tangible and intangible net assets of
$600,000, at carrying amount and current fair value. Prior to Loy’s admission, capital ac-
count balances and income-sharing percentages of Jay and Kaye were as follows:

Capital Account Income-Sharing
Balances Percentages
Jay $400,000 60%
Kaye 500,000 40%

The partnership contract for the new Jay, Kaye & Loy LLP included the following
provisions:

1. Loy was to receive a capital account balance of $660,000 on his admission to the part-
nership on May 31, 2004.

2. Income for the fiscal year ending May 31, 2005, and subsequent years was to be allo-
cated as follows:
a. Bonus of 10% of income after the bonus to Loy.
b. Resultant net income or loss 30% to Jay, 20% to Kaye, and 50% to Loy.

Income before the bonus for the year ended May 31, 2005, was $132,000.

Prepare journal entries for Jay, Kaye & Loy LLP on May 31, 2004, and May 31, 2005
(the latter to accrue Loy’s bonus and to close the Income Summary ledger account having
a credit balance of $120,000).

The inexperienced accountant for Fox, Gee & Hay LLP prepared the following journal en-
tries during the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005:
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2004

Sept. 1 Cash 50,000
Goodwill 150,000
Fox, Capital ($150,000 X 0.25) 37,500
Gee, Capital ($150,000 X 0.75) 112,500
CHECK FIGURE Hay, Capital 50,000

Credit Hay, capital, a To record admission of Hay for a 20% interest in net assets,
- amoun'; of $12 ’000 with goodwill credited to Fox and Gee in their former
e income-sharing ratio. Goodwill is computed as follows:

Implied total capital, based on Hay's
investment ( $50,000%5) $250,000

Less: Net assets prior to Hay's admission 100,000
Goodwill $150,000

2005

Aug. 31 Income Summary 30,000
Fox, Capital ($30,000 X 0.20) 6,000
Gee, Capital ($30,000 X 0.60) 18,000
Hay, Capital ($30,000 X 0.20) 6,000

To divide net income for the year in the residual income-
sharing ratio of Fox, 20%; Gee, 60%; Hay, 20%. Provision
in partnership contract requiring $40,000 annual salary
allowance to Hay is disregarded because income before
salary is only $30,000.

Prepare journal entries for Fox, Gee & Hay LLP on August 31, 2005, to correct the ac-
counting records, which have not been closed for the year ended August 31, 2005. Assume
that Hay’s admission to the partnership should have been recorded by the bonus method.
Do not reverse the foregoing journal entries.

(Exercise 2.17) On June 30, 2005, the balance sheet of King, Lowe & More LLP and the partners’ respec-
tive income-sharing percentages were as follows:

CHECK FIGURE

Credit cash, $107,000. e, Boils GHalolia (L7

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2005
Assets
Current assets $185,000
Plant assets (net) 200,000
Total assets $385,000
Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Trade accounts payable $ 85,000
Loan payable to King 15,000
King, capital (20%) 70,000
Lowe, capital (20%) 65,000
More, capital (60%) 150,000

Total liabilities and partners’ capital $385,000
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(Exercise 2.18)

CHECK FIGURE
Credit Reed, capital,
$22,000.

(Exercise 2.19)

(Exercise 2.20)

King decided to retire from the partnership on June 30, 2005, and by mutual agreement of
the partners the plant assets were adjusted to their total current fair value of $260,000. The
partnership paid $92,000 cash for King’s equity in the partnership, exclusive of the loan,
which was repaid in full. No goodwill was to be recognized in this transaction.

Prepare journal entries for King, Lowe & More LLP on June 30, 2005, to record the ad-
justment of plant assets to current fair value and King’s retirement.

The partners’ capital (income-sharing ratio in parentheses) of Nunn, Owen, Park & Quan LLP
on May 31, 2005, was as follows:

Nunn (20%) $ 60,000
Owen (20%) 80,000
Park (20%) 70,000
Quan (40%) 40,000

Total partners’ capital $250,000

On May 31, 2005, with the consent of Nunn, Owen, and Quan:

1. Sam Park retired from the partnership and was paid $50,000 cash in full settlement of
his interest in the partnership.

2. Lois Reed was admitted to the partnership with a $20,000 cash investment for a 10%
interest in the net assets of Nunn, Owen, Quan & Reed LLP.

No goodwill was to be recognized for the foregoing events.
Prepare journal entries on May 31, 2005, to record the foregoing events.

The accountant for Tan, Ulm & Vey LLP prepared the following journal entry on January
31, 2005:

2005
Jan. 31 Goodwill ($12,000 + 0.40) 30,000
Vey, Capital ($150,000 + $12,000) 162,000
Tan, Capital ($30,000 X 0.25) 7,500
Ulm, Capital ($30,000 X 0.35) 10,500
Vey, Capital ($30,000 X 0.40) 12,000
Cash 162,000

To record withdrawal of Ross Vey, with a cash payment of
$162,000, compared with his prewithdrawal capital account
balance, and recognition of implicit goodwill, allocated in
partners’ income-sharing ratio of 25% : 35% : 40%.

Prepare a journal entry for Tan, Ulm & Vey LLP on January 31, 2005, to correct, not re-
verse, the foregoing entry. Show supporting computations in the explanation for the entry.

Macco Company (a limited partnership) was established on January 2, 2005, with the is-
suance of 10 units at $10,000 a unit to Malcolm Cole, the general partner, and 40 units in
the aggregate to five limited partners at $10,000 a unit. The certificate for Macco provided
that Cole was authorized to withdraw a maximum of $24,000 a year on December 31 of each
year for which net income was at least $100,000 and that limited partners might withdraw
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their equity for cash or promissory notes on December 31 of each year only. For 2005
Macco Company had a net income of $300,000, and on December 31, 2005, Cole withdrew
$24,000 cash and a limited partner redeemed 10 units, receiving a two-year promissory
note bearing interest at 10%.

Prepare a statement of partners’ capital for Macco Company (a limited partnership) for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005.

Cases

(Case 2.1)

(Case 2.2)

(Case 2.3)

The author of Modern Advanced Accounting takes the position (page 27) that salaries
awarded to partners of a limited liability partnership should be recognized as operating
expenses of the partnership. Some other accountants maintain that partners’ salaries should
be accounted for as a step in the division of net income or losses of a limited liability
partnership.

Instructions
Which method of accounting for partners’ salaries do you support? Explain.

During your audit of the financial statements of Arnold, Bright & Carle LLP for the fiscal
year ended January 31, 2005, you review the following general journal entry:

2004
Feb. 1 Cash 120,000
Goodwill 60,000
Arnold, Capital ($60,000 X 0.60) 36,000
Bright, Capital ($60,000 X 0.40) 24,000
Carle, Capital 120,000

To record admission of Carla Carle to Arnold & Bright LLP
for a one-third interest in total capital, with implicit goodwill
allocated to Arnold and Bright in their income-sharing ratio.
Goodwill is computed as follows:

Implied total capital of partnership based

on Carle’s investment ($120,000 X 3) $360,000
Less: Total capital of Arnold and Bright (180,000)
Cash invested by Carle (120,000)
Goodwill $ 60,000

Instructions
Is recognition of goodwill in the foregoing journal entry in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles? Explain.

In a classroom discussion of accounting standards for limited liability partnerships, student
Ronald suggested that interest on partners’ capital account balances, allocated in accor-
dance with the partnership contract, should be recognized as an operating expense by the
partnership.

Instructions
What is your opinion of student Ronald’s suggestion? Explain.
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(Case 2.4)

(Case 2.5)

(Case 2.6)

The partners of Arch, Bell & Cole LLP had the following capital account balances and
income-sharing ratio on May 31, 2005 (there were no loans receivable from or payable to
partners):

Partner Capital Account Balance Income-Sharing Ratio
Arch $120,000 35%
Bell 210,000 25
Cole 90,000 40
Totals $420,000 100%

The partners are considering admission of Sidney Dale to the new Arch, Bell, Cole & Dale
LLP for a 25% interest in partnership capital and a 20% share of net income. They request
your advice on the preferability of Dale’s investing cash in the partnership compared with
their selling to Dale one-fourth of each of their partnership interests.

Instructions
Present the partners of Arch, Bell & Cole LLP with the advantages and disadvantages of
the two possible methods of the admission of Dale. Disregard income tax considerations.

During your audit of Nue & Olde LLP for its first year of operations, you discover the
following end-of-year adjusting entry in the partnership’s general journal:

2005

Dec. 31 Partners’ Income Taxes Expense 40,000
Partners’ Income Taxes Payable 40,000

To provide for income taxes payable on Nue's and Olde’s
individual income tax returns based on their shares of
partnership income for 2005.

Instructions

Is the recognition of income taxes expense in the foregoing journal entry in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles? Explain, including in your explanation the
accepted definitions of expense and income taxes expense.

Dee, Ern & Fay LLP, whose partners share net income and losses equally, had an operating
income of $30,000 for the first year of operations. However, near the end of that year, the
partners learned of two unfavorable developments: (@) the bankruptcy of Sasha Company,
maker of a two-year promissory note for $20,000 payable to Partner Dee that had been in-
dorsed in blank to the partnership by Dee at face amount as Dee’s original investment, and
(b) the appearance on the market of new competing patented devices that rendered worth-
less a patent with a carrying amount of $10,000 that had been invested in the partnership
by Ern as part of Ern’s original investment.

Dee, Ern & Fay LLP had retained the promissory note made by Sasha Company with the
expectation of discounting it when cash was needed. Quarterly interest payments had been
received regularly prior to the bankruptcy of Sasha, but present prospects were for no fur-
ther collections of interest or principal.

Fay argues that the $30,000 operating income should be divided $10,000 to each part-
ner, with the $20,000 loss on the uncollectible note debited to Dee’s capital account and the
$10,000 loss on the worthless patent debited to Ern’s capital account.



(Case 2.7)

(Case 2.8)
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Instructions
Do you agree with Fay? Explain.

A series of substantial net losses from operations has resulted in the following balance
sheet drafted by the controller of Nobis, Ortho & Parr LLP:

NOBIS, ORTHO & PARR LLP
Balance Sheet

July 31, 2005
Assets
Current assets $420,000
Plant assets (net) 550,000
Total assets $970,000

Liabilities and Partners’ Capital

Current liabilities $380,000
Long-term debt 420,000
Total liabilities $800,000
Art Nobis, capital $ 130,000
June Ortho, capital (120,000)
Carl Parr, capital 160,000
Total partners’ capital 170,000
Total liabilities and partners’ capital $970,000

Concerned about the partnership’s high debt-to-equity ratio of 470.6% ($800,000 -
$170,000 = 470.6%), the partners consult with Jack Julian, CPA, controller of the partner-
ship, who is a member of the AICPA, FEI, and IMA (see Chapter 1), regarding the propri-
ety of converting partner Ortho’s capital deficit to an account receivable. Ortho shows
Julian a personal financial statement showing net assets of more than $400,000; Ortho
points out that the bulk of her assets are in long-term investments that are difficult to liqui-
date to obtain cash for investment in the partnership. Partner Ortho is willing to pledge
high-grade securities in her personal portfolio of investments to secure the $120,000
amount.

Instructions
May Jack Julian ethically comply with the request of the partners of Nobis, Ortho & Parr
LLP? Explain.

Jean Rogers, CPA, is a member of the AICPA, the IMA, and the FEI (see Chapter 1); she is
employed as the controller of Barnes, Egan & Harder LLP. On June 30, 2005, the end of the
partnership’s fiscal year, partner Charles Harder informed Rogers that the proceeds of a
$100,000 personal loan to him by Local Bank on a one-year, 8% promissory note had been
deposited in the partnership’s checking account at Local Bank. Showing Rogers a memo
signed by all three partners that approved the partnership’s repayment of Harder’s personal
loan, including interest, Harder instructed Rogers to account for the loan proceeds as a
credit to his partnership capital account and to recognize the partnership’s subsequent pay-
ments of principal and interest on the loan with debits to Charles Harder, Drawing and
Interest Expense, respectively.

Instructions
May Jean Rogers ethically comply with Charles Harder’s request? Explain.
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(Case 2.9)

(Case 2.10)

(Case 2.11)

Carl Dobbs and David Ellis formed Dobbs & Ellis LLP on January 2, 2005. Dobbs invested
cash of $50,000, and Ellis invested cash of $20,000 and marketable equity securities
(classified as available for sale) with a current fair value of $80,000. A portion of the secu-
rities was sold at carrying amount in January 2005 to provide cash for operations of the
partnership.

The partnership contract stated that net income and losses were to be divided in the cap-
ital ratio and authorized each partner to withdraw $1,000 monthly. Dobbs withdrew $1,000
on the last day of each month during 2005, but Ellis made no withdrawals during 2005 until
July 1, when he withdraw all the securities that had not been sold by the partnership. The
securities that Ellis withdrew had a current fair value of $41,000 when invested in the part-
nership on January 2, 2005, and a current fair value of $62,000 on July 1, 2005, when with-
drawn. Ellis instructed the accountant for Dobbs & Ellis LLP to record the transaction by
reducing Ellis’s capital account balance by $41,000, which was done. Income from opera-
tions of Dobbs & Ellis LLP for 2005 amounted to $24,000.

Instructions

Determine the appropriate division of net income of Dobbs & Ellis LLP for 2005. If the
income-sharing provision of the partnership contract is unsatisfactory, state the assump-
tions you would make for an appropriate interpretation of the partners’ intentions. Describe
the journal entry, if any, that you believe should be made for Dobbs & Ellis LLP. (Disregard
income taxes.)

George Lewis and Anna Marlin are partners of Lewis & Marlin LLP, who share net in-
come and losses equally. They offer to admit Betty Naylor to Lewis, Marlin & Naylor LLP
for a one-third interest in net assets and in net income or losses for an investment of
$50,000 cash. The total capital of Lewis & Marlin LLP prior to Naylor’s admission was
$110,000. Naylor makes a counteroffer of $40,000, explaining that her investigation of
Lewis & Marlin LLP indicates that many trade accounts receivable are past due and that a
significant amount of the inventories is obsolete. Lewis and Marlin deny both of these
allegations. They contend that inventories are valued in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and that the accounts receivable are fully collectible. How-
ever, after prolonged negotiations, the admission price of $40,000 proposed by Naylor is
agreed upon.

Instructions
Explain two ways in which the admission of Naylor might be recorded by Lewis, Marlin &
Naylor LLP, and indicate which method is preferable.

Lowyma Company LLP, a partnership of Ed Loeser, Peter Wylie, and Herman Martin, has
operated successfully for many years, but Martin now plans to retire. In discussions of the
settlement to be made with Martin, the point was made that inventories had been valued at
last-in, first-out cost for many years. Martin suggested that because the partnership had be-
gun managing inventories by the just-in-time system, the first-in, first-out cost of the in-
ventories should be determined and the excess of this amount over the carrying amount of
the inventories should be recognized as a gain to the partnership to be shared equally by the
three partners. Loeser objected to this suggestion on grounds that any method of inventory
valuation would give reasonably accurate results provided it were followed consistently and
that a departure from the long-established last-in, first-out method of inventory valuation
used by the partnership would produce an erroneous earnings record for the life of the part-
nership to date.

Instructions
Evaluate the objections of Ed Loeser by reference to APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting
Changes.”
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Problems
(Problem 2.1)

(Problem 2.2)
CHECK FIGURE

a. Credit Ivan, capital,
$120,000; b. Net
income to Hawe,
$12,000.

Among the business transactions and events of Oscar, Paul & Quinn LLP, whose partners
shared net income and losses equally, for the month of January 2005, were the following:

Jan. 2 With the consent of Paul and Quinn, Oscar made a $10,000 cash advance to the
partnership on a 12% demand promissory note.

6 With the consent of Oscar and Paul, Quinn withdrew from the partnership
merchandise with a cost of $4,000 and a fair value of $5,200, in lieu of a regular
cash drawing. The partnership uses the perpetual inventory system.

13 The partners agreed that a patent with a carrying amount of $6,000, which had
been invested by Paul when the partnership was organized, was worthless and
should be written off.

27 Paul paid a $2,000 trade account payable of the partnership.

Instructions
Prepare journal entries for the foregoing transactions and events of Oscar, Paul & Quinn
LLP and the January 31, 2005, adjusting entry for the note payable to Oscar.

The condensed balance sheet of Gee & Hawe LLP on December 31, 2004, follows:

GEE & HAWE LLP
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2004

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Current assets $100,000 Liabilities $300,000
Plant assets (net) 500,000 Louis Gee, capital 200,000
Ray Hawe, capital 100,000
Total $600,000 Total $600,000

Gee and Hawe shared net income or losses 40% and 60%, respectively. On January 2, 2005,
Lisa Ivan was admitted to Gee, Hawe & Ivan LLP by the investment of the net assets of her
highly profitable proprietorship. The partners agreed to the following current fair values of
the identifiable net assets of Ivan’s proprietorship:

Current assets $ 70,000
Plant assets 230,000
Total assets $300,000
Less: Liabilities 200,000
Net assets $100,000

Ivan’s capital account was credited for $120,000. The partners agreed further that the
current fair values of the net assets of Gee & Hawe LLP were equal to their carrying
amounts and that the accounting records of the old partnership should be used for the new
partnership. The following partner-remuneration plan was adopted for the new partnership:

1. Salaries of $10,000 to Gee, $15,000 to Hawe, and $20,000 to Ivan, to be recognized as
expenses of the partnership.

2. A bonus of 10% of income after deduction of partners’ salaries and the bonus to Ivan.
3. Remaining income or loss as follows: 30% to Gee, 40% to Hawe, and 30% to Ivan.
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(Problem 2.3)

CHECK FIGURE

a. Net income to Ross,
$66,000; b. Saye,
capital, $294,000.

(Problem 2.4)

CHECK FIGURE

b. Net income to May,
$43,500; d. Net
income to Lucas,
$28,800.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, Gee, Hawe & Ivan LLP had income of
$78,000 before partners’ salaries and the bonus to Ivan.

Instructions
Prepare journal entries for Gee, Hawe & Ivan LLP to record the following (include sup-
porting computations in the explanations for the entries):

a. The admission of Ivan to the partnership on January 2, 2005.

b. The partners’ salaries, bonus, and division of net income for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2005.

Ross & Saye LLP was organized and began operations on March 1, 2004. On that date,
Roberta Ross invested $150,000, and Samuel Saye invested land and building with current
fair values of $80,000 and $100,000, respectively. Saye also invested $60,000 in the part-
nership on November 1, 2004, because of its shortage of cash. The partnership contract in-
cludes the following remuneration plan:

Ross Saye
Annual salary (recognized as operating expense) $18,000 $24,000
Annual interest on average capital account balances 10% 10%
Remainder 60% 40%

The annual salary was to be withdrawn by each partner in 12 monthly installments.

During the fiscal year ended February 28, 2005, Ross & Saye LLP had net sales of
$500,000, cost of goods sold of $280,000, and total operating expenses of $100,000 (in-
cluding partners’ salaries expense but excluding interest on partners’ average capital account
balances). Each partner made monthly cash drawings in accordance with the partnership
contract.

Instructions

a. Prepare a condensed income statement of Ross & Saye LLP for the year ended Febru-
ary 28, 2005. Show the details of the division of net income in a supporting exhibit.

b. Prepare a statement of partners’ capital for Ross & Saye LLP for the year ended Febru-
ary 28, 2005.

Partners Lucas and May formed Lucas & May LLP on January 2, 2005. Their capital ac-
counts showed the following changes during:

Lucas, May,
Capital Capital
Original investments, Jan. 2, 2005 $120,000 $180,000
Investments: May 1 15,000
July 1 15,000
Withdrawals: Nov. 1 (30,000) (75,000)
Capital account balances, Dec. 31, 2005 $105,000 $120,000

The income of Lucas & May LLP for 2005, before partners’ salaries expense, was
$69,600. The income included an extraordinary gain of $12,000.

Instructions
Prepare a working paper to compute each partner’s share of net income of Lucas & May
LLP for 2005 to the nearest dollar, assuring the following alternative income-sharing plans:



(Problem 2.5)

CHECK FIGURE

a. Net income to Alex,
$11,760; b. Crane,
capital, $202,540.

(Problem 2.6)

CHECK FIGURE
a. Debit Chu, capital,
$2,400; c. Debit Chu,
capital, $15,000.
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a. The partnership contract is silent as to division of net income or loss.

b. Income before extraordinary items is shared equally after allowance of 10% interest on
average capital account balances (computed to the nearest month) and after salaries of
$20,000 to Lucas and $30,000 to May recognized as operating expenses by the partner-
ship. Extraordinary items are shared in the ratio of original investments.

c. Income before extraordinary items is shared on the basis of average capital account bal-
ances, and extraordinary items are shared on the basis of original investments.

d. Income before extraordinary items is shared equally between Lucas and May after a
20% bonus to May based on income before extraordinary items after the bonus. Extra-
ordinary items are shared on the basis of original investments.

Alex, Baron & Crane LLP was formed on January 2, 2005. The original cash investments
were as follows:

Alex $ 96,000
Baron 144,000
Crane 216,000

According to the partnership contract, the partners were to be remunerated as follows:

1. Salaries of $14,400 for Alex, $12,000 for Baron, and $13,600 for Crane, to be recog-
nized as operating expenses by the partnership.

2. Interest at 12% on the average capital account balances during the year.
3. Remainder divided 40% to Alex, 30% to Baron, and 30% to Crane.

Income before partners’ salaries for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, was
$92,080. Alex invested an additional $24,000 in the partnership on July 1; Crane withdrew
$36,000 from the partnership on October 1; and, as authorized by the partnership contract,
Alex, Baron, and Crane each withdrew $1,250 monthly against their shares of net income
for the year.

Instructions

a. Prepare a working paper to divide the $92,080 income before partners’ salaries of the
Alex, Baron & Crane LLP for the year ended December 31, 2005, among the partners.
Show supporting computations.

b. Prepare a statement of partners’ capital for the Alex, Baron & Crane LLP for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Partner Eng plans to withdraw from Chu, Dow & Eng LLP on July 10, 2005. Partnership
assets are to be used to acquire Eng’s partnership interest. The balance sheet for the part-
nership on that date follows:

CHU, DOW & ENG LLP
Balance Sheet

July 10, 2005
Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 74,000 Liabilities $ 45,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 36,000 Chu, capital 120,000
Plant assets (net) 135,000 Dow, capital 60,000
Goodwill (net) 30,000 Eng, capital 50,000

Total $275,000 Total $275,000
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Chu, Dow, and Eng share net income and losses in the ratio of 3 : 2 : 1, respectively.

Instructions
Prepare journal entries to record Eng’s withdrawal from the Chu, Dow & Eng LLP on July 10,
2005, under each of the following independent assumptions:

a. Eng is paid $54,000, and the excess paid over Eng’s capital account balance is recorded
as a bonus to Eng from Chu and Dow.

b. Eng is paid $45,000, and the difference is recorded as a bonus to Chu and Dow from Eng.

c¢. Eng is paid $45,000, and goodwill currently in the accounting records of the partner-
ship, which arose from Chu’s original investment of a highly profitable proprietorship,
is reduced by the total amount of impairment implicit in the transaction.

d. Eng accepts cash of $40,500 and plant assets (equipment) with a current fair value of
$9,000. The equipment had cost $30,000 and was 60% depreciated, with no residual
value. (Record any gain or loss on the disposal of the equipment in the partners’ capital
accounts.)

(Problem 2.7) Yee & Zane LLP has maintained its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting,
except for the method of handling uncollectible account losses. Doubtful accounts expense
has been recognized only when specific trade accounts receivable were determined to be

uncollectible.
CHECK FIGURE The partners of Yee & Zane LLP are anticipating the admission of Arne to the firm on
a. Debit Yee, capital, December 31, 2005, and they retain you to review the partnership accounting records be-
$3,530; b. Credit Arne,  fore this action is taken. You suggest that the firm change retroactively to the allowance
capital, $20,000. method of accounting for doubtful accounts receivable so that the planning for admission
of Arne may be based on the accrual basis of accounting. The following information is
available:
Year Trade Additional
Accounts Trade Accounts Receivable Written Off Estimated
Receivable Uncollectible
Originated 2003 2004 2005 Accounts
2002 $1,200 $ 200
2003 1,500 1,300 $ 600 $ 450
2004 1,800 1,400 1,250
2005 2,200 4,800
Totals $2,700 $3,300 $4,200 $6,500

The partners shared net income and losses equally through 2004. In 2005 the income-
sharing plan was changed as follows: salaries of $8,000 and $6,000 to Yee and Zane, re-
spectively, to be expensed by the partnership; the resultant net income or loss to be divided
60% to Yee and 40% to Zane. Income of Yee & Zane LLP for 2005 was $52,000 before
partners’ salaries expense.

Instructions
a. Prepare a journal entry for Yee & Zane LLP on December 31, 2005, giving effect to the
change in accounting method for doubtful accounts expense. Support the entry with an
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exhibit showing changes in doubtful accounts expense for the year ended December 31,
2005.

b. Assume that after you prepared the journal entry in a above, Yee’s capital account bal-
ance was $48,000, Zane’s capital account balance was $22,000, and Arne invested
$30,000 for a 20% interest in net assets of Yee, Zane & Arne LLP and a 25% share in net
income or losses. Prepare a journal entry for Yee, Zane & Arne LLP to record the ad-
mission of Arne on December 31, 2005, by the bonus method.

(Problem 2.8) Following are financial statements and additional information for Alef, Beal & Clarke
LLP:

e hE ALEF, BEAL & CLARKE LLP

Net cash provided by S-S
operating activities, For Year Ended December 31, 2005
$45,804.
Revenue and gain:
Fees $480,000
Gain on disposal of equipment 600
Total revenue and gain $480,600
Expenses:
Depreciation $ 3,220
Other 427,670
Total expenses 430,890
Net income $ 49,710
Division of net income:
Partner Alef $ 22,280
Partner Beal 5,150
Partner Clarke 22,280

Total $ 49,710

ALEF, BEAL & CLARKE LLP
Statement of Partners’ Capital
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Alef Beal Clarke Combined

Partners’ capital, beginning of year $ 9,805 $10,680 $12,089 $32,574

Add: Net income 22,280 5,150 22,280 49,710
Goodwill recognized on

partner Beal's retirement 1,000 1,000 1,000 3,000

Subtotals $33,085 $16,830 $35,369 $85,284

Less: Drawings (16,735) (4,830) (15,700) (37,265)

Retirement of partner Beal (12,000) (12,000)

Partners’ capital, end of year $16,350 $ -0- $19,669 $36,019
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ALEF, BEAL & CLARKE LLP
Comparative Balance Sheets
December 31, 2005, and 2004

Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Increase
2005 2004 (Decrease)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 8,589 $ 3,295 $ 5,294
Trade accounts receivable 12,841 8,960 3,881
Allowance for doubtful accounts (930) (1,136) (206)*
Supplies 983 412 571
Total current assets $21,483 $11,531 $ 9,952
Investments:
Cash surrender value of life insurance
policies $ 4,060 $ 5,695 $(1,635)
Plant assets:
Land $ 4,200 $ 4,200 $ 0
Buildings and equipment 40,800 30,090 10,710
Accumulated depreciation of buildings and
equipment (12,800) (13,480) (680)"
Net plant assets $32,200 $20,810 $11,390
Goodwill $ 3,000 $ 3,000
Total assets $60,743 $38,036 $22,707

Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Current liabilities:

Note payable to bank $ 3,330 $ 3,330
Trade accounts payable 1,681 $ 2,984 (1,303)
Accrued liabilities 1,913 2,478 (565)
Current portion of long-term debt 5,600 5,600

Total current liabilities $12,524 $ 5,462 $ 7,062

Long-term debt:
Equipment contract payable, due $300

monthly plus interest at 6% $ 4,200 $ 4,200
Note payable to retired partner, due $2,000
each July 1 plus interest at 5% 8,000 8,000
Total long-term debt $12,200 $12,200
Total liabilities $24,724 $ 5,462 $19,262
Partners’ capital:
Partner Alef $16,350 $ 9,805 $ 6,545
Partner Beal 10,680 (10,680)
Partner Clarke 19,669 12,089 7,580
Total partners’ capital $36,019 $32,574 $ 3,445
Total liabilities and partners’ capital $60,743 $38,036 $22,707

*A decrease in the allowance and an increase in total current assets.

A decrease in accumulated depreciation and an increase in net plant assets.

Additional Information

1. Alef, Beal, and Clarke shared net income and losses equally. On July 1, 2005, after the
$15,450 net income of the partnership for the six months ended June 30, 2005, had been di-
vided among the partners, Andrew Beal retired from the partnership, receiving $2,000 cash




(Problem 2.9)

CHECK FIGURE
Net income to limited
partners, $360,000.
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and a 5%, five-year promissory note for $10,000 in full settlement of his interest. The
partners agreed to recognize goodwill of $3,000 prior to Beal’s retirement and to retain
Beal’s name in the partnership name. Alef and Clarke agreed to share net income and
losses equally following Beal’s retirement.

2. Following Beal’s withdrawal, the insurance policy on his life was canceled, and the part-
nership received the cash surrender value of $3,420.

3. The partnership had acquired equipment costing $15,210 on August 31, 2005, for $6,210
cash and an equipment contract payable $300 a month at the end of each month beginning
September 30, 2005, plus interest at 6%. The partnership made required payments when due.

4. On September 30, 2005, the partnership had disposed of equipment that had cost $4,500
for $1,200, recognizing a gain of $600.

5. The partnership had borrowed $3,330 from the bank on a six-month, 8% promissory
note due April 15, 2006.

Instructions
Prepare a statement of cash flows under the indirect method for Alef, Beal & Clarke LLP
for the year ended December 31, 2005. A working paper is not required.

Southwestern Enterprises (a limited partnership) was formed on January 2, 2005, with the
issuance of 1,200 units, $1,000 each, as follows:

Laurence Douglas, general partner, 400 units $ 400,000
10 limited partners, 800 units total 800,000
Total (1,200 units) $1,200,000

The trial balance of Southwestern Enterprises on December 31, 2005, the end of its first
year of operations, is as follows:

SOUTHWESTERN ENTERPRISES (a limited partnership)
Trial Balance
December 31, 2005

Debit Credit
Cash $ 20,000
Trade accounts receivable 90,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 10,000
Inventories 100,000
Plant assets 1,500,000
Accumulated depreciation of plant assets 100,000
Note payable to bank 20,000
Trade accounts payable 50,000
Accrued liabilities 30,000
Laurence Douglas, capital 400,000
Laurence Douglas, drawings 0
Limited partners, capital 800,000
Limited partners, redemptions 260,000
Net sales 1,400,000
Cost of goods sold 700,000
Operating expenses 140,000

Totals $2,810,000 $2,810,000
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Additional Information
1. The Limited Partners, Capital and Limited Partners, Redemptions ledger accounts are
controlling accounts supported by subsidiary ledgers.

2. The certificate for Southwestern Enterprises provides that general partner Laurence
Douglas may withdraw cash each December 31 to the extent of his unit participation in
the net income of the limited partnership. Douglas had no drawings for 2005. The cer-
tificate also provides that limited partners may withdraw their net equity only on June 30
or December 31 of each year. Two limited partners, each owning 100 units in South-
western Enterprises, withdrew cash for their equity during 2005, as shown by the fol-
lowing Limited Partners, Redemptions ledger account:

Limited Partners, Redemptions

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005

June 30 100 units @ $1,100 110,000 110,000 dr
Dec. 31 100 units @ $1,500 150,000 260,000 dr

3. Net income of Southwestern Enterprises for the year ended December 31, 2005, was
subdivided as follows:

Six months ended June 30, 2005 $120,000
Six months ended Dec. 31, 2005 440,000
Net income, year ended Dec. 31, 2005 $560,000

4. The 10%, six-month bank loan had been received on December 31, 2005.
5. There were no disposals of plant assets during 2005.

Instructions

Prepare an income statement, a statement of partners’ capital, a balance sheet, and a state-
ment of cash flows (indirect method) for Southwestern Enterprises (a limited partnership)
for the year ended December 31, 2005. Show net income per weighted-average unit sepa-
rately for the general partner and the limited partners in the income statement, and show
partners’ capital per unit in the balance sheet. A working paper is not required for the state-
ment of cash flows.

(Problem 2.10) The partners of Noble & Roland LLP have asked you to review the following balance sheet
(AICPA Professional Standards, vol. 2, “Compilation and Review of Financial Statements,”
sec. AR100.04 defines review as follows:

CHECK FIGURE Review of financial statements. Performing inquiry and analytical procedures that provide the
b. Total assets, accountant with a reasonable basis for expressing limited assurance that there are no material
$115,000. modifications that should be made to the statements in order for them to be in conformity

with generally accepted accounting principles or, if applicable, with another comprehensive
basis of accounting.

Also, sec. AR100.35 states: “Each page of the financial statements reviewed by the ac-
countant should include a reference such as ‘See Accountant’s Review Report.” )
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NOBLE & ROLAND LLP

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2005

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,000

Short-term investments in marketable equity
securities, at cost 10,000
10% note receivable, due on demand 20,000
Trade accounts receivable 40,000
Short-term prepayments 1,000
Total current assets $ 74,000
Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation $4,000 50,000
Total assets $124,000

Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Current liabilities:

Trade accounts payable $ 15,000
Accrued liabilities 2,000
Total current liabilities $ 17,000
Long-term debt:
8% note payable, due June 30, 2009 5,000
Total liabilities $ 22,000
Partners’ capital:
Partner Anne Noble $62,000
Partner Janice Roland 40,000
Total partners’ capital 102,000
Total liabilities and partners’ capital $124,000

Your review of the foregoing balance sheet disclosed the following:

1. The partners had requested your review because the bank considering their application for
a 30-day, 12%, unsecured loan of $5,000 had requested a review because of concern about
the partnership’s high current ratio of $4.35 to $1 ($74,000 + $17,000 = $4.35 to $1).

2. The short-term investments, properly classified as available for sale, had a current fair
value of $6,000. Because of the substantial unrealized loss on the investments, the part-
nership had no present plans to dispose of them in the near future.

3. The note receivable had been executed by partner Janice Roland two years ago; because
interest had been paid to June 30, 2005, the partnership had no present plans to demand
payment of the principal.

4. Trade accounts receivable totaling $5,000 are estimated to be doubtful of collection.

. Payee of the note payable was partner Anne Noble.

(9]

6. Interest rates on the note receivable and note payable, and depreciation of the equipment,
appeared appropriate.

Instructions

a. Prepare journal entries to correct the accounting records of Noble & Roland LLP as of
June 30, 2005. Allocate all entries affecting income statement accounts to the partners’
capital accounts in their income-sharing ratio: Noble, 60%; Roland, 40%.

b. Prepare a corrected balance sheet for Noble & Roland LLP as of June 30, 2005.
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In preparing the solution, refer to the following sources:
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43, “Restatement and Revision of Accounting
Research Bulletins,” chs. 1A5 and 3A4.
APB Opinion No. 12, “Omnibus Opinion—1967,” pars. 2 and 3.
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 57, “Related Party Disclosures,”
par. 2.
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Invest-
ments in Debt and Equity Securities,” pars. 12b, 13, and 17.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive
Income,” pars. 26 and 33a.




Chapter Three

Partnership Liquidation
and Incorporation;
Joint Ventures

Scope of Chapter

This chapter deals with the liquidation of limited liability partnerships (LLPs) and limited
partnerships. It also covers accounting issues related to incorporation of a limited liability
partnership. The final section of the chapter discusses and illustrates accounting for both
corporate and unincorporated joint ventures—business enterprises with features similar to
those of general partnerships.

LIQUIDATION OF A PARTNERSHIP
The Meaning of Liquidation

The liquidation of a limited liability partnership means winding up its activities, usually by
selling assets, paying liabilities, and distributing any remaining cash to the partners. In
some cases, the partnership net assets may be sold as a unit; in other cases, the assets may
be sold in installments, and most or all of the cash received must be used to pay partnership
creditors. This process of liquidation may be completed quickly, or it may require several
months.

When the decision is made to liquidate a limited liability partnership, the accounting
records of the partnership should be adjusted and closed, and the net income or loss for the
final period of operations entered in the capital accounts of the partners.

The liquidation process usually begins with the realization (conversion to cash) of non-
cash assets. Absent provisions of the partnership contract to the contrary, the losses or
gains from realization of assets are divided among the partners in the income-sharing ra-
tio and entered in their capital accounts. The amounts shown as their respective equities at
this point are the basis for settlement. However, before any payment to partners, all out-
side creditors of the limited liability partnership must be paid in full. If the cash obtained
from the realization of assets is insufficient to pay liabilities in full, an unpaid creditor may
act to enforce collection from the personal assets of any solvent partner whose actions
caused the partnership’s insolvency, regardless of whether that partner has a credit or a
debit capital account balance. As pointed out in Chapter 2, a partnership is treated as an
entity for many purposes such as changes in partners, but it may not use the shield of a

75
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separate entity to protect culpable partners personally against the claims of unpaid part-
nership creditors.

Division of Losses and Gains during Liquidation

The underlying theme in accounting for the liquidation of a limited liability partnership
may be stated as follows: Divide the loss or gain from the realization of noncash assets
before distributing cash. As assets are realized, any loss or gain is allocated to the partners’
capital accounts in the income-sharing ratio. The income-sharing ratio used during the op-
eration of the partnership is applicable also to the losses and gains during liquidation, un-
less the partners have a different agreement.

When the net loss or gain from liquidation is divided among the partners and outside
creditors have been paid, the final credit balances of the partners’ capital and loan ledger ac-
counts will be equal to the cash available for distribution to them. Payments are then made
in the amounts of the partners’ respective equities in the partnership.

Distribution of Cash or Other Assets to Partners

The Uniform Partnership Act lists the order for distribution of cash by a liquidating part-
nership as (1) payment of creditors in full, (2) payment of loans from partners, and (3) pay-
ment of partners’ capital account credit balances. The indicated priority of partners’ loans
over partners’ capital appears to be a legal fiction. This rule is nullified for practical pur-
poses by an established legal doctrine called the right of offset. If a partner’s capital ac-
count has a debit balance (or even a potential debit balance depending on possible future
realization losses), any credit balance in that partner’s loan account must be offset against
the deficit (or potential deficit) in the capital account. However, if a partner with a loan
account receives any cash, the payment is recorded by a debit to the loan account to the
extent of the balance of that account.

Because of the right of offset, the total amount of cash received by a partner during lig-
uidation always will be the same as if loans to the partnership had been recorded in the part-
ner’s capital account. Furthermore, the existence of a partner’s loan account will not advance
the time of payment to any partner during the liquidation. Consequently, in the preparation
of a statement of realization and liquidation (sce page 77), the number of columns may be
reduced by combining the amount of a partner’s loan with the amount shown in the partner’s
capital account. Thus, the statement of realization and liquidation will include only one
column for each partner; the first amount in the column will be the total equity (including
any loans) of the partner at the beginning of liquidation.

Combining the capital and loan ledger account balances of a partner in the statement of
realization and liquidation does not imply combining these accounts in the partnership
ledger. Separate ledger accounts for capital and for loans should be maintained to provide
a clear record of the terms under which assets were invested by the partners.

A partner may choose to receive certain noncash assets, such as computers or office
furniture, in kind rather than to convert such property to cash. Regardless of whether non-
cash assets are distributed to partners, it is imperative to follow the rule that no distribu-
tion of assets may be made to partners until after all outside partnership creditors have
been paid.

The following section of this chapter illustrates a series of liquidations in which the
realization of noncash assets is completed before any payments are made to partners.
Another section illustrates liquidation in installments; that is, payments to partners after a
portion of the noncash assets has been realized and all liabilities to outsiders have been
paid, but with the final loss or gain from realization of the remaining assets not known. The
installment payments to partners are computed by a method that provides a safeguard
against overpayment.
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PAYMENTS TO PARTNERS OF AN LLP AFTER
ALL NONCASH ASSETS REALIZED

Balance Sheet of
Limited Liability
Partnership Prior to
Liquidation

Equity of Each Partner Is Sufficient to Absorb
Loss from Realization

Assume that Abra and Barg, who share net income and losses equally, decide to liquidate
Abra & Barg LLP. A balance sheet on June 30, 2005, just prior to liquidation, follows:

ABRA & BARG LLP
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $10,000 Liabilities $20,000
Other assets 75,000 Loan payable to Barg 20,000
Abra, capital 40,000
Barg, capital 5,000
Total $85,000 Total $85,000

As a first step in the liquidation, the noncash assets with a carrying amount of $75,000
realized cash of $35,000, with a resultant loss of $40,000 absorbed equally by Abra and
Barg. Because Barg’s capital account balance is only $5,000, the partnership’s accountant
exercises the right of offset by transferring $15,000 from Barg’s loan ledger account to
Barg’s capital account. The statement of realization and liquidation below, covering the pe-
riod July I through 15, 2005, shows the division of the realization loss between the part-
ners, the payment of outside creditors, the offset of Barg’s capital deficit against Barg’s loan,
and the distribution of the remaining cash to the partners. (The income-sharing ratio ap-
pears next to each partner’s name.)

ABRA & BARG LLP
Statement of Realization and Liquidation
July 1 through 15, 2005

Partners’ Capital
Assets Barg, Abra Barg
Cash Other Liabilities loan (50%) (50%)
Balances before liquidation $10,000 $75,000 $20,000 $20,000 $40,000 $ 5,000
Realization of other assets at a
loss of $40,000 35,000 | (75,000) (20,000) (20,000)
Balances $45,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 | $(15,000)
Payment to creditors (20,000) (20,000)
Balances $25,000 $20,000 $20,000 $(15,000)
Offset Barg’s capital deficit
against Barg’s loan (15,000) 15,000
Balances $25,000 $ 5,000 $20,000 $ -O-
Payments to partners (25,000) (5,000) (20,000) -0-
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Balance Sheet for
Limited Liability
Partnership to Be
Liquidated

In the foregoing statement of realization and liquidation, Barg’s loan account balance of
$20,000 and capital account balance of $5,000 might have been combined to obtain an
equity of $25,000 for Barg. As stated earlier, such a procedure would be appropriate be-
cause the legal priority of a partner’s loan account has no significance in determining either
the total amount of cash paid to a partner or the timing of cash payments to partners during
liquidation.

In the foregoing illustration, Partner Abra received cash of $20,000 and Partner Barg re-
ceived $5,000. Neither partner received cash until after partnership creditors had been paid
in full. Because the only partnership asset is $25,000 cash at this point, it is reasonable to
assume that checks to Abra and Barg for $20,000 and $5,000, respectively, were prepared
and delivered to the partners at the same time. It is thus apparent that a partner’s loan ac-
count has no special significance in the liquidation process. Therefore, succeeding illustra-
tions do not show a partner’s loan ledger account in a separate column of the statement of
realization and liquidation. Whenever a partner’s loan account is involved, its balance may
be combined with the partner’s capital account balance in the statement of realization and
liquidation.

Equity of One Partner Is Not Sufficient to Absorb
That Partner’s Share of Loss from Realization

In this case, the loss on realization of assets, when distributed in the income-sharing ratio,
results in a debit balance in the capital account of one of the partners. It may be assumed
that the partner with a debit balance has no loan account or that the total of the partner’s
capital account and loan account combined is less than the partner’s share of the loss on re-
alization. To fulfill an agreement to share a specified percentage of partnership losses, the
partner must pay to the partnership sufficient cash to eliminate any capital deficit. If the
partner is unable to do so, the deficit must be absorbed by the other partners as an addi-
tional loss to be shared in the same proportion as they have previously shared net income
or losses among themselves. To illustrate, assume the balance sheet below for Diel, Ebbs &
Frey LLP just prior to liquidation:

DIEL, EBBS & FREY LLP
Balance Sheet
May 20, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 20,000 Liabilities $ 30,000
Other assets 80,000 Diel, capital 40,000
Ebbs, capital 21,000
Frey, capital 9,000
Total $100,000 Total $100,000

The income-sharing ratio is Diel, 20%; Ebbs, 40%; and Frey, 40%. The other assets with
a carrying amount of $80,000 realized $50,000 cash, resulting in a loss of $30,000. Partner
Frey is charged with 40% of this loss, or $12,000 ($30,000 X 0.40 = $12,000), which cre-
ates a deficit of $3,000 in Frey’s capital account. In the following statement of realization
and liquidation, it is assumed that Frey pays the $3,000 to the partnership:
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DIEL, EBBS & FREY LLP

Statement of Realization and Liquidation

May 21 through 31, 2005

Partners’ Capital

Assets Diel, Ebbs Frey
Cash Other Liabilities (20%) (40%) (40%)

Balances before liquidation $20,000 $80,000 $30,000 $40,000 $21,000 $ 9,000)
Realization of other assets at a

loss of $30,000 50,000 (80,000) (6,000) (12,000) (12,000)
Balances $70,000 $30,000 $34,000 $ 9,000 $ (3,000)
Payment to creditors (30,000) (30,000)
Balances $40,000 $34,000 $ 9,000 $ (3,000)
Cash received from Frey 3,000 3,000
Balances $43,000 $34,000 $ 9,000 $ -0-
Payments to partners (43,000) (34,000) (9,000) -0-

lustration of
Completed Liquidation
of Limited Liability
Partnership (Above)

Next, change one condition of the foregoing illustration by assuming that partner Frey
was not able to pay the $3,000 capital deficit to the partnership. If the cash available after

payment of creditors is to be distributed to Diel and Ebbs without a delay to determine the

[lustration of
Incomplete
Liquidation of Limited
Liability Partnership

collectibility of the $3,000 claim against Frey, the statement of realization and liquidation
would appear as illustrated below:

DIEL, EBBS & FREY LLP

Statement of Realization and Liquidation

May 21 through 31, 2005

Partners’ Capital

Assets Diel, Ebbs Frey
Cash Other Liabilities (20%) (40%) (40%)

Balances before liquidation $20,000 $80,000 $30,000 $40,000 $21,000 $ 9,000
Realization of other assets at a

loss of $30,000 50,000 (80,000) (6,000) (12,000) (12,000)
Balances $70,000 $30,000 $34,000 $ 9,000 $ (3,000)
Payment to creditors (30,000) (30,000)
Balances $40,000 $34,000 $ 9,000 $ (3,000)
Payments to partners (40,000) (33,000) (7,000)
Balances $ 1,000 $ 2,000 $ (3,000)

The cash payments of $33,000 to Diel and $7,000 to Ebbs leave both with a sufficient

capital account credit balance to absorb their share of the additional loss if Frey is unable
to pay $3,000 to the partnership. The income-sharing ratio is 20% for Diel and 40% for
Ebbs; consequently, the possible additional loss of $3,000 would be charged to them in the
proportion of %, or $1,000, to Diel and %, or $2,000, to Ebbs. The payment of the $40,000
cash available to partners is divided between them in a manner that reduces Diel’s capital
account balance to $1,000 and Ebbs’s balance to $2,000.
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Completion of
Liquidation; Capital
Deficit Paid by
Partner Frey

Completion of
Liquidation; Partner
Frey Unable to Pay
Capital Deficit

If the $3,000 is later collected from Frey, this amount will be divided $1,000 to Diel and
$2,000 to Ebbs. The foregoing statement of realization and liquidation then may be com-

pleted as follows:

Partners’ Capital
Assets Diel Ebbs Frey
Cash Liabilities (20%) (40%) (40%)
Balances (from page 79) $1,000 $2,000 $(3,000)
Cash received from
Frey $3,000 3,000
Payments to partners (3,000) (1,000) (2,000)

However, if the $3,000 receivable from Frey is uncollectible, the statement of realization
and liquidation would be completed with the write-off of Frey’s capital deficit shown as an
additional loss absorbed by Diel and Ebbs as follows:

Partners’ Capital
Assets Diel Ebbs Frey
Cash Liabilities (20%) (40%) (40%)
Balances (from page 79) $1,000 $2,000 $(3,000)
Additional loss from
Frey's uncollectible
capital deficit (1,000) (2,000) 3,000

Equities of Two Partners Are Not Sufficient to Absorb
Their Shares of Loss from Realization

It already has been noted that inability of a partner to pay the partnership for a capital
deficit causes an additional loss to the other partners. A partner may have sufficient capital,
or combination of capital and loan accounts, to absorb any direct share of loss on the real-
ization of noncash assets, but not sufficient equity to absorb additional actual or potential
losses caused by inability of the partnership to collect the deficit in another partner’s capi-
tal account. In brief, one capital deficit, if not collectible, may cause a second capital deficit
that may or may not be collectible.

Assume that Judd, Kamb, Long, and Marx, partners of Judd, Kamb, Long & Marx LLP,
share net income and losses 10%, 20%, 30%, and 40%, respectively. Their capital account
balances for the period August 1 through 15, 2005, are as shown in the statement of real-
ization and liquidation on page 81, supported by the table that follows.

Table 3.1 on page 81, which supports the statement of realization and liquidation on that
page, shows that the $20,000 of available cash may be distributed $16,000 to Judd and
$4,000 to Kamb. If the $24,000 deficit in Marx’s capital account proves uncollectible, the ad-
ditional loss to be divided among the other three partners will cause Long’s capital account
to change from a $6,000 credit balance to a $6,000 debit balance (deficit). Therefore, Long
is not eligible to receive a cash payment. If this deficit in Long’s capital account proves un-
collectible, the balances remaining in the capital accounts of Judd and Kamb, after the cash
payments to them totaling $20,000, will be equal to the amounts ($2,000 and $4,000, re-
spectively) needed to absorb the additional loss shifted from Long’s capital account.
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JUDD, KAMB, LONG & MARX LLP
Statement of Realization and Liquidation
August 1 through 15, 2005

Partners’ Capital
Assets Judd Kamb Long Marx
Cash Other Liabilities (10%) (20%) (30%) (40%)
Balances before
liquidation $ 20,000 $200,000 $120,000 $30,000 $32,000 $30,000 $ 8,000
Realization of other
assets at a loss of
$80,000 120,000 (200,000) (8,000) (16,000) (24,000) (32,000)
Balances $140,000 $120,000 $22,000 $16,000 $ 6,000 $(24,000)
Payment to creditors (120,000) (120,000)
Balances $ 20,000 $22,000 $16,000 $ 6,000 $(24,000)
Payments to partners
(Table 3.1) (20,000) (16,000) (4,000)
Balances $ 6,000 $12,000 $ 6,000 $(24,000)
TABLE 3.1

JUDD, KAMB, LONG & MARX LLP
Computation of Cash Payments to Partners
August 15, 2005

Partners’ Capital
Judd (10%) | Kamb (20%) | Long (30%) | Marx (40%)

Capital account balances
before distribution of cash
to partners $22,000 $16,000 $ 6,000 $(24,000)

Additional loss to Judd, Kamb,
and Long if Marx's deficit
is uncollectible (ratio of
10:20:30) (4,000) (8,000) (12,000) 24,000

Balances $18,000 $ 8,000 $ (6,000)

Additional loss to Judd and
Kamb if Long’s deficit is

uncollectible (ratio of 10 : 20) (2,000) (4,000) 6,000
Amounts that may be paid to
partners $16,000 $ 4,000

Partnership Is Insolvent but Partners Are Solvent

If a limited liability partnership is insolvent, it is unable to pay all outside creditors, and at
least one and perhaps all of the partners will have debit balances in their capital accounts.
In any event, the total of the capital account debit balances will exceed the total of the credit
balances. If the partner or partners with a capital deficit pay the required amount to the part-
nership, it will have cash to pay its liabilities in full. However, the partnership creditors may
demand payment from any solvent partner whose actions caused the partnership’s insol-
vency, regardless of whether the partner’s capital account has a debit balance or a credit bal-
ance. In terms of relationships with creditors, the limited liability partnership is not a
separate entity. A partner who makes payments to partnership creditors receives a credit to
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Limited Liability
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Liquidated

his or her capital account. As an illustration of an insolvent partnership whose partners are
solvent (have personal assets in excess of liabilities), assume that Nehr, Ordo & Page LLP,
whose partners share net income and losses equally, had the following balance sheet just
prior to liquidation on May 10, 2005:

NEHR, ORDO & PAGE LLP
Balance Sheet
May 10, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 15,000 Liabilities $ 65,000
Other assets 85,000 Nehr, capital 18,000
Ordo, capital 10,000
Page, capital 7,000
Total $100,000 Total $100,000

On May 12, 2005, the other assets with a carrying amount of $85,000 realize $40,000
cash, which causes a loss of $45,000 to be divided equally among the partners. The total
cash of $55,000 is paid to the partnership creditors, which leaves unpaid liabilities of
$10,000. Partner Nehr’s capital account has a credit balance of $3,000 after absorbing one-
third of the loss. Partners Ordo and Page owe the partnership $5,000 and $8,000, respectively.
Assuming that on May 30, 2005, Ordo and Page pay in the amounts of their deficiencies,
the partnership will use $10,000 of the $13,000 available cash to pay the remaining liabili-
ties and will distribute $3,000 to Nehr. These events are summarized in the statement of
realization and liquidation below.

NEHR, ORDO & PAGE LLP
Statement of Realization and Liquidation
May 12 through 30, 2005

Assets Partners’ Capital
Cash Other Liabilities Nehr ('3) Ordo ('5) | Page ('5)

Balances before liquidation $ 15,000 $385,000 $65,000 $18,000 $ 10,000 $ 7,000
Realization of other assets at a

loss of $45,000 40,000 (85,000) (15,000) (15,000) (15,000)
Balances $ 55,000 $65,000 $ 3,000 $ (5,000) $ (8,000)
Partial payment to creditors (55,000) (55,000)
Balances $ -O- $10,000 $ 3,000 $ (5,000) $ (8,000)
Cash invested by Ordo and Page 13,000 5,000 8,000
Balances $ 13,000 $10,000 $ 3,000
Final payment to creditors (10,000) (10,000)
Balances $ 3,000 $ 3,000
Payment to Nehr (3,000) (3,000)

It should be noted that if a limited liability partnership is insolvent because of an adverse
award of damages in a lawsuit, and the partner or partners responsible for the damages are
solvent, they alone of the partners must pay the amount of damages that the insolvent LLP is
unable to pay. However, if such partners also are insolvent, both they and the LLP may have
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to file for liquidation under Chapter 7 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, which is discussed in
Chapter 14 of this textbook. The partners of the LLP not responsible for the award of dam-
ages, unless they too were insolvent, apparently would not have to undertake bankruptcy
proceedings.

General Partnership Is Insolvent and Partners Are Insolvent

In the foregoing illustration of an insolvent limited liability partnership, the partners were
solvent and therefore able to pay their capital deficits to the partnership. Now consider an
insolvent general partnership in which one or more of the partners are insolvent. This
situation raises a question as to the relative rights of two groups of creditors: (1) credi-
tors of the partnership and (2) creditors of the partners. The relative rights of these two
groups of creditors are governed by the provisions of the Uniform Partnership Act relat-
ing to the marshaling of assets. These rules provide that assets of the general partnership
(including partners’ capital deficits) are first available to creditors of the partnership and
that assets of the partners are first available to their creditors. After the liabilities of the
partnership have been paid in full, the creditors of an individual partner have a claim
against the assets (if any) of the partnership to the extent of that partner’s equity in the
partnership.

After the creditors of a partner have been paid in full from the assets of the partner, any
remaining assets of the partner are available to partnership creditors, regardless of whether
the partner’s capital account has a credit balance or a debit balance. Such claims by credi-
tors of the partnership are permitted only when these creditors are unable to obtain pay-
ment from the partnership.

To illustrate the relative rights of creditors of an insolvent general partnership and per-
sonal creditors of an insolvent partner, assume that the Rich, Sand & Toll Partnership, a
general partnership whose partners share net income and losses equally, has the partnership
balance sheet below just prior to liquidation on November 30, 2005:

RICH, SAND & TOLL PARTNERSHIP
Balance Sheet
November 30, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 10,000 Liabilities $ 60,000
Other assets 100,000 Rich, capital 5,000
Sand, capital 15,000
Toll, capital 30,000
Total $110,000 Total $110,000

Assume also that on November 30, 2005, the partners have the following assets and lia-
bilities other than their equities in the partnership:

Personal Personal
Partner Assets Liabilities
Rich $100,000 $25,000
Sand 50,000 50,000

Toll 5,000 60,000
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The realization of other assets of the partnership results in a loss of $60,000, as shown in the
following statement of realization and liquidation for the period December 1 through 12, 2005:

RICH, SAND & TOLL PARTNERSHIP
Statement of Realization and Liquidation
December 1 through 12, 2005

Assets Partners’ Capital
Cash Other Liabilities Rich (') Sand (') Toll (5)
Balances before liquidation $10,000 $100,000 $60,000 $ 5,000 $ 15,000 $30,000
Realization of other assets at a
loss of $60,000 40,000 (100,000) (20,000) (20,000) (20,000)
Balances $50,000 $60,000 $(15,000) $ (5,000) $10,000
Partial payment to creditors (50,000) (50,000)
Balances $10,000 $(15,000) $ (5,000) $10,000

Liquidation of General

The creditors of the partnership have received all the cash of the general partnership and

Partnership Not
Completed

Continuation of
Statement of
Realization and
Liquidation for
General Partnership

still have unpaid claims of $10,000. They cannot collect from Sand or Toll because the as-
sets of these two partners are just sufficient or are insufficient to pay their personal liabili-
ties. However, the partnership creditors may collect the $10,000 in full from Rich, who is
solvent. By chance, Rich has a capital deficit of $15,000, but this is of no concern to cred-
itors of the partnership, who may collect in full from any partner who has sufficient assets,
regardless of whether that partner’s capital account has a debit balance or a credit balance.
The statement of realization and liquidation is now continued below to show Rich’s pay-
ment of the final $10,000 owed to partnership creditors. Because the assumptions about
Rich’s finances showed that Rich had $100,000 of assets and only $25,000 of liabilities,
Rich is able to invest in the partnership the additional $5,000 needed to offset Rich’s capi-
tal deficit. This $5,000 cash is paid to partner Toll, the only partner with a capital account
credit balance.

Partners’ Capital
Cash Liabilities Rich (5) Sand (5) Toll (3)

Balances (from above) $ 10,000 $(15,000) $(5,000) $10,000
Payment by Rich to

partnership creditors (10,000) 10,000
Balances $ (5,000) $(5,000) $10,000
Cash invested by Rich $5,000 5,000
Balances $5,000 $(5,000) $10,000
Payment to Toll

(or Toll's creditors) (5,000) (5,000)
Balances $(5,000) $ 5,000

The continued statement of realization and liquidation now shows that Sand owes

$5,000 to the partnership; however, Sand’s assets of $50,000 are exactly equal to Sand’s
personal liabilities of $50,000. Under the Uniform Partnership Act, all the assets of Sand
will go to Sand’s creditors; therefore, the $5,000 deficit in Sand’s capital account represents
an additional loss to be shared equally by Rich and Toll. To conclude the liquidation, Rich,
who is solvent, pays $2,500 to the partnership, and the $2,500 will be paid to Toll or to
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Toll’s creditors, because Toll is insolvent. These payments are shown below to complete the
statement of realization and liquidation for the Rich, Sand & Toll Partnership:

Partners’ Capital
Cash Rich ('5) Sand (5) Toll ('5)

Balances (from page 84) $(5,000) $ 5,000
Write-off of Sand’s capital deficit as

uncollectible $(2,500) 5,000 (2,500)
Balances $(2,500) $ 2,500
Cash invested by Rich $ 2,500 2,500
Balances $ 2,500 $ 2,500
Payment to Toll (or Toll's creditors) (2,500) (2,500)

The final results of the liquidation show that the partnership creditors received payment
in full because of the financial status of partner Rich. Because Rich was solvent, the credi-
tors of Rich also were paid in full. The creditors of Sand were paid in full, thereby ex-
hausting Sand’s assets; however, because Sand failed to pay the $5,000 capital deficit to the
partnership, an additional loss of $5,000 was absorbed by Rich and Toll. The creditors of
Toll received all of Toll’s separate assets of $5,000 and also $7,500 from the partnership,
representing Toll’s equity in the firm. However, Toll’s creditors were able to collect only
$12,500 ($5,000 + $7,500 = $12,500) on their total claims of $60,000.

INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS TO PARTNERS

In the foregoing illustrations of partnership liquidation, all the partnership noncash assets
were realized and the total loss from liquidation was divided among the partners before any
cash payments were made to them. However, the liquidation of some partnerships may ex-
tend over several months. In such extended liquidations, the partners usually will want to
receive cash as it becomes available rather than wait until all noncash assets have been re-
alized. Installment payments to partners are appropriate if necessary safeguards are used to
ensure that all partnership creditors are paid in full and that no partners are paid more than
the amount to which they would be entitled after all losses on realization of assets are
known.

Liquidation in installments is a process of realizing some assets, paying creditors, pay-
ing the remaining available cash to partners, realizing additional assets, and making addi-
tional cash payments to partners. The liquidation continues until all noncash assets have
been realized and all cash has been distributed to partnership creditors and partners.

The circumstances of installment liquidations of partnerships vary; consequently, the ap-
proach of this text is to emphasize the general principles guiding liquidation in installments
rather than to provide illustrations of all possible liquidation situations. Among the vari-
ables that cause partnership liquidations to differ are the sufficiency of each partner’s capi-
tal to absorb that partner’s share of the possible losses remaining after each installment
payment of cash, the shifting of losses from one partner to another because of inability to
collect a capital deficit, the offsetting of loan account balances against capital deficits, and
the possible need for setting aside cash to pay future liquidation costs or unrecorded part-
nership liabilities.
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General Principles Guiding Installment Payments

The critical element in installment liquidations is that the liquidator authorizes cash pay-
ments to partners before all losses that may be incurred in the liquidation are known. If
payments are made to partners and later losses cause deficits in the partners’ capital ac-
counts, the liquidator will have to request the return of the payments. If the payments
cannot be recovered, the liquidator may be liable to the other partners for the loss caused
them by the inappropriate distribution of cash. Because of this danger, the only safe pol-
icy for determining installment cash payments to partners is the following worst-case
scenario:

1. Assume a total loss on all remaining noncash assets, and provide for all possible losses,
including potential liquidation costs and unrecorded liabilities.

2. Assume that any partner with a potential capital deficit will be unable to pay anything
to the partnership; thus, distribute each installment of cash as if no more cash will be
forthcoming, either from realization of assets or from collection of capital deficits from
partners.

Under these assumptions, the liquidator will authorize a cash payment to a partner only
if that partner has a capital account credit balance (or in capital and loan accounts com-
bined) in excess of the amount required to absorb a portion of the maximum possible loss
that may be incurred on liquidation. A partner’s “share of the maximum possible loss”
would include any loss that may result from the inability of other partners to pay any po-
tential capital deficits to the partnership.

When installment payments are made according to these rules, the effect will be to bring
the equities of the partners to the income-sharing ratio as quickly as possible. When install-
ment payments have proceeded to the point that the partners’ capital and loan account
balances (equities) correspond with the income-sharing ratio, all subsequent payments
may be made in that ratio, because each partner’s equity will be sufficient to absorb an ap-
propriate share of the maximum possible remaining loss.

Determining Appropriate Installment Payments to Partners

The amounts of cash that may be distributed safely to the partners each month (or at any
other point in time) may be determined by computing the impact on partners’ equities (cap-
ital and loan account balances) of the maximum possible loss on noncash assets remaining
to be realized and the resultant potential impact on partners’ capital. To illustrate, assume
that the partners of Urne, Vint & Wahl LLP, who share net income and lossesina 4 :3:2
ratio, decide to liquidate the partnership and to distribute cash in installments. The balance
sheet for Urne, Vint & Wahl LLP just prior to the beginning of liquidation on July 5, 2005,
is as follows:

URNE, VINT & WAHL LLP
Balance Sheet

July 5, 2005
Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash § 8,000 Liabilities $ 61,000
Other assets 192,000 Urne, capital 40,000
Vint, capital 45,000
Wahl, capital 54,000

Total $200,000 Total $200,000
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To simplify the illustration, assume that noncash assets were realized as follows:

URNE, VINT & WAHL LLP
Realization of Other Assets
July 6 through September 30, 2005

Carrying Cash
Amount of Loss Received by
Date, 2005 Assets Realized on Realization Partnership
July 31 $ 62,000 $13,500 $ 48,500
August 31 66,000 36,000 30,000
September 30 64,000 31,500 32,500
Totals $192,000 $81,000 $111,000

Thus, on July 31, 2005, $56,500 ($8,000 + $48,500 = $56,500) of cash is available for
distribution. The first claim to the cash is that of partnership creditors; because their claims
total $61,000, the entire $56,500 available on July 31 is paid to creditors, leaving an unpaid
balance of $4,500 (361,000 — $56,000 = $4,500), and the partners receive nothing on that
date.

On August 31, 2005, $30,000 cash is available for distribution; the first $4,500 is paid to
creditors, leaving $25,500 ($30,000 — $4,500 = $25,500) available for distribution to part-
ners. Under the worst-case scenario described on page 86 the appropriate distribution of the
$25,500 to partners is determined as follows:

Urne Vint Wahl
$ 40,000 $45,000 $54,000

Capital account balances, July 5, 2005
Allocation of loss on July 31, 2005, realization

of noncash assets ($13,500) (6,000) (4,500) (3,000)
Allocation of loss on Aug. 31, 2005, realization

of noncash assets ($36,000) (16,000) (12,000) (8,000)
Capital account balances, Aug. 31, 2005 $18,000 $28,500  $43,000
Allocation of maximum potential loss on remain-

ing noncash assets ($64,000) (28,445) (21,333) (14,222)
Potential capital account balances $(10,445) $ 7.167  $28,778
Allocation of potential loss from uncollectibility of

Urne’s potential capital deficit in ratio of 3 : 2 10,445 (6,267) (4,178)
Appropriate cash payments to partners, Aug. 31, 2005  $ 0 $ 900 $24,600

A technique similar to that above would be used to determine the appropriate payment
to partners of the $32,500 cash available on September 30, 2005.

Preparation of a Cash Distribution Program

Although the method for determining cash payments to partners illustrated in the fore-
going section is sound, it is somewhat cumbersome. Furthermore, it does not show at
the beginning of the liquidation how cash might be divided among the partners as it
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becomes available. For these reasons, it is more efficient to prepare in advance a com-
plete cash distribution program to show how cash may be divided during liquidation. If
such a program is prepared, any amounts of cash received from the realization of part-
nership assets may be paid immediately to partnership creditors and the partners as
specified in the program.

Using the data for Urne, Vint & Wahl LLP illustrated on page 87, the following cash
distribution program may be prepared; the working paper supporting the cash distribution
program and an explanation of the preparation of the working paper are below and on pages 89

and 90:

URNE, VINT & WAHL LLP

Cash Distribution Program

July 5, 2005
Creditors Urne Vint Wahl

First $ 61,000 100%
Next 24,000 100%
Next 25,000 60% 40%
All over $110,000 % % %

Procedures for developing the following working paper.'

1. The “capital account balances before liquidation” represent the equities of the partners
in the partnership, that is, the balance of a partner’s capital account, plus or minus the
balance (if any) of a loan made by a partner to the partnership or a loan made by the
partnership to a partner.

2. The capital account balance before liquidation for each partner is divided by each
partner’s income-sharing ratio to determine the amount of capital per unit of income
(loss) sharing for each partner. This procedure is critical because it (1) identifies the
partner with the largest capital per unit of income (loss) sharing who, therefore, will
be the first to receive cash, (2) facilitates the ranking of partners in the order in which
they are entitled to receive cash, and (3) provides the basis for computing the amount
of cash each partner receives at various stages of liquidation. Because Wahl’s capital
per unit of income (loss) sharing is largest ($27,000), Wahl is the first partner to re-
ceive cash (after all partnership creditors have been paid), followed by Vint and finally
by Urne.

3. Wahl receives enough cash to reduce Wahl’s capital of $27,000 per unit of income (loss)
sharing to $15,000, equal to the balance for Vint, the second-ranking partner. To ac-
complish this,Wahl’s capital per unit of income (loss) sharing must be reduced by
$12,000, and because Wahl has two units of income (loss) sharing,Wahl receives
$24,000 ($12,000 X 2 = $24,000) before Vint receives any cash.

' The procedure for preparing a cash distribution program illustrated herein may be used regardless of
the number of partners involved or the complexity of the income-sharing ratio. For example, assume that
partners share net income and losses as follows: Abt 41.2%, Bry 32.3%, Cam 26.5%. The income-
sharing ratio may be stated as 412 for Abt, 323 for Bry, and 265 for Cam to apply the techniques
illustrated in this section.
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URNE, VINT & WAHL LLP
Working Paper for Cash Distributions to Partners during Liquidation

July 5, 2005
Urne Vint Wahl
Capital account balances before liquidation $40,000 $45,000 $54,000
Income-sharing ratio 4 3 2

Divide capital account balances before
liquidation by income-sharing ratio to
obtain capital per unit of income (loss)
sharing for each partner $10,000 $15,000 $27,000

Required reduction in capital per unit of
income (loss) sharing for Partner Wahl to
reduce Wabhl's balance to equal the next
largest balance (for Partner Vint). This is the
amount of the first cash distribution to a
partner per unit of the partner’s income
(loss) sharing. Because Wahl has 2 units
of income (loss) sharing, Wahl receives the

first $24,000 ($12,000 X 2 = $24,000) (12,000)
Capital per unit of income (loss) sharing after
payment of $24,000 to Wahl $10,000 $15,000 $15,000

Required reduction in capital per unit of income

(loss) sharing for Partners Vint and Wahl to

reduce their balances to equal Partner Urne’s

balance, which is the smallest capital per

unit of income (loss) sharing. The required

reduction is multiplied by each partner’s

income-sharing ratio to compute the amount

of cash to be paid. Thus, Vint receives

$15,000 ($5,000 X 3 = $15,000), and Wahl

receives $10,000 ($5,000 X 2 = $10,000) (5,000) (5,000)
Capital per unit of income (loss) sharing after

payment of $15,000 to Vint and $34,000

to Wahl. Remaining cash may be

distributed in the income-sharing ratio $10,000 $10,000 $10,000

4. At this point, the capital per unit of income (loss) sharing for both Vint and Wahl is
$15,000, indicating that they are entitled to receive cash until their capital per unit of
income (loss) sharing is reduced by $5,000 to the $10,000 balance for Urne, the lowest-
ranking partner. Because Vint has three units and Wahl has two units of income (loss)
sharing, Vint receives $15,000 ($5,000 X 3 = $15,000) and Wahl receives an additional
$10,000 ($5,000 X 2 = $10,000) before Urne receives any cash. After Wahl receives
$24,000, Vint and Wahl would share any amount of cash available to a maximum amount
0f $25,000 in a 3 : 2 ratio.

5. After Vint has received $15,000 and Wahl has received $34,000 ($24,000 + $10,000 =
$34,000), the capital per unit of income (loss) sharing is $10,000 for each partner, and
any additional cash is paid to the partners in the income-sharing ratio (4 : 3 : 2), because
their capital account balances have been reduced to the income-sharing ratio. This is
illustrated on the next page.
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Reduction of Capital
Account Balances to
Income-Sharing Ratio

Urne (%) Vint (36) Wahl (%0)

Capital account balances before liquidation $40,000 $ 45,000 $54,000
First payment of cash to Wahl (24,000)
Second payment of cash to Vint and Wahl

in 3: 2 ratio (15,000) (10,000)

Capital account balances (in income-sharing ratio
of 4 : 3 : 2) after payment of total of $49,000
to Vint and Wahl $40,000 $ 30,000 $20,000

Only when installment payments reach the point at which partners’ capital account balances
correspond with the income-sharing ratio may subsequent cash payments be made in that
ratio.

A cash distribution program such as the one on page 88 also may be used to ascertain an
equitable distribution of noncash assets to partners. The current fair value of noncash assets
such as marketable securities, inventories, or equipment distributed to partners is treated as
equivalent to cash payments. If a distribution of noncash assets departs from the cash dis-
tribution program by giving one of the partners a larger distribution than that partner is
entitled to receive, subsequent distributions should be adjusted to allow the remaining
partners to “make up” the distribution prematurely made to one of the partners. In such
cases, a revised cash distribution program must be prepared, because the original rela-
tionship among the partners’ capital account balances has been disrupted.

Any losses or gains on the realization of assets during liquidation are allocated to the
partners in the income-sharing ratio, unless the partnership contract specifies another
allocation procedure. Thus, the degree to which the capital account balances do not
correspond with the income-sharing ratio is not altered by such losses or gains. Conse-
quently, losses or gains from the realization of assets in the course of partnership lig-
uidation do not affect the cash distribution program prepared prior to the start of
liquidation.

To illustrate how the cash distribution program on page 88 may be used, assume that the
realization of other assets by Urne, Vint & Wahl LLP from July 6 through September 30,
2005, is as shown on page 87. The cash available each month is paid to creditors and part-
ners according to the cash distribution program on page 88. The distributions of cash are
summarized below:

URNE, VINT & WAHL LLP
Distributions of Cash to Creditors and Partners
July 6 through September 30, 2005

Partners’ Capital
Date Cash Liabilities Urne (%) | Vint (36) | Wahl (%0)
July 31 (includes $8,000
on hand on July 5) $ (56,500) $56,500
August 31 (30,000) 4,500 $24,000}
$ 900 600
September 30 (32,500) 14,100 9,400}
$4,000 3,000 2,000
Totals $(119,000) $61,000 $4,000 $18,000 | $36,000
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The entire cash balance of $56,500 available on July 31 is paid to creditors, leaving
$4,500 in unpaid liabilities. When $30,000 becomes available on August 31, $4,500 is
paid to creditors, leaving $25,500 to be paid to the partners according to the cash distri-
bution program on page 88. The program requires Wahl to receive 100% of the first
$24,000 available for distribution to partners, and for Vint and Wahl to share the next
$25,000 in a 3 : 2 ratio. On August 31 only $1,500 ($30,000 — $4,500 — $24,000 =
$1,500) is available for payment to Vint and Wahl; thus, they receive $900 and $600, re-
spectively. Of the $32,500 available on September 30, the first $23,500 is paid to Vint
and Wahl in a 3 : 2 ratio, or $14,100 and $9,400, respectively, in order to complete the
distribution of $25,000 to Vint and Wahl before Urne participates; this leaves $9,000
($32,500 — $23,500 = $9,000) to be distributed to Urne, Vint, and Wahl inthe 4 : 3 : 2
income-sharing ratio.

A complete statement of realization and liquidation for Urne, Vint & Wahl LLP
follows.

URNE, VINT & WAHL LLP
Statement of Realization and Liquidation
July 6 through September 30, 2005

Assets Partners’ Capital
Cash Other Liabilities Urne (%) Vint (36) |[Wahl (%)
Balances before liquidation § 8,000 $192,000 $ 61,000 $ 40,000 $ 45,000 $ 54,000
July 31 installment:
Realization of other assets at a loss
of $13,500 48,500 (62,000) (6,000) (4,500) (3,000)
Balances 56,500 $130,000 $ 61,000 $ 34,000 $ 40,500 $ 51,000
Payment to creditors $(56,500) (56,500)
Balances $ -0- $130,000 $ 4,500 $ 34,000 $ 40,500 $ 51,000
Aug. 31 installment:
Realization of other assets at a loss
of $36,000 30,000 (66,000) (16,000) (12,000) (8,000)
Balances $ 30,000 $ 64,000 $ 4,500 $ 18,000 $ 28,500 $ 43,000
Payment to creditors (4,500) (4,500)
Balances $ 25,500 $ 64,000 $ 18,000 $ 28,500 $ 43,000
Payments to partners (25,500) (900) (24,600)
Balances $ -0- $ 64,000 $ 18,000 $ 27,600 $ 18,400
Sept. 30 installment:
Realization of other assets at a loss
of $31,500 32,500 (64,000) (14,000) (10,500) (7,000)
Balances $ 32,500 $ 4,000 $ 17,100 $ 11,400
Payments to partners (32,500) (4,000) (17,100) (11,400)

The journal entries to record the realization of assets and to complete the liquidation of

Urne, Vint & Wahl LLP are as follows:
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Journal Entries to 2005
Record Liquidation of
Limited Liability July31  Cash 48,500
Partnership in Urne, Capital 6,000
Installments Vint, Capital 4,500
Wabhl, Capital 3,000
Other Assets 62,000
To record realization of assets and division of $13,500 loss
among partners in 4 : 3 : 2 ratio.
31 Liabilities 56,500
Cash 56,500
To record payment to creditors.
Aug. 31 Cash 30,000
Urne, Capital 16,000
Vint, Capital 12,000
Wabhl, Capital 8,000
Other Assets 66,000
To record realization of assets and division of $36,000 loss
among partners in 4 :3 : 2 ratio.
31 Liabilities 4,500
Vint, Capital 900
Wabhl, Capital 24,600
Cash 30,000
To record payment to creditors and first installment
to partners.
Sept. 30 Cash 32,500
Urne, Capital 14,000
Vint, Capital 10,500
Wabhl, Capital 7,000
Other Assets 64,000
To record realization of remaining assets and division of
$31,500 loss among partners in 4 :3 : 2 ratio.
30 Urne, Capital 4,000
Vint, Capital 17,100
Wabhl, Capital 11,400
Cash 32,500

To record final installment to partners to complete the
liquidation of the partnership.

Withholding of Cash for Liabilities and Liquidation Costs

As previously emphasized, partnership creditors are entitled to payment in full before any-
thing is paid to partners. However, in some cases the liquidator may find it more convenient
to set aside sufficient cash required to pay certain recorded liabilities, and to distribute the
remaining cash to the partners. The withholding of cash for payment of recorded liabilities
is appropriate when for any reason it is not practicable or advisable (as when the amount of
the claim is in dispute) to pay the liabilities before cash is distributed to partners. An
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amount of cash set aside, and equal to recorded unpaid liabilities, is not a factor in
computing possible future liquidation losses; the possible future loss is measured by the
amount of noncash assets, any unrecorded liabilities, and any liquidation costs that may be
incurred.

Any costs incurred during the liquidation of a partnership are deducted from partners’
capital account balances to compute the cash available for distribution to partners. Costs
of liquidation thereby are treated as part of the total loss from liquidation. However, in
some cases, the liquidator may wish to withhold cash in anticipation of future liquidation
costs. The amount of cash set aside for future liquidation costs or for payment of un-
recorded liabilities should be combined with the amount of noncash assets in the compu-
tation of the maximum possible loss that may be incurred to complete the liquidation of
the partnership.

Liquidation of Limited Partnerships

Most of the discussion of the liquidation of limited liability partnerships and general part-
nerships, in preceding sections of this chapter, applies to the liquidation of limited partner-
ships. However, the Uniform Limited Partnership Act provides that after outside creditors
of a limited partnership have been paid, the equities of the limited partners must be paid be-
fore the general partner or partners may receive any cash. Further, the limited partners may
agree that one or more of them may have priority over the others regarding payments in lig-
uidation of the limited partnership.

INCORPORATION OF A LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP

Balance Sheet of
Limited Liability
Partnership Prior to
Incorporation

Partners may evaluate the possible advantages to be gained by incorporating a partnership.
Among such advantages are limited liability of stockholders, ease of attracting additional
capital, and possible income tax advantages.

To ensure that each partner receives an equitable portion of the capital stock issued
by the new corporation, the assets of the partnership must be adjusted to current fair
value before being transferred to the corporation. Any identifiable intangible asset or
goodwill developed by the partnership is included among the assets transferred to the
corporation.

To illustrate the incorporation of a partnership, assume that Blair and Benson, partners
of Blair & Benson LLP, who share net income and loss in a 4 : 1 ratio, organize B & B Cor-
poration to take over the net assets of the partnership. The balance sheet of the partnership
on June 30, 2005, the date of incorporation, is as follows:

BLAIR & BENSON LLP
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash $12,000
Trade accounts receivable $28,100
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 600 27,500
Inventories, first-in, first-out cost 25,500
Equipment, at cost $60,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation of equipment 26,000 34,000

Total assets $99,000

(continued)
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BLAIR & BENSON LLP
Balance Sheet (concluded)
June 30, 2005

Liabilities and Partners’ Capital

Liabilities:
Trade accounts payable $35,000
Partners’ capital:
Blair, capital $47,990
Benson, capital 16,010 64,000
Total liabilities and partners’ capital $99,000

After an appraisal of the equipment and an audit of the partnership’s financial state-
ments, the partners agree that the following adjustments are required to restate the net as-
sets of the partnership to current fair value:

1. Increase the allowance for doubtful accounts to $1,000.
2. Increase the inventories to current replacement cost of $30,000.

3. Increase the equipment to its reproduction cost new, $70,000, less accumulated depreci-
ation on this basis, $30,500; that is, to current fair value, $39,500.

4. Recognize accrued liabilities of $1,100.
5. Recognize goodwill of $10,000.

B & B Corporation is authorized to issue 10,000 shares of $10 par common stock. It
issues 5,500 shares of common stock valued at $15 a share to the partnership in ex-
change for the net assets of the partnership. The 5,500 shares received by the partner-
ship are divided between the partners on the basis of the adjusted balances of their
capital accounts. (Partners may withdraw small amounts of cash to round their capital
account balances to even amounts, thus avoiding the issuance of fractional shares of
common stock.) This procedure completes the dissolution and liquidation of the
partnership.

Although the accounting records of the partnership may be modified to serve as the
records of the new corporation, it is customary to use a new set of accounting records for
the corporation. If this alternative is followed, the procedures required are:

In Accounting Records of Partnership:
1. Prepare journal entries for revaluation of assets, including recognition of goodwill.

2. Record any cash withdrawals necessary to adjust partners’ capital account balances to
round amounts. (In some instances, the contract may require transfer to the corporation
of all assets except cash.)

3. Record the transfer of assets and liabilities to the corporation, the receipt of the corpo-
ration’s common stock by the partnership, and the distribution of the common stock to
the partners in settlement of the balances of their capital accounts.
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The journal entries to adjust and eliminate the accounting records of the Blair & Benson
LLP on June 30, 2005, are as follows:

Journal Entries for Inventories ($30,000 — $25,500) 4,500
Blair & Benson LLP Equipment ($70,000 — $60,000) 10,000
Goodwill 10,000

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ($1,000 — $600) 400

Accumulated Depreciation of Equipment

(30,500 — $26,000) 4,500

Accrued Liabilities Payable 1,100

Blair, Capital ($18,500 x 0.80) 14,800

Benson, Capital ($18,500 X 0.20) 3,700

To adjust assets and liabilities to agreed amounts and to divide net gain
of $18,500 between partners in 4 : 1 ratio

Receivable from B & B Corporation ($64,000 + $18,500) 82,500

Trade Accounts Payable 35,000

Accrued Liabilities Payable 1,100

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 1,000

Accumulated Depreciation of Equipment 30,500
Cash 12,000
Trade Accounts Receivable 28,100
Inventories 30,000
Equipment 70,000
Goodwill 10,000

To record transfer of assets and liabilities to B & B Corporation.

Common Stock of B & B Corporation (5,500 X $15) 82,500
Receivable from B & B Corporation 82,500

To record receipt of 5,500 shares of $10 par common stock valued at
$15 a share in payment for net assets transferred to B & B Corporation.

Blair, Capital ($47,990 + $14,800: 4,186 X $15) 62,790
Benson, Capital ($16,010 + $3,700; 1,314 X $15) 19,710
Common Stock of B & B Corporation 82,500

To record distribution of common stock of B & B Corporation to
partners: 4,186 shares to Blair and 1,314 shares to Benson.

In Accounting Records of Corporation:
1. Record the acquisition of assets and liabilities (including obligation to pay for the net
assets) from the partnership at current fair values.

2. Record the issuance of common stock at current fair value in payment of the obligation
to the partnership.

The journal entries in the accounting records of B & B Corporation on June 30, 2005, are
illustrated on the next page:
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Journal Entries for
B & B Corporation

Cash
Trade Accounts Receivable
Inventories
Equipment
Goodwill
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Trade Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities Payable
Payable to Blair & Benson LLP
To record acquisition of assets and liabilities from Blair & Benson LLP.

Payable to Blair & Benson LLP
Common Stock, $10 par (5,500 X $10)
Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par

To record issuance of 5,500 shares of common stock valued at $15 a
share in payment for net assets of Blair & Benson LLP.

12,000
28,100
30,000
39,500
10,000

82,500

1,000
35,000
1,100
82,500

55,000
27,500

Note that the allowance for doubtful accounts is recognized in the accounting records of
B & B Corporation because the specific accounts receivable that may not be collected are
not known. In contrast, the depreciation recognized by the Blair & Benson Partnership is
disregarded by B & B Corporation because the “cost” of the equipment to the new corpo-

ration is $39,500.

The balance sheet for B & B Corporation on June 30, 2005, is as follows:

B & B CORPORATION
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash
Trade accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventories, at current replacement cost
Equipment, at current fair value
Goodwill

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Trade accounts payable
Accrued liabilities payable
Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $10 par, authorized 10,000 shares, issued and
outstanding 5,500 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$ 28,100
1,000

$ 55,000
27,500

$ 12,000

27,100
30,000
39,500
10,000
$118,600

$ 35,000
1,100
$ 36,100

82,500

$118,600
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JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture differs from a partnership in that it is limited to carrying out a single pro-
ject, such as production of a motion picture or construction of a building. Historically, joint
ventures were used to finance the sale or exchange of a cargo of merchandise in a foreign
country. In an era when marine transportation and foreign trade involved many hazards, in-
dividuals (venturers) would band together to undertake a venture of this type. The capital
required usually was larger than one person could provide, and the risks were too high to be
borne alone. Because of the risks involved and the relatively short duration of the project,
no net income was recognized until the venture was completed. At the end of the voyage,
the net income or net loss was divided among the venturers, and their association was
ended.

In its traditional form, the accounting for a joint venture did not follow the accrual basis
of accounting. The assumption of continuity was not appropriate; instead of the determina-
tion of net income at regular intervals, the measurement and reporting of net income or loss
awaited the completion of the venture.

Present-Day Joint Ventures

In today’s business community, joint ventures are less common but still are employed for
many projects such as (1) the acquisition, development, and sale of real property; (2) ex-
ploration for oil and gas; and (3) construction of bridges, buildings, and dams.

The term corporate joint venture also is used by many large American corporations to
describe overseas operations by a corporation whose ownership is divided between an
American company and a foreign company. Many examples of jointly owned companies
also are found in some domestic industries. A corporate joint venture and the accounting
for such a venture currently are described in APB Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of
Accounting for Investments in Common Stock,” as follows:

“Corporate joint venture” refers to a corporation owned and operated by a small group of
businesses (the “joint venturers”) as a separate and specific business or project for the mu-
tual benefit of the members of the group. A government may also be a member of the group.
The purpose of a corporate joint venture frequently is to share risks and rewards in develop-
ing a new market, product or technology; to combine complementary technological knowl-
edge; or to pool resources in developing production or other facilities. A corporate joint
venture also usually provides an arrangement under which each joint venturer may partici-
pate, directly or indirectly, in the overall management of the joint venture. Joint venturers
thus have an interest or relationship other than as passive investors. An entity which is a
subsidiary of one of the “joint venturers” is not a corporate joint venture. The ownership of
a corporate joint venture seldom changes, and its stock is usually not traded publicly. A mi-
nority public ownership, however, does not preclude a corporation from being a corporate
joint venture.

sokok ok ok

The [Accounting Principles] Board concludes that the equity method best enables
investors in corporate joint ventures to reflect the underlying nature of their investment in
those ventures. Therefore, investors should account for investments in common stock of cor-
porate joint ventures by the equity method, in consolidated financial statements. [Emphasis
added.]

sk

When investments in common stock of corporate joint ventures or other investments
accounted for under the equity method are, in the aggregate, material in relation to the
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financial position or results of operations of an investor, it may be necessary for summa-
rized information as to assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the investees to be pre-
sented in the notes or in separate statements, either individually or in groups, as
appropriate.?

A recent variation of the corporate joint venture is the limited liability company (LLC)
joint venture, which is the corporate version of the limited liability partnership discussed
in Chapter 2 and this chapter. An example of the formation of two LLC joint ventures is
found in the following note to the financial statements of Stone Container Corporation, a
publicly owned enterprise:

Notes to Financial Statements

3. (In Part): Joint Ventures, Acquisitions and Investments

On May 30, 1996, the Company entered into a joint venture with Four M Corporation
(“Four M”) to form Florida Coast Paper Company, L.L.C. (“Florida Coast”) to purchase a
paperboard mill located in Port St. Joe, Florida, from St. Joe Paper Company for $185 mil-
lion plus applicable working capital. As part of the transaction, Florida Coast sold, through a
private placement, debt of approximately $165 million. Pursuant to an exchange offer, such
privately-placed debt was exchanged for registered notes identical to the privately-placed
notes. The Company accounts for its investment in Florida Coast under the equity method.
Concurrent with the formation of the joint venture, the Company and Four M entered into
output purchase agreements with Florida Coast which require each of the joint venture part-
ners to purchase 50 percent of the production of Florida Coast. The output purchase agree-
ments also require the Company and Four M to equally share in the funding of certain cash
flow deficits of Florida Coast.

On July 12, 1996, the Company and Gaylord Container Corporation entered into a joint
venture whereby the retail bag packaging businesses of these two companies were con-
tributed to form S&G Packaging Company, L.L.C. (“S&G”). The Company accounts for its
interest in S&G under the equity method. S&G produces paper grocery bags and sacks, han-
dle sacks and variety bags, with estimated annual sales in excess of $300 million and serves
supermarkets, quick service restaurants, paper distributors and non-food mass merchandisers
throughout North America and the Caribbean.?

Accounting for a Corporate or LLC Joint Venture

The complexity of modern business, the emphasis on good organization and strong in-
ternal control, the importance of income taxes, the extent of government regulation, and
the need for preparation and retention of adequate accounting records are strong argu-
ments for establishing a separate set of accounting records for every corporate joint ven-
ture of large size and long duration. In the stockholders’ equity accounts of the joint
venture, each venturer’s account is credited for the amount of cash or noncash assets in-
vested. The fiscal year of the joint venture may or may not coincide with the fiscal years
of the venturers, but the use of the accrual basis of accounting and periodic financial
statements for the venture permit regular reporting of the share of net income or loss al-
locable to each venturer.

The accounting records of such a corporate joint venture include the usual ledger ac-
counts for assets, liabilities, stockholders’ equity, revenue, and expenses. The entire

2 APB Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock,” AICPA
(New York: 1971), pars. 3d, 16, 20d, as amended by FASB Statement No. 94, "Consolidation of All
Majority-Owned Subsidiaries.”

3 AICPA, Accounting Trends & Techniques, 51st ed. (Jersey City, NJ: 1997), p. 58.
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accounting process should conform to generally accepted accounting practices, from the
recording of transactions to the preparation of financial statements.

Accounting for an Unincorporated Joint Venture

As indicated on page 97, APB Opinion No. 18 required venturers to use the equity method
of accounting for investments in corporate joint ventures. That Opinion did not address
accounting for investments in unincorporated joint ventures. However, the AICPA subse-
quently interpreted APB Opinion No. 18 as follows:

[Blecause the investor-venturer [in an unincorporated joint venture] owns an undivided inter-
est in each asset and is proportionately liable for its share of each liability, the provisions of
[APB Opinion No. 18 related to the equity method of accounting] may not apply in some in-
dustries. For example, where it is the established industry practice (such as in some oil and
gas venture accounting), the investor-venturer may account in its financial statements for its
pro rata share of the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of the venture.*

In view of the foregoing, it appears that either of two alternative methods of accounting
may be adopted by investors in unincorporated joint ventures; thus, some investors have the
option of using either the equity method of accounting or a proportionate share method
of accounting for the investments. The two methods may be illustrated by assuming that
Arthur Company and Beatrice Company each invested $400,000 for a 50% interest in an
unincorporated joint venture on January 2, 2005. Condensed financial statements (other
than a statement of cash flows) for the joint venture, Arbe Company, for 2005 were as
follows:

ARBE COMPANY (a joint venture)
Income Statement
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenue $2,000,000
Less: Cost and expenses 1,500,000
Net income $ 500,000
Division of net income: -
Arthur Company $250,000
Beatrice Company 250,000
Total $500,000

ARBE COMPANY (a joint venture)
Statement of Venturers’ Capital
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Arthur Beatrice
Company Company Combined
Investments, Jan. 2 $400,000 $400,000 $ 800,000
Add: Net income 250,000 250,000 500,000
Venturers' capital, end of year $650,000 $650,000 $1,300,000

4 The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock: Accounting Interpretation of APB
Opinion No. 18, No. 2, “Investments in Partnerships and Ventures,” AICPA (New York: 1971).
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ARBE COMPANY (a joint venture)
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

Assets
Current assets $1,600,000
Other assets 2,400,000
Total assets $4,000,000
Liabilities and Venturers' Capital
Current liabilities $ 800,000
Long-term debt 1,900,000
Venturers' capital:
Arthur Company $ 650,000
Beatrice Company 650,000 1,300,000
Total liabilities and venturers’ capital $4,000,000

Under the equity method of accounting, both Arthur Company and Beatrice Company
prepare the following journal entries for the investment in Arbe Company:

Venturer’s Journal 2005
Entries for
Unincorporated Joint Jan. 2 Investment in Arbe Company (Joint Venture) 400,000
Venture under Equity Cash 400,000
Method of Accounting To record investment in joint venture.
Dec. 31 Investment in Arbe Company (Joint Venture) 250,000

Investment Income 250,000

To record share of Arbe Company net income ($500,000 X
0.50 = $250,000).

Under the proportionate share method of accounting, in addition to the two foregoing
journal entries, both Arthur Company and Beatrice Company prepare the following journal
entry for their respective shares of the assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses of Arbe

Company:

Venturer’s Additional 2005

Journal Entry for

Unincorporated Joint Dec. 31 Current Assets ($1,600,000 X 0.50) 800,000

Venture under Other Assets ($2,400,000 X 0.50) 1,200,000

Proportionate Share Costs and Expenses ($1,500,000 X 0.50) 750,000

Method of Accounting Investment Income 250,000
Current Liabilities ($800,000 X 0.50) 400,000
Long-Term Debt ($1,900,000 X 0.50) 950,000
Revenue ($2,000,000 X 0.50) 1,000,000
Investment in Arbe Company (Joint Venture) 650,000

To record proportionate share of joint venture's assets,
liabilities, revenue, and expenses.
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Use of the equity method of accounting for unincorporated joint ventures is consistent
with the accounting for corporate joint ventures specified by APB Opinion No. 18. How-
ever, information on material assets and liabilities of a joint venture may be relegated to a
note to financial statements (see footnote 2, par. 20d on page 98), thus resulting in off~
balance sheet financing. The proportionate share method of accounting for unincorpo-
rated joint ventures avoids the problem of off-balance sheet financing but has the ques-
tionable practice of including portions of assets such as plant assets in each venturer’s
balance sheet.

Given the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s statement that “Information about an
enterprise gains greatly in usefulness if it can be compared with similar information about
other enterprises,” it is undesirable to have two significantly different generally accepted
accounting methods for investments in unincorporated joint ventures. Accordingly, the
FASB has undertaken a study of the accounting for investments in joint ventures, as well as
the accounting for all investments for which the equity method of accounting presently is
used.

In International Accounting Standard 31 (IAS 31), “Financial Reporting of Interests
in Joint Ventures,” the International Accounting Standards Board, which is discussed in
Chapter 11, permits either the proportionate consolidation method (analogous to the pro-
portionate share method described on page 99) or the equity method for a venturer’s in-
vestment in a jointly controlled entity, which might be a corporation or a partnership. As
pointed out on page 99, U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require the equity
method of accounting for investments in corporate joint ventures but permit either the eq-
uity method or the proportionate share method of accounting for investments in unincor-
porated joint ventures.

SEC ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS DEALING WITH
WRONGFUL APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR JOINT VENTURES

AAER 40, “Securities and Exchange Commission v. Chronar Corp.” (October 3, 1984), re-
ported a permanent injunction against a corporation engaged in research and development
of solar photovoltaic technology and the design, development, and marketing of manufac-
turing processes and equipment for photovoltaic panels. The SEC alleged that the corpo-
ration had prematurely recognized revenue (under the proportionate share method of
accounting) from a joint venture of which it was a 51% owner. The “revenue” was from the
corporation itself, in transactions fraught with uncertainties. The result of the inappropriate
recognition of revenue and related expenses of the joint venture by the corporation was a
48% understatement of the corporation’s nine-month net loss reported to the SEC in its quar-
terly report on Form 10-Q. In a related enforcement action, reported in A4ER 78, «“. . . In the
Matter of Seidman & Seidman . ..” (October 10, 1985), the CPA firm that had reviewed the
corporation’s nine-month financial statements was censured by the SEC and undertook to
improve its professional standards.

The SEC reported in A4ER 102, . . . In the Matter of Ray M. VanLandingham and
Wallace A. Patzke, Jr.” (June 20, 1986), the issuance of an order requiring the chief ac-
counting officer and the controller (both CPAs) of a corporate marketer of petroleum

> Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 2, “Qualitative Characteristics of Accounting Informa-
tion,” FASB (Stamford, CT: 1980), par. 111.
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products to comply with provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and related
rules. The SEC found that the two executives were responsible for the corporation’s failure
to write down by at least $100 million its investment (carried at $311 million) in a joint
venture that operated an oil refinery. The write-down was necessitated by the corporation’s
unsuccessful efforts to sell its investment in the joint venture at a price significantly below
the carrying amount of the investment.

Review 1. Alo and Bel, partners of Alo & Bel LLP, have capital accounts of $60,000 and
$80,000, respectively. In addition, Alo has made an interest-bearing loan of $20,000
to the partnership. If Alo and Bel now decide to liquidate the partnership, what prior-
ity or advantge, if any, does Alo have in the liquidation with respect to the loan ledger
account?

Questions

2. Explain the procedure to be followed in a limited liability partnership liquidation when
a debit balance arises in the capital account of one of the partners.

3. In the liquidation of Cor, Don & Ell LLP, the realization of noncash assets resulted in
a loss that produced the following balances in the partners’ capital accounts: Cor,
$25,000 credit; Don, $12,500 credit; and Ell, $5,000 debit. The partners shared net in-
come and losses in a 5 : 3 : 2 ratio. All liabilities have been paid, and $32,500 of cash
is available for distribution to partners. However, it is not possible to determine at pre-
sent whether Ell will be able to pay in the $5,000 capital deficit. May the cash on hand
be distributed without a delay to determine the collectibility of the amount due from
Ell? Explain.

4. After realization of all noncash assets and distributing all available cash to creditors,
the insolvent Fin, Guy & Han Partnership (a general partnership) still had trade ac-
counts payable of $12,000. The capital account of Fin had a credit balance of $16,000
and that of Guy had a credit balance of $2,000. Creditors of the partnership demanded
payment from Fin, who replied that the three partners shared net income equally and
had begun operations with equal capital investments. Fin therefore offered to pay the
creditors one-third of their claims and no more. What is your opinion of the position
taken by Fin? What is the balance of Han’s capital account? What journal entry, if any,
should be made in the partnership accounting records for a payment by Fin to the part-
nership creditors?

5. Inlle, Job & Key, LLP, Ile is the managing partner. The partnership contract provides
that Ile is to receive an annual salary of $12,000, payable in 12 equal monthly install-
ments, and the resultant net income or loss is to be divided equally. On June 30, 2005,
the partnership suspended operations and began liquidation. Because of a shortage of
cash, Ile had not drawn any salary for the last two months of operations. How should
Ile’s claim for $2,000 of “unpaid wages” be accounted for in the liquidation of the
partnership?

6. Lud and Moy, partners of the liquidating Lud & Moy LLP, share net income and losses
equally. State reasons for allocation of losses incurred in the realization of assets
equally or in the ratio of capital account balances.

7. Explain the basic principle to be observed in the distribution of cash in installments to
partners when the liquidation of a limited liability partnership extends over several
months.

8. During the installment liquidation of a limited liability partnership, it is appropriate to
estimate the loss from realization of noncash assets. What journal entries, if any,




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

16.
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should be made to recognize in the partners’ capital accounts their respective shares of
the loss that may be incurred during the liquidation?

Nom, Orr & Pan LLP is to be liquidated over several months, with installment distrib-
utions of cash to the partners. Will the total amount of cash received by each partner
under these circumstances be more, less, or the same amount as if the liquidator had
retained all cash until all noncash assets had been realized and then had made a single
cash payment to each of the partners?

Under what circumstances, if any, is it appropriate for a limited liability partnership
undergoing installment liquidation to distribute cash to partners in the income-sharing
ratio?

Rab, San, and Tay, partners of Rab, San & Tay LLP who share net income or losses
equally, had capital account balances of $30,000, $25,000, and $21,000, respectively,
when the partnership began liquidation. Among the assets was a promissory note re-
ceivable from San in the amount of $7,000. All partnership liabilities had been paid.
The first assets realized during the liquidation were marketable debt securities (classi-
fied as held to maturity) with a carrying amount of $15,000, for which cash of $18,000
was received. How should this $18,000 be divided among the partners?

When Urb, Van & Woo LLP began liquidation, the capital account credit balances were
Urb, $38,000; Van, $35,000; and Woo, $32,000. When the liquidation was complete,
Urb had received less cash than either of the other two partners. What factors might ex-
plain why the partner with the largest capital account balance might receive the small-
est amount of cash in liquidation?

Yang and Zee, partners of Yang & Zee LLP, decided to incorporate the partnership as
Yang-Zee Corporation. The entire capital stock of Yang-Zee Corporation was divided
equally between Yang and Zee because they had equal capital account balances in the
partnership. An appraisal report obtained on the date of incorporation indicated that
the land and buildings had increased in value by 50% while owned by the partnership.
Should the carrying amounts of those assets be increased to appraisal value or valued
at cost less accumulated depreciation to the partnership when recognized in Yang-Zee
Corporation’s accounting records? Explain.

Explain how a joint venture differs from a partnership.

What are corporate joint ventures? What accounting standards for such ventures were
established in APB Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for Invest-
ments in Common Stock™?

Compare the equity method of accounting with the proportionate share method of
accounting for an investment in an unincorporated joint venture.

Exercises

(Exercise 3.1)  Select the best answer for each of the following multiple-choice questions:

I.

If Jebb, a partner with a loan receivable from a liquidating limited liability partnership,
receives less cash than the amount of the loan during the liquidation, the payment is
recorded with a debit to the partnership’s ledger account entitled:

a. Loan Receivable from Jebb.

b. Jebb, Capital.

c¢. Jebb, Drawing.

d. Loan Payable to Jebb.
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2. Is the balance of the Loan Payable to Partner Jones ledger account combined with the bal-
ance of the Partner Jones, Capital account of a liquidating limited liability partnership in:

The Partnership’s The Partnership’s Statement
General Ledger? of Realization and Liquidation?
a. Yes Yes
b. Yes No
c. No Yes
d. No No

3. In the liquidation of a limited liability partnership, a loan payable to a partner:
a. Must be offset against that partner’s capital account balance before liquidation
commences.
b. Will not advance the time of payment to that partner during the liquidation.
c. Has the same priority as amounts payable to outside creditors of the partnership.
d. Must be closed to that partner’s drawing account.

4. In the liquidation of a limited liability partnership, cash received by a partner having a
loan receivable from the partnership is debited to the partner’s:

a. Loan account.

b. Capital account.

c. Drawing account.

d. Retained earnings account.

5. Prior to the beginning of liquidation, the liabilities and partners’ capital of Mann, Nunn &
Ogg LLP, whose partners shared net income and losses equally, consisted of Liabili-
ties, $60,000; Loan Payable to Ogg, $21,000; Mann, Capital, $30,000; Nunn, Capital,
$60,000; and Ogg, Capital, $39,000. If, after realization of all noncash assets and pay-
ment of all outsider liabilities, $60,000 cash was available for distribution to partners
on January 31, 2005, partner Ogg should receive:

a. $60,000
b. $39,000
¢. $30,000
d. $21,000
e. Some other amount
6. The marshaling of assets provisions of the Uniform Partnership Act provide that un-

paid creditors of an insolvent general partnership have first claim to assets of:

a. The partnership.

b. A solvent partner.

c. An insolvent partner.

d. Either the partnership or a solvent partner, as elected by the creditor.

7. May unpaid creditors of an insolvent liquidating general partnership obtain payment
from a personally solvent partner whose partnership capital account has a:

Debit Balance? Credit Balance?
a. Yes Yes
b. Yes No
c. No Yes
d. No No
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The ledger accounts of the liquidating Gill, Hall & James LLP included Loan Receiv-
able from Gill, $10,000 dr; Loan Payable to Hall, $20,000 cr; Gill, Capital, $30,000 dr;
Hall, Capital, $60,000 cr; James, Capital, $50,000 cr. The partners share net income
and losses 20%, 40%, and 40%, respectively. In the preparation of a cash distribution
to partners during liquidation working paper, beginning capital per unit of income-
sharing amounts are:

Gill Hall James

($40,000) $80,000 $50,000
($20,000) $20,000 $12,500
($15,000) $15,000 $12,500

=0~ $80,000 $50,000

RO SR

In the liquidation of a limited liability partnership in installments, the partner who re-
ceives the first payment of cash after all liabilities have been paid is the partner having
the largest:

a. Capital account balance.

b. Capital per unit of income sharing.

c. Income-sharing percentage.

d. Loan account balance.

In the preparation of a cash distribution program for the liquidating Marlo, Noble &
Owen LLP, the balance of the Loan Receivable from Partner Marlo ledger account in
the accounting records of the partnership is:

a. Added to the Partner Marlo, Drawing, account balance.

b. Deducted from the Partner Marlo, Capital, account balance.
c. Included with the total of the noncash assets accounts.

d. Disregarded.

In the installment liquidation of a limited liability partnership, the income-sharing ratio

is used for cash payments to partners:

a. Atno time.

b. Throughout the course of the liquidation.

c. Once the partners’ capital account balances have been reduced to the income-
sharing ratio.

d. Only for asset realizations that result in gains.

May a balance sheet prepared for a corporation on the date it was created from the in-
corporation of a limited liability partnership display in stockholders’ equity:

Common Stock?  Additional Paid-in Capital? Retained Earnings?

a. Yes Yes Yes
b. Yes Yes No
c. Yes No No
d. Yes No Yes

The proportionate share method of accounting is appropriate for:

a. Corporate joint ventures only.

b. Unincorporated joint ventures only.

c¢. Both corporate joint ventures and unincorporated joint ventures.

d. Neither corporate joint ventures nor unincorporated joint ventures.
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(Exercise 3.2)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit Ron, capital,
$11,500.

(Exercise 3.3)

CHECK FIGURE
Cash to Archer,
$14,800.

(Exercise 3.4)

CHECK FIGURE
b. Credit Dodge,
capital, $9,675.

(Exercise 3.5)

CHECK FIGURE
Cash to Rich, $8,000.

After the realization of all noncash assets and the payment of all liabilities, the balance
sheet of the liquidating Pon, Quan & Ron LLP on January 31, 2005, showed Cash, $15,000;
Pon, Capital, ($9,000); Quan, Capital, $8,000; and Ron, Capital, $16,000, with ( ) indicat-
ing a capital deficit. The partners share net income and losses equally.

Prepare a journal entry for Pon, Quan & Ron LLP on January 31, 2005, to show the pay-
ment of $15,000 cash in a safe manner to the partners. Show computations in the explana-
tion for the journal entry.

Archer and Bender, partners of Archer & Bender LLP, who share net income and losses in
a 60 : 40 ratio, respectively, decided to liquidate the partnership. A portion of the noncash
assets had been realized, but assets with a carrying amount of $42,000 were yet to be
realized. All liabilities had been paid, and cash of $20,000 was available for distribution
to partners. The partners’ capital account credit balances were $40,000 for Archer and
$22,000 for Bender.

Prepare a working paper to compute the amount of cash (totaling $20,000) to be dis-
tributed to each partner.

Carlo and Dodge started Carlo & Dodge LLP some years ago and managed to operate prof-
itably for several years. Recently, however, they lost a lawsuit requiring payment of large
damages because of Carlo’s negligence and incurred unexpected losses on trade accounts
receivable and inventories. As a result, they decided to liquidate the partnership. After all
noncash assets were realized, only $18,000 was available to pay liabilities, which amounted
to $33,000. The partners’ capital account balances before the start of liquidation and their
income-sharing percentages are shown below:

Capital Account Balances Income-Sharing Percentages
Carlo $23,000 55%
Dodge 13,500 45%

a. Prepare a working paper to compute the total loss incurred on the liquidation of the
Carlo & Dodge LLP.

b. Prepare a journal entry to record Carlo’s payment of $15,000 to partnership creditors
and to close the partners’ capital accounts. Carlo was barely solvent after paying the
partnership creditors, but Dodge had net assets, exclusive of partnership interest, in ex-
cess of $100,000.

The balance sheet of Rich, Stowe & Thorpe LLP on the date it commenced liquidation was
as follows, with the partners’ income-sharing ratio in parentheses:

RICH, STOWE & THORPE LLP
Balance Sheet
September 24, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 20,000 Liabilities $240,000
Other assets 480,000 Rich, capital (40%) 80,000
Stowe, capital (40%) 120,000
Thorpe, capital (20%) 60,000

Total liabilities and
Total assets $500,000 partners’ capital $500,000




(Exercise 3.6)

(Exercise 3.7)

CHECK FIGURE
Cash to Flo, $13,000.

(Exercise 3.8)

CHECK FIGURE
Cash to Hale, $5,000.

(Exercise 3.9)

CHECK FIGURE
b. Cash to Lamb,
$17,000.
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On September 24, 2005, other assets with a carrying amount of $360,000 realized $300,000
cash, and $320,000 ($20,000 + $300,000 = $320,000) cash was paid in a safe manner.
Prepare journal entries for Rich, Stowe & Thorpe LLP on September 24, 2005.

On June 3, 2005, the partners of Ace, Bay & Cap LLP agreed (1) to liquidate the partner-
ship, (2) to share gains and losses on the realization of noncash assets in the ratio 1 : 3 : 4,
and (3) to disburse the $80,000 available cash on June 3 in a safe manner. In addition to
cash, the June 3 balance sheet of the partnership had other assets, $100,000; liabilities,
$50,000; Ace, capital, $60,000; Bay, capital, $40,000; and Cap, capital, $30,000. The part-
nership had no loans receivable from or payable to the partners.

Prepare a journal entry for Ace, Bay & Cap LLP on June 3, 2005, to record the dis-
bursement of $80,000 cash. Show computations in the explanation for the entry.

After realization of a portion of the noncash assets of Ed, Flo & Gus LLP, which was
being liquidated, the capital account balances were Ed, $33,000; Flo, $40,000; and Gus,
$42,000. Cash of $42,000 and other assets with a carrying amount of $78,000 were
on hand. Creditors’ claims total $5,000. The partners share net income and losses in a
5:3: 2 ratio.

Prepare a working paper to compute the cash payments (totaling $37,000) that may be
made to the partners.

When Hale and lan, partners of Hale & Ian LLP who shared net income and losses in a
4 : 6 ratio, were incapacitated in an accident, a liquidator was appointed to wind up the part-
nership. The partnership’s balance sheet showed cash, $35,000; other assets, $110,000;
liabilities, $20,000; Hale, capital, $71,000; and Ian, capital, $54,000. Because of the spe-
cialized nature of the noncash assets, the liquidator anticipated that considerable time
would be required to dispose of them. The costs of liquidating the partnership (advertising,
rent, travel, etc.) were estimated at $10,000.

Prepare a working paper to compute the amount of cash (totaling $5,000) that may be
distributed to each partner.

The following balance sheet was available for Jones, Kell & Lamb LLP on March 31, 2005
(each partner’s income-sharing percentage is shown in parentheses):

JONES, KELL & LAMB LLP
Balance Sheet
March 31, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 25,000 Liabilities $ 52,000
Other assets 180,000 Jones, capital (40%) 40,000
Kell, capital (40%) 65,000
Lamb, capital (20%) 48,000
Total $205,000 Total $205,000

a. The partnership was being liquidated by the realization of other assets in installments.
The first realization of noncash assets having a carrying amount of $90,000 realized
$50,000, and all cash available after settlement with creditors was distributed to part-
ners. Prepare a working paper to compute the amount of cash each partner should re-
ceive in the first installment.

b. If the facts are as in a above, except that $3,000 cash is withheld for anticipated liqui-
dation costs, compute the amount of cash that each partner should receive.
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(Exercise 3.10)

CHECK FIGURE
b. $26,000.

(Exercise 3.11)

CHECK FIGURE
Cash to Quinn in Aug.,
$9,000.

(Exercise 3.12)

(Exercise 3.13)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit loan payable to
Ang, $5,000.

c. As a separate case, assume that each partner appropriately received some cash in the
distribution after the second realization of noncash assets. The cash to be distributed
amounted to $14,000 from the third realization of noncash assets, and other assets with
a $6,000 carrying amount remained. Prepare a working paper to show how the $14,000
is distributed to the partners.

On November 10, 2005, May, Nona, and Olive, partners of May, Nona & Olive LLP, had
capital account balances of $20,000, $25,000, and $9,000, respectively, and shared net in-
come and lossesina 4 : 2 : 1 ratio.

a. Prepare a cash distribution program for liquidation of the May, Nona & Olive Partner-
ship in installments, assuming liabilities totaled $20,000 on November 10, 2005.

b. How much cash was paid to all partners if May received $4,000 on liquidation?
If May received $13,000 cash pursuant to liquidation, how much did Olive receive?

U0

. If Nona received only $11,000 as a result of the liquidation, what was the loss to the
partnership on the realization of assets? (No partner invested any additional assets in the
partnership.)

Following is the balance sheet of Paul & Quinn LLP on June 1, 2005:

PAUL & QUINN LLP
Balance Sheet
June 1, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 5,000 Liabilities $20,000
Other assets 55,000 Paul, capital 22,500
Quinn, capital 17,500
Total $60,000 Total $60,000

The partners share net income and net losses as follows: Paul, 60%; Quinn, 40%. In June,
other assets with a carrying amount of $22,000 realized $18,000, creditors were paid in
full, and $2,000 was paid to the partners in a manner to reduce their capital account bal-
ances closer to the income-sharing ratio. In July, other assets with a carrying amount of
$10,000 realized $12,000, liquidation costs of $500 were paid, and cash of $12,500 was
distributed to the partners. In August, the remaining other assets realized $22,500, and fi-
nal settlement was made between the partners.

Prepare a working paper to compute the amount of cash each partner should receive in
June, July, and August 2005.

On September 26, 2005, prior to commencement of liquidation of Orville, Paula & Quincy
LLP, the partnership had total liabilities of $80,000 and partners’ capital account credit bal-
ances of $120,000 for Orville, $160,000 for Paula, and $80,000 for Quincy. There were no
loans to or from partners in the partnership’s accounting records. The partners shared net
income and losses as follows: Orville, 30%; Paula, 50%; Quincy, 20%.

Prepare a cash distribution program for Orville, Paula & Quincy LLP on September 26,
2005.

On January 21, 2005, the date the partners of Ang, Bel & Cap LLP decided to liquidate the
partnership, its balance sheet showed cash, $33,000; other assets, $67,000; trade accounts
payable, $20,000; loan payable to Ang, $12,000; Ang, capital, $28,000; Bel, capital,
$18,000; and Cap, capital, $22,000. The partnership’s income-sharing ratio was Ang, 50%;
Bel, 30%; Cap, 20%. The accountant for the partnership prepared the following cash



(Exercise 3.14)

(Exercise 3.15)

(Exercise 3.16)
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distribution program (to facilitate installment payments to partners) on January 21, 2005:
First $20,000, 100% to creditors; next $6,000, 100% to Cap; next $14,000, % to Ang and
% to Cap; all over $40,000, in income-sharing ratio. On the basis of the foregoing, the part-
ners decided to pay the entire cash of $33,000 on January 21, 2005, in a safe manner con-
sistent with the Uniform Partnership Act.

Prepare a journal entry to record the Ang, Bel & Cap LLP payment of $33,000 cash on
January 21, 2005.

The net equities and income-sharing ratio for the partners of Ruiz, Salvo, Thomas & Urwig
LLP before liquidation was authorized on May 5, 2005, were as follows:

Ruiz Salvo Thomas Urwig
Net equity in partnership $36,000 $32,400 $8,000 $(100)
Income-sharing ratio 3 4 2 1

Assets were expected to realize cash significantly in excess of carrying amounts.

Prepare a program showing how cash should be distributed to the partners as it becomes
available in the course of liquidation if liabilities of the partnership totaled $15,000 on
May 5, 2005.

On September 30, 2005, the partners of Allen, Brown & Cox LLP, who shared net income
and losses in the ratio of 5 : 3 : 2, respectively, decided to liquidate the partnership. The
partnership trial balance on that date was as follows:

ALLEN, BROWN & COX LLP
Trial Balance
September 30, 2005

Debit Credit

Cash $ 18,000
Loan receivable from Allen 30,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 66,000
Inventories 52,000
Machinery and equipment (net) 189,000
Trade accounts payable $ 53,000
Loan payable to Brown 20,000
Allen, capital 118,000
Brown, capital 90,000
Cox, capital 74,000

Totals $355,000 $355,000

The partners planned a lengthy time period for realization of noncash assets in order to
minimize liquidation losses. All available cash, less an amount retained to provide for fu-
ture liquidation costs, was to be distributed to the partners at the end of each month.

Prepare a cash distribution program for Allen, Brown & Cox LLP on September 30,
2005, showing how cash should be distributed to creditors and to partners as it becomes
available during liquidation. Round amounts to the nearest dollar.

The balance sheet of Davis, Evans & Fagin LLP on September 29, 2005, included cash,
$20,000; other assets, $262,000; liabilities, $50,000; and total partners’ capital, $232,000.
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CHECK FIGURE
Cash to Fagin,
$24,000.

(Exercise 3.17)

CHECK FIGURE
Total assets, $146,000.

(Exercise 3.18)

On that date, the three partners decided to dissolve and liquidate the partnership. The cash
distribution program prepared by the partnership’s accountant follows:

DAVIS, EVANS & FAGIN LLP
Cash Distribution Program

September 29, 2005

Total Creditors Davis Evans Fagin
First $ 50,000 100%
Next 34,000 100%
Next 48,000 33"%% 66%5%
All over $132,000 40% 20% 40%

On September 30, 2005, noncash assets with a carrying amount of $140,000 were sold for
$100,000 cash.

Prepare journal entries for Davis, Evans & Fagin LLP on September 30, 2005, to record
the realization of $140,000 of noncash assets and the payment of all available cash on that
date in accordance with the cash distribution program.

The balance sheet of Venner & Wigstaff LLP, immediately before the partnership was in-
corporated as Venwig Corporation, follows:

VENNER & WIGSTAFF LLP
Balance Sheet

September 30, 2005
Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 10,500 Trade accounts payable $ 16,400
Trade accounts receivable 15,900 Venner, capital 60,000
Inventories 42,000 Wigstaff, capital 52,000
Equipment (net of $18,000
accumulated depreciation) 60,000
Total $128,400 Total $128,400

The following adjustments to the balance sheet of the partnership were recommended by a
CPA before accounting records for Venwig Corporation were to be established:

1. An allowance for doubtful accounts was to be established in the amount of $1,200.

2. Short-term prepayments of $800 were to be recognized.

3. The current fair value of inventories, $48,000, and the current fair value of equipment,
$72,000, were to be recognized.

4. Accrued liabilities of $750 were to be recognized.

Prepare a balance sheet for Venwig Corporation on October 1, 2005, assuming that 10,000
shares of $5 par common stock were issued to the partners in exchange for their equities in
the partnership. Fifty thousand shares of common stock were authorized to be issued.

On January 2, 2005, Yale Corporation and Zola Corporation each invested $500,000 in an
unincorporated joint venture, Y-Z Company, the income or losses of which were to be shared
equally. On December 31, 2005, financial statements of Y-Z Company showed total rev-
enue, $800,000; total costs and expenses, $600,000; total current assets, $600,000; net plant
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assets, $1,500,000; total current liabilities, $300,000; total long-term debt, $600,000; and to-
tal venturers’ capital, $1,200,000. Neither venturer had drawings during 2005.

a. Prepare journal entries for Yale Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2005, to
record its investment in Y-Z Company under the equity method of accounting.

b. Prepare an additional journal entry for Yale Corporation on December 31, 2005, to com-
plete the journal entries (together with those in @) required for the investment in Y-Z
Company under the proportionate share method of accounting.

Cases

(Case 3.1)

(Case 3.2)

(Case 3.3)

Professor Lewis posed the following question to students of advanced accounting: “Does
the limited liability partnership form of business enterprise damage the mutual agency
characteristic of a general partnership?”

Instructions
How would you answer Professor Lewis’s question? Explain.

The partners of the liquidating Nance, Olson & Peale LLP have requested Nancy Lane,
CPA, to assist in the liquidation. Lane discovered considerable disarray in the partnership’s
accounting records for liabilities, especially for trade accounts payable. Despite the condi-
tion of the accounting records, the partners have urged Lane to prepare a cash distribution
program to show how cash received from the realization of noncash assets might be dis-
tributed to creditors and to partners as it became available.

Instructions
Is Nancy Lane able to prepare a cash distribution program, given the condition of the
Nance, Olson & Peale LLP accounting records? Explain.

The Berg, Hancock & Loomis Partnership (a general partnership) was insolvent and in the
process of liquidation under the Uniform Partnership Act. After the noncash assets were re-
alized and the resultant loss was distributed equally among the partners in accordance with
the partnership contract, their financial positions were as follows:

Financial Position
Other Than Equity
in Partnership

Equity in
Partnership Assets Liabilities
Jack Berg $30,000 $110,000 $45,000
Diane Hancock (21,000) 20,000 40,000
David Loomis (55,000) 55,000 45,000

Several partnership creditors remained unpaid, but the partnership had no cash.

Instructions
Explain the prospects for collection by:

a. The creditors of the partnership.
b. The creditors of each partner.

c. Jack Berg from the other partners. Compute the total loss that Berg will incur on the lig-
uidation of the partnership.
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(Case 3.4)

(Case 3.5)

Lois Allen and Barbara Brett established a limited liability partnership and shared net in-
come and losses equally. Although the partners began business with equal capital account
balances, Allen made more frequent authorized cash withdrawals than Brett, with the result
that her capital account balance became the smaller of the two. The partners decided to lig-
uidate the partnership on June 30, 2005; on that date the accounting records were closed
and financial statements were prepared. The balance sheet included capital of $40,000 for
Allen and $60,000 for Brett, as well as a $10,000 loan payable to Brett.

The liquidation of the partnership was managed by Allen, because Brett was hospital-
ized by illness on July 1, 2005, the day after partnership operations were suspended. The
procedures followed by Allen were as follows: (1) realize all the noncash assets at the best
amounts obtainable; (2) pay the outside creditors in full; (3) pay Brett’s loan; and (4) divide
all remaining cash between Brett and herself in the 40 : 60 ratio represented by their capi-
tal account balances.

When Brett was released from the hospital on July 5, 2005, Allen informed her that
through good luck and hard work, she had been able to realize the noncash assets and com-
plete the liquidation during the five days of Brett’s hospitalization. Thereupon, Allen deliv-
ered two partnership checks to Brett. One check was for $10,000 in payment of the loan;
the other was in settlement of Brett’s capital account balance.

Instructions
a. Do you approve of the procedures followed by Allen in the liquidation? Explain.

b. Assume that the liquidation procedures followed resulted in the payment of $24,000 to
Brett in addition to the payment of her loan in full. What was the partnership’s gain or
loss on the realization of assets? If you believe that other methods should have been fol-
lowed in the liquidation, explain how much more or less Brett would have received un-
der the procedure you recommend.

The Wells, Conner & Zola Partnership, a general partnership CPA firm, has been forced to
liquidate because of the bankruptcy of partner Lewis Zola, which caused the dissolution of
the firm. On the date of Zola’s bankruptcy filing, the partnership’s balance sheet was as
shown below, with the partners’ income-sharing percentages in parentheses.

WELLS, CONNER & ZOLA PARTNERSHIP
Balance Sheet

October 31, 2005
Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 60,000 Trade accounts payable $140,000
Trade accounts receivable 120,000 Interest payable to Wells 10,000
Office equipment (net) 240,000 10% note payable to Wells 100,000
Library (net) 90,000 Wells, capital (50%) 280,000
Goodwill (net) 40,000 Conner, capital (30%) 80,000
Zola, capital (20%) (60,000)
Total liabilities and
Total assets $550,000 partners’ capital $550,000

In a meeting with the three partners, you, as the partners’ accountant, are asked to su-
pervise the liquidation of the partnership. In response to partner John Wells’s assertion that,
according to his attorney, the partnership had to pay the note and interest payable to Wells
after all trade accounts payable had been paid, you explain your understanding of the right
of offset, which gives the Wells loan no priority over partners’ capital. You point out that the
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amounts to be realized for the partnership’s office equipment and library are uncertain and
that in an enforced liquidation losses may be incurred on the realization of those assets. You
also indicate that the impaired partnership goodwill has no realizable value and should be
written off to the partners’ capital accounts at once.

Your statements cause consternation to partners John Wells and Kathleen Conner. Wells
points out that he has been absorbing the majority of the partnership’s recent operating
losses, and that his loan to the partnership was necessitated by a cash shortage. Conner ob-
jects to sharing any part of the write-off of impaired goodwill, reminding Wells, Zola, and
you that the goodwill was recognized in the admission of Zola to the former Wells & Conner
partnership for his investment of his highly profitable CPA firm proprietorship. Noting that
Zola’s personal bankruptcy was most likely an outgrowth of his deteriorating relationship
with Wells, partnership clients, and her, Conner strongly urges that Zola’s capital account
be charged for the entire $40,000 carrying amount of the impaired goodwill.

After further acrimonious discussion, the three partners request you to “go back to the
drawing board” and return with a recommendation on how best to resolve the issues raised
by Wells and Conner. In response to your inquiry, both Wells and Conner emphasize that
they intend to continue the practice of public accounting in some form; Zola states that he
has no future career plans until the resolution of his bankruptcy filing.

Instructions

Prepare a memo for your recommendations for the three partners in response to the issues
they have raised. Include in your recommendations your views on the desirability of the
partners’ retaining an independent attorney to resolve the issues raised.

Anne Sanchez, chief accounting officer of the Kane & Grant Partnership (a general part-
nership), is a member of the IMA, the FEI, and the AICPA (see Chapter 1). Partners Jane
Kane and Lloyd Grant inform Sanchez of their plans to incorporate the highly profitable
partnership, with a view to a public offering to outside investors in the future. Indicating
their desire for the best possible balance sheet for the new corporation, they ask Sanchez to
reconsider her insistence that the partnership account for its 50% investment in KG/WM
Company, an unincorporated joint venture, by the proportionate share method. Partner
Kane shows Sanchez the following comparative balance sheet data for the partnership
under two methods of accounting for the investment in KG/WM Company:

KANE & GRANT PARTNERSHIP
Condensed Balance Sheets

April 30, 2005
Proportionate
Share Method Equity Method
Assets
Investment in KG/WM Company $ 0 $ 600,000
Other assets 3,800,000 2,400,000
Total assets $3,800,000 $3,000,000
Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Total liabilities $2,000,000 $1,200,000
Partners’ capital 1,800,000 1,800,000
Total liabilities and partners’ capital $3,800,000 $3,000,000

Kane points out that under the proportionate share method of accounting for the in-
vestment in KG/WM Company, the Kane & Grant Partnership’s debt-to-equity ratio is



114 Part One Accounting for Partnerships and Branches

(Case 3.7)

111% ($2,000,000 =+ $1,800,000 = 111%), while under the equity method of accounting
for the investment the partnership’s debt-to-equity ratio is only 67% ($1,200,000 +
$1,800,000 = 67%).

Instructions
May Anne Sanchez ethically comply with the request of Jane Kane and Lloyd Grant? Explain.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board is studying the accounting for investments in
both corporate joint ventures and unincorporated joint ventures.

Instructions

Do you favor requiring a single accounting method for investments in both corporate and un-
incorporated joint ventures? If so, what should the accounting method be? If not, should one
accounting method be mandatory for investments in corporate joint ventures, and another
method mandatory for investments in unincorporated joint ventures? Or should alternative
accounting methods be available for investments in both types of joint ventures? Explain.

Problems
(Problem 3.1)

During liquidation, the Doris, Elsie & Frances Partnership (a general partnership) became
insolvent. On January 17, 2005, after all noncash assets had been realized and all available
cash had been distributed to creditors, the balance sheet of the partnership was as follows:

DORIS, ELSIE & FRANCES PARTNERSHIP
Balance Sheet
January 17, 2005

Liabilities and Partners’ Capital

Trade accounts payable $ 60,000
Doris, capital 120,000
Elsie, capital (160,000)
Frances, capital (20,000)
Total liabilities and partners’ capital $ -0-

The partners shared net income and losses (including gains and losses in liquidation) in the
ratio 20%, 50%, and 30%, respectively. On January 17, 2005, when the financial positions
of the partners were as shown below, Elsie and Frances invested in the partnership all cash
available under the marshaling of assets provisions of the Uniform Partnership Act:

Partner Assets* Liabilities*
Doris $ 60,000 $ 80,000
Elsie 280,000 200,000
Frances 250,000 240,000

*Excludes equity in partnership

Instructions

Prepare journal entries for the Doris, Elsie & Frances Partnership on January 17, 2005, to
record the receipt of cash from Elsie and Frances, the appropriate distribution of the cash,
and the completion of the partnership liquidation.



(Problem 3.2)

CHECK FIGURE
Feb. 5, debit Olmo,
capital, $73,333.

(Problem 3.3)

CHECK FIGURE
All cash over $185,000
in income-sharing

ratio.

(Problem 3.4)
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Following is the balance sheet of Olmo, Perez & Quinto LLP on January 31, 2005, the date
the partners authorized liquidation of the partnership. There were no unrecorded liabilities.

OLMO, PEREZ & QUINTO LLP
Balance Sheet
January 31, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital

Cash $ 10,000 Trade accounts payable $ 90,000
Loan receivable from Perez 50,000 Loan payable to Olmo 60,000
Other assets (net) 240,000 Olmo, capital 140,000
Perez, capital (70,000)

Quinto, capital 80,000

Total liabilities and
Total assets $300,000 partners’ capital $300,000

Additional Information for 2005:

1. The partners’ income (loss)-sharing ratio was Olmo, 40%; Perez, 40%; and Quinto, 20%.

2. On February 1, noncash assets with a carrying amount of $180,000 realized $140,000,
and all available cash was paid to creditors and to partners.

3. On February 4, noncash assets with a carrying amount of $60,000 realized $50,000, and
that amount was paid to partners.

4. On February 5, Perez, who was almost insolvent, paid $30,000 on the loan from the part-
nership. Olmo and Quinto agreed that the partnership would receive no further cash from
Perez, and they instructed the accountant to close the partnership’s accounting records.

Instructions

Prepare journal entries for Olmo, Perez & Quinto LLP on February 1, 4, and 5, 2005. Dis-
regard costs of the liquidation. Round all amounts to the nearest dollar. (Preparation of a
cash distribution program as a supporting exhibit is recommended.)

The loan and capital account balances of Hal, Ian, Jay & Kay LLP were as follows on Sep-
tember 25, 2005, the date that the partnership began liquidation:

Debit Credit
Loan receivable from Jay $10,000
Loan payable to Hal $20,000
Hal, capital 50,000
lan, capital 25,000
Jay, capital 70,000
Kay, capital 50,000

Partnership liabilities totaled $80,000 on September 25, 2005. The partners shared net in-
come and losses and realization gains and losses as follows: Hal, 20%; Ian, 25%; Jay, 30%;
and Kay, 25%.

Instructions
Prepare a cash distribution program for Hal, Ian, Jay & Kay LLP on September 25, 2005.

Carson and Worden decided to dissolve and liquidate Carson & Worden LLP on Septem-
ber 23, 2005. On that date, the balance sheet of the partnership was as follows:
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CHECK FIGURE
b. Oct. 1, debit Carson,
capital, $4,800.

(Problem 3.5)

CARSON & WORDEN LLP
Balance Sheet
September 23, 2005

Assets
Cash
Other assets

Total

$ 5,000
100,000

$105,000

Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Trade accounts payable
Loan payable to Worden

Carson, capital
Worden, capital
Total

$ 15,000
10,000
60,000
20,000

$105,000

On September 23, 2005, noncash assets with a carrying amount of $70,000 realized
$60,000, and $64,000 was paid to creditors and partners, $1,000 being retained to cover
possible liquidation costs. On October 1, 2005, the remaining noncash assets realized
$18,000 (net of liquidation costs), and all available cash was distributed to partners. Carson
and Worden share net income and losses 40% and 60%, respectively.

Instructions

a. Prepare a cash distribution program for Carson & Worden LLP on September 23, 2005,
to determine the appropriate distribution of cash to partners as it becomes available.

b. Prepare journal entries for Carson & Worden LLP on September 23 and October 1, 2005,
to record the realization of assets and distributions of cash to creditors and partners.

The statement of realization and liquidation for Luke, Mayo & Nomura LLP was as

follows:

LUKE,

MAYO & NOMURA LLP

Statement of Realization and Liquidation
April 30 through June 1, 2005

Assets A:::S: ts Partner’s Capital
Cash Other Payable Luke Mayo Nomura

Balances before liquidation

(April 30, 2005) $ 20,000 $200,000 $120,000 $ 10,000 $ 30,000 $ 60,000
Realization of other assets

at a loss of $120,000

(May 9, 2005) 80,000 (200,000) (40,000) (40,000) (40,000)
Balances $100,000 $120,000 $(30,000) $(10,000) $ 20,000
Payment to creditors (May

12, 2005) (100,000) (100,000)
Balances $ 20,000 $(30,000) $(10,000) $ 20,000
Payment by Luke to

partnership creditors

(May 18, 2005) (20,000) 20,000
Balances $(10,000) $(10,000) $ 20,000
Cash invested by Luke and

Mayo (May 25, 2005) $ 20,000 10,000 10,000
Balances $ 20,000 $ 20,000
Payment to Nomura (June

1, 2005) (20,000) (20,000)




(Problem 3.6)

CHECK FIGURES
a. Loss from
liquidation, $78,750;
b. Payment to Luna,
$59,625.

(Problem 3.7)

CHECK FIGURES
Apr. 15, debit Lee,
capital, $2,900.
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Instructions

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for the liquidation of Luke, Mayo & Nomura
LLP on May 9, 12, 18, and 25 and June 1, 2005. Use a single Other Assets ledger account.

On December 31, 2005, the accounting records of Luna, Nava & Ruby LLP included the
following ledger account balances:

(Dr) Cr
Luna, drawing $(24,000)
Ruby, drawing (9,000)
Loan payable to Nava 30,000
Luna, capital 123,000
Nava, capital 100,500
Ruby, capital 108,000

Total assets of the partnership amounted to $478,500, including $52,500 cash, and part-
nership liabilities totaled $150,000. The partnership was liquidated on December 31, 2005,
and Ruby received $83,250 cash pursuant to the liquidation. Luna, Nava, and Ruby shared
net income and losses in a 5 : 3 : 2 ratio, respectively.

Instructions

a. Prepare a working paper to compute the total loss from the liquidation of Luna, Nava &
Ruby LLP on December 31, 2005.

b. Prepare a statement of realization and liquidation for Luna, Nava & Ruby LLP on De-
cember 31, 2005.

c. Prepare journal entries for Luna, Nava & Ruby LLP on December 31, 2005, to record
the liquidation.

The following balance sheet was prepared for Haye & Lee LLP immediately prior to
liquidation:

HAYE & LEE LLP
Balance Sheet (unaudited)
March 31, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 10,000 Liabilities $ 27,000
Investments in marketable Haye, capital 72,000
equity securities (available Lee, capital 31,000
for sale) e0ou Accumulated other
Other assets 100,000 comprehensive income 24,000
Total $154,000 Total $154,000

Haye and Lee shared operating income or losses in a 2 : 1 ratio and gains and losses on invest-
ments in a 3 : 1 ratio. The transactions and events to complete the liquidation were as follows:

2005
Apr. 1 Haye withdrew the marketable equity securities at the agreed current fair value
of $44,000.

3 Other assets and the trade name, Haley’s, were sold to Wong Products for
$200,000 face amount of 12% bonds with a current fair value of $180,000. The
gain on this transaction was an investment gain. The bonds were classified as
available for sale.
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(Problem 3.8)

CHECK FIGURES

Final cash payments:
Adams, $100; Barna,
$16,100.

(Problem 3.9)

CHECK FIGURE
Final cash payments:
$28,000 to each
partner.

Apr. 7 Wong Products 12% bonds with a face amount of $40,000 were sold for
$35,600 cash. The loss on this transaction was an investment loss.
8 Liabilities were paid.
10 Haye withdrew $100,000 face amount and Lee withdrew $60,000 face amount
of Wong Products 12% bonds at carrying amounts.

15 Available cash was paid to Haye and to Lee.

Instructions
Prepare journal entries for Haye & Lee LLP to record the foregoing transactions and
events. Disregard interest on the bonds of Wong Products.

Following is the balance sheet for Adams, Barna & Coleman LLP on June 4, 2005, imme-
diately prior to its liquidation:

ADAMS, BARNA & COLEMAN LLP
Balance Sheet
June 4, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 6,000 Liabilities $ 20,000
Other assets 94,000 Loan payable to Barna 4,000
Adams, capital 27,000
Barna, capital 39,000
Coleman, capital 10,000
Total $100,000 Total $100,000

The partners shared net income and losses as follows: Adams, 40%; Barna, 40%; and
Coleman, 20%. On June 4, 2005, the other assets realized $30,700, and $20,500 had to be paid
to liquidate the liabilities because of an unrecorded trade account payable of $500. Adams and
Barna were solvent, but Coleman’s personal liabilities exceeded personal assets by $5,000.

Instructions

a. Prepare a statement of realization and liquidation for Adams, Barna & Coleman LLP on
June 4, 2005. Combine Barna’s loan and capital account balances.

b. Prepare journal entries for Adams, Barna & Coleman LLP to record the liquidation on
June 4, 2005.

¢. How much cash would other assets have to realize on liquidation in order for Coleman
to receive enough cash from the partnership to pay personal creditors in full? Assume
that $20,500 is required to liquidate the partnership liabilities.

The accountant for Smith, Jones & Webb LLP prepared the following balance sheet imme-
diately prior to liquidation of the partnership:

SMITH, JONES & WEBB LLP
Balance Sheet
April 30, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Partners’ Capital
Cash $ 20,000 Liabilities $ 80,000
Other assets 280,000 Smith, capital 60,000
Jones, capital 70,000
Webb, capital 90,000
Total $300,000 Total $300,000




(Problem 3.10)

CHECK FIGURE
b. Total amount
realized, $61,900.

(Problem 3.11)

CHECK FIGURES
a. Jan. 2, debit Lord,
capital, $72,000;

c. Total assets,
$527,550.
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During May 2005, noncash assets with a carrying amount of $105,000 realized $75,000,
and all liabilities were paid. During June, noncash assets with a carrying amount of
$61,000 realized $25,000, and in July the remaining noncash assets with a carrying amount
of $114,000 realized $84,000. The cash available at the end of each month was distributed
promptly. The partners shared net income and losses equally.

Instructions

Prepare a statement of realization and liquidation for Smith, Jones & Webb LLP covering
the entire period of liquidation (May through July 2005) and a supporting working paper
showing the computation of installment payments to partners as cash becomes available.

Denson, Eastin, and Feller, partners of Denson, Eastin & Feller LLP, shared net income and
lossesina 5 : 3 : 2 ratio, respectively. On December 31, 2005, at the end of an unprofitable
year, they decided to liquidate the partnership. The partners’ capital account credit balances
on that date were as follows: Denson, $22,000; Eastin, $24,900; Feller, $15,000. The lia-
bilities in the balance sheet amounted to $30,000, including a loan of $10,000 payable to
Denson. The cash balance was $6,000.

The partners planned to realize the noncash assets over a long period and to distribute
cash when it became available. All three partners were solvent.

Instructions

Prepare a cash distribution program for Denson, Eastin & Feller LLP on December 31,
2005, and answer each of the following questions; prepare a working paper to show how
you reached your conclusions. (Each question is independent of the others.)

a. If Eastin received $2,000 from the first distribution of cash to partners, how much did
Denson and Feller each receive at that time?

b. If Denson received total cash of $20,000 as a result of the liquidation, what was the total
amount realized by the partnership on the noncash assets?

c. If Feller received $6,200 on the first distribution of cash to partners, how much did
Denson receive at that time?

After several years of successful operation of Lord & Lee LLP, partners Lord and Lee de-
cided to incorporate the partnership and issue common stock to public investors.

On January 2, 2006, Lord-Lee Corporation was organized with authorization to issue
150,000 shares of $10 par common stock, and it issued 20,000 shares for cash to public
investors at $16 a share. Lord and Lee agreed to accept shares of common stock at $16 a
share in amounts equal to their respective partnership capital account balances, after the
adjustments indicated on page 120, and after making cash withdrawals sufficient to avoid
the need for issuing less than a multiple of 100 shares to either of the two partners. In
payment for such shares, the partnership’s net assets were transferred to the corporation
and common stock certificates were issued. Accounting records were established for the
corporation.
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The post-closing trial balance of Lord & Lee LLP on December 31, 2005, follows:

LORD & LEE LLP
Post-Closing Trial Balance
December 31, 2005

Debit Credit
Cash $ 37,000
Trade accounts receivable 30,000
Inventories 56,000
Land 28,000
Buildings 50,000
Accumulated depreciation of buildings $ 17,000
Trade accounts payable 10,000
Lord, capital 63,000
Lee, capital 111,000
Totals $201,000 $201,000

The partnership contract provided that Lord was to receive 40% of net income or losses
and Lee was to receive 60%. The partners approved the following adjustments to the ac-
counting records of the partnership on December 31, 2005:

1. Recognize short-term prepayments of $1,500 and accrued liabilities of $750.
2. Provide an allowance for doubtful accounts of $12,000.

3. Increase the carrying amount of land to current fair value of $45,000.

4. Increase the carrying amount of inventories to replacement cost of $75,000.

Instructions

a. Prepare a journal entry for Lord & Lee LLP on December 31, 2005, to record the fore-
going adjustments and on January 2, 2006, to record the liquidation of the partnership.

b. Prepare journal entries on January 2, 2006, to record Lord-Lee Corporation’s issuances
of common stock to public investors, Lord, and Lee.

c. Prepare a balance sheet for Lord-Lee Corporation on January 2, 2006, after the forego-
ing transactions and events had been recorded.




Chapter Four

Accounting for
Branches; Combined
Financial Statements

Scope of Chapter

The accounting and reporting for segments of a business enterprise—primarily branches
and divisions—are dealt with in this chapter. Although branches of an enterprise are not
separate legal entities, they are separate economic and accounting entities whose special
features necessitate accounting procedures tailored for those features, such as reciprocal
ledger accounts.

BRANCHES AND DIVISIONS

As a business enterprise grows, it may establish one or more branches to market its prod-
ucts over a large territory. The term branch is used to describe a business unit located
at some distance from the home office. This unit carries merchandise obtained from
the home office, makes sales, approves customers’ credit, and makes collections from its
customers.

A branch may obtain merchandise solely from the home office, or a portion may be pur-
chased from outside suppliers. The cash receipts of the branch often are deposited in a bank
account belonging to the home office; the branch expenses then are paid from an imprest
cash fund or a bank account provided by the home office. As the imprest cash fund is de-
pleted, the branch submits a list of cash payments supported by vouchers and receives a
check or an electronic or wire transfer from the home office to replenish the fund.

The use of an imprest cash fund gives the home office considerable control over the cash
transactions of the branch. However, it is common practice for a large branch to maintain
its own bank accounts. The extent of autonomy and responsibility of a branch varies, even
among different branches of the same business enterprise.

A segment of a business enterprise also may be operated as a division, which generally
has more autonomy than a branch. The accounting procedures for a division not organized
as a separate corporation (subsidiary company) are similar to those used for branches.
When a business segment is operated as a separate corporation, consolidated financial
statements generally are required. Consolidated financial statements are described in

121
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Chapters 6 through 10; accounting and reporting problems for business segments are included
in Chapter 13.

START-UP COSTS OF OPENING NEW BRANCHES

The establishment of a branch often requires the incurring of considerable costs before
significant revenue may be generated. Operating losses in the first few months are likely.
In the past, some business enterprises would capitalize and amortize such start-up costs
on the grounds that such costs are necessary to successful operation at a new location.
However, most enterprises recognized start-up costs in connection with the opening of a
branch as expenses of the accounting period in which the costs are incurred. The decision
should be based on the principle that net income is measured by matching expired costs
with realized revenue. Costs that benefit future accounting periods are deferred and allo-
cated to those periods. Seldom is there complete certainty that a new branch will achieve
a profitable level of operations in later years. In recognition of this fact, in 1998 the AICPA
Accounting Standards Executive Committee issued Statement of Position 98-5 (SOP 98-5),
“Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities,” which required expensing of all start-up
costs, including those associated with organizing a new entity such as a branch or
division.!

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM FOR A BRANCH

The accounting system of one business enterprise with branches may provide for a com-
plete set of accounting records at each branch; policies of another such enterprise may keep
all accounting records in the home office. For example, branches of drug and grocery chain
stores submit daily reports and business documents to the home office, which enters all
transactions by branches in computerized accounting records kept in a central location. The
home office may not even conduct operations of its own; it may serve only as an account-
ing and control center for the branches.

A branch may maintain a complete set of accounting records consisting of journals,
ledgers, and a chart of accounts similar to those of an independent business enterprise. Fi-
nancial statements are prepared by the branch accountant and forwarded to the home office.
The number and types of ledger accounts, the internal control structure, the form and con-
tent of the financial statements, and the accounting policies generally are prescribed by the
home office.

This section focuses on a branch operation that maintains a complete set of account-
ing records. Transactions recorded by a branch should include all controllable expenses
and revenue for which the branch manager is responsible. If the branch manager has
responsibility over all branch assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses, the branch ac-
counting records should reflect this responsibility. Expenses such as depreciation often
are not subject to control by a branch manager; therefore, both the branch plant assets

't is interesting to note that 23 years before the issuance of SOP 98-5, FASB member Walter Schuetze
dissented to the issuance of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7, " Accounting and
Reporting by Development Stage Enterprises,” because it did not address the issue of accounting for
start-up costs.
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and the related depreciation ledger accounts generally are maintained by the home
office.

Reciprocal Ledger Accounts

The accounting records maintained by a branch include a Home Office ledger account that
is credited for all merchandise, cash, or other assets provided by the home office; it is deb-
ited for all cash, merchandise, or other assets sent by the branch to the home office or to
other branches. The Home Office account is a quasi-ownership equity account that shows
the net investment by the home office in the branch. At the end of an accounting period
when the branch closes its accounting records, the Income Summary account is closed to
the Home Office account. A net income increases the credit balance of the Home Office ac-
count; a net loss decreases this balance.

In the home office accounting records, a reciprocal ledger account with a title such as
Investment in Branch is maintained. This noncurrent asset account is debited for cash, mer-
chandise, and services provided to the branch by the home office, and for net income re-
ported by the branch. It is credited for cash or other assets received from the branch, and
for net losses reported by the branch. Thus, the Investment in Branch account reflects the
equity method of accounting. A separate investment account generally is maintained by the
home office for each branch. If there is only one branch, the account title is likely to be In-
vestment in Branch; if there are numerous branches, each account title includes a name or
number to identify each branch.

Expenses Incurred by Home Office
and Allocated to Branches

Some business enterprises follow a policy of notifying each branch of expenses incurred
by the home office on the branch’s behalf. As stated on page 122, plant assets located at a
branch generally are carried in the home office accounting records. If a plant asset is ac-
quired by the home office for the branch, the journal entry for the acquisition is a debit to
an appropriate asset account such as Equipment: Branch and a credit to Cash or an appro-
priate liability account. If the branch acquires a plant asset, it debits the Home Office ledger
account and credits Cash or an appropriate liability account. The home office debits an as-
set account such as Equipment: Branch and credits Investment in Branch.

The home office also usually acquires insurance, pays property and other taxes, and
arranges for advertising that benefits all branches. Clearly, such expenses as depreciation,
property taxes, insurance, and advertising must be considered in determining the prof-
itability of a branch. A policy decision must be made as to whether these expense data are
to be retained at the home office or are to be reported to the branches so that the income
statement prepared for each branch will give a complete picture of its operations. An ex-
pense incurred by the home office and allocated to a branch is recorded by the home office
by a debit to Investment in Branch and a credit to an appropriate expense ledger account;
the branch debits an expense account and credits Home Office.

If the home office does not make sales, but functions only as an accounting and
control center, most or all of its expenses may be allocated to the branches. To facilitate
comparison of the operating results of the various branches, the home office may charge
each branch interest on the capital invested in that branch. Such interest expense recog-
nized by the branches would be offset by interest revenue recognized by the home office
and would not be displayed in the combined income statement of the business enterprise
as a whole.
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Alternative Methods of Billing Merchandise Shipments
to Branches

Three alternative methods are available to the home office for billing merchandise shipped
to its branches. The shipments may be billed (1) at home office cost, (2) at a percentage
above home office cost, or (3) at the branch’s retail selling price. The shipment of mer-
chandise to a branch does not constitute a sale, because ownership of the merchandise does
not change.

Billing at home office cost is the simplest procedure and is widely used. It avoids the
complication of unrealized gross profit in inventories and permits the financial statements
of branches to give a meaningful picture of operations. However, billing merchandise to
branches at home office cost attributes all gross profits of the enterprise to the branches,
even though some of the merchandise may be manufactured by the home office. Under
these circumstances, home office cost may not be the most realistic basis for billing ship-
ments to branches.

Billing shipments to a branch at a percentage above home office cost (such as 110% of
cost) may be intended to allocate a reasonable gross profit to the home office. When mer-
chandise is billed to a branch at a price above home office cost, the net income reported by
the branch is understated and the ending inventories are overstated for the enterprise as
a whole. Adjustments must be made by the home office to eliminate the excess of billed
prices over cost (intracompany profits) in the preparation of combined financial statements
for the home office and the branch.

Billing shipments to a branch at branch retail selling prices may be based on a desire to
strengthen internal control over inventories. The Inventories ledger account of the branch
shows the merchandise received and sold at retail selling prices. Consequently, the account
will show the ending inventories that should be on hand at retail prices. The home office
record of shipments to a branch, when considered along with sales reported by the branch,
provides a perpetual inventory stated at selling prices. If the physical inventories taken pe-
riodically at the branch do not agree with the amounts thus computed, an error or theft may
be indicated and should be investigated promptly.

Separate Financial Statements for Branch
and for Home Office

A separate income statement and balance sheet should be prepared for a branch so that
management of the enterprise may review the operating results and financial position of the
branch. The branch’s income statement has no unusual features if merchandise is billed to
the branch at home office cost. However, if merchandise is billed to the branch at branch re-
tail selling prices, the branch’s income statement will show a net loss approximating the
amount of operating expenses. The only unusual aspect of the balance sheet for a branch is
the use of the Home Office ledger account in lieu of the ownership equity accounts for a
separate business enterprise. The separate financial statements prepared for a branch may
be revised at the home office to include expenses incurred by the home office allocable to
the branch and to show the results of branch operations after elimination of any intracom-
pany profits on merchandise shipments.

Separate financial statements also may be prepared for the home office so that manage-
ment will be able to appraise the results of its operations and its financial position. How-
ever, it is important to emphasize that separate financial statements of the home office and
of the branch are prepared for internal use only; they do not meet the needs of investors or
other external users of financial statements.
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Combined Financial Statements for Home Office and Branch

A balance sheet for distribution to creditors, stockholders, and government agencies must
show the financial position of a business enterprise having branches as a single entity. A
convenient starting point in the preparation of a combined balance sheet consists of the ad-
justed trial balances of the home office and of the branch. A working paper for the combi-
nation of these trial balances is illustrated on page 128.

The assets and liabilities of the branch are substituted for the Investment in Branch
ledger account included in the home office trial balance. Similar accounts are combined to
produce a single total amount for cash, trade accounts receivable, and other assets and lia-
bilities of the enterprise as a whole.

In the preparation of a combined balance sheet, reciprocal ledger accounts are elimi-
nated because they have no significance when the branch and home office report as a single
entity. The balance of the Home Office account is offset against the balance of the Invest-
ment in Branch account; also, any receivables and payables between the home office and
the branch (or between two branches) are eliminated.

The operating results of the enterprise (the home office and all branches) are shown by
an income statement in which the revenue and expenses of the branches are combined with
corresponding revenue and expenses for the home office. Any intracompany profits or
losses are eliminated.

Hllustrative Journal Entries for Operations of a Branch

Assume that Smaldino Company bills merchandise to Mason Branch at home office
cost and that Mason Branch maintains complete accounting records and prepares finan-
cial statements. Both the home office and the branch use the perpetual inventory sys-
tem. Equipment used at the branch is carried in the home office accounting records.
Certain expenses, such as advertising and insurance, incurred by the home office on
behalf of the branch, are billed to the branch. Transactions and events during the first
year (2005) of operations of Mason Branch are summarized below (start-up costs are
disregarded):

1. Cash of $1,000 was forwarded by the home office to Mason Branch.

2. Merchandise with a home office cost of $60,000 was shipped by the home office to
Mason Branch.

3. Equipment was acquired by Mason Branch for $500, to be carried in the home office ac-
counting records. (Other plant assets for Mason Branch generally are acquired by the
home office.)

4. Credit sales by Mason Branch amounted to $80,000; the branch’s cost of the merchan-
dise sold was $45,000.

Collections of trade accounts receivable by Mason Branch amounted to $62,000.
Payments for operating expenses by Mason Branch totaled $20,000.
Cash of $37,500 was remitted by Mason Branch to the home office.

® N w

Operating expenses incurred by the home office and charged to Mason Branch totaled
$3,000.
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Typical Home Office

and Branch
Transactions and
Events (Perpetual
Inventory System)

These transactions and events are recorded by the home office and by Mason Branch as
follows (explanations for the journal entries are omitted):

Home Office Accounting Records Mason Branch Accounting Records
Journal Entries Journal Entries
(1) Investment in Mason Cash 1,000
Branch 1,000 Home Office 1,000
Cash 1,000
(2) Investment in Mason Inventories 60,000
Branch 60,000 Home Office 60,000
Inventories 60,000
(3) Equipment: Mason Home Office 500
Branch 500 Cash 500
Investment in
Mason Branch 500
(4) None Trade Accounts
Receivable 80,000
Cost of Goods Sold 45,000
Sales 80,000
Inventories 45,000
(5) None Cash 62,000
Trade
Accounts
Receivable 62,000
(6) None Operating
Expenses 20,000
Cash 20,000
(7) Cash 37,500 Home Office 37,500
Investment in Cash
Mason Branch 37,500 37,500
(8) Investment in Mason Operating
Branch 3,000 Expenses 3,000
Operating Home Office 3,000
Expenses 3,000

If a branch obtains merchandise from outsiders as well as from the home office, the mer-
chandise acquired from the home office may be recorded in a separate Inventories from
Home Office ledger account.

In the home office accounting records, the Investment in Mason Branch ledger ac-
count has a debit balance of $26,000 [before the accounting records are closed and the
branch net income of $12,000 ($80,000 — $45,000 — $20,000 — $3,000 = $12,000) is
transferred to the Investment in Mason Branch ledger account], as illustrated on the
next page.
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Investment in Mason Branch
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005 Cash sent to branch 1,000 1,000 dr
Merchandise billed to branch at home
office cost 60,000 61,000 dr
Equipment acquired by branch, carried in
home office accounting records 500 60,500 dr
Cash received from branch 37,500 23,000 dr
Operating expenses billed to branch 3,000 26,000 dr

In the accounting records of Mason Branch, the Home Office ledger account has a credit
balance of $26,000 (before the accounting records are closed and the net income of
$12,000 is transferred to the Home Office account), as shown below:

Home Office
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005 Cash received from home office 1,000 1,000 cr
Merchandise received from home office 60,000 61,000 cr
Equipment acquired 500 60,500 cr
Cash sent to home office 37,500 23,000 cr
Operating expenses billed by home office 3,000 26,000 cr

Working Paper for Combined Financial Statements

A working paper for combined financial statements has three purposes: (1) to combine
ledger account balances for like revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities, (2) to eliminate
any intracompany profits or losses, and (3) to eliminate the reciprocal accounts.

Assume that the perpetual inventories of $15,000 ($60,000 — $45,000 = $15,000) at
the end of 2005 for Mason Branch had been verified by a physical count. The working
paper illustrated on page 128 for Smaldino Company is based on the transactions and
events illustrated on pages 125 and 126 and additional assumed data for the home office
trial balance. All the routine year-end adjusting entries (except the home office entries on
page 130) are assumed to have been made, and the working paper is begun with the ad-
justed trial balances of the home office and Mason Branch. Income taxes are disregarded
in this illustration.

Note that the $26,000 debit balance of the Investment in Mason Branch ledger ac-
count and the $26,000 credit balance of the Home Office account are the balances before
the respective accounting records are closed, that is, before the $12,000 net income of
Mason Branch is entered in these two reciprocal accounts. In the Eliminations column,
elimination (a) offsets the balance of the Investment in Mason Branch account against
the balance of the Home Office account. This elimination appears in the working paper
only; it is not entered in the accounting records of either the home office or Mason
Branch because its only purpose is to facilitate the preparation of combined financial
statements.
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Combined Financial Statements Illustrated

The following working paper provides the information for the combined financial state-
ments (excluding a statement of cash flows) of Smaldino Company on page 129.

SMALDINO COMPANY

Working Paper for Combined Financial Statements of Home Office and Mason Branch
For Year Ended December 31, 2005
(Perpetual Inventory System: Billings at Cost)

Adjusted Trial Balances
Home Office Mason Branch Eliminations Combined
Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
Income Statement
Sales (400,000) (80,000) (480,000)
Cost of goods sold 235,000 45,000 280,000
Operating expenses 90,000 23,000 113,000
Net income (to statement of retained earnings
below) 75,000 12,000 87,000
Totals -0- -0- -0-
Statement of Retained Earnings
Retained earnings, beginning of year (70,000) (70,000)
Net (income) (from income statement above) (75,000) (12,000) (87,000)
Dividends declared 40,000 40,000
Retained earnings, end of year (to balance
sheet below) 117,000
Totals -0-
Balance Sheet
Cash 25,000 5,000 30,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 39,000 18,000 57,000
Inventories 45,000 15,000 60,000
Investment in Mason Branch 26,000 (a) (26,000)
Equipment 150,000 150,000
Accumulated depreciation of equipment (10,000) (10,000)
Trade accounts payable (20,000) (20,000)
Home office (26,000) (a) 26,000
Common stock, $10 par (150,000) (150,000)
Retained earnings (from statement of retained
earnings above) (117,000)
Totals -0- -0- -0- -0-

(a) To eliminate reciprocal ledger account balances.
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SMALDINO COMPANY
Income Statement
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Sales $480,000
Cost of goods sold 280,000
Gross margin on sales $200,000
Operating expenses 113,000
Net income $ 87,000
Basic earnings per share of common stock $ 580
SMALDINO COMPANY
Statement of Retained Earnings
For Year Ended December 31, 2005
Retained earnings, beginning of year $ 70,000
Add: Net income 87,000
Subtotal $157,000
Less: Dividends ($2.67 per share) 40,000
Retained earnings, end of year $117,000
SMALDINO COMPANY
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005
Assets
Cash $ 30,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 57,000
Inventories 60,000
Equipment $150,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation 10,000 140,000
Total assets $287,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Trade accounts payable $ 20,000
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, $10 par, 15,000 shares authorized,
issued, and outstanding $150,000
Retained earnings 117,000 267,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $287,000

Home Office Adjusting and Closing Entries and Branch Closing Entries

The home office’s equity-method adjusting and closing entries for branch operating results
and the branch’s closing entries on December 31, 2005, are as follows (explanations for the

entries are omitted):
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Adjusting and Closing
Entries (Perpetual
Inventory System)

Journal Entries for
Shipments to Branch
at Prices above Home
Office Cost (Perpetual
Inventory System)

Home Office Accounting Records Mason Branch Accounting Records
Adjusting and Closing Entries Closing Entries
None Sales 80,000
Cost of Goods
Sold 45,000
Operating
Expenses 23,000
Income
Summary 12,000
Investment in Mason Income Summary 12,000
Branch 12,000 Home Office 12,000
Income: Mason
Branch 12,000
Income: Mason Branch 12,000 None
Income
Summary 12,000

Billing of Merchandise to Branches at Prices
above Home Office Cost

As stated on page 124, the home offices of some business enterprises bill merchandise
shipped to branches at home office cost plus a markup percentage (or alternatively at
branch retail selling prices). Because both these methods involve similar modifications of
accounting procedures, a single example illustrates the key points involved, using the illus-
tration for Smaldino Company on pages 125 and 126 with one changed assumption: the
home office bills merchandise shipped to Mason Branch at a markup of 50% above home
office cost, or 33%4% of billed price.?

Under this assumption, the journal entries for the first year’s events and transactions by
the home office and Mason Branch are the same as those presented on page 126, except for
the journal entries for shipments of merchandise from the home office to Mason Branch.
These shipments ($60,000 cost + 50% markup on cost = $90,000) are recorded under the
perpetual inventory system as follows:

Home Office Accounting Records Mason Branch Accounting Records
Journal Entries Journal Entries
(2) Investment in Mason Inventories 90,000
Branch 90,000 Home Office 90,000
Inventories 60,000

Allowance for
Overvaluation
of Inventories:
Mason Branch 30,000

In the accounting records of the home office, the Investment in Mason Branch ledger
account on page 131 now has a debit balance of $56,000 before the accounting records
are closed and the branch net income or loss is entered in the Investment in Mason

2 Billed price = cost + 0.50 cost; therefore, markup on billed price is 0.50/(1 + 0.50), or 33V5%.



Reciprocal Ledger
Account in Accounting
Records of Home
Office, Prior to Equity-
Method Adjusting
Entry

Reciprocal Ledger
Account in Accounting
Records of Mason
Branch Prior to
Closing Entry

Chapter 4  Accounting for Branches; Combined Financial Statements 131

Branch account. This account is $30,000 larger than the $26,000 balance in the prior illus-
tration (page 127). The increase represents the 50% markup over cost ($60,000) of the mer-
chandise shipped to Mason Branch.

Investment in Mason Branch

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005 Cash sent to branch 1,000 1,000 dr
Merchandise billed to branch at markup
of 50% over home office cost, or
33"5% of billed price 90,000 91,000 dr
Equipment acquired by branch, carried in
home office accounting records 500 90,500 dr
Cash received from branch 37,500 53,000 dr
Operating expenses billed to branch 3,000 56,000 dr

In the accounting records of Mason Branch, the Home Office ledger account now has a
credit balance of $56,000, before the accounting records are closed and the branch net in-
come or loss is entered in the Home Office account, as illustrated below:

Home Office
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005 Cash received from home office 1,000 1,000 cr
Merchandise received from home office 90,000 91,000 cr
Equipment acquired 500 90,500 cr
Cash sent to home office 37,000 53,000 cr
Operating expenses billed by home office 3,000 56,000 cr

Mason Branch recorded the merchandise received from the home office at billed prices
0f $90,000; the home office recorded the shipment by credits of $60,000 to Inventories and
$30,000 to Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories: Mason Branch. Use of the al-
lowance account enables the home office to maintain a record of the cost of merchandise
shipped to Mason Branch as well as the amount of the unrealized gross profit on the
shipments.

At the end of the accounting period, Mason Branch reports its inventories (at billed
prices) at $22,500. The cost of these inventories is $15,000 ($22,500 =~ 1.50 = $15,000).
In the home office accounting records, the required balance of the Allowance for Overval-
uation of Inventories: Mason Branch ledger account is $7,500 ($22,500 — $15,000 =
$7,500); thus, this account balance must be reduced from its present amount of $30,000 to
$7,500. The reason for this reduction is that the 50% markup of billed prices over cost has
become realized gross profit to the home office with respect to the merchandise sold by
the branch. Consequently, at the end of the year the home office reduces its allowance for
overvaluation of the branch inventories to the $7,500 excess valuation contained in the end-
ing inventories. The debit adjustment of $22,500 in the allowance account is offset by a
credit to the Realized Gross Profit: Mason Branch Sales account, because it represents ad-
ditional gross profit of the home office resulting from sales by the branch.

These matters are illustrated in the home office end-of-period adjusting and closing en-
tries on page 134.
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Working Paper When Billings to Branches Are

at Prices above Cost

When a home office bills merchandise shipments to branches at prices above home office
cost, preparation of the working paper for combined financial statements is facilitated by an
analysis of the flow of merchandise to a branch, such as the following for Mason Branch of
Smaldino Company:

SMALDINO COMPANY
Flow of Merchandise for Mason Branch

During 2005
Home Markup
Office (50% of Cost;
Billed Price Cost 33%:% of Billed Price)
Beginning inventories
Add: Shipments from home office $90,000 $60,000 $30,000
Available for sale $90,000 $60,000 $30,000
Less: Ending inventories 22,500 15,000 7,500
Cost of goods sold $67,500 $45,000 $22,500

The Markup column in the foregoing analysis provides the information needed for the
Eliminations column in the working paper for combined financial statements below and on

page 133.

(Perpetual Inventory System: Billings above Cost)

SMALDINO COMPANY
Working Paper for Combined Financial Statements of Home Office and Mason Branch
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Adjusted Trial Balances
Home Office Mason Branch Eliminations Combined
Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
Income Statement
Sales (400,000) (80,000) (480,000)
Cost of goods sold 235,000 67,500 (@) (22,500) 280,000
Operating expenses 90,000 23,000 113,000
Net income (loss) (to statement of retained
earnings below) 75,000 (10,500) (b) 22,500 87,000
Totals -0- -0- -0-
Statement of Retained Earnings
Retained earnings, beginning of year (70,000) (70,000)
Net (income) loss (from income statement
above) (75,000) 10,500 (b) (22,500) (87,000)
Dividends declared 40,000 40,000
Retained earnings, end of year (to
balance sheet on page 133) 117,000
Totals -0-

(continued)
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SMALDINO COMPANY
Working Paper for Combined Financial Statements of Home Office and Mason Branch (concluded)
For Year Ended December 31, 2005
(Perpetual Inventory System: Billings above Cost)

Adjusted Trial Balances
Home Office Mason Branch Eliminations Combined
Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
Balance Sheet
Cash 25,000 5,000 30,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 39,000 18,000 57,000
Inventories 45,000 22,500 (@) (7,500) 60,000
Investment in Mason Branch 56,000 (¢) (56,000)
Allowance for overvaluation of inventories:
Mason Branch (30,000) (@) 30,000
Equipment 150,000 150,000
Accumulated depreciation of equipment (10,000) (10,000)
Trade accounts payable (20,000) (20,000)
Home office (56,000) (c) 56,000
Common stock, $10 par (150,000) (150,000)
Retained earnings (from statement of
retained earnings on page 132) (117,000)
Totals -0- -0- -0- -0-

(a) To reduce ending inventories and cost of goods sold of branch to cost, and to eliminate unadjusted balance of Allowance of Overvaluation of Inventories: Mason Branch
ledger account.

(b) To increase income of home office by portion of merchandise markup that was realized by branch sales.

(c) To eliminate reciprocal ledger account balances.

The foregoing working paper differs from the working paper on page 128 by the inclu-
sion of an elimination to restate the ending inventories of the branch to cost. Also, the in-
come reported by the home office is adjusted by the $22,500 of merchandise markup that
was realized as a result of sales by the branch. As stated on page 127, the amounts in the
Eliminations column appear only in the working paper. The amounts represent a mechani-
cal step to aid in the preparation of combined financial statements and are not entered in the
accounting records of either the home office or the branch.

Combined Financial Statements

Because the amounts in the Combined column of the working paper on page 132 and above
are the same as in the working paper prepared when the merchandise shipments to the
branch were billed at home office cost, the combined financial statements are identical to
those illustrated on page 129.

Home Office Adjusting and Closing Entries and Branch Closing Entries

The December 31, 2005, adjusting and closing entries of the home office are illustrated on
page 134.
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End-of-Period Home
Office Adjusting and
Closing Entries

End-of-Period
Balances in
Accounting Records
of Home Office

Home Office Accounting Records Adjusting
and Closing Entries

Income: Mason Branch 10,500
Investment in Mason Branch 10,500
To record net loss reported by branch.

Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories: Mason Branch 22,500
Realized Gross Profit: Mason Branch Sales 22,500

To reduce allowance to amount by which ending inventories of
branch exceed cost.

Realized Gross Profit: Mason Branch Sales 22,500
Income: Mason Branch 10,500
Income Summary 12,000

To close branch net loss and realized gross profit to Income Summary
ledger account. (Income tax effects are disregarded.)

After the foregoing journal entries have been posted, the ledger accounts in the home of-
fice general ledger used to record branch operations are as follows:

Investment in Mason Branch

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance

2005 Cash sent to branch 1,000 1,000 dr
Merchandise billed to branch at markup
of 50% above home office cost, or

33"45% of billed price 90,000 91,000 dr
Equipment acquired by branch,
carried in home office accounting

records 500 90,500 dr
Cash received from branch 37,500 53,000 dr
Operating expenses billed to branch 3,000 56,000 dr
Net loss for 2005 reported by branch 10,500 45,500 dr

Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories: Mason Branch

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance

2005 Markup on merchandise shipped to
branch during 2005 (50% of cost) 30,000 30,000 cr

Realization of 50% markup on mer-
chandise sold by branch during
2005 22,500 7,500 cr

(continued)
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Realized Gross Profit: Mason Branch Sales

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005 Realization of 50% markup on mer-
chandise sold by branch during 2005 22,500 22,500 cr
Closing entry 22,500 -0-

Income: Mason Branch

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005 Net loss for 2005 reported by branch 10,500 10,500 dr
Closing entry 10,500 -0-

In the separate balance sheet for the home office, the $7,500 credit balance of the Al-
lowance of Overvaluation of Inventories: Mason Branch ledger account is deducted from
the $45,500 debit balance of the Investment in Mason Branch account, thus reducing the
carrying amount of the investment account to a cost basis with respect to shipments of mer-
chandise to the branch. In the separate income statement for the home office, the $22,500
realized gross profit on Mason Branch sales may be displayed following gross margin on
sales, $165,000 ($400,000 sales — $235,000 cost of goods sold = $165,000).

The closing entries for the branch at the end of 2005 are as follows:

Mason Branch Accounting Records
Closing Entries

Sales 80,000

Income Summary 10,500
Cost of Goods Sold 67,500
Operating Expenses 23,000

To close revenue and expense ledger accounts.

Home Office 10,500
Income Summary 10,500

To close the net loss in the Income Summary account to the
Home Office account.

After these closing entries have been posted by the branch, the following Home Office
ledger account in the accounting records of Mason Branch has a credit balance of $45,500,
the same as the debit balance of the Investment in Mason Branch account in the accounting
records of the home office:

Home Office
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005 Cash received from home office 1,000 1,000 cr
Merchandise received from home office 90,000 91,000 cr
Equipment acquired 500 90,500 cr
Cash sent to home office 37,500 53,000 cr
Operating expenses billed by home office 3,000 56,000 cr
Net loss for 2005 10,500 45,500 cr
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Journal Entries for

Treatment of Beginning Inventories Priced above Cost

The working paper on pages 132—133 shows how the ending inventories and the re-
lated allowance for overvaluation of inventories were handled. However, because
2005 was the first year of operations for Mason Branch, no beginning inventories were
involved.

Perpetual Inventory System

Under the perpetual inventory system, no special problems arise when the beginning in-
ventories of the branch include an element of unrealized gross profit. The working paper
eliminations would be similar to those illustrated on pages 132—133.

Periodic Inventory System

The illustration of a second year of operations (2006) of Smaldino Company demon-
strates the handling of beginning inventories carried by Mason Branch at an amount
above home office cost. However, assume that both the home office and Mason Branch
adopted the periodic inventory system in 2006. When the periodic inventory system is
used, the home office credits Shipments to Branch (an offset account to Purchases) for
the home office cost of merchandise shipped and Allowance for Overvaluation of In-
ventories for the markup over home office cost. The branch debits Shipments from
Home Office (analogous to a Purchases account) for the billed price of merchandise
received.

The beginning inventories for 2006 were carried by Mason Branch at $22,500, or 150%
of the cost of $15,000 ($15,000 X 1.50 = $22,500). Assume that during 2006 the home
office shipped merchandise to Mason Branch that cost $80,000 and was billed at $120,000,
and that Mason Branch sold for $150,000 merchandise that was billed at $112,500. The
journal entries (explanations omitted) to record the shipments and sales under the periodic
inventory system are illustrated below:

Home Office Accounting Records

Shipments to Branch Journal Entries

Mason Branch Accounting Records
Journal Entries

at a Price above Home
Office Cost (Periodic
Inventory System) Branch
Shipments to
Mason Branch

Investment in Mason
120,000

80,000

Allowance for
Overvaluation
of Inventories:
Mason Branch 40,000

None

Shipments from
Home Office 120,000

Home office 120,000

Cash (or Trade
Accounts
Receivable) 150,000

Sales 150,000

The branch inventories at the end of 2006 amounted to $30,000 at billed prices, repre-
senting cost of $20,000 plus a 50% markup on cost ($20,000 X 1.50 = $30,000). The flow
of merchandise for Mason Branch during 2006 is summarized on page 137.
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SMALDINO COMPANY
Flow of Merchandise for Mason Branch

During 2006
Home Markup
Office (50% of Cost;
Billed Price Cost 33%:% of Billed Price)

Beginning inventories (from
page 132) $ 22,500 $ 15,000 $ 7,500

Add: Shipments from home
office 120,000 80,000 40,000
Available for sale $142,500 $ 95,000 $ 47,500
Less: Ending inventories (30,000) (20,000) (10,000)
Cost of goods sold $112,500 $ 75,000 $ 37,500

The activities of the branch for 2006 and end-of-period adjusting and closing entries are
reflected in the four home office ledger accounts below and on page 138.

Investment in Mason Branch

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance

2006 Balance, Dec. 31, 2005 (from page 134) 45,500 dr
Merchandise billed to branch at markup
of 50% above home office cost, or

3375% of billed price 120,000 165,500 dr
Cash received from branch 113,000 52,500 dr
Operating expenses billed to branch 4,500 57,000 dr
Net income for 2006 reported by

branch 10,000 67,000 dr

Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories: Mason Branch

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance

2006 Balance, Dec. 31, 2005 (from page 134) 7,500 cr
Markup on merchandise shipped to

branch during 2006 (50% of cost) 40,000 47,500 cr

Realization of 50% markup on
merchandise sold by branch during
2006 37,500 10,000 cr

Realized Gross Profit: Mason Branch Sales

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance

2006 Realization of 50% markup on
merchandise sold by branch during
2006 37,500 37,500 cr

Closing entry 37,500 -0-

(continued)
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End-of-Period
Balances in
Accounting Records
of Home Office
(concluded)

Reciprocal Ledger
Account in Accounting
Records of Mason
Branch

Income: Mason Branch

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2006 Net income for 2006 reported by
branch 10,000 10,000 cr
Closing entry 10,000 -0-

In the accounting records of the home office at the end of 2006, the balance required in
the Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories: Mason Branch ledger account is $10,000,
that is, the billed price of $30,000 less cost of $20,000 for merchandise in the branch’s end-
ing inventories. Therefore, the allowance account balance is reduced from $47,500 to
$10,000. This reduction of $37,500 represents the 50% markup on merchandise above cost
that was realized by Mason Branch during 2006 and is credited to the Realized Gross
Profit: Mason Branch Sales account.

The Home Office account in the branch general ledger shows the following activity and
closing entry for 2006:

Home Office
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2006 Balance, Dec. 31, 2005 (from page 135) 45,500 cr
Merchandise received from home office 120,000 165,500 cr
Cash sent to home office 113,000 52,500 cr
Operating expenses billed by home office 4,500 57,000 cr
Net income for 2006 10,000 67,000 cr

The working paper for combined financial statements under the periodic inventory sys-
tem, which reflects pre-adjusting and pre-closing balances for the reciprocal ledger ac-
counts and the Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories: Mason Branch account, is on
page 139.

Reconciliation of Reciprocal Ledger Accounts

At the end of an accounting period, the balance of the Investment in Branch ledger account
in the accounting records of the home office may not agree with the balance of the Home
Office account in the accounting records of the branch because certain transactions may
have been recorded by one office but not by the other. The situation is comparable to that of
reconciling the ledger account for Cash in Bank with the balance in the monthly bank state-
ment. The lack of agreement between the reciprocal ledger account balances causes no
difficulty during an accounting period, but at the end of each period the reciprocal account
balances must be brought into agreement before combined financial statements are
prepared.

As an illustration of the procedure for reconciling reciprocal ledger account balances at
year-end, assume that the home office and branch accounting records of Mercer Company
on December 31, 2005, contain the data on page 140.
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SMALDINO COMPANY

Working Paper for Combined Financial Statements of Home Office and Mason Branch
For Year Ended December 31, 2006
(Periodic Inventory System: Billings above Cost)

Adjusted Trial Balances
Home Office Mason Branch Eliminations Combined
Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
Income Statement
Sales (500,000) (150,000) (650,000)
Inventories, Dec. 31, 2005 45,000 22,500 (b) (7,500) 60,000
Purchases 400,000 400,000
Shipments to Mason Branch (80,000) (@) 80,000
Shipments from home office 120,000 (@) (120,000)
Inventories, Dec. 31, 2006 (70,000) (30,000) (c) 10,000 (90,000)
Operating expenses 120,000 27,500 147,500
Net income (to statement of retained
earnings below) 85,000 10,000 (d) 37,500 132,500
Totals -0- -0- -0-
Statement of Retained Earnings
Retained earnings, beginning of year
(from page 132) (117,000) (117,000)
Net (income) (from income statement above) (85,000) (10,000) (d) (37,500) (132,500)
Dividends declared 60,000 60,000
Retained earnings, end of year (to balance
sheet below) 189,500
Total -0-
Balance Sheet
Cash 30,000 9,000 39,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 64,000 28,000 92,000
Inventories, Dec. 31, 2006 70,000 30,000 (¢) (10,000) 90,000
Allowance for overvaluation of inventories:
Mason Branch (47,500) {(a) 40,000}
(b) 7,500
Investment in Mason Branch 57,000 (e) (57,000)
Equipment 158,000 158,000
Accumulated depreciation of equipment (15,000) (15,000)
Trade accounts payable (24,500) (24,500)
Home office (57,000) (e) 57,000
Common stock, $10 par (150,000) (150,000)
Retained earnings (from statement of
retained earnings above) (189,500)
Totals -0- -0- -0- -0-

(a) To eliminate reciprocal ledger accounts for merchandise shipments.

(b) To reduce beginning inventories of branch to cost.

(¢) To reduce ending inventories of branch to cost.

(d) To increase income of home office by portion of merchandise markup that was realized by branch sales.

(e) To eliminate reciprocal ledger account balances.
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Reciprocal Ledger
Accounts before
Adjustments

Branch Journal Entry
for Merchandise in
Transit from Home
Office

Branch Journal Entry
for Trade Accounting

Receivable Collected
by Home Office

Investment in Arvin Branch (in accounting records of Home Office)

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Nov. 30 Balance 62,500 dr
Dec. 10 Cash received from branch 20,000 42,500 dr
27 Collection of branch trade accounts
receivable 1,000 41,500 dr
29 Merchandise shipped to branch 8,000 49,500 dr
Home Office (in accounting records of Arvin Branch)
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Nov. 30 Balance 62,500 cr
Dec. 7 Cash sent to home office 20,000 42,500 cr
28 Acquired equipment 3,000 39,500 cr
30 Collection of home office trade
accounts receivable 2,000 41,500 cr

Comparison of the two reciprocal ledger accounts discloses four reconciling items,

described as follows:

1. A debit of $8,000 in the Investment in Arvin Branch ledger account without a re-

lated credit in the Home Office account.

On December 29, 2005, the home office shipped merchandise costing $8,000 to the
branch. The home office debits its reciprocal ledger account with the branch on the date
merchandise is shipped, but the branch credits its reciprocal account with the home of-
fice when the merchandise is received a few days later. The required journal entry on
December 31, 2005, in the branch accounting records, assuming use of the perpetual
inventory system, appears below:

Inventories in Transit 8,000
Home Office 8,000
To record shipment of merchandise in transit from home office.

In taking a physical inventory on December 31, 2005, the branch personnel must add
to the inventories on hand the $8,000 of merchandise in transit. When the merchandise
is received in 2006, the branch debits Inventories and credits Inventories in Transit.

. A credit of $1,000 in the Investment in Arvin Branch ledger account without a re-
lated debit in the Home Office account.

On December 27, 2005, trade accounts receivable of the branch were collected by the
home office. The collection was recorded by the home office by a debit to Cash and a
credit to Investment in Arvin Branch. No journal entry had been made by Arvin Branch;
therefore, the following journal entry is required in the accounting records of Arvin
Branch on December 31, 2005:

Home Office 1,000
Trade Accounts Receivable 1,000
To record collection of accounts receivable by home office.



Home Office Journal
Entry for Equipment
Acquired by Branch

Home Office Journal
Entry for Trade

Accounts Receivable
Collected by Branch

Chapter 4  Accounting for Branches; Combined Financial Statements 141

3. A debit of $3,000 in the Home Office ledger account without a related credit in the

Investment in Arvin Branch account.

On December 28, 2005, the branch acquired equipment for $3,000. Because the equip-
ment used by the branch is carried in the accounting records of the home office, the jour-
nal entry made by the branch was a debit to Home Office and a credit to Cash. No
journal entry had been made by the home office; therefore, the following journal entry
is required on December 31, 2005, in the accounting records of the home office:

Equipment: Arvin Branch 3,000
Investment in Arvin Branch 3,000
To record equipment acquired by branch.

4. A credit of $2,000 in the Home Office ledger account without a related debit in the

Investment in Arvin Branch account.

On December 30, 2005, trade accounts receivable of the home office were collected
by Arvin Branch. The collection was recorded by Arvin Branch by a debit to Cash and a
credit to Home Office. No journal entry had been made by the home office; therefore,
the following journal entry is required in the accounting records of the home office on
December 31, 2005:

Investment in Arvin Branch 2,000
Trade Accounts Receivable 2,000
To record collection of accounts receivable by Arvin Branch.

The effect of the foregoing end-of-period journal entries is to update the reciprocal

ledger accounts, as shown by the following reconciliation:

MERCER COMPANY—HOME OFFICE AND ARVIN BRANCH
Reconciliation of Reciprocal Ledger Accounts
December 31, 2005

Investment in Arvin Home Office
Branch Account Account
(in home office (in branch
accounting records) accounting records)
Balances before adjustments $49,500 dr $41,500 cr
Add: (1) Merchandise shipped to
branch by home office 8,000
(4) Home office trade accounts
receivable collected by
branch 2,000
Less: (2) Branch trade accounts
receivable collected by
home office (1,000)
(3) Equipment acquired by
branch (3,000)

Adjusted balances $48,500 dr $48,500 cr
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Transactions between Branches

Efficient operations may on occasion require that merchandise or other assets be transferred
from one branch to another. Generally, a branch does not carry a reciprocal ledger account
with another branch but records the transfer in the Home Office ledger account. For exam-
ple, if Alba Branch ships merchandise to Boro Branch, Alba Branch debits Home Office
and credits Inventories (assuming that the perpetual inventory system is used). On receipt
of the merchandise, Boro Branch debits Inventories and credits Home Office. The home of-
fice records the transfer between branches by a debit to Investment in Boro Branch and a
credit to Investment in Alba Branch.

The transfer of merchandise from one branch to another does not justify increasing the
carrying amount of inventories by the freight costs incurred because of the indirect routing.
The amount of freight costs properly included in inventories at a branch is limited to the
cost of shipping the merchandise directly from the home office to its present location. Ex-
cess freight costs are recognized as expenses of the home office.

To illustrate the accounting for excess freight costs on interbranch transfers of mer-
chandise, assume the following data. The home office shipped merchandise costing $6,000
to Dana Branch and paid freight costs of $400. Subsequently, the home office instructed
Dana Branch to transfer this merchandise to Evan Branch. Freight costs of $300 were paid
by Dana Branch to carry out this order. If the merchandise had been shipped directly from
the home office to Evan Branch, the freight costs would have been $500. The journal en-
tries required in the three sets of accounting records (assuming that the perpetual inventory
system is used) are as follows:

In Accounting Records of Home Office:

Investment in Dana Branch 6,400
Inventories 6,000
Cash 400

To record shipment of merchandise and payment of freight costs.

Investment in Evan Branch 6,500
Excess Freight Expense—Interbranch Transfers 200
Investment in Dana Branch 6,700

To record transfer of merchandise from Dana Branch to Evan Branch under
instruction of home office. Interbranch freight of $300 paid by Dana
Branch caused total freight costs on this merchandise to exceed direct
shipment costs by $200 ($400 + $300 — $500 = $200).

In Accounting Records of Dana Branch:

Freight In (or Inventories) 400
Inventories 6,000
Home Office 6,400

To record receipt of merchandise from home office with freight costs paid
in advance by home office.
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Home Office 6,700
Inventories 6,000
Freight In (or Inventories) 400
Cash 300

To record transfer of merchandise to Evan Branch under instruction of home
office and payment of freight costs of $300.

In Accounting Records of Evan Branch:

Inventories 6,000
Freight In (or Inventories) 500
Home Office 6,500

To record receipt of merchandise from Dana Branch transferred under
instruction of home office and normal freight costs billed by home office.

Recognizing excess freight costs on merchandise transferred from one branch to another
as expenses of the home office is an example of the accounting principle that expenses and
losses should be given prompt recognition. The excess freight costs from such shipments
generally result from inefficient planning of original shipments and should not be included
in inventories.

In recognizing excess freight costs of interbranch transfers as expenses attributable to
the home office, the assumption was that the home office makes the decisions directing all
shipments. If branch managers are given authority to order transfers of merchandise be-
tween branches, the excess freight costs are recognized as expenses attributable to the
branches whose managers authorized the transfers.

SEC ENFORCEMENT ACTION DEALING WITH
WRONGFUL APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR DIVISIONS

The SEC’s AAER 35, “Securities and Exchange Commission v. Stauffer Chemical Com-
pany” (August 13, 1984), describes a federal court’s entry of a permanent injunction
against a corporation engaged in the manufacture and sale of chemicals and chemical-
related products. The SEC found that the corporation had overstated its earnings by means
of three major misstatements, one of which was the failure to eliminate $1.1 million of in-
tracompany profits in inventories shipped from one of the corporation’s divisions to another
division. The court also ordered the corporation to file timely with the SEC a Form §-K,
“Current Report,” describing its restatement of its previously reported revenue and earnings
for the effects of the three major misstatements.

Review
Questions

1. Some branches maintain complete accounting records and prepare financial state-
ments much the same as an autonomous business enterprise. Other branches perform
only limited accounting functions, with most accounting activity concentrated in the
home office. Assuming that a branch has a complete set of accounting records, what
criterion or principle would you suggest be used in deciding whether various types of
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expenses applicable to the branch should be recognized by the home office or by the
branch?

. Explain the use of reciprocal ledger accounts in home office and branch accounting
systems in conjunction with the periodic inventory system.

. The president of Sandra Company informs you that a branch is being opened and
requests your advice: “I have been told that we may bill merchandise shipped to the
branch at cost, at branch retail selling prices, or anywhere in between. Do certified pub-
lic accountants really have that much latitude in the application of generally accepted
accounting principles?”

. Jesse Corporation operates 10 branches in addition to its home office and bills mer-
chandise shipped by the home office to the branches at 10% above home office cost. All
plant assets are carried in the home office accounting records. The home office also con-
ducts an advertising program that benefits all branches. Each branch maintains its own
accounting records and prepares separate financial statements. In the home office, the
accounting department prepares financial statements for the home office and combined
financial statements for the enterprise as a whole.

Explain the purpose of the financial statements prepared by the branches, the home
office financial statements, and the combined financial statements.

. The accounting policies of Armenia Company provide that equipment used by its
branches is to be carried in the accounting records of the home office. Acquisitions of
new equipment may be made either by the home office or by the branches with the ap-
proval of the home office. Slauson Branch, with the approval of the home office, ac-
quired equipment at a cost of $17,000. Describe the journal entries for the Slauson
Branch and the home office to record the acquisition of the equipment.

. Explain the use of and journal entries for a home office’s Allowance for Overvaluation

of Inventories: Branch ledger account.

. The reciprocal ledger account balances of Meadow Company’s branch and home office

are not in agreement at year-end. What factors might have caused this?

. Ralph Company operates a number of branches but centralizes its accounting records in

the home office and maintains control of branch operations. The home office found that
Ford Branch had an ample supply of a certain item of merchandise but that Gates
Branch was almost out of the item. Therefore, the home office instructed Ford Branch to
ship merchandise with a cost of $5,000 to Gates Branch. What journal entry should Ford
Branch make, and what principle should guide the treatment of freight costs? (Assume
that Ford Branch uses the perpetual inventory system.)

Exercises

(Exercise 4.1)

Select the best answer for each of the following multiple-choice questions:

1. May the Investment in Branch ledger account of a home office be accounted for by the:

Cost Method of Equity Method of
Accounting? Accounting?
a. Yes Yes
b. Yes No
c. No Yes
d. No No
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. Which of the following generally is not a method of billing merchandise shipments by
a home office to a branch?

a. Billing at cost.

b. Billing at a percentage below cost.

c. Billing at a percentage above cost.

d. Billing at retail selling prices.

. A branch journal entry debiting Home Office and crediting Cash may be prepared for:

a. The branch’s transmittal of cash to the home office only.

b. The branch’s acquisition for cash of plant assets to be carried in the home office ac-
counting records only.

c. Either a or b.

d. Neither a nor b.

. A home office’s Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories: Branch ledger account,

which has a credit balance, is:

a. An asset valuation account.
b. A liability account.
¢. An equity account.
d. A revenue account.

. Does a branch use a Shipments from Home Office ledger account under the:

Perpetual Inventory Periodic Inventory
System? System?
a. Yes Yes
b. Yes No
@ No Yes
d. No No

. A journal entry debiting Cash in Transit and crediting Investment in Branch is required for:

a. The home office to record the mailing of a check to the branch early in the ac-
counting period.

b. The branch to record the mailing of a check to the home office early in the ac-
counting period.

c. The home office to record the mailing of a check by the branch on the last day of the
accounting period.

d. The branch to record the mailing of a check to the home office on the last day of the
accounting period.

. For a home office that uses the periodic inventory system of accounting for shipments
of merchandise to the branch, the credit balance of the Shipments to Branch ledger ac-
count is displayed in the home office’s separate:

a. Income statement as an offset to Purchases.

b. Balance sheet as an offset to Investment in Branch.

c. Balance sheet as an offset to Inventories.

d. Income statement as revenue.

. If the home office maintains accounts in its general ledger for a branch’s plant assets,
the branch debits its acquisition of office equipment to:

a. Home Office.

b. Office Equipment.

c. Payable to Home Office.

d. Office Equipment Carried by Home Office.




146 Part One Accounting for Partnerships and Branches

10.

11.

12.

13.

. In a working paper for combined financial statements of the home office and the

branch of a business enterprise, an elimination that debits Shipments to Branch and
credits Shipments from Home Office is required under:

a. The periodic inventory system only.

b. The perpetual inventory system only.

c¢. Both the periodic inventory system and the perpetual inventory system.

d. Neither the periodic inventory system nor the perpetual inventory system.

The appropriate journal entry (explanation omitted) for the home office to recognize
the branch’s expenditure of $1,000 for equipment to be carried in the home office ac-
counting records is:

a. Equipment 1,000

Investment in Branch 1,000
b. Home Office 1,000

Equipment 1,000
c. Investment in Branch 1,000

Cash 1,000
d. Equipment: Branch 1,000

Investment in Branch 1,000

On January 31, 2005, East Branch of Lyle Company, which uses the perpetual inven-
tory system, prepared the following journal entry:

Inventories in Transit 10,000
Home Office 10,000
To record shipment of merchandise in transit from home office.

When the merchandise is received on February 4, 2005, East Branch should:

a. Prepare no journal entry.

b. Debit Inventories and credit Home Office, $10,000.

c. Debit Home Office and credit Inventories in Transit, $10,000.
d. Debit Inventories and credit Inventories in Transit, $10,000.

If a home office bills merchandise shipments to the branch at a markup of 20% on cost,
the markup on billed price is:

a. 16%5%

b. 20%

c. 25%

d. Some other percentage

The appropriate journal entry (explanation omitted) in the accounting records of the
home office to record a $10,000 cash remittance in transit from the branch at the end
of an accounting period is:

a. Cash 10,000

Cash in Transit 10,000
b. Cash in Transit 10,000

Investment in Branch 10,000
c. Cash 10,000

Home Office 10,000
d. Cash in Transit 10,000

Cash 10,000



(Exercise 4.2)

(Exercise 4.3)

(Exercise 4.4)
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On September 1, 2005, Pasadena Company established a branch in San Marino. Following
are the first three transactions between the home office and San Marino branch of Pasadena
Company:

Sept. 1 Home office sent $10,000 to the branch for an imprest bank account.
2 Home office shipped merchandise costing $60,000 to the branch, billed at a
markup of 20% on billed price.

3 Branch acquired office equipment for $3,000, to be carried in the home office
accounting records.

Both the home office and the San Marino branch of Pasadena Company use the perpetual
inventory system.
Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for the foregoing transactions:

a. In the accounting records of the home office.
b. In the accounting records of the San Marino branch.

On September 1, 2005, Western Company established the Eastern Branch. Separate ac-
counting records were set up for the branch. Both the home office and the Eastern
Branch use the periodic inventory system. Among the intracompany transactions were the
following:

Sept. 1 Home office mailed a check for $50,000 to the branch. The check was received
by the branch on September 3.

4  Home office shipped merchandise costing $95,000 to the branch at a billed
price of $125,000. The branch received the merchandise on September 8.
11 The branch acquired a truck for $34,200. The home office maintains the plant
assets of the branch in its accounting records.

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for the foregoing intracompany transactions
in the accounting records of (@) the home office and (b) the Eastern Branch.

Among the journal entries of the home office of Watt Corporation for the month of January
2005, were the following:

2005

Jan. 2 Investment in Wilshire Branch 100,000
Inventories 80,000
Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories: Wilshire Branch 20,000

To record merchandise shipped to branch.

18 Equipment: Wilshire Branch 5,000
Investment in Wilshire Branch 5,000
To record acquisition of equipment by branch for cash.

31 Investment in Wilshire Branch 8,000
Operating Expenses 8,000
To record allocation of operating expenses to branch.

Prepare related journal entries for the Whilshire Branch of Watt Corporation: the branch
uses the perpetual inventory system.
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(Exercise 4.5) Among the journal entries for business transactions and events of the Hoover Street Branch
of Usc Company during January 2005, were the following:

CHECK FIGURE

Jan 10, Credit 2005
allowance for Jan. 12 Inventories 60,000
overvaluation of Home Office 60,000
inventories, $12,000. To record the receipt of merchandise shipped Jan. 10 from the
home office and billed at a markup of 20% on billed price.
25 Cash 25,000
Home Office 25,000
To record collection of trade accounts receivable of home office.
31 Operating Expenses 18,000

Home Office 18,000
To record operating expenses allocated by home office.

Prepare appropriate journal entries for the home office of Usc Company.

(Exercise 4.6) Among the journal entries of the home office of Turbo Company for the month ended
August 31, 2005, were the following:

2005
Aug. 6 Investment in Lido Branch 10,000
Cash 10,000

To record payment of account payable of branch.
14 Cash 6,000
Investment in Lido Branch 6,000
To record collection of trade account receivable of branch.
22 Equipment: Lido Branch 20,000
Investment in Lido Branch 20,000

To record branch acquisition of equipment for cash, to be
carried in home office accounting records.

Prepare appropriate journal entries (omit explanations) for Lido Branch of Turbo
Company.
(Exercise 4.7) Prepare journal entries in the accounting records of both the home office and the Exeter

Branch of Wardell Company to record each of the following transactions or events (omit
explanations):

a. Home office transferred cash of $5,000 and merchandise (at home office cost) of $10,000
to the branch. Both the home office and the branch use the perpetual inventory system.

b. Home office allocated operating expenses of $1,500 to the branch.

c¢. Exeter Branch informed the home office that it had collected $416 on a note payable to
the home office. Principal amount of the note was $400.

d. Exeter Branch made sales of $12,500, terms 2/10, n/30, and incurred operating ex-
penses of $2,500. The cost of goods sold was $8,000, and the operating expenses were
paid in cash.

e. Exeter Branch had a net income of $500. (Debit Income Summary in the accounting
records of the branch.)




(Exercise 4.8)

(Exercise 4.9)

CHECK FIGURE
Markup in cost of
goods sold, $104,000.

(Exercise 4.10)

CHECK FIGURE
Apr. 30 balance,
$20,000 credit.

(Exercise 4.11)
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Leland Company has a policy of accounting for all plant assets of its branches in the
accounting records of the home office. Contrary to this policy, the accountant for Davis
Branch prepared the following journal entries for the equipment acquired by Davis Branch
at the direction of the home office:

2005
Aug. 1 Equipment 20,000
Cash 20,000
To record acquisition of equipment with an economic life of 10
years and a residual value of $2,000
Dec. 31 Depreciation Expense 750

Accumulated Depreciation of Equipment 750

To recognize depreciation of equipment by the straight-line
method ($18,000 X %20 = $750).

Prepare appropriate journal entries for Davis Branch and the home office on December 31,
2005, the end of the fiscal year, assuming that the home office had prepared no journal
entries for the equipment acquired by the Davis Branch on August 1, 2005. Neither set of
accounting records has been closed.

The home office of Figueroa Company ships merchandise to the Nine-Zero Branch at a
billed price that includes a markup on home office cost of 25%. The Inventories ledger ac-
count of the branch, under the perpetual inventory system, showed a December 31, 2004,
debit balance, $120,000; a debit for a shipment received January 16, 2005, $500,000; total
credits for goods sold during January 2005, $520,000; and a January 31, 2005, debit bal-
ance, $100,000 (all amounts are home office billed prices).

Prepare a working paper for the home office of Figueroa Company to analyze the flow
of merchandise to Nine-Zero Branch during January 2005.

The flow of merchandise from the home office of Southern Cal Company to its 32 Branch
during the month of April 2005, may be analyzed as follows:

SOUTHERN CAL COMPANY
Flow of Merchandise for 32 Branch
For Month Ended April 30, 2005

Billed Price Cost Markup

Beginning inventories $180,000 $150,000 $ 30,000
Add: Shipment from home office (Apr. 16) 540,000 450,000 90,000
Available for sale $720,000 $600,000 $120,000
Less: Ending inventories 120,000 100,000 20,000
Cost of goods sold $600,000 $500,000 $100,000

From the foregoing information, reconstruct a three-column ledger account Allowance
for Overvaluation of Inventories: 32 Branch for the home office of Southern Cal Company,
beginning with the March 31, 2005, balance, $30,000 credit.

On May 31, 2005, Portland Street Branch (the only branch) of Trapp Company reported a
net income of $80,000 for May 2005, and a $240,000 ending inventory at billed price of
merchandise received from the home office at a 25% markup on billed price. Prior to
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(Exercise 4.12)

CHECK FIGURE

b. Debit allowance for
overvaluation of
inventories, $46,000.

(Exercise 4.13)

CHECK FIGURE
Sept. 30, credit
realized gross profit,
$120,000.

(Exercise 4.14)

(Exercise 4.15)
CHECK FIGURE

Credit realized gross
profit, $5,100.

(Exercise 4.16)

adjustment, the May 31, 2005, balance of the home office’s Allowance for Overvaluation of
Inventories: Portland Street Branch was $200,000 credit.

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) on May 31, 2005, for the home office of
Trapp Company to reflect the foregoing facts.

Tillman Textile Company has a single branch in Toledo. On March 1, 2005, the home of-
fice accounting records included an Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories: Toledo
Branch ledger account with a credit balance of $32,000. During March, merchandise cost-
ing $36,000 was shipped to the Toledo Branch and billed at a price representing a 40%
markup on the billed price. On March 31, 2005, the branch prepared an income statement
indicating a net loss of $11,500 for March and ending inventories at billed prices of
$25,000.

a. Prepare a working paper to compute the home office cost of the branch inventories on
March 1, 2005, assuming a uniform markup on all shipments to the branch.

b. Prepare a journal entry to adjust the Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories:
Toledo Branch ledger account on March 31, 2005, in the accounting records of the
home office.

The home office of Glendale Company, which uses the perpetual inventory system, bills
shipments of merchandise to the Montrose Branch at a markup of 25% on the billed
price. On August 31, 2005, the credit balance of the home office’s Allowance for Over-
valuation of Inventories: Montrose Branch ledger account was $60,000. On Sep-
tember 17, 2005, the home office shipped merchandise to the branch at a billed price of
$400,000. The branch reported an ending inventory, at billed price, of $160,000 on Sep-
tember 30, 2005.

Prepare journal entries involving the Allowance for Overvaluation of Inventories:
Montrose Branch ledger account of the home office of Glendale Company on September 17
and 30, 2005. Show supporting computations in the explanations for the entries.

On January 31, 2005, the unadjusted credit balance of the Allowance for Overvaluation of
Inventories: Vermont Avenue Branch of the home office of Searl Company was $80,000.
The branch reported a net income of $60,000 for January 2005 and an ending inventory on
January 31, 2005, of $81,000, at billed prices that included a markup of 50% on home of-
fice cost.

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for the home office of Searl Company on
January 31, 2005, for the foregoing facts.

The home office of Gomez Company bills its only branch at a markup of 25% above home
office cost for all merchandise shipped to that Perez Branch. Both the home office and the
branch use the periodic inventory system. During 2005, the home office shipped merchan-
dise to the branch at a billed price of $30,000. Perez Branch inventories for 2005 were as
follows:

Jan. 1 Dec. 31
Purchased from home office (at billed price) 15,000 19,500
Purchased from outsiders 6,800 8,670

Prepare journal entries (including adjusting entry) for the home office of Gomez Com-
pany for 2005 to reflect the foregoing information.

Samore, Inc., bills its only branch for merchandise shipments at a markup of 30% above
home office cost. The branch sells the merchandise at a markup of 10% above billed price.



CHECK FIGURE
b. Debit loss from fire,

$36,400.

(Exercise 4.17)
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Shortly after the close of business on January 28, 2005, some of the branch merchandise
was destroyed by fire. The following additional information is available:

Inventories, Jan. 1 (at billed prices from home office) $15,600
Inventories, Jan. 28, of merchandise not destroyed (at selling prices) 7,150
Shipments from home office from Jan. 1 to Jan. 28 (at billed prices) 71,500
Sales from Jan. 1 to Jan. 28 51,840
Sales returns from Jan. 1 to Jan. 28 (merchandise actually returned) 3,220
Sales allowances from Jan. 1 to Jan. 28 (price adjustments) 300

a. Prepare a working paper to compute the estimated cost (to the home office) of the mer-
chandise destroyed by fire at the branch of Samore, Inc., on January 28, 2005.

b. Prepare a journal entry for the branch to recognize the uninsured fire loss on January 28,
2005. Both the home office and the branch use the perpetual inventory system.

On May 31, 2005, the unadjusted balances of the Investment in Troy Branch ledger account
of the home office of Argos Company and the Home Office account of the Troy Branch of
Argos Company were $380,000 debit and $140,000 credit, respectively.

Additional Information

1. On May 31, 2005, the home office had shipped merchandise to the branch at a billed
price of $280,000; the branch did not receive the shipment until June 3, 2005. Both the
home office and the branch use the perpetual inventory system.

2. On May 31, 2005, the branch had sent a $10,000 “dividend” to the home office, which
did not receive the check until June 2, 2005.

3. On May 31, 2005, the home office had prepared the following journal entry, without no-
tifying the branch:

Cash 50,000
Investment in Troy Branch 50,000
To record collection of a trade account receivable of branch.

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) on May 31, 2005, for (a) the home office and
(b) the Troy Branch of Argos Company to reconcile the reciprocal ledger accounts.

Cases

(Case 4.1)

The management of Longo Company, which has a June 30 fiscal year and sells merchan-
dise at its home office and six branches, is considering closing Santee Branch because of
its declining sales volume and excessive operating expenses. Longo’s contract with Lewis
Hanson, manager of Santee Branch, provides that Hanson is to receive a termination bonus
of 15% of the branch’s net income in its final period of operations, but no bonus in the event
of a net loss in the final period. The contract is silent as to the measurement of the branch’s
net income or loss.

For the period July 1 through October 31, 2005, the date Santee Branch ceased opera-
tions, its income statement prepared in the customary fashion by the branch accountant re-
ported a net loss of $10,000. Hanson pointed out to Longo management that the loss was
net of $30,000 advertising expenses that had been apportioned to the branch by Longo’s
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(Case 4.2)

(Case 4.3)

home office in September 2005, prior to Longo management’s decision to close the branch
on October 31. Hanson alleged that it was inappropriate for the branch to absorb advertis-
ing costs for a period in which it would no longer be making sales presumably initiated in
part by the advertising. The controller of Longo responded that under the same line of rea-
soning, the branch’s October 31, 2005, inventories, which included a $60,000 markup over
home office cost, should be reduced by that amount, with a corresponding increase in the
branch’s net loss, because the home office would never realize the markup through future
sales by Santee Branch.

Instructions
Do you agree with the Santee Branch manager, with the controller of Longo Company,
with both, or with neither? Explain.

Fortunato Company, which had operated successfully in a single location for many years,
opened a branch operation in another city. The products sold by Fortunato in its home of-
fice required federal and state regulatory agency approval; the home office had secured
such approval long ago. However, new approval of those agencies was required before
Fortunato was authorized to produce and sell the same products at the new branch.

After the branch had been established and had begun testing its manufacturing equipment
and considering development of possible new products other than those manufactured by the
home office, management of Fortunato met to discuss accounting for operating costs of the
new branch prior to its authorization to manufacture and sell products. Controller Robert
Engle pointed out that when the home office had been established, it was a development stage
enterprise prior to obtaining approval for production and sale of its products, with specialized
financial statements display requirements provided by FASB Statement No. 7, “Accounting
and Reporting by Development Stage Enterprises.” Engle added that Fortunato, as currently
an operating enterprise, was not authorized to use such specialized requirements for the new
branch. The vice president for legal affairs, Nancy Kubota, stated that the current regulatory
agency environment was much stricter than it had been when Fortunato’s home office ob-
tained authorization for its production and sales, and that a several-month waiting period
might be anticipated before approval of the branch’s operations. Pending such approval, the
branch could not legally even manufacture products for stockpiling in inventories.

Chief executive officer Michael Kantor expressed dismay at the prospect described by
Kubota, stating that a long period of “marking time” at the branch, with no revenue avail-
able to cover operating costs, would generate substantial losses for Fortunato as a whole un-
less the costs could be deferred as start-up costs. Financial vice president Mary Sage asked
Engle if there were any published financial accounting standards for start-up costs. Engle
replied in the affirmative, pointing out that in 1998 the AICPA’s Accounting Standards Ex-
ecutive Committee had issued Statement of Position 98-5, “Reporting on the Costs of
Start-Up Activities,” which mandated expensing of start-up costs. Sage then asked Engle if
the “marking time” costs incurred by the branch prior to regulatory agency approval might
be accounted for as deferred charges or intangible assets. Engle stated that he would answer
that question after consulting accepted accounting definitions of assets, intangible assets,
contingent assets, expenses, and losses.

Instructions
How should Robert Engle answer Mary Sage’s question? Explain, after researching the
foregoing definitions.

Kevin Carter, CPA, a member of the IMA, the FEI, and the AICPA (see Chapter 1), is the
newly hired controller of Oilers, Inc., a closely held manufacturer of replacement parts
for oil well drilling equipment. Oilers distributes its products through its home office and



(Case 4.4)
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14 branches located near oil fields in several southwestern states. Shortly after being em-
ployed, Carter learned that the reciprocal ledger accounts at Oilers’s home office and 14
branches were out of balance by substantial amounts and that no member of the home
office accounting department could remember when—if ever—the reciprocal ledger
accounts had been in balance. In response to Carter’s astonished inquiries, the home office
chief accountant stated that:

1. Oilers, Inc., had never been audited by independent CPAs, and it had no internal audit
staff.

2. Management of Oilers, in reviewing financial statements of the 14 branches, concen-
trated on branch income statements and was unconcerned about the out-of-balance sta-
tus of the branches’ Home Office ledger accounts.

3. To facilitate elimination of the reciprocal ledger account balances in the working paper
for combined financial statements of the home office and 14 branches of Oilers, the
chief accountant debited Miscellaneous Expense or credited Miscellaneous Revenue for
the aggregate amount of the unlocated differences. These “plug’” amounts were reported
in the federal and state income tax returns filed by Oilers.

Instructions

What is your advice to Kevin Carter? Should he permit the practice described above to con-
tinue? If not, should he request management of Oilers to contract for an independent audit?
Alternatively, should he authorize the accountant at each of the 14 branches to adjust the
branch’s Home Office ledger account balance to agree with the home office’s reciprocal In-
vestment in Branch account balance, with the unlocated difference debited to Miscella-
neous Expense or credited to Miscellaneous Revenue, as appropriate? Should some other
course of action be taken? Explain.

The management of Windsor Company, which has several branches as well as a home of-
fice, is planning to sell the net assets of Southwark Branch to an unrelated business enter-
prise. As controller of Windsor, you are asked by the board of directors if you can prepare
separate financial statements for Southwark Branch for the prospective purchaser. Among
the directors’ questions are the following:

1. What specific financial statements are appropriate, and what are their titles?
2. Would there be an equity section in a balance sheet for the branch?

3. How should unrealized intracompany markup above home office cost in the branch’s
ending inventories be treated in the branch’s separate financial statements?

Before attempting to answer the directors’ questions, you consult the following sources:

AICPA Professional Standards, vol. 2, “Accounting & Review Services,” etc.:
AR100.04, ET 92.04.

Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 1, “Objectives of Financial
Reporting by Business Enterprises,” par. 6.

Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 6, “Elements of Financial
Statements,” par. 24.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 57, “Related Party Disclosures,”
par. 2.

Instructions
After consulting the foregoing sources, prepare a memorandum to the board of directors of
Windsor Company in answer to their questions.
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(Case 4.5)

Langley, Inc., operates a number of branches as well as a home office. Each branch stocks
a complete line of merchandise obtained almost entirely from the home office. The
branches also handle their billing, approve customer credit, and make cash collections.
Each branch has its own bank account, and each maintains accounting records. However,
all plant assets at the branches are carried in the accounting records of the home office and
are depreciated in those records by the straight-line method at 10% a year, with no residual
value.

On July 1, 2005, the manager of Lola Branch acquired office equipment. The equipment
had a cash price of $2,400 but was acquired on the installment plan with no down payment
and 24 monthly payments of $110 beginning August 1, 2005. No journal entry was made
for this transaction by the branch until August 1, when the first monthly payment was
recorded by a debit to Miscellaneous Expense. The same journal entry was made in each of
the four remaining months of 2005.

On December 2, 2005, the branch manager became aware that equipment could be ac-
quired by the branches only with prior approval by the home office. Regardless of whether
the home office or the branches acquired plant assets, such assets were to be carried in the
accounting records of the home office, but any gain or loss on the disposal of equipment
was to be recognized in the accounting records of the branches. To avoid criticism, the
manager of the Lola Branch immediately disposed of the office equipment acquired July 1
by sale for $1,500 cash to an independent store. The manager then paid the balance due on
the installment contract using a personal check and the $1,500 check received from sale of
the equipment. In consideration of the advance payment of the remaining installments on
December 3, 2005, the equipment dealer agreed to a $150 reduction in the $240 interest
portion of the contract. No journal entry was prepared for the sale of the equipment or the
settlement of the liability.

Assume that you are a CPA engaged to audit the financial statements of Langley, Inc.
During your visit to Lola Branch you analyze the Miscellaneous Expense ledger account
and investigate the five monthly debits of $110. This investigation discloses the acquisition
and subsequent disposal of the office equipment. After some hesitation, the branch manager
gives you a full explanation of the events.

Instructions

a. Describe (do not prepare) the journal entries that should have been made by Lola Branch
for the foregoing transactions and events.

b. Describe (do not prepare) the journal entries that should have been made by the home
office of Langley, Inc., for the foregoing transactions and events.

c. Prepare a single journal entry for Lola Branch on December 31, 2005, to correct its ac-
counting records.

d. Prepare a single journal entry for the home office of Langley, Inc., on December 31,
2005, to correct its accounting records.

Problems
(Problem 4.1)

Hartman, Inc., established Reno Branch on January 2, 2005. During 2005, Hartman’s home
office shipped merchandise to Reno Branch that cost $300,000. Billings were made at
prices marked up 20% above home office cost. Freight costs of $15,000 were paid by the
home office. Sales by the branch were $450,000, and branch operating expenses were
$96,000, all for cash. On December 31, 2005, the branch took a physical inventory that
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showed merchandise on hand of $72,000 at billed prices. Both the home office and the
branch use the periodic inventory system.

Instructions

Prepare journal entries for Reno Branch and the home office of Hartman, Inc., to record the
foregoing transactions and events, ending inventories, and adjusting and closing entries on
December 31, 2005. (Allocate a proportional amount of freight costs to the ending inven-
tories of the branch.)

(Problem 4.2) Included in the accounting records of the home office and Wade Branch, respectively, of
Lobo Company were the following ledger accounts for the month of January 2005:

CHECK FIGURE Investment in Wade Branch (in Home Office accounting records)

Adjusted balances
$42,600. Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Jan. 1 Balance 39,200 dr
9 Shipment of merchandise 4,000 43,200 dr
21 Receipt of cash 1,600 41,600 dr
27 Collection of branch trade accounts
receivable 1,100 40,500 dr
31 Shipment of merchandise 6,000 46,500 dr
31 Payment of branch trade accounts
payable 2,000 48,500 dr
Home Office (in Wade Branch accounting records)
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Jan. 1 Balance 39,200 cr
10 Receipt of merchandise 4,000 43,200 cr
19 Remittance of cash 1,600 41,600 cr
28 Acquisition of furniture 1,200 40,400 cr
30 Return of merchandise 2,200 38,200 cr
31 Remittance of cash 2,500 35,700 cr

Instructions
a. Prepare a working paper to reconcile the reciprocal ledger accounts of Lobo Company’s
home office and Wade Branch to the corrected balances on January 31, 2005.

b. Prepare journal entries on January 31, 2005, for the (1) home office and (2) Wade
Branch of Lobo Company to bring the accounting records up to date. Both the home
office and the branch use the perpetual inventory system.

(Problem 4.3) The home office of Styler Corporation operates a branch to which it bills merchandise at

prices marked up 20% above home office cost. The branch obtains merchandise only from

CHECK FIGURES the home office and sells it at prices averaging markups 10% above the prices billed by the

a. Debit loss from fire,  home office. Both the home office and the branch maintain perpetual inventory records and
$19.800; b. Debitloss  hoth close their accounting records on December 31.

from fire, $16,500. On March 10, 20035, a fire at the branch destroyed a part of the inventories. Immedi-

ately after the fire, a physical inventory of merchandise on hand and not damaged

amounted to $16,500 at branch retail selling prices. On January 1, 2005, the inventories

of the branch at billed prices had been $18,000. Shipments from the home office during
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(Problem 4.4)

CHECK FIGURES
a. Unadjusted balance,
$49,680; d. Adjusted
balances, $57,480.

(Problem 4.5)

the period January 1 to March 10, 2005, were billed to the branch in the amount of
$57,600. The accounting records of the branch show that net sales during this period
were $44,880.

Instructions

Prepare journal entries on March 10, 2005, to record the uninsured loss from fire in the
accounting records of (@) the branch and (5) the home office of Styler Company. Show sup-
porting computations for all amounts. Assume that the loss was reported at billed prices by
the branch to the home office and that it was recorded in the intracompany reciprocal ledger
accounts.

On December 31, 2005, the Investment in Ryble Branch ledger account in the accounting
records of the home office of Yugo Company shows a debit balance of $55,500. You ascer-
tain the following facts in analyzing this account:

1. On December 31, 2005, merchandise billed at $5,800 was in transit from the home
office to the branch. The periodic inventory system is used by both the home office and
the branch.

2. The branch had collected a home office trade account receivable of $560 on December 30,
2005; the home office was not notified.

3. On December 29, 2005, the home office had mailed a check for $2,000 to the branch,
but the accountant for the home office had recorded the check as a debit to the Chari-
table Contributions ledger account; the branch had not received the check as of Decem-
ber 31, 2005.

4. Branch net income for December 2005 was recorded erroneously by the home office at
$840 instead of $480 on December 31, 2005. The credit was recorded by the home office
in the Income: Ryble Branch ledger account.

5. On December 28, 2005, the branch had returned supplies costing $220 to the
home office; the home office had not recorded the receipt of the supplies. The
home office records acquisitions of supplies in the Inventory of Supplies ledger
account.

Instructions

a. Assuming that all other transactions and events have been recorded properly, prepare
a working paper to compute the unadjusted balance of the Home Office ledger
account in the accounting records of Yugo Company’s Ryble Branch on December
31, 2005.

b. Prepare journal entries for the home office of Yugo Company on December 31, 2005, to
bring its accounting records up to date. Closing entries have not been made.

c. Prepare journal entries for Ryble Branch of Yugo Company on December 31, 2005, to
bring its accounting records up to date.

d. Prepare a reconciliation on December 31, 2005, of the Investment in Ryble branch
ledger account in the accounting records of the home office and the Home Office ac-
count in the accounting records of Ryble Branch of Yugo Company. Use a single col-
umn for each account and start with the unadjusted balances.

Trudie Company’s home office bills shipments of merchandise to its Savoy Branch at 140%
of home office cost. During the first year after the branch was opened, the following were
among the transactions and events completed:

1. The home office shipped merchandise with a home office cost of $110,000 to Savoy
Branch.



(Problem 4.6)

CHECK FIGURE
c. Combined net
income, $63,120.
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2. Savoy Branch sold for $80,000 cash merchandise that was billed by the home office at
$70,000, and incurred operating expenses of $16,500 (all paid in cash).

3. The physical inventories taken by Savoy Branch at the end of the first year were $82,460
at billed prices from the home office.

Instructions
a. Assuming that the perpetual inventory system is used both by the home office and by
Savoy Branch, prepare for the first year:
(1) All journal entries, including closing entries, in the accounting records of Savoy
Branch of Trudie Company.
(2) All journal entries, including the adjustment of the Inventories Overvaluation
account, in the accounting records of the home office of Trudie Company.
b. Assuming that the periodic inventory system is used both by the home office and by
Savoy Branch, prepare for the first year:
(1) All journal entries, including closing entries, in the accounting records of Savoy
Branch of Trudie Company.
(2) All journal entries, including the adjustment of the Inventories Overvaluation ac-
count, in the accounting records of the home office of Trudie Company.

You are making an audit for the year ended December 31, 2005, of the financial statements
of Kosti-Marian Company, which carries on merchandising operations at both a home
office and a branch. The unadjusted trial balances of the home office and the branch are
shown below:

KOSTI-MARIAN COMPANY
Unadjusted Trial Balances
December 31, 2005

Home Office Branch
Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
Cash $ 22,000 $ 10,175
Inventories, Jan. 1, 2005 23,000 11,550
Investment in branch 60,000
Allowance for overvaluation of branch inventories,
Jan. 1, 2002 (1,000)
Other assets (net) 197,000 48,450
Current liabilities (35,000) (8,500)
Common stock, $2.50 par (200,000)
Retained earnings, Jan. 1, 2005 (34,000)
Dividends declared 15,000
Home office (51,000)
Sales (169,000) (144,700)
Purchases 190,000
Shipments to branch (110,000)
Shipments from home office 104,500
Freight-in from home office 5,225
Operating expenses 42,000 24,300

Totals $ -0- $ -0-
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(Problem 4.7)

The audit for the year ended December 31, 2005, disclosed the following:

1. The branch deposits all cash receipts in a local bank for the account of the home office.
The audit working papers for the cash cutoff include the following:

Date Deposited Date Recorded
Amount by Branch by Home Office
$1,050 Dec. 27, 2005 Dec. 31, 2005
1,100 Dec. 30, 2005 Not recorded
600 Dec. 31, 2005 Not recorded
300 Jan. 2, 2006 Not recorded

2. The branch pays operating expenses incurred locally from an imprest cash account that
is maintained with a balance of $2,000. Checks are drawn once a week on the imprest
cash account, and the home office is notified of the amount needed to replenish the ac-
count. On December 31, 2005, a $1,800 reimbursement check was in transit from the
home office to the branch.

3. The branch received all its merchandise from the home office. The home office bills the
merchandise shipments at a markup of 10% above home office cost. On December 31,
2005, a shipment with a billed price of $5,500 was in transit to the branch. Freight costs
of common carriers typically are 5% of billed price. Freight costs are considered to
be inventoriable costs. Both the home office and the branch use the periodic inventory
system.

4. Beginning inventories in the trial balance are shown at the respective costs to the
home office and to the branch. The physical inventories on December 31, 2005, were as
follows:

Home office, at cost $30,000
Branch, at billed price (excluding shipment in transit and freight) 9,900

Instructions
a. Prepare journal entries to adjust the accounting records of the home office of Kosti-
Marian Company on December 31, 2005.

b. Prepare journal entries to adjust the accounting records of Kosti-Marian Company’s
branch on December 31, 2005.

¢. Prepare a working paper for combined financial statements of Kosti-Marian Company
(use the format on page 139). Compute the amounts in the adjusted trial balances for the
home office and the branch by incorporating the journal entries in (a) and (b) with the
amounts in the unadjusted trial balances.

On January 4, 2005, Solis Company opened its first branch, with instructions to Steven
Carr, the branch manager, to perform the functions of granting credit, billing customers,
accounting for receivables, and making cash collections. The branch paid its operating ex-
penses by checks drawn on its bank account. The branch obtained merchandise solely from
the home office; billings from these shipments were at cost to the home office. The
adjusted trial balances for the home office and the branch on December 31, 2005, were as
follows:



CHECK FIGURE

a. Combined net
income, $117.,400.

(Problem 4.8)

CHECK FIGURE
¢. Combined net
income, $107,000.

Chapter 4  Accounting for Branches; Combined Financial Statements 159

SOLIS COMPANY
Adjusted Trial Balances
December 31, 2005

Home Office Branch
Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
Cash $ 46,000 $ 14,600
Notes receivable 7,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 80,400 37,300
Inventories 95,800 24,200
Investment in branch 82,700
Furniture and equipment (net) 48,100
Trade accounts payable (41,000)
Common stock, $2 par (200,000)
Retained earnings, Dec. 31, 2004 (25,000)
Dividends declared 30,000
Home office (82,700)
Sales (394,000) (101,100)
Cost of goods sold 200,500 85,800
Operating expenses 69,500 21,900
Totals § -0- $ -0-

The physical inventories on December 31, 2005, were in agreement with the perpetual
inventory records of the home office and the branch.

Instructions

a. Prepare a four-column working paper for combined financial statements of the home of-
fice and branch of Solis Company for the year ended December 31, 2005.

b. Prepare closing entries on December 31, 2005, in the accounting records of the branch
of Solis Company.

c. Prepare adjusting and closing entries pertaining to branch operations on December 31,
2005, in the accounting records of the home office of Solis Company.

The unadjusted general ledger trial balances on December 31, 2005, for Calco Corpora-
tion’s home office and its only branch are shown below and on page 160:

CALCO CORPORATION

Unadjusted Trial Balances
December 31, 2005

Home Office Branch
Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
Cash $ 28,000 $ 23,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 35,000 12,000
Inventories, Jan. 1, 2005 (at cost to home office) 70,000 15,000
Investment in branch 30,000
Equipment (net) 90,000
Trade accounts payable (46,000) (13,500)
Accrued liabilities (14,000) (2,500)
Home office (19,000)

(continued)
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CALCO CORPORATION
Unadjusted Trial Balances (concluded)
December 31, 2005

Home Office Branch
Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
Common stock, $10 par (50,000)
Retained earnings, Jan. 1, 2005 (48,000)
Dividends declared 10,000
Sales (450,000) (100,000)
Purchases 290,000 24,000
Shipments from home office 45,000
Operating expenses 55,000 16,000
Totals $ -0 $ -0-

Your audit disclosed the following:

1. On December 10, 2005, the branch manager acquired equipment for $500, but failed to
notify the home office. The branch accountant, knowing that branch equipment is car-
ried in the home office ledger, recorded the proper journal entry in the branch account-
ing records. It is Calco’s policy not to recognize depreciation on equipment acquired in
the last half of a year.

2. On December 27, 2005, Mojo, Inc., a customer of the branch, erroneously paid its ac-
count of $2,000 to the home office. The accountant made the correct journal entry in the
home office accounting records but did not notify the branch.

3. On December 30, 2005, the branch remitted to the home office cash of $5,000, which
had not been received by the home office as of December 31, 2005.

4. On December 31, 2005, the branch accountant erroneously recorded the December al-
located expenses from the home office as $500 instead of $5,000.

5. On December 31, 2005, the home office shipped merchandise billed at $3,000 to the
branch; the shipment had not been received by the branch as of December 31, 2005.

6. The inventories on December 31, 2005, excluding the shipment in transit, were: home
office—$60,000 (at cost); branch—$20,000 (consisting of $18,000 from home office at
billed prices and $2,000 from suppliers). Both the home office and the branch use the
periodic inventory system.

7. The home office erroneously billed shipments to the branch at a markup of 20% above
home office cost, although the billing should have been at cost. The Sales ledger account
was credited for the invoices’ price by the home office.

Instructions

a. Prepare journal entries for the home office of Calco Corporation on December 31, 2005,
to bring the accounting records up to date and to correct any errors. Record ending in-
ventories by an offsetting credit to the Income Summary ledger account. Do not prepare
other closing entries.

b. Prepare journal entries for the branch of Calco Corporation on December 31, 2005, to
bring the accounting records up to date and to correct any errors. Record ending inven-
tories at cost to the home office by an offsetting credit to the Income Summary ledger
account. Do not prepare other closing entries.

c. Prepare a working paper to summarize the operations of Calco Corporation for the year
ended December 31, 2005. Disregard income taxes and use the following column headings:
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Revenue and Expenses | Home Office | Branch | Combined

(Problem 4.9) The following reciprocal ledger accounts were included in the accounting records of the
home office and the Lee Branch of Kreshek Company on April 30, 2005. You have been re-
tained by Kreshek to assist it with some accounting work preliminary to the preparation of
financial statements for the quarter ended April 30, 2005.

CHECK FIGURE

o A s, Investment in Lee Branch

$143,390. Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Feb. 1 Balance 124,630 dr
6 Shipment of merchandise, 160 units
@ $49 7,840 132,470 dr
17 Note receivable collected by branch 2,500 134,970 dr
Mar. 31 Cash deposited by branch 2,000 132,970 dr
Apr. 2 Merchandise returned by branch 450 | 132,520dr
26 Loss on disposal of branch equipment 780 133,300 dr
28 Operating expenses charged to branch 1,200 134,500 dr
29 Corrected loss on disposal of branch
equipment from $780 to $250 530 | 133,970dr
Home Office
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Feb. 1 Balance 124,630 cr
8 Merchandise from home office, 160 units
@%$49 7,480 132,110 cr
14 Received shipment directly from supplier,
invoice to be paid by home office 2,750 134,860 cr
15 Note receivable collected for home
office 2,500 137,360 cr
Mar. 30 Deposited cash in account of home
office 2,000 135,360 cr
31 Returned merchandise to home office 450 134,910 cr
Apr. 29 Paid repair bill for home office 375 134,535 cr
30 Excess merchandise returned to home
office (billed at cost) 5,205 129,330 cr
30 Preliminary net income for quarter
(before any required corrections) 13,710 143,040 cr

Additional Information

1. Branch equipment is carried in the accounting records of the home office; the home of-
fice notifies the branch periodically as to the amount of depreciation applicable to equip-
ment used by the branch. Gains or losses on disposal of branch equipment are reported
to the branch and included in the income statement of the branch.

2. Because of the error in recording the shipment from the home office on February 8,
2005, the sale of the 160 units has been debited improperly by the branch to cost of
goods sold at $46.75 a unit.
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3. On April 30, 2005, the branch collected trade accounts receivable of $350 belonging to
the home office, but the branch employee who recorded the collection mistakenly treated
the trade accounts receivable as belonging to the branch.

4. The branch accountant recorded the preliminary net income of $13,710 by a debit to
Income Summary and a credit to Home Office, although the revenue and expense ledger
accounts had not been closed.

Instructions

a. Reconcile the reciprocal ledger accounts of the home office and Lee Branch of Kreshek
Company to the correct balances on April 30, 2005. Use a four-column working paper
(debit and credit columns for the Investment in Lee Branch account in the home office
accounting records and debit and credit columns for the Home Office account in the
branch accounting records). Start with the unadjusted balances on April 30, 2005, and
work to corrected balances, including explanations of all adjusting or correcting items.

b. Prepare journal entries for Lee Branch of Kreshek Company on April 30, 2005, to bring
its accounting records up to date, assuming that corrections still may be made to revenue
and expense ledger accounts. The branch uses the perpetual inventory system. Do not
prepare closing entries.

c. Prepare journal entries for the home office of Kreshek Company on April 30, 2005, to
bring its accounting records up to date. The home office uses the perpetual inventory
system and has not prepared closing entries. Do not prepare closing entries.

(Problem 4.10) Arnie’s, a single proprietorship owned by Arnold Nance, sells merchandise at both its home
office and a branch. The home office bills merchandise shipped to the branch at 125% of
home office cost, and is the only supplier for the branch. Shipments of merchandise to the
branch have been recorded improperly by the home office by credits to Sales for the billed
price. Both the home office and the branch use the perpetual inventory system.

Arnie’s has engaged you to audit its financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2005. This is the first time the proprietorship has retained an independent accountant. You
were provided with the following unadjusted trial balances:

CHECK FIGURE
¢. Combined net
income, $86,600.

ARNIE’S
Unadjusted Trial Balances
December 31, 2005

Home Office Vida Branch

Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
Cash $ 31,000 $ 13,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 20,000 22,000
Inventories 40,000 8,000
Investment in branch 45,000
Equipment (net) 150,000
Trade accounts payable $ (23,000)
Accrued liabilities $ (2,000)
Note payable, due 2008 (51,000)
Arnold Nance, capital, Jan. 1, 2005 (192,000)
Arnold Nance, drawing 50,000
Home office (10,000)
Sales (390,000) (160,000)
Cost of goods sold 250,000 93,000
Operating expenses 70,000 36,000

Totals $ -0- $ -0-
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Additional Information

1.

On January 1, 2005, inventories of the home office amounted to $25,000 and inventories
of the branch amounted to $6,000. During 2005, the branch was billed for $105,000 for
shipments from the home office.

. On December 28, 2005, the home office billed the branch for $12,000, representing the

branch’s share of operating expenses paid by the home office. This billing had not been
recorded by the branch.

. All cash collections made by the branch were deposited in a local bank to the bank ac-

count of the home office. Deposits of this nature included the following:

Date Deposited Date Recorded
Amount by Vida Branch by Home Office
$5,000 Dec. 28, 2005 Dec. 31, 2005
3,000 Dec. 30, 2005 Not recorded
7,000 Dec. 31, 2005 Not recorded
2,000 Jan. 2, 2006 Not recorded

. Operating expenses incurred by the branch were paid from an imprest bank account that

was reimbursed periodically by the home office. On December 30, 2005, the home of-
fice had mailed a reimbursement check in the amount of $3,000, which had not been re-
ceived by the branch as of December 31, 2005.

. A shipment of merchandise from the home office to the branch was in transit on De-

cember 31, 2005.

Instructions

a.

Prepare journal entries to adjust the accounting records of Arnie’s home office on De-
cember 31, 2005. Establish an allowance for overvaluation of branch inventories.

Prepare journal entries to adjust the accounting records of Vida Branch on December 31,
2005.

Prepare a working paper for combined financial statements of Arnie’s on December 31,
2005 (use the format on pages 132—133). Compute the amounts for the adjusted trial
balances for the home office and the branch by incorporating the journal entries in (a)
and (b) with the amounts in the unadjusted trial balances.

After the working paper in (¢) is completed, prepare all required adjusting and closing
entries on December 31, 2005, in the accounting records of Arnie’s home office.
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Business Combinations

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has provided the following working definition
of business combination:

[A] business combination occurs when an entity acquires net assets that constitute a business
or acquires equity interests of one or more other entitites and obtains control over that entity
or entities.!

Footnotes to this definition amplify the terms entity, business, and control as follows:?

Entity: A business enterprise, a new entity formed to complete a business combination, or a
mutual enterprise—an entity, not investor-owned, that provides dividends, lower costs, or
other economic benefits directly to its owners, members, or participants.

Business: An asset group that constitutes a business as characterized by the Emerging Issues
Task Force (EITF) in EITF Issue No. 98-3, “Determining Whether a Nonmonetary Trans-
action Involves Receipt of Productive Assets or of a Business.”

Control: Ownership by one company, directly or indirectly, of the outstanding voting shares
of another company.

In common parlance, business combinations are often referred to as mergers and
acquisitions.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has suggested the following definitions for
terms commonly used in discussions of business combinations.’

Combined enterprise The accounting entity that results from a business
combination.

Constituent companies The business enterprises that enter into a business
combination.

Combinor A constituent company entering into a business combination whose
owners as a group end up with control of the ownership interests in the combined
enterprise.

Combinee A constituent company other than the combinor in a business
combination.

Business combinations may be divided into two classes—friendly takeovers and hostile
takeovers. In a fiiendly takeover, the boards of directors of the constituent companies gen-
erally work out the terms of the business combination amicably and submit the proposal to

' FASB Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations” (Norwalk: FASB, 2001), par. 9.
2 |bid., pars. 9 and F1.

3 FASB Discussion Memorandum, “An Analysis of Issues Related to Accounting for Business Combina-
tions and Purchased Intangibles” (Stamford: FASB, 1976), p. 3.
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stockholders of all constituent companies for approval. A target combinee in a hostile
takeover typically resists the proposed business combination by resorting to one or more
defensive tactics with the following colorful designations:

Pac-man defense A threat to undertake a hostile takeover of the prospective
combinor.

White knight A search for a candidate to be the combinor in a friendly takeover.

Scorched earth The disposal, by sale or by a spin-off to stockholders, of one or more
profitable business segments.

Shark repellent An acquisition of substantial amounts of outstanding common stock
for the treasury or for retirement, or the incurring of substantial long-term debt in
exchange for outstanding common stock.

Poison pill An amendment of the articles of incorporation or bylaws to make it more
difficult to obtain stockholder approval for a takeover.

Greenmail An acquisition of common stock presently owned by the prospective
combinor at a price substantially in excess of the prospective combinor’s cost, with the
stock thus acquired placed in the treasury or retired.

Scope of Chapter

The first section of this chapter presents reasons for the popularity of business combina-
tions and techniques for arranging them. Then, purchase accounting—the only acceptable
method—for business combinations is explained and illustrated.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS: WHY AND HOW?

Why do business enterprises enter into a business combination? Although a number of
reasons have been cited, probably the overriding one for combinors in recent years
has been growth. Business enterprises have major operating objectives other than
growth, but that goal increasingly has motivated combinor managements to undertake
business combinations. Advocates of this external method of achieving growth point
out that it is much more rapid than growth through internal means. There is no question
that expansion and diversification of product lines, or enlarging the market share
for current products, is achieved readily through a business combination with another
enterprise. However, the disappointing experiences of many combinors engaging in
business combinations suggest that much may be said in favor of more gradual and
reasoned growth through internal means, using available management and financial
resources.

Other reasons often advanced in support of business combinations are obtaining
new management strength or better use of existing management and achieving manu-
facturing or other operating economies. In addition, a business combination may be
undertaken for the income tax advantages available to one or more parties to the
combination.

Critics have alleged that the foregoing reasons attributed to the “urge to merge” (busi-
ness combinations) do not apply to hostile takeovers. These critics complain that the
“sharks” who engage in hostile takeovers, and the investment bankers and attorneys who
counsel them, are motivated by the prospect of substantial gains resulting from the sale of
business segments of a combinee following the business combination.
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Antitrust Considerations

One obstacle faced by large corporations that undertake business combinations is the pos-
sibility of antitrust litigation. The U.S. government on occasion has opposed concentration
of economic power in large business enterprises. Consequently, business combinations fre-
quently have been challenged by the Federal Trade Commission or the Antitrust Division of
the Department of Justice, under the provisions of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, which
reads in part as follows:

No corporation engaged in commerce shall acquire, directly or indirectly, the whole or any
part of the stock or other share capital and no corporation subject to the jurisdiction of the
Federal Trade Commission shall acquire the whole or any part of the assets of another corpo-
ration engaged also in commerce, where in any line of commerce in any section of the coun-
try the effect of such acquisition may be substantially to lessen competition or to tend to
create a monopoly.

The breadth of the preceding legislation has led to federal antitrust action against all
types of business combinations: horizontal (combinations involving enterprises in the
same industry), verfical (combinations between an enterprise and its customers or sup-
pliers), and conglomerate (combinations between enterprises in unrelated industries or
markets).

Methods for Arranging Business Combinations

The four common methods for carrying out a business combination are statutory merger,
statutory consolidation, acquisition of common stock, and acquisition of assets.

Statutory Merger

As its name implies, a statutory merger is executed under provisions of applicable state
laws. In a statutory merger, the boards of directors of the constituent companies approve
a plan for the exchange of voting common stock (and perhaps some preferred stock,
cash, or long-term debt) of one of the corporations (the survivor) for all the outstanding
voting common stock of the other corporations. Stockholders of all constituent compa-
nies must approve the terms of the merger; some states require approval by two-thirds
of the stockholders. The survivor corporation issues its common stock or other consid-
eration to the stockholders of the other corporations in exchange for all their holdings,
thus acquiring ownership of those corporations. The other corporations then are dis-
solved and liquidated and thus cease to exist as separate legal entities, and their activ-
ities often are continued as divisions of the survivor, which now owns the net assets
(assets minus liabilities), rather than the outstanding common stock, of the liquidated
corporations.

To summarize, the procedures in a statutory merger are:

1. The boards of directors of the constituent companies work out the terms of the
merger.

2. Stockholders of the constituent companies approve the terms of the merger, in accor-
dance with applicable corporate bylaws and state laws.

3. The survivor issues its common stock or other consideration to the stockholders of the
other constituent companies in exchange for all their outstanding voting common stock
of those companies.

4. The survivor dissolves and liquidates the other constituent companies, receiving in ex-
change for its common stock investments the net assets of those companies.
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Statutory Consolidation
A statutory consolidation also is consummated in accordance with applicable state laws.
However, in a consolidation a new corporation is formed to issue its common stock for the
outstanding common stock of two or more existing corporations, which then go out of
existence. The new corporation thus acquires the net assets of the defunct corporations,
whose activities may be continued as divisions of the new corporation.

To summarize, the procedures in a statutory consolidation are:

1. The boards of directors of the constituent companies work out the terms of the consoli-
dation.

2. Stockholders of the constituent companies approve the terms of the consolidation, in ac-
cordance with applicable corporate bylaws and state laws.

3. A new corporation is formed to issue its common stock to the stockholders of the con-
stituent companies in exchange for all their outstanding voting common stock of those
companies.

4. The new corporation dissolves and liquidates the constituent companies, receiving in ex-
change for its common stock investments the net assets of those companies.

Acquisition of Common Stock
One corporation (the investor) may issue preferred or common stock, cash, debt instru-
ments, or a combination thereof, to acquire from present stockholders a controlling interest
in the voting common stock of another corporation (the investee). This stock acquisition
program may be accomplished through direct acquisition in the stock market, through ne-
gotiations with the principal stockholders of a closely held corporation, or through a tender
offer to stockholders of a publicly owned corporation. A tender offer is a publicly an-
nounced intention to acquire, for a stated amount of consideration, a maximum number of
shares of the combinee’s common stock “tendered” by holders thereof to an agent, such as
an investment banker or a commercial bank. The price per share stated in the tender offer
usually is well above the prevailing market price of the combinee’s common stock. If a con-
trolling interest in the combinee’s voting common stock is acquired, that corporation be-
comes affiliated with the combinor parent company as a subsidiary, but is not dissolved
and liquidated and remains a separate legal entity. Business combinations arranged
through common stock acquisitions require authorization by the combinor’s board of di-
rectors and may require ratification by the combinee’s stockholders. Most hostile takeovers
are accomplished by this means.

Business combinations that result in a parent company—subsidiary relationship are dis-
cussed in Chapter 6.

Acquisition of Assets

A business enterprise may acquire from another enterprise all or most of the gross assets or
net assets of the other enterprise for cash, debt instruments, preferred or common stock, or
a combination thereof. The transaction generally must be approved by the boards of direc-
tors and stockholders or other owners of the constituent companies. The selling enterprise
may continue its existence as a separate entity or it may be dissolved and liquidated; it
does not become an affiliate of the combinor.

Establishing the Price for a Business Combination

An important early step in planning a business combination is deciding on an appropriate
price to pay. The amount of cash or debt securities, or the number of shares of preferred or
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Computation of
Exchange Ratio in
Business Combination

common stock, to be issued in a business combination generally is determined by varia-
tions of the following methods:

1. Capitalization of expected average annual earnings of the combinee at a desired rate of
return.

2. Determination of current fair value of the combinee’s net assets (including goodwill).

The price for a business combination consummated for cash or debt instruments gener-
ally is expressed in terms of the total dollar amount of the consideration issued. When com-
mon stock is issued by the combinor in a business combination, the price is expressed as a
ratio of the number of shares of the combinor’s common stock to be exchanged for each
share of the combinee’s common stock.

Illustration of Exchange Ratio

The negotiating officers of Palmer Corporation have agreed with the stockholders of
Simpson Company to acquire all 20,000 outstanding shares of Simpson common stock for a
total price of $1,800,000. Palmer’s common stock presently is trading in the market at $65
a share. Stockholders of Simpson agree to accept 30,000 shares of Palmer’s common stock
at a value of $60 a share in exchange for their stock holdings in Simpson. The exchange ra-
tio is expressed as 1.5 shares of Palmer’s common stock for each share of Simpson’s com-
mon stock, in accordance with the following computation:

Number of shares of Palmer Corporation common stock to be issued 30,000
Number of shares of Simpson Company common stock to be exchanged 20,000
Exchange ratio: 30,000 + 20,000 1.5:1

PURCHASE METHOD OF ACCOUNTING FOR
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In EASB Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations,” the FASB mandated purchase ac-
counting for all business combinations entered into after June 30, 2001.* The key compo-
nents of purchase accounting were identified as follows by the FASB:?

Initial recognition: Assets are commonly acquired in exchange transactions that trigger
the initial recognition of the assets acquired and any liabilities assumed.

Initial measurement: Like other exchange transactions generally, acquisitions are
measured on the basis of the fair values exchanged.

Allocating cost: Acquiring assets in groups requires not only ascertaining the cost of
the asset (or net asset) group but also allocating that cost to the individual assets (or
individual assets and liabilities) that make up the group.

Accounting after acquisition: The nature of an asset and not the manner of its
acquisitions determines an acquiring entity’s subsequent accounting for the asset.

The foregoing provide the foundation for applying the purchase method of accounting for
business combinations.

4 FASB Statement No. 141, par. 13.
> |bid., pars. 4, 5, 7, 8.
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Determination of the Combinor

Because the carrying amounts of the net assets of the combinor are not affected by a
business combination, the combinor must be accurately identified. The FASB stated that
in a business combination effected solely by the distribution of cash or other assets or
by incurring liabilities, the combinor is the distributing or incurring constituent com-
pany.® For combinations effected by the issuance of equity securities, consideration of
all the facts and circumstances is required to identify the combinor. However, a common
theme is that the combinor is the constituent company whose stockholders as a group re-
tain or receive the largest portion of the voting rights of the combined enterprise and
thereby can elect a majority of the governing board of directors or other group of the
combined enterprise.’

Computation of Cost of a Combinee

The cost of a combinee in a business combination accounted for by the purchase method is
the total of (1) the amount of consideration paid by the combinor, (2) the combinor’s direct
“out-of-pocket” costs of the combination, and (3) any contingent consideration that is de-
terminable on the date of the business combination.

Amount of Consideration

This is the total amount of cash paid, the current fair value of other assets distributed, the
present value of debt securities issued, and the current fair (or market) value of equity se-
curities issued by the combinor.

Direct Out-of-Pocket Costs

Included in this category are some legal fees, some accounting fees, and finder’s fees. A
finder’s fee is paid to the investment banking firm or other organization or individuals that
investigated the combinee, assisted in determining the price of the business combination,
and otherwise rendered services to bring about the combination.

Costs of registering with the SEC and issuing debt securities in a business combination
are debited to Bond Issue Costs; they are not part of the cost of the combinee. Costs of reg-
istering with the SEC and issuing equity securities are not direct costs of the business com-
bination but are offset against the proceeds from the issuance of the securities. Indirect
out-of-pocket costs of the combination, such as salaries of officers of constituent compa-
nies involved in negotiation and completion of the combination, are recognized as expenses
incurred by the constituent companies.

Contingent Consideration

Contingent consideration is additional cash, other assets, or securities that may be is-
suable in the future, contingent on future events such as a specified level of earnings or
a designated market price for a security that had been issued to complete the business
combination. Contingent consideration that is determinable on the consummation date
of a combination is recorded as part of the cost of the combination; contingent consid-
eration not determinable on the date of the combination is recorded when the contin-
gency is resolved and the additional consideration is paid or issued (or becomes payable
or issuable).

6 lbid., par. 16.
7 Ibid., par. 17.
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Illustration of Contingent Consideration

The contract for Norton Company’s acquisition of the net assets of Robinson Company pro-
vided that Norton would pay $800,000 cash for Robinson’s net assets (including goodwill),
which would be included in the Robb Division of Norton Company. The following contin-
gent consideration also was included in the contract:

1. Norton was to pay Robinson $100 a unit for all sales by Robb Division of a slow-moving
product that had been written down to scrap value by Robinson prior to the business
combination. No portion of the $800,000 price for Robinson’s net assets involved the
slow-moving product.

2. Norton was to pay Robinson 25% of any pretax financial income in excess of $500,000
(excluding income from sale of the slow-moving product) of Robb Division for each of
the four years subsequent to the business combination.

On January 2, 2005, the date of completion of the business combination, Robinson Com-
pany had firm, noncancelable sales orders for 500 units of the slow-moving product. The sales
orders and all units of the slow-moving product were transferred to Norton by Robinson.
Norton’s cost of the net assets acquired from Robinson includes $50,000 (500 X $100 =
$50,000) for the determinable contingent consideration attributable to the backlog of sales
orders for the slow-moving product. However, because any pretax accounting income of
Robb Division for the next four years cannot be determined on January 2, 2005, no provision
for the 25% contingent consideration is included in Norton’s cost on January 2, 2005. The
subsequent accounting for such contingent consideration is described on pages 178—179.

Allocation of Cost of a Combinee

The FASB required that the cost of a combinee in a business combination be allocated to
assets (other than goodwill) acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair
values on the date of the combination. Any excess of total costs over the amounts thus al-
located is assigned to goodwill.® Methods for determining fair values included present val-
ues for receivables and most liabilities; net realizable value less a reasonable profit for work
in process and finished goods inventories; and appraised values for land, natural resources,
and nonmarketable securities.? In addition, the following combinee intangible assets were
to be recognized individually and valued at fair value:!°

Assets arising from contractual or legal rights, such as patents, copyrights, and franchises
Other assets that are separable from the combinee entity and can be sold, licensed, ex-
changed, and the like, such as customer lists and unpatented technology

Other matters involved in the allocation of the cost of a combinee in a business combi-
nation are:

1. A part of the cost of a combinee is allocable to identifiable tangible and intangible assets
that resulted from research and development activities of the combinee or are to be used
in research and development activities of the combined enterprise. Subsequently, such
assets are to be expensed, as required by FASB Statement No. 2, “Accounting for Re-
search and Development Costs,” unless they may be used for other than research and de-
velopment activities in the future.!!

8 |bid., pars. 35, 43.
9 |bid. par. 37.
19 1bid., pars. 39, A14.

"1 FASB Interpretation No. 4, " Applicability of FASB Statement No. 2 to Business Combinations
Accounted for by the Purchase Method” (Stamford: FASB, 1975), pars. 4-5.
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2. In a business combination, leases of the combinee-lessee are classified by the combined
enterprise as they were by the combinee unless the provisions of a lease are modified to
the extent it must be considered a new lease.'? Thus, unmodified capital leases of the
combinee are treated as capital leases by the combined enterprise, and the leased prop-
erty and related liability are recognized in accordance with the guidelines of FASB
Statement No. 141.

3. A combinee in a business combination may have preacquisition contingencies, which are
contingent assets (other than potential income tax benefits of a loss carryforward), contin-
gent liabilities, or contingent impairments of assets, that existed prior to completion of the
business combination. If so, an allocation period, generally not longer than one year from
the date the combination is completed, may be used to determine the current fair value of
a preacquisition contingency. A portion of the cost of a combinee is allocated to a preac-
quisition contingency whose fair value is determined during the allocation period. Other-
wise, an estimated amount is assigned to a preacquisition contingency if it appears
probable that an asset existed, a liability had been incurred, or an asset had been impaired
at the completion of the combination. Any adjustment of the carrying amount of a preac-
quisition contingency subsequent to the end of the allocation period is included in the
measurement of net income for the accounting period of the adjustment.'3

Goodwill

Goodwill frequently is recognized in business combinations because the total cost of the
combinee exceeds the current fair value of identifiable net assets of the combinee. The
amount of goodwill recognized on the date the business combination is consummated may
be adjusted subsequently when contingent consideration becomes issuable, as illustrated on
page 178.14

“Negative Goodwill”

In some business combinations (known as bargain purchases), the current fair values as-
signed to the identifiable net assets acquired exceed the total cost of the combinee. A bar-
gain purchase is most likely to occur for a combinee with a history of losses or when
common stock prices are extremely low. The excess of the current fair values over total cost
is applied pro rata to reduce (but not below zero) the amounts initially assigned to all the
acquired assets except financial assets other than investments accounted for by the equity
method; assets to be disposed of by sale; deferred tax assets; prepaid assets relating to pen-
sion or other postretirement benefits; and any other current assets. If any excess of current
fair values over cost of the combinee’s net assets remains after the foregoing reduction, it is
recognized as an extraordinary gain by the combinor.'?

lllustration of Purchase Accounting for Statutory Merger,

with Goodwiill

On December 31, 2005, Mason Company (the combinee) was merged into Saxon Corpo-
ration (the combinor or survivor). Both companies used the same accounting principles for
assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses and both had a December 31 fiscal year. Saxon
issued 150,000 shares of its $10 par common stock (current fair value $25 a share) to

12 FASB Interpretation No. 21, " Accounting for Leases in a Business Combination” (Stamford: FASB,
1978), pars. 12-15.

13 FASB Statement No. 141, par. 40.
4 bid., par. 28.
5 |bid., pars. 44, 45.



172 Part Two Business Combinations and Consolidated Financial Statements

Combinor’s Out-of-
Pocket Costs of
Business Combination

Combinee’s Balance
Sheet Prior to Merger
Business Combination

Current Fair Values
of Combinee’s
Identifiable Net Assets

Mason’s stockholders for all 100,000 issued and outstanding shares of Mason’s no-par,
$10 stated value common stock. In addition, Saxon paid the following out-of-pocket costs
associated with the business combination:

Accounting fees:

For investigation of Mason Company as prospective combinee $ 5,000

For SEC registration statement for Saxon common stock 60,000
Legal fees:

For the business combination 10,000

For SEC registration statement for Saxon common stock 50,000
Finder's fee 51,250
Printer’s charges for printing securities and SEC registration statement 23,000
SEC registration statement fee 750

Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $200,000

There was no contingent consideration in the merger contract.
Immediately prior to the merger, Mason Company’s condensed balance sheet was as
follows:

MASON COMPANY (combinee)
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
December 31, 2005

Assets
Current assets $1,000,000
Plant assets (net) 3,000,000
Other assets 600,000
Total assets $4,600,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 500,000
Long-term debt 1,000,000
Common stock, no-par, $10 stated value 1,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 700,000
Retained earnings 1,400,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $4,600,000

Using the guidelines in FASB Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations” (see page 170),
the board of directors of Saxon Corporation determined the current fair values of Mason
Company’s identifiable assets and liabilities (identifiable net assets) as follows:

Current assets $1,150,000
Plant assets 3,400,000
Other assets 600,000
Current liabilities (500,000)
Long-term debt (present value) (950,000)

Identifiable net assets of combinee $3,700,000
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The condensed journal entries that follow are required for Saxon Corporation (the com-
binor) to record the merger with Mason Company on December 31, 2005, as a business
combination. Saxon uses an investment ledger account to accumulate the total cost of
Mason Company prior to assigning the cost to identifiable net assets and goodwill.

Combinor’s Journal SAXON CORPORATION (combinor)
Entries for Business Journal Entries
Combination December 31, 2005
(Statutory Merger)
Investment in Mason Company Common Stock
(150,000 x $25) 3,750,000
Common Stock (150,000 X $10) 1,500,000
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par 2,250,000

To record merger with Mason Company.

Investment in Mason Company Common Stock

($5,000 + $10,000 + $51,250) 66,250
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par
($60,000 + $50,000 + $23,000 + 750) 133,750
Cash 200,000

To record payment of out-of-pocket costs incurred in merger
with Mason Company. Accounting, legal, and finder’s fees in
connection with the merger are recognized as an investment
cost; other out-of-pocket costs are recorded as a reduction
in the proceeds received from issuance of common stock.

Current Assets 1,150,000
Plant Assets 3,400,000
Other Assets 600,000
Discount on Long-Term Debt 50,000
Goodwill 116,250
Current Liabilities 500,000
Long-Term Debt 1,000,000
Investment in Mason Company Common Stock
($3,750,000 + $66,250) 3,816,250

To allocate total cost of liquidated Mason Company to
identifiable assets and liabilities, with the remainder to
goodwill. (Income tax effects are disregarded.) Amount
of goodwill is computed as follows:
Total cost of Mason Company
($3,750,000 + $66,250) $3,816,250
Less: Carrying amount of

Mason’s identifiable net

assets ($4,600,000 —

$1,500,000) $3,100,000

Excess (deficiency) of

current fair values of

identifiable net assets

over carrying amounts:

Current assets 150,000
Plant assets 400,000
Long-term debt 50,000 3,700,000

Amount of goodwill $ 116,250
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Recording the
Liquidation of
Combinee

Balance Sheet of
Combinee Prior to
Business Combination

Note that no adjustments are made in the foregoing journal entries to reflect the current
fair values of Saxon’s identifiable net assets or goodwill, because Saxon is the combinor

in the business combination.

Accounting for the income tax effects of business combinations is considered in Chapter 9.
Mason Company (the combinee) prepares the condensed journal entry below to record

the dissolution and liquidation of the company on December 31, 2005.

MASON COMPANY (combinee)
Journal Entry
December 31, 2005

Current Liabilities 500,000
Long-Term Debt 1,000,000
Common Stock, $10 stated value 1,000,000
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Stated Value 700,000
Retained Earnings 1,400,000

Current Assets
Plant Assets (net)
Other Assets

To record liquidation of company in conjunction
with merger with Saxon Corporation.

lllustration of Purchase Accounting for Acquisition of
Net Assets, with Bargain-Purchase Excess

1,000,000
3,000,000
600,000

On December 31, 2005, Davis Corporation acquired all the net assets of Fairmont Corpo-
ration directly from Fairmont for $400,000 cash, in a business combination. Davis paid

legal fees of $40,000 in connection with the combination.

The condensed balance sheet of Fairmont prior to the business combination, with related

current fair value data, is presented below:

FAIRMONT CORPORATION (combinee)
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
December 31, 2005

Carrying Current
Amounts Fair Values
Assets
Current assets $ 190,000 $ 200,000
Investment in marketable debt securities (held to maturity) 50,000 60,000
Plant assets (net) 870,000 900,000
Intangible assets (net) 90,000 100,000
Total assets $1,200,000 $1,260,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities $ 240,000 $ 240,000
Long-term debt 500,000 520,000
Total liabilities $ 740,000 $ 760,000
Common stock, $1 par $ 600,000 -
Deficit (140,000)
Total stockholders’ equity $ 460,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,200,000




Allocation of Excess
of Current Fair

Value over Cost of
Identifiable Net Assets
of Combinee in
Business Combination

Combinor’s Journal
Entries for Business
Combination
(Acquisition of Net
Assets)
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Thus, Davis acquired identifiable net assets with a current fair value of $500,000
($1,260,000 — $760,000 = $500,000) for a total cost of $440,000 ($400,000 + $40,000 =
$440,000). The $60,000 excess of current fair value of the net assets over their cost to Davis
($500,000 — $440,000 = $60,000) is prorated to the plant assets and intangible assets in
the ratio of their respective current fair values, as follows:

$900,000

To plant ts: $60,000 X 54,000
O plant assets: § $900,000 + $100,000 s

. . $100,000

: X

To intangible assets: $60,000 $900.000 + $100,000 6,000

Total excess of current fair value of identifiable net assets over

combinor’s cost $60,000

No part of the $60,000 bargain-purchase excess is allocated to current assets or to the in-
vestment in marketable securities.

The journal entries below record Davis Corporation’s acquisition of the net assets of
Fairmont Corporation and payment of $40,000 legal fees:

DAVIS CORPORATION (combinor)
Journal Entries
December 31, 2005

Investment in Net Assets of Fairmont Corporation 400,000
Cash

To record acquisition of net assets of Fairmont Corporation.

400,000

Investment in Net Assets of Fairmont Corporation
Cash

To record payment of legal fees incurred in acquisition of net
assets of Fairmont Corporation.

40,000
40,000

Current Assets 200,000
60,000
846,000

94,000

Investments in Marketable Debt Securities
Plant Assets ($900,000 — $54,000)
Intangible Assets ($100,000 — $6,000)
Current Liabilities 240,000
500,000

20,000

Long-Term Debt

Premium on Long-Term Debt ($520,000 — $500,000)

Investment in Net Assets of Fairmont Corporation

($400,000 + $40,000)

To allocate total cost of net assets acquired to identifiable net assets, with
excess of current fair value of the net assets over their cost prorated to
noncurrent assets other than investment in marketable debt securities.
(Income tax effects are disregarded.)

440,000

Other Topics in Accounting for Business Combinations

Statutory Consolidation

Because a new corporation issues common stock to effect a statutory consolidation, one of
the constituent companies in a statutory consolidation must be identified as the combinor,
under the criteria described on page 169. Once the combinor has been identified, the new
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Computation of
Number of Shares of
Common Stock Issued
in Statutory
Consolidation

corporation recognizes net assets acquired from the combinor at their carrying amount in
the combinor’s accounting records; however, net assets acquired from the combinee are

recognized by the new corporation at their current fair value.

To illustrate, assume the following balance sheets of the constituent companies involved

in a statutory consolidation on December 31, 2005:

LAMSON CORPORATION AND DONALD COMPANY
Separate Balance Sheets (prior to business combination)
December 31, 2005

Lamson Donald
Corporation Company
Assets
Current assets $ 600,000 $ 400,000
Plant assets (net) 1,800,000 1,200,000
Other assets 400,000 300,000
Total assets $2,800,000 $1,900,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 400,000 $ 300,000
Long-term debt 500,000 200,000
Common stock, $10 par 430,000 620,000
Additional paid-in capital 300,000 400,000
Retained earnings 1,170,000 380,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,800,000 $1,900,000

The current fair values of both companies’ liabilities were equal to carrying amounts. Cur-
rent fair values of identifiable assets were as follows for Lamson and Donald, respectively:
current assets, $800,000 and $500,000; plant assets, $2,000,000 and $1,400,000; other as-

sets, $500,000 and $400,000.

On December 31, 2005, in a statutory consolidation approved by shareholders of both
constituent companies, a new corporation, LamDon Corporation, issued 74,000 shares of
no-par, no-stated-value common stock with an agreed value of $60 a share, based on the
following valuations assigned by the negotiating directors to the two constituent compa-

nies’ identifiable net assets and goodwill:

Lamson Donald
Corporation Company
Current fair value of identifiable net assets:
Lamson: $800,000 + $2,000,000 + $500,000 —
$400,000 — $500,000 $2,400,000
Donald: $500,000 + $1,400,000 + $400,000 —
$300,000 — $200,000 $1,800,000
Goodwill 180,000 60,000
Net assets’ current fair value $2,580,000 $1,860,000
Number of shares of LamDon common stock to
be issued to constituent companies’ stockholders,

at $60 a share agreed value 43,000

31,000
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Because the former stockholders of Lamson Corporation receive the larger interest in the
common stock of LamDon Corporation (*/4s, or 58%), Lamson is the combinor in the busi-
ness combination. Assuming that LamDon paid $200,000 out-of-pocket costs of the statu-
tory consolidation after it was consummated on December 31, 2005, LamDon’s journal
entries would be as follows:

Journal Entries for LAMDON CORPORATION
New Corporation for Journal Entries
Business Combination December 31, 2005
(Statutory
Consolidation) Investment in Lamson Corporation and Donald Company
Common Stock (74,000 X $60) 4,440,000
Common Stock, no par 4,400,000

To record consolidation of Lamson Corporation and Donald Company
as a purchase.

Investment in Lamson Corporation and Donald Company

Common Stock 110,000
Common Stock, no par 90,000
Cash 200,000

To record payment of costs incurred in consolidation of Lamson
Corporation and Donald Company. Accounting, legal, and finder’s
fees in connection with the consolidation are recorded as
investment cost; other out-of-pocket costs are recorded as a
reduction in the proceeds received from the issuance of common

stock.

Current Assets ($600,000 + $500,000) 1,100,000

Plant Assets ($1,800,000 + $1,400,000) 3,200,000

Other Assets ($400,000 + $400,000) 800,000

Goodwill 850,000
Current Liabilities ($400,000 + $300,000) 700,000
Long-Term Debt ($500,000 + $200,000) 700,000
Investment in Lamson Corporation and Donald Company

Common Stock ($4,440,000 + $110,000) 4,550,000

To allocate total cost of investment to identifiable assets and
liabilities, at carrying amount for combinor Lamson Corporation’s
net assets and at current fair value for combinee Donald
Company’s net assets. (Income tax effects are disregarded.)
Amount of goodwill is computed as follows:

Total cost of investment

($4,440,000 + $110,000) $4,550,000
Less: Carrying amount of Lamson’s identifiable

net assets (1,900,000)
Current fair value of Donald’s identifiable

net assets (1,800,000)

Amount of goodwill $ 850,000

Note in the foregoing journal entry that because of the combinor’s net assets’ being recog-
nized at carrying amount and because of the $110,000 direct out-of-pocket costs of the
business combination, the amount of goodwill is $850,000, rather than $240,000 ($180,000 +
$60,000 = $240,000), the amount assigned by the negotiating directors to goodwill in the
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Journal Entry for
Contingent
Consideration
Involving Subsequent
Sales and Earnings

Journal Entry for
Business Combination
(Statutory Merger)

determination of the number of shares of common stock to be issued in the combination
(see page 176).

Subsequent Issuance of Contingent Consideration

As indicated on page 169, contingent consideration that is determinable on the date of a
business combination is included in the measurement of cost of the combinee. Any other
contingent consideration is recorded when the contingency is resolved and the additional
consideration becomes issuable or is issued.

Returning to the Norton Company illustration on page 170, assume that by December 31,
2005, the end of the first year following Norton’s acquisition of the net assets of Robinson
Company, another 300 units of the slow-moving product had been sold, and Norton’s Robb
Division had pretax financial income of $580,000 (exclusive of income from the slow-
moving product). On December 31, 2005, Norton prepares the following journal entry to
record the resolution of contingent consideration:

Goodwill 50,000
Payable to Robinson Company 50,000

To record payable contingent consideration applicable to January 2, 2005,
business combination as follows:

Sales of slow-moving product (300 X $100) $30,000
Pretax income of Robb Division

[($580,000 — $500,000) X 0.25] 20,000
Total payable $50,000

Some business combinations involve contingent consideration based on subsequent
market prices of debt or equity securities issued to effect the combination. Unless the sub-
sequent market price equals at least a minimum amount on a subsequent date or dates, ad-
ditional securities, cash, or other assets must be issued by the combinor to compensate for
the deficiency.

For example, assume the following journal entry for the statutory merger of Soltero Cor-
poration and Mero Company on January 2, 2005:

Investment in Mero Company Common Stock (120,000 X $12) 1,440,000
Common Stock, $5 stated value (120,000 X $5) 600,000
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Stated Value 840,000

To record merger with Mero Company as a purchase.

Assume that terms of the Soltero—Mero business combination required Soltero to issue ad-
ditional shares of its common stock to the former stockholders of Mero if the market price
of Soltero’s common stock was less than $12 a share on December 31, 2005. If the market
price of Soltero’s common stock was $10 on that date, Soltero prepares the following jour-
nal entry on that date:
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Paid-in Capital in Excess of Stated Value (24,000 X $5) 120,000
Common Stock to Be Issued for Contingent Consideration 120,000

To record additional shares of common stock to be issued under
terms of Jan. 2, 2005, merger with Mero Company, as follows:

Required value of common stock issued in merger

(120,000 % $12) $1,440,000
Less: Market value of common stock, Dec. 31, 2005

(120,000 X $10) 1,200,000
Market value of additional common stock to be issued $ 240,000
Number of additional shares of common stock to be

issued ($240,000 + $10) 24,000

The foregoing journal entry is in accord with the following provisions of FASB Statement
No. 141, “Business Combinations”:

The issuance of additional securities or distribution of other consideration upon resolution of
a contingency based on security prices shall not affect the cost of the [combinee], regardless
of whether the amount specified is a security price to be maintained or a higher security price
to be achieved. When the contingency is resolved and additional consideration is distrib-
utable, the [combinor] shall record the current fair value of the additional consideration is-
sued or issuable. However, the amount previously recorded for securities issued at the date of
[the business combination] shall be simultaneously reduced to the lower current value of
those securities. Reducing the value of debt securities previously issued to their later fair
value results in recording a discount on debt securities. The discount should be amortized
from the date the additional securities are issued.'

IFRS3, “Business Combinations”

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) formerly required purchase-type
accounting for all business combinations except those deemed a uniting of interests, de-
fined as a combination in which the stockholders of the constituent companies combine
into one entity the whole of the net assets and operations of those companies to achieve a
continuing mutual sharing of the risks and benefits of the combined enterprise.

However, in 2004 the IASB mandated, in International Financial Reporting Standard 3,
“Business Combinations,” purchase-type accounting for all business combinations, and pe-
riodic testing of goodwill for impairment.

Accounting for Acquired Intangible Assets Subsequent to a
Business Combination

In FASB Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Financial
Accounting Standards Board provided that intangible assets with finite useful lives were to
be amortized over those estimated useful lives. In contrast, goodwill and other intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives were not to be amortized but were to be tested for
impairment at least annually.'” The FASB also provided detailed procedures for impair-
ment tests.!® Those procedures typically are described and illustrated in intermediate ac-
counting textbooks.

16 FASB Statement No. 141, par. 30.
7 FASB Statement No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” pars. 11, 16, 18.
'8 |bid. pars. 17, 19-25.
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Financial Statements Following a Business Combination

The balance sheet for a combined enterprise issued as of the date of a business combina-
tion accomplished through a statutory merger, statutory consolidation, or acquisition of as-
sets includes all the assets and liabilities of the constituent companies. (The consolidated
balance sheet issued immediately following a combination that results in a parent-
subsidiary relationship is described in Chapter 6.) In a balance sheet following a business
combination, assets and liabilities of the combinor are at carrying amount, assets acquired
from the combinee are at current fair value (adjusted for any bargain-purchase excess as
illustrated on page 175), and retained earnings is that of the combinor only. The income
statement of the combined enterprise for the accounting period in which a business combi-
nation occurred includes the operating results of the combinee after the date of the com-
bination only.

Disclosure of Business Combinations in a Note to Financial Statements

Because of the complex nature of business combinations and their effects on the financial
position and operating results of the combined enterprise, extensive disclosure is required
for the periods in which they occur.

Following are the extensive disclosure requirements for business combinations estab-
lished by the FASB: 1

The notes to the financial statements of a combined entity shall disclose the following
information in the period in which a material business combination is completed:

1. The name and a brief description of the acquired entity and the percentage of voting
equity interests acquired

2. The primary reasons for the acquisition, including a description of the factors that con-
tributed to a purchase price that results in recognition of goodwill

3. The period for which the results of operations of the acquired entity are included in the
income statement of the combined entity

4. The cost of the acquired entity and, if applicable, the number of shares of equity inter-
ests (such as common shares, preferred shares, or partnership interests) issued or is-
suable, the value assigned to those interests, and the basis for determining that value

5. A condensed balance sheet disclosing the amount assigned to each major asset and lia-
bility caption of the acquired entity at the acquisition date

6. Contingent payments, options, or commitments specified in the acquisition agree-
ment and the accounting treatment that will be followed should any such contingency
occur

7. The amount of purchased research and development assets acquired and written off in
the period . . . and the line item in the income statement in which the amounts written
off are aggregated

8. For any purchase price allocation that has not been finalized, that fact and the reasons
therefor. In subsequent periods, the nature and amount of any material adjustments made
to the initial allocation of the purchase price shall be disclosed.

The notes to the financial statements also shall disclose the following information in the
period in which a material business combination is completed if the amounts assigned to

9 bid., pars. 51-55.
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goodwill or to other intangible assets acquired are significant in relation to the total cost of
the acquired entity:

1. For intangible assets subject to amortization:
a. The total amount assigned and the amount assigned to any major intangible asset

class

b. The amount of any significant residual value, in total and by major intangible asset
class

c. The weighted-average amortization period, in total and by major intangible asset
class

2. For intangible assets not subject to amortization, the total amount assigned and the
amount assigned to any major intangible asset class
3. For goodwill:
a. The total amount of goodwill and the amount that is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes
b. The amount of goodwill by reportable segment (if the combined entity is required
to disclose segment information in accordance with FASB Statement No. 131, “Dis-
closures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” unless not
practicable)

The notes to the financial statements shall disclose the following information if a series
of individually immaterial business combinations completed during the period are material
in the aggregate:

1. The number of entities acquired and a brief description of those entities

2. The aggregate cost of the acquired entities, the number of equity interests (such as com-
mon shares, preferred shares, or partnership interests) issued or issuable, and the value
assigned to those interests

3. The aggregate amount of any contingent payments, options, or commitments and the
accounting treatment that will be followed should any such contingency occur (if poten-
tially significant in relation to the aggregate cost of the acquired entities)

4. Information regarding intangible assets and goodwill if the aggregate amount assigned to
those assets acquired is significant in relation to the aggregate cost of the acquired entities

If the combined entity is a public business enterprise, the notes to the financial
statements shall include the following supplemental information on a pro forma basis
for the period in which a material business combination occurs (or for the period in
which a series of individually immaterial business combinations occur that are material
in the aggregate):

1. Results of operations for the current period as though the business combination or com-
binations had been completed at the beginning of the period, unless the acquisition was
at or near the beginning of the period

2. Results of operations for the comparable prior period as though the business combina-
tion or combinations had been completed at the beginning of that period if comparative
financial statements are presented

At a minimum, the supplemental pro forma information shall display revenue, income
before extraordinary items and the cumulative effect of accounting changes, net income,
and earnings per share. In determining the pro forma amounts, income taxes, interest
expense, preferred share dividends, and depreciation and amortization of assets shall be
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adjusted to the accounting base recognized for each in recording the combination. Pro
forma information related to results of operations of periods prior to the combination shall
be limited to the results of operations for the immediately preceding period. Disclosure also
shall be made of the nature and amount of any material, nonrecurring items reported in the
pro forma results of operations.

APPRAISAL OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The accounting standards for business combinations described and illustrated in the pre-
ceding pages of this chapter may be criticized on grounds that they are not consistent with
the conceptual framework for financial accounting and reporting.

The principal criticisms of purchase accounting center on the recognition of good-
will. Many accountants take exception to the residual basis for valuing goodwill estab-
lished in FASB Statement No. 141. These critics contend that part of the amounts thus
assigned to goodwill probably apply to other identifiable intangible assets. Accordingly,
goodwill in a business combination should be valued directly by use of methods de-
scribed in intermediate accounting textbooks. Any remaining cost not directly allocated
to all identifiable tangible and intangible assets and to goodwill would be apportioned to
those assets based on the amounts assigned in the first valuation process or recognized
as a loss.

Other accountants question whether current fair values of the combinor’s net assets—
especially goodwill—should be disregarded in accounting for a business combination.
They maintain it is inconsistent to reflect current fair values for net assets of the combinee
only, in view of the significance of many combinations involving large constituent com-
panies.

The FASB has undertaken a reexamination of purchase accounting, despite the recency
of its issuance of FASB Statement No. 141, because of many questions that have been
posed regarding the accounting standards established in that pronouncement. As of the date
of this writing, the FASB had not issued a revised Standard.

SEC ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS DEALING WITH
WRONGFUL APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

AAER 38

AAER 38, “Securities and Exchange Commission v. Corda Diversified Technologies Inc.,
et al.” (September 10, 1984), reports a federal court’s entry of an injunction against a cor-
porate manufacturer and marketer of residential, commercial, and industrial hardware
and its CEO, CFO, and independent auditors. The SEC stated that the corporation, which
formerly had been a publicly owned “shell” with no operations, had wrongly been iden-
tified as the combinor in a business combination with a privately owned company. Be-
cause the former stockholders of the privately owned corporation controlled 75% of the
outstanding common stock of the “shell” following the business combination, the pri-
vately owned company was the combinor. Nonetheless, it was improperly accounted for
as the combinee, and its assets were carried at current fair values in the consolidated fi-
nancial statements. The result was that consolidated total assets, reported as $15,119,727,
were overstated by at least $9 million. In a related enforcement action, reported in AAER 39,
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“. .. In the Matter of Smith & Stephens Accountancy Corporation and James J. Smith”
(September 10, 1984), the SEC permanently prohibited the independent auditors of the
manufacturing corporation from appearing or practicing before the SEC, with the proviso
that, under specified conditions, the auditors could apply for reinstatement after two
years.

AAER 275

In AAER 275, . . . In the Matter of Charles C. Lehman, Jr.” (September 28, 1990), the
SEC reported the permanent disbarment of a CPA from appearing or practicing before it,
with the proviso that the CPA might, if he complied with specified conditions, apply for
reinstatement in 18 months. According to the SEC, the CPA, on behalf of the firm of
which he was managing partner, improperly expressed an unqualified audit opinion on the
financial statements of a combined enterprise following a merger in which the survivor
was improperly identified as the combinor. The merging company actually was the combi-
nor because following the business combination its former sole stockholder owned 82.8% of
the outstanding common stock of the survivor. The consequence of the misidentification
of the combinor was the overstatement of a principal asset of the combined enterprise by
12,045% ($1,342,600 compared with $11,055).

AAER 598

A significant part of AAER 598, “... In the Matter of Meris Laboratories, Inc.,
Stephen B. Kass, and John J. DiPitro” (September 26, 1994), deals with an independent
clinical laboratory’s improper accounting for direct out-of-pocket costs of business
combinations. According to the SEC, included in such costs, which were capitalized
as part of the total costs of the combinations, were payroll costs of employees who were
to be terminated following the combinations; write-offs of combinee accounts receiv-
able; erroneously paid sales commissions; various recurring internal costs of operations;
and payments under consulting contracts. The aggregate overstatement of income re-
sulting from the improper accounting was 80%. The SEC ordered the clinical labora-
tory, its CEO, and its CFO (a CPA) to cease and desist from violating the federal
securities laws.

AAERs 601, 606, and 607

The SEC undertook enforcement actions against the engagement partner and audit man-
ager of a CPA firm and the controller of the firm’s audit client as reported in the following
releases:

 AAER 601, “. . . In the Matter of Martin Halpern, CPA” (September 27, 1994).
* AAER 606, . . . In the Matter of Louis Fox, CPA” (September 28, 1994).
* AAER 607, . . . In the Matter of Jeffrey R. Pearlman, CPA” (September 28, 1994).

The SEC found that the engagement partner and manager of the CPA firm had failed to
comply with generally accepted auditing standards in the audit of financial statements
prepared by the controller following a business combination in which the combinor was
improperly identified as the combinee. The result was a nearly $18,000,000 overstate-
ment of the combinor’s patents in the financial statements of the combined enterprise.
The audit manager was permanently barred from practicing before the SEC, and the en-
gagement partner and company controller were similarly barred, but for a period of
three years.
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Review 1. Define business combination.
Questions 2. Differentiate between a statutory merger and a statutory consolidation.
3. Identify two methods that may be used, individually or jointly, to determine an appro-
priate price to pay for a combinee in a business combination.
4. How is the combinor in a business combination determined?
S. State how each of the following out-of-pocket costs of a merger business combination
is accounted for by the combinor:
a. Printing costs for proxy statement mailed to combinor’s stockholders in advance of
special meeting to ratify terms of the merger.
b. Legal fees for negotiating the merger.
c. CPA firm’s fees for auditing financial statements in SEC registration statement cov-
ering shares of common stock issued in the merger.
d. Printing costs for common stock certificates issued in the merger.
e. Legal fees for SEC registration statement covering shares of common stock issued
in the merger.
/- CPA firm’s fees for advice on income tax aspects of the merger.
6. Goodwill often is recognized in business combinations. Explain the meaning of good-
will and negative goodwill.

7. Define contingent consideration in a business combination.
8. How is the total cost of a combinee allocated in a business combination?
9. Define the term preacquisition contingencies.

10. What combinee intangible assets other than goodwill are to be given accounting recog-
nition in a business combination?

Exercises
(Exercise 5.1)  Select the best answer for each of the following multiple-choice questions:

1. Is one or more of the constituent companies always liquidated in a business combination
carried out by means of:

A Statutory An Acquisition of

A Statutory Merger? Consolidation? Common Stock?
a. Yes Yes Yes
b. Yes No Yes
c. Yes Yes No
d. No Yes Yes

2. The cost of a combinee in a business combination includes all the following except:
a. Legal fees and finder’s fee.
b. Cost of registering and issuing debt securities issued to effect the combination.
c. Amount of consideration.
d. Contingent consideration that is determinable.
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3. A target company’s defense against an unfriendly takeover that involves the disposal of
one or more profitable business segments of the target is termed:

a. Pac-man defense b. Scorched earth ¢. Shark repellent d. Poison pill
4. Are the combinees always liquidated in business combinations accomplished by a(n):

Statutory Statutory Acquisition of Acquisition
Merger? Consolidation? Common Stock? of Assets?
a. Yes Yes Yes No
b. Yes Yes No Yes
c. Yes Yes No No
d. Yes No No Yes

5. In a “bargain purchase” business combination, the excess of the current fair value of the
combinee’s identifiable net assets over the cost to the combinor is:

a. Credited to the combinor’s Negative Goodwill ledger account.
b. Offset against the balance of the combinor’s Investment in Combinee Company
ledger account.
c¢. Credited to the combinor’s Additional Paid-in Capital ledger account.
d. Accounted for in some other manner.
6. The term survivor is associated with a business combination accomplished through:
a. A statutory merger.
b. A statutory consolidation.
¢. An acquisition of common stock.
d. An acquisition of assets.

7. Does the date-of-combination cost of the combinee in a business combination

include:
Determinable Contingent Nondeterminable
Consideration? Contingent Consideration?
a. Yes Yes
b. Yes No
c. No Yes
d. No No

8. In the balance sheet of a combined enterprise on the date of a business combination, un-
allocated negative goodwill is displayed:
a. In stockholders’ equity.
b. In a note to financial statements.
c. As an offset to total assets.
d. As a deferred credit.
e. In some other manner.

(Exercise 5.2) The balance sheet of Mel Company on January 31, 2005, showed current assets, $100,000;
other assets, $800,000; current liabilities, $80,000; long-term debt, $240,000; common
stock (10,000 shares, $10 par), $100,000; and retained earnings, $480,000. On that date,

CHECK FIGURE Mel merged with Sal Corporation in a business combination in which Sal issued 35,000
Debit goodwill, shares of its $1 par (current fair value $20 a share) common stock to stockholders of Mel
$90,000. in exchange for all their outstanding common stock. The current fair values of Mel’s
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liabilities were equal to their carrying amounts; the current fair values of Mel’s current assets
and other assets (none intangible) were $120,000 and $850,000, respectively, on January 31,
2005. Also on that date, Sal paid direct out-of-pocket costs of the business combination,
$40,000, and costs of registering and issuing its common stock, $70,000.

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for Sal Corporation to record its merger with
Mel Company on January 31, 2005. (Disregard income taxes.)

(Exercise 5.3) The condensed balance sheet of Geo Company on March 31, 2005, is shown below:

GEO COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
March 31, 2005

Assets
CHECK FIGURE Cash $ 20,000
Amount of goodwill, Other current assets 140,000
$10,000. Plant assets (net) 740,000
Total assets $900,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 80,000
Long-term debt 200,000
Common stock, $2 par 180,000
Additional paid-in capital 120,000
Retained earnings 320,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $900,000

On March 31, 2005, Master Corporation paid $700,000 cash for all the net assets of Geo
(except cash) in a business combination. The carrying amounts of Geo’s other current as-
sets and current liabilities were the same as their current fair values. However, current fair
values of Geo’s plant assets and long-term debt were $920,000 and $190,000, respectively.
Also on March 31, Master paid the following direct out-of-pocket costs for the business
combination with Geo:

Legal fees $ 10,000
Finder’s fee 70,000
CPA firm’s fee for audit of Geo Company’s March 31, 2005, financial
statements 20,000
Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $100,000

Prepare a working paper to compute the amount of goodwill or bargain-purchase excess
in the business combination of Master Corporation and Geo Company on March 31, 2005.
(Disregard income taxes.)

(Exercise 5.4) The balance sheet of Combinee Company on January 31, 2005, was as follows:




CHECK FIGURE
Debit goodwill,
$85,257.

(Exercise 5.5)
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COMBINEE COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
January 31, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current assets $ 300,000 Current liabilities $ 200,000
Plant assets 600,000 Long-term debt 300,000
Other assets 100,000 Common stock, no
par or stated value 100,000
Retained earnings 400,000
Total liabilities and
Total assets $1,000,000 stockholders’ equity $1,000,000

On January 31, 2005, Combinor Company issued $700,000 face amount of 6%, 20-year
bonds due January 31, 2025, with a present value of $625,257 at a 7% yield, to Combinee
Company for its net assets. On January 31, 2005, the current fair values of Combinee’s li-
abilities equaled their carrying amounts; however, current fair values of Combinee’s assets
were as follows:

Current assets $320,000
Plant assets 680,000
Other assets (none intangible) 120,000

Also on January 31, 2005, Combinor paid out-of-pocket costs of the combination as
follows:

Accounting, legal, and finder’s fees incurred for combination $ 80,000
Costs of registering 6% bonds with SEC 110,000
Total out-of-pocket costs $190,000

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) dated January 31, 2005, for Combinor Com-
pany to record its acquisition of the net assets of Combinee Company. (Disregard income
taxes.)

On March 31, 2005, Combinor Company issued 100,000 shares of its $1 par common stock
(current fair value $5 a share) for the net assets of Combinee Company. Also on that date,
Combinor paid the following out-of-pocket costs in connection with the combination:

Finder’s, accounting, and legal fees relating to business combination $ 70,000
Costs associated with SEC registration statement 50,000
Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $120,000

The balance sheet of Combinee on March 31, 2005, with related current fair values, was as
follows:
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CHECK FIGURE

COMBINEE COMPANY

g;(l;l(; Og(;) ol Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
NS March 31, 2005
Carrying Current
Amounts Fair Values
Current assets $200,000 $260,000
Plant assets (net) 400,000 480,000
Other assets (none intangible) 140,000 150,000
Total assets $740,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities $ 80,000 $ 80,000
Long-term debt 260,000 260,000
Common stock, no par or stated value 150,000
Retained earnings 250,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $740,000

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for Combinor Company on March 31, 2005,
to record the business combination with Combinee Company. (Disregard income taxes.)

(Exercise 5.6) On May 31, 2005, Byers Corporation acquired for $560,000 cash all the net assets except
cash of Sellers Company, and paid $60,000 cash to a law firm for legal services in connection
with the business combination. The balance sheet of Sellers on May 31, 2005, was as follows:

CHECK FIGURE

. . SELLERS COMPANY
Debit goodwill, . . I
$30.000. Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
> May 31, 2005
Assets Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Cash $ 40,000 Liabilities $ 620,000
Other current assets (net) 280,000 Common stock, $1 par 250,000
Plant assets (net) 760,000 Retained earnings 330,000
Intangible assets (net) 120,000 Total liabilities and

Total assets $1,200,000 stockholders’ equity $1,200,000

The present value of Sellers’s liabilities on May 31, 2005, was $620,000. The current fair
values of its noncash assets were as follows on May 31, 2005:

Other current assets $300,000
Plant assets 780,000
Intangible assets (all recognizable under generally accepted

accounting principles for business combinations) 130,000

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for Byers Corporation on May 31, 2005, to
record the acquisition of the net assets of Sellers Company except cash. (Disregard income
taxes.)

(Exercise 5.7) On September 26, 2005, Acquirer Corporation paid $160,000 cash to Disposer Company
for all its net assets except cash, and $10,000 for direct out-of-pocket costs of the business




CHECK FIGURE
Debit intangible assets,
$47,500.

(Exercise 5.8)

CHECK FIGURE
Credit paid-in capital,
$400,000.

(Exercise 5.9)
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combination. There was no contingent consideration. Current fair values of Disposer’s iden-
tifiable net assets on September 26, 2005, were as follows:

Current Fair

Values
Cash $ 10,000
Other current assets 120,000
Plant assets 150,000
Intangible assets (all recognizable in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles for business combinations) 50,000
Current liabilities 90,000
Long-term debt (face amount $60,000) 50,000

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for Acquirer Corporation on September 26,
2005, to record the business combination. (Disregard income taxes.)

On December 31, 2005, Combinor Company issued 100,000 shares of its $1 par common
stock (current fair value $5 a share) in exchange for all the outstanding common stock of
Combinee Company in a statutory merger. Also on that date, Combinor paid the following
out-of-pocket costs in connection with the combination:

Accounting, finder’s, and legal fees relating to business combination $ 70,000
Costs associated with SEC registration statement 50,000
Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $120,000

The balance sheet of Combinee on December 31, 2005, was as follows:

COMBINEE COMPANY

Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
December 31, 2005

Assets
Current assets $200,000
Plant assets (net) 400,000
Other assets (none intangible) 140,000
Total assets $740,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 80,000
Long-term debt 260,000
Common stock, no par or stated value 150,000
Retained earnings 250,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $740,000

The current fair values of Combinee’s identifiable net assets were equal to their carrying
amounts on December 31, 2005.

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for Combinor Company on December 31, 2005,
to record the business combination with Combinee Company. (Disregard income taxes.)

The balance sheet of Combinee Company on September 24, 2005, was as follows:
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CHECK FIGURE
Credit paid-in capital,
$2,900,000.

(Exercise 5.10)

CHECK FIGURE
Credit paid-in capital,
$600,000.

COMBINEE COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
September 24, 2005

Current assets $ 200,000 Current liabilities $ 100,000
Plant assets 700,000 Long-term debt 300,000
Other assets Common stock, no par or
(none intangible) 100,000 stated value 200,000
Retained earnings 400,000
Total liabilities and
Total assets $ 1,000,000 stockholders’ equity $1,000,000

On that date, Combinor Corporation issued 100,000 shares of its $1 par ($30 current fair
value) common stock for all the outstanding common stock of Combinee Company in a statu-
tory merger and paid the following out-of-pocket costs in connection with the combination:

Direct out-of-pocket costs of the combination $130,000
Costs associated with SEC registration statement 50,000
Total out-of-pocket costs $180,000

The current fair values of Combinee’s identifiable net assets were equal to their carrying
amounts; however, $400,000 of Combinor’s cost was allocable to identifiable tangible and
intangible assets of Combinee that resulted from Combinee’s research and development ac-
tivities. Those assets had no further use in research and development projects.

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) on September 24, 2005, for (a) Combinor Cor-
poration and (b) Combinee Company to record the statutory merger. (Disregard income taxes.)

The balance sheet of Nestor Company on February 28, 2005, with related current fair val-
ues of assets and liabilities, was as follows:

NESTOR COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
February 28, 2005
Carrying Current
Amounts Fair Values
Assets
Current assets $ 500,000 $ 520,000
Plant assets (net) 1,000,000 1,050,000
Other assets (none intangible) 300,000 310,000
Total assets $1,800,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities $ 300,000 $ 300,000
Long-term debt 400,000 480,000
Common stock, $1 par 500,000
Additional paid-in capital 200,000
Retained earnings 400,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,800,000




(Exercise 5.11)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit paid-in capital,
$40,000

(Exercise 5.12)
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On February 28, 2005, Bragg Corporation issued 600,000 shares of its $1 par common
stock (current fair value $2 a share) to Lucy Rowe, sole stockholder of Nestor Company,
for all 500,000 shares of Nestor common stock owned by her, in a merger business combi-
nation. Because the merger was negotiated privately and Rowe signed a “letter agreement”
not to dispose of the Bragg common stock she received, the Bragg stock was not subject to
SEC registration requirements. Thus, only $8,000 in legal fees was incurred to effect the
merger; these fees were paid in cash by Bragg on February 28, 2005.

Prepare journal entries for Bragg Corporation on February 28, 2005, to record the busi-
ness combination with Nestor Company. (Disregard income taxes.)

The condensed balance sheet of Maxim Company on December 31, 2005, prior to the busi-
ness combination with Sorrel Corporation, was as follows:

MAXIM COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
December 31, 2005

Assets
Current assets $ 400,000
Plant assets (net) 1,200,000
Other assets (none intangible) 200,000
Total assets $1,800,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 300,000
Common stock, $1 par 400,000
Additional paid-in capital 200,000
Retained earnings 900,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,800,000

On December 31, 2005, Sorrel issued 800,000 shares of its $1 par common stock (current
fair value $3 a share) for all the outstanding common stock of Maxim in a statutory merger.
Also on December 31, 2005, Sorrel paid the following out-of-pocket costs of the business
combination with Maxim:

Finder’s and legal fees relating to business combination $30,000
Costs associated with SEC registration statement 40,000
Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $70,000

On December 31, 2005, the current fair values of Maxim’s other assets and current liabili-
ties equaled their carrying amounts; current fair values of Maxim’s current assets and plant
assets were $500,000 and $1,500,000, respectively.

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for Sorrel Corporation on December 31,
2005, to record the business combination with Maxim Company. (Disregard income taxes.)

On August 31, 2005, Combinor Corporation entered into a statutory merger business com-
bination with Combinee Company, by issuing 100,000 shares of $1 par common stock hav-
ing a current fair value of $20 a share for all 50,000 outstanding shares of Combinee’s
no-par, no-stated-value common stock. Also, Combinor paid the following out-of-pocket
costs of the combination on August 31, 2005:
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CHECK FIGURE
Credit paid-in capital,
$1,900,000.

(Exercise 5.13)

CHECK FIGURE
b. Basic EPS, $2.64.

Finder’s and legal fees relating to business combination $100,000
Costs associated with SEC registration statement 150,000
Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $250,000

On August 31, 2005, Combinee’s balance sheet included the following:

Carrying Amounts

Current Fair Values

Current assets $ 500,000 $ 600,000
Plant assets (net) 2,600,000 2,800,000
Current liabilities 400,000 400,000
Long-term debt 1,000,000 1,000,000
Common stock 800,000
Retained earnings 900,000

Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for Combinor Corporation on August 31,

2005, to record the statutory merger with Combinee Company. (Disregard income taxes.)

On November 1, 2005, Sullivan Corporation issued 50,000 shares of its $10 par common
stock in exchange for all the common stock of Mears Company in a statutory merger. Out-
of-pocket costs of the business combination may be disregarded. Sullivan tentatively
recorded the shares of common stock issued at par and debited the Investment in Mears
Company Common Stock ledger account for $500,000. Mears Company was liquidated
and became Mears Division of Sullivan Corporation. The net income of Sullivan Corpora-
tion and Mears Company or Mears Division during 2005 was as follows:

Jan. 1 through Oct. 31 Nov. 1 through Dec. 31

Sullivan Corporation $420,000 $80,000*
Mears Company 350,000
Mears Division of Sullivan
Corporation 50,000
*Excludes any portion of Mears Division net income.
Condensed balance sheet information and other data for 2005 follow:
Mears
Division
sulli C ti Mears of Sullivan
uTlivan “orporation Company Corporation
Oct. 31 Dec. 31 Oct. 31 Dec. 31
Assets $3,500,000 $4,080,000 $4,000,000 $4,150,000
Liabilities 500,000 500,000 1,000,000 1,100,000
Common stock, $10 par 2,000,000 2,500,000 2,000,000
Retained earnings 1,000,000 1,080,000* 1,000,000
Market price per share
of common stock 100 130 20

*Excludes any portion of Mears Division net income.



(Exercise 5.14)

CHECK FIGURE
Number of additional
shares to be issued,

60,000.

Chapter 5 Business Combinations 193

Neither Sullivan nor Mears Company declared or paid dividends during 2005. In recent
months, Sullivan’s common stock had been trading at about 40 times earnings; prior to
November 1, 2005, Mears Company common stock had been trading at 10 times earnings.

Answer the following questions, assuming that the difference between current fair val-
ues and carrying amounts of Mears Company’s identifiable net assets applies to land.
Show supporting computations and disregard income taxes.

a. What is Sullivan’s net income for the year ended December 31, 2005?
b. What is Sullivan’s basic earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2005?
c. What is the amount of Sullivan’s retained earnings on December 31, 2005?

On December 31, 2005, Tucker Corporation acquired all the net assets of Loring Company
for 100,000 shares of Tucker’s $2 par common stock having a current fair value of $16 a
share. Terms of the business combination required Tucker to issue additional shares of
common stock to Loring on December 31, 2006, if the market price of the common stock
was less than $16 a share on that date. Sufficient shares would be issued to make the
aggregate market value of the total shares issued to Loring equal to $1,600,000 on Decem-
ber 31, 2006. The market price of Tucker’s common stock on that date was $10 a share.

Prepare a journal entry for Tucker Corporation on December 31, 2006, to record the ad-
ditional shares of common stock issuable to Loring Company on that date.

Cases

(Case 5.1)

(Case 5.2)

You have been engaged to audit the financial statements of Solamente Corporation for the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2005. You discover that on June 1, 2004, Mika Company had
been merged into Solamente in a business combination. You also find that both Solamente
and Mika (prior to its liquidation) incurred legal fees, accounting fees, and printing costs
for the business combination; both companies debited those costs to an intangible asset
ledger account entitled “Cost of Business Combination.” In its journal entry to record the
business combination with Mika, Solamente increased its Cost of Business Combination
account by an amount equal to the balance of Mika’s comparable ledger account.

Instructions
Evaluate Solamente’s accounting for the out-of-pocket costs of the business combination
with Mika.

You are the controller of Software Company, a distributor of computer software, which is
planning to acquire a portion of the net assets of a product line of Midge Company, a com-
petitor enterprise. The projected acquisition cost is expected to exceed substantially the cur-
rent fair value of the identifiable net assets to be acquired, which the competitor has agreed
to sell because of its substantial net losses of recent years. The board of directors of Soft-
ware asks if the excess acquisition cost may appropriately be recognized as goodwill.

Instructions
Prepare a memorandum to the board of directors in answer to the question, after consulting
the following:

Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 6, “Elements of Financial
Statements,” par. 25.

FASB Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations,” pars. 9, 43, F1 (Goodwill).
FASB Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” par. B67.
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(Case 5.3) On February 15, 2005, officers of Shane Corporation agreed with George Merlo, sole stock-
holder of Merlo Company and Merlo Industries, Inc., to acquire all his common stock own-
ership in the two companies as follows:

1. 10,000 shares of Shane’s $1 par common stock (current fair value $30 a share) would be
issued to George Merlo on February 28, 2005, for his 1,000 shares of $10 par common
stock of Merlo Company. In addition, 20,000 shares of Shane common stock would be
issued to George Merlo on February 28, 2010, if aggregate net income of Merlo Com-
pany for the five-year period then ended exceeded $300,000.

2. $250,000 cash would be paid to George Merlo on February 28, 2005, for his 10,000
shares of $1 par common stock of Merlo Industries, Inc. In addition $250,000 in cash
would be paid to George Merlo on February 28, 2010, if aggregate net income of Merlo
Industries, Inc., for the five-year period then ended exceeded $300,000.

Both Merlo Company and Merlo Industries, Inc., were to be merged into Shane on Feb-
ruary 28, 2005, and were to continue operations after that date as divisions of Shane.
George Merlo also agreed not to compete with Shane for the period March 1, 2005,
through February 28, 2010. Because the merger was negotiated privately and George Merlo
signed a “letter agreement” not to dispose of the Shane common stock he received, the
business combination was not subject to the jurisdiction of the SEC. Out-of-pocket costs of
the business combination may be disregarded.

Selected financial statement data of the three constituent companies as of February 28,
2005 (prior to the merger), were as follows:

Shane Merlo Merlo
Corporation Company Industries, Inc.
Total assets $25,000,000 $ 500,000 $ 600,000
Stockholders’ equity 10,000,000 200,000 300,000
Net sales 50,000,000 1,500,000 2,500,000
Basic earnings per share 5 30 3

The controller of Shane prepared the following condensed journal entries to record the
merger on February 28, 2005:

Assets other than goodwill 600,000

Goodwill 10,000
Liabilities 300,000
Common Stock 10,000
Common Stock to Be Issued 20,000
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par 280,000

To record merger with Merlo Company, with identifiable assets and
liabilities recorded at current fair values and goodwill recognized.

Assets 650,000

Goodwill 150,000
Liabilities 300,000
Payable to George Merlo 250,000
Cash 250,000

To record merger with Merlo Industries, Inc., with assets and
liabilities of Merlo Industries, Inc., recorded at current fair
values and goodwill recognized.




(Case 5.4)
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Instructions
Do you concur with the controller’s journal entries? Explain.

Robert Frank, sole stockholder of Frank Electronics, Inc., a non-publicly owned corpora-
tion, has brought you the following balance sheets:

FRANK ELECTRONICS, INC.
Balance Sheet
March 31, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Stockholder’s Equity
Current assets $150,000 Current liabilities $ 70,000
Plant assets (net) 300,000 Long-term debt 130,000
Intangible assets (net)* 50,000 Common stock, no par

or stated value,
10,000 shares authorized,

issued, and outstanding 100,000
Retained earnings 200,000
Total liabilities and
Total assets $500,000 stockholder’s equity $500,000

*All recognizable under generally accepted accounting principles for business combinations.

LESTER ENTERPRISES, INC.
Balance Sheet
March 31, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Stockholder’s Equity
Cash $ 50,000 Liabilities $ 0
Common stock subscriptions Common stock, no par or
receivable 5,000 stated value, 50,000
Investments in shares authorized:
marketable equity Issued and outstanding,
securities (available 10,000 shares 80,000
for sale) 45,000 Subscribed, 5,000 shares 5,000
Retained earnings 11,000
Accumulated other
comprehensive income 4,000

Total liabilities and
Total assets $100,000 stockholder’s equity $100,000

Robert Frank states that he wants your advice on the proper accounting for a proposed
business combination (statutory merger) to be consummated shortly after March 31, 2005,
in which Lester Enterprises would issue 12,000 shares of common stock to Robert Frank in
exchange for his 10,000 shares of Frank Electronics common stock. The Lester Enterprises
shares would be assigned a fair value of $40 per share; if Lester Enterprises were deemed
the combinor, the $180,000 excess [(12,000 X $40) — ($100,000 + $200,000) = $180,000]
would be allocated to Frank Electronics assets as follows:
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Current assets $ 40,000
Plant assets 90,000
Intangible assets 20,000
Goodwill 30,000

Total $180,000

In response to your inquiries, Robert Frank explained that Lester Enterprises, now solely
owned by George Lester, was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission be-
cause it had been a publicly owned corporation before George Lester had “bought out” the
other five shareholders. Later, George Lester sold all operating assets of Lester Enterprises
to an unrelated publicly owned corporation in exchange for equity securities of that corpo-
ration (Lester Enterprises’ marketable equity securities investment). Robert Frank also
stated that George Lester had subscribed to 5,000 shares of Lester Enterprises common
stock on March 31, 2005, and that the subscription price of $5,000 was payable on June 30,
2005.

Instructions
Would Lester Enterprises, Inc., be the combinor in the merger with Frank Electronics, Inc.?
Explain.

(Case 5.5) Paragraph B121 of FASB Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations,” reads in part as

follows:
Based on its analysis, the [Financial Accounting Standards] Board concluded that core good-
will meets the assets definition in [Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 6,
“Elements of Financial Statements™] . . .

Instructions

After reading paragraphs B101 through B120 of Statement No. 141, do you agree with the

FASB'’s conclusion? Explain.

Problems

(Problem 5.1)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit plant assets,
$846,400.

On January 31, 2005, La Salle Corporation acquired for $540,000 cash all the net assets ex-
cept cash of De Soto Company and paid $60,000 cash to a law firm for legal services in
connection with the business combination. The balance sheet of De Soto Company on Jan-
uary 31, 2005, prior to the business combination, was as follows:

DE SOTO COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
January 31, 2005

Assets Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Cash $ 40,000 Liabilities $ 620,000
Other current assets (net) 280,000 Common stock, no par or
Plant assets (net) 760,000 stated value 250,000
Intangible assets (net) 120,000 Retained earnings 330,000

Total liabilities and
Total assets $1,200,000 stockholders’ equity $1,200,000




(Problem 5.2)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit goodwill,
$88,120.

(Problem 5.3)
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The current fair value of De Soto’s liabilities on January 31, 2005, was $620,000. The cur-
rent fair values of its noncash assets were as follows on January 31, 2005:

Other current assets $300,000
Plant assets 874,000
Intangible assets (All recognizable under generally accepted

accounting principles for business combinations.) 76,000

Instructions

Prepare journal entries for La Salle Corporation on January 31, 2005, to record the acqui-
sition of the net assets of De Soto Company except cash. Show computations in the expla-
nations for the journal entries where appropriate. (Disregard income taxes.)

The balance sheet of Cooper Company on August 31, 2005, with related current fair value
data, was as follows:

COOPER COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
August 31, 2005

Carrying Current
Amounts Fair Values
Assets
Current assets $180,000 $ 220,000
Plant assets (net) 640,000 700,000
Intangible assets (net) (All recognizable under
generally accepted accounting principles for
business combinations.) 80,000 90,000
Total assets $900,000 $1,010,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities $ 80,000 $ 80,000
Long-term debt 200,000 190,000
Total liabilities $280,000 $ 270,000
Common stock, no par or stated value $400,000 -
Retained earnings 220,000
Total stockholders’ equity $620,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $900,000

On August 31, 2005, Lionel Corporation issued $1 million face amount of 10-year, 10%
bonds (interest payable each February 28 and August 31), to yield 14%, for all the net as-
sets of Cooper. Bond issue costs paid by Lionel on August 31, 2002, totaled $60,000, and
the accounting and legal fees to effect the business combination, paid on August 31, 2005,
were $40,000.

Instructions

Prepare journal entries on August 31, 2005, to record Lionel Corporation’s acquisition of
the net assets of Cooper Company. Show the computation of goodwill in the explanation
of the relevant journal entry. (Disregard income taxes.)

The journal entries for the business combination of Wabash Corporation and Indiana Com-
pany on December 31, 2005, were as follows:
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WABASH CORPORATION
Journal Entries
December 31, 2005

Investment in Indiana Company Common Stock 10,000,000
12% Bonds Payable 10,000,000
To record merger with Indiana Company.

CHECK FIGURE Investment in Indiana Company Common Stock 150,000
Debit plant assets Bond Issue Costs 50,000
$9,800,000. Cash 200,000

To record payment of costs incurred in merger with
Indiana Company.

Current Assets ($3,140,000 + $560,000) 3,700,000

Plant Assets ($9,070,000 + $330,000) 9,400,000

Goodwill 400,000
Current Liabilities 3,350,000
Investment in Indiana Company Common Stock 10,150,000

To allocate total cost of Indiana Company investment to
identifiable assets and liabilities, with the remainder to
goodwill. (Income tax effects are disregarded.) Amount
of goodwill is computed as follows:
Total cost of investment
($10,000,000 — $150,000) $10,150,000
Less: Carrying amount of
identifiable net assets
[($3,140,000 +
$9,070,000) —
$3,350,000] $8,860,000
Excess of current fair
values of identifiable
net assets over
carrying amounts

($560,000 +
$330,000) 890,000 9,750,000
Amount of goodwill $ 400,000

Additional Information
1. The stockholders’ equity section of Indiana Company’s balance sheet on December 31,
2005 (prior to the merger), included the following:

Common stock, $1 par $5,000,000
Retained earnings 3,860,000
Total stockholders’ equity $8,860,000

2. There was no contingent consideration in connection with the business combination.

Instructions
Prepare journal entries (omit explanations) for Wabash Corporation for the business com-
bination on December 31, 2005, under the assumptions that, instead of issuing bonds,




(Problem 5.4)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit goodwill,
$340,000.

(Problem 5.5)
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Wabash had issued 1 million shares of its no-par, no-stated-value common stock with a cur-
rent fair value of $10 a share to effect the combination, that the bond issue costs were costs
of issuing common stock, that the current fair value of the plant assets was $9,900,000, and
that all other facts remained the same.

The balance sheet of Combinee Company on October 31, 2005, was as follows:

COMBINEE COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)

October 31, 2005
Assets
Cash $ 60,000
Other current assets 420,000
Plant assets (net) 920,000
Total assets $1,400,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 180,000
Long-term debt 250,000
Common stock, $5 par 200,000
Additional paid-in capital 320,000
Retained earnings 450,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,400,000

Combinor Corporation’s board of directors established the following current fair values
for Combinee’s identifiable net assets other than cash:

Other current assets $ 500,000
Plant assets (net) 1,000,000
Current liabilities 180,000
Long-term debt 240,000

Accordingly, on October 31, 2005, Combinor issued 100,000 shares of its $10 par (cur-
rent fair value $13) common stock for all the net assets of Combinee in a business combi-
nation. Also on October 31, 2005, Combinor paid the following out-of-pocket costs in
connection with the combination:

Finder's fee, accounting fees, and legal fees to effect combination $180,000
Costs associated with SEC registration statement 120,000
Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $300,000

Instructions
Prepare journal entries for Combinor Corporation on October 31, 2005, to record the busi-
ness combination with Combinee Company. (Disregard income taxes.)

Condensed balance sheet data of Conner Company and Capsol Company on July 31, 2005,
were as follows:
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CHECK FIGURE

. . Conner Capsol

gf; (;t og(;)(;), Sl Company Company
Total assets $700,000 $670,000

Total liabilities $300,000 $300,000

Common stock, $25 par 200,000 250,000

Additional paid-in capital 80,000 130,000

Retained earnings (deficit) 120,000 (10,000)

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $700,000 $670,000

On July 31, 2005, Conner and Capsol entered into a statutory consolidation. The new
company, Consol Corporation, issued 45,000 shares of $10 par common stock for all the
outstanding common stock of Conner and 30,000 shares for all the outstanding common
stock of Capsol. Out-of-pocket costs of the business combination may be disregarded.

Instructions

Prepare journal entries for Consol Corporation on July 31, 2005, to record the business
combination. Assume that Capsol is the combinor; that current fair values of identifiable as-
sets are $800,000 for Conner and $700,000 for Capsol; that each company’s liabilities are
fairly stated at $300,000; and that the current fair value of Consol’s common stock is $14 a
share. (Disregard income taxes.)

(Problem 5.6) The condensed balance sheets of Silva Corporation, the combinor, prior to and subsequent
to its March 1, 2005, merger with Marvel Company, are as follows:

(] S [AIEELLE SILVA CORPORATION

Credlt. additional paid- Balance Sheets (prior to and subsequent to business combination)
in capital, net, March 1, 2005
$550,000.
Prior to Subsequent to
Business Business
Combination Combination
Assets
Current assets $ 500,000 $ 850,000
Plant assets (net) 1,000,000 1,800,000
Total assets $1,500,000 $2,650,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 350,000 $ 600,000
Long-term debt 100,000 150,000
Common stock, $1 par 400,000 700,000
Additional paid-in capital 310,000 860,000
Retained earnings 340,000 340,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,500,000 $2,650,000

Prior to the business combination, Marvel had, at both carrying amount and current fair
value, total assets of $1,200,000 and total liabilities of $300,000. Out-of-pocket costs of the
business combination, $50,000, were paid by Silva on March 1, 2005; consideration for the
combination was common stock having a current fair value of $870,000.




(Problem 5.7)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit goodwill,
$50,870.

Chapter 5 Business Combinations 201

Instructions

Reconstruct the journal entries (omit explanations) that Silva Corporation prepared on
March 1, 2005, to record the business combination with Marvel Company. (Disregard in-

come taxes.)

On October 31, 2005, Solomon Corporation issued 20,000 shares of its $1 par (current fair
value $20) common stock for all the outstanding common stock of Midland Company in
a statutory merger. Out-of-pocket costs of the business combination paid by Solomon on

October 31, 2005, were as follows:

Direct costs of the business combination $20,870
Costs of registering and issuing common stock 31,130
Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $52,000
Midland’s balance sheet on October 31, 2005, follows:
MIDLAND COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
October 31, 2005
Assets
Inventories $140,000
Other current assets 80,000
Plant assets (net) 380,000
Total assets $600,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Payable to Solomon Corporation $ 75,000
Other liabilities 225,000
Common stock, $3 par 30,000
Additional paid-in capital 120,000
Retained earnings 150,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $600,000

Additional Information

1. The current fair values of Midland’s other current assets and all its liabilities equaled the

carrying amounts on October 31, 2005.

2. Current fair values of Midland’s inventories and plant assets were $170,000 and

$420,000, respectively, on October 31, 2005.

3. Solomon’s October 31, 2005, balance sheet included an asset entitled Receivable from

Midland Company in the amount of $75,000.

Instructions

Prepare Solomon Corporation’s journal entries on October 31, 2005, to record the business

combination with Midland Company. (Disregard income taxes.)
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(Problem 5.8)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit patent, $46,000.

(Problem 5.9)

CHECK FIGURE
Debit goodwill,
$4,355,000.

The balance sheet on March 31, 2005, and the related current fair value data for Edgar
Company were as follows:

EDGAR COMPANY
Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
March 31, 2005

Current
Carrying Fair
Amounts Values
Assets
Current assets $ 500,000 $ 575,000
Plant assets (net) 1,000,000 1,200,000
Patent (net) 100,000 50,000
Total assets $1,600,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities $ 300,000 $ 300,000
Long-term debt 400,000 450,000
Common stock, $10 par 100,000
Retained earnings 800,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,600,000

On April 1, 2005, Value Corporation issued 50,000 shares of its no-par, no-stated-value
common stock (current fair value $14 a share) and $225,000 cash for the net assets of
Edgar Company, in a business combination. Of the $125,000 out-of-pocket costs paid by
Value on April 1, 2005, $50,000 were accounting, legal, and finder’s fees related to the busi-
ness combination, and $75,000 were costs related to the issuance of common stock.

Instructions
Prepare journal entries for Value Corporation on April 1, 2005, to record the business com-
bination with Edgar Company. (Disregard income taxes.)

Molo Company merged into Stave Corporation in a business combination completed
April 30, 2005. Out-of-pocket costs paid by Stave on April 30, 2005, in connection with the
combination were as follows:

Finder’s, accounting, and legal fees relating to the business combination $15,000
Costs associated with SEC registration statement for securities issued to
complete the business combination 10,000
Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $25,000

The individual balance sheets of the constituent companies immediately prior to the merger
were as follows:



Chapter 5 Business Combinations 203

STAVE CORPORATION AND MOLO COMPANY
Balance Sheets (prior to business combination)
April 30, 2005

Stave Molo
Corporation Company
Assets
Current assets $ 4,350,000 $ 3,000,000
Plant assets (net) 18,500,000 11,300,000
Patents (net) 450,000 200,000
Deferred charges 150,000
Total assets $23,450,000 $14,500,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities $ 2,650,000 $ 2,100,000
Common stock, $10 par 12,000,000
Common stock, $5 par 3,750,000
Additional paid-in capital 4,200,000 3,200,000
Retained earnings 5,850,000 5,450,000
Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 100,000 shares (1,250,000)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $23,450,000 $14,500,000

Additional Information
1. The current fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Stave Corporation and
of Molo Company were as follows on April 30, 2005:

STAVE CORPORATION AND MOLO COMPANY
Current Fair Values of Identifiable Net Assets
April 30, 2005

Stave Molo
Corporation Company

Current assets $ 4,950,000 $ 3,400,000
Plant assets (net) 22,000,000 14,000,000
Patents 570,000 360,000
Deferred charges 150,000
Liabilities (2,650,000) (2,100,000)

Identifiable net assets $25,020,000 $15,660,000

2. There were no intercompany transactions prior to the business combination.

3. Before the business combination, Stave had 3,000,000 shares of common stock autho-
rized, 1,200,000 shares issued, and 1,100,000 shares outstanding. Molo had 750,000
shares of common stock authorized, issued, and outstanding.

4. Molo Company was dissolved and liquidated on completion of the merger.
Instructions

Prepare journal entries for Stave Corporation on April 30, 2005, to record the business combi-
nation with Molo Company under the following assumptions: Stave paid $3,100,000 cash
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and issued 10% bonds at face amount of $16,900,000 for all the outstanding common stock
of Molo. The current fair value of the bonds was equal to their face amount. (Disregard
bond issue costs and income taxes.)

(Problem 5.10) Coolidge Corporation agreed to pay $850,000 cash and issue 50,000 shares of its $10 par ($20
current fair value a share) common stock on September 30, 2005, to Hoover Company for all
the net assets of Hoover except cash. In addition, Coolidge agreed that if the market value of
its common stock was not $20 a share or more on September 30, 2006, a sufficient number
of additional shares of common stock would be issued to Hoover to make the aggregate mar-
ket value of its Coolidge common shareholdings equal to $1 million on that date.

The balance sheet of Hoover on September 30, 2005, with related current fair values of
assets and liabilities, is as follows:

CHECK FIGURE

. HOOVER COMPANY
a. Debit patent, . . .
$95.000. Balance Sheet (prior to business combination)
> September 30, 2005
Current
Carrying Fair
Amounts Values
Assets
Cash $ 100,000 $ 100,000
Trade accounts receivable (net) 300,000 300,000
Inventories 520,000 680,000
Short-term prepayments 20,000 20,000
10% investment in Truman Company common stock
(long-term, available for sale) 180,000 180,000
Land 500,000 650,000
Other plant assets (net) 1,000,000 1,250,000
Patent (net) 80,000 100,000
Total assets $2,700,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities $ 700,000 $ 700,000
Long-term debt 500,000 480,000
Common stock, $5 par 600,000
Additional paid-in capital 400,000
Retained earnings 500,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,700,000

Out-of-pocket costs of the business combination paid by Coolidge on September 30,
2005, were as follows:

Audit fees—SEC registration statement $ 30,000
Finder's fee 35,000
Legal fees—business combination 15,000
Legal fees—SEC registration statement 20,000
Printing costs—securities and SEC registration statement 25,000
SEC registration fee 350

Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $125,350




(Problem 5.11)

CHECK FIGURE
Basic earnings per
share, $3.00.
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Instructions
a. Prepare the September 30, 2005, journal entries for Coolidge Corporation to reflect the
foregoing transactions and events. (Disregard income taxes.)

b. Assume that on September 30, 2006, the market value of Coolidge Corporation’s com-
mon stock was $16 a share. Prepare a journal entry to record the issuance of additional
shares of Coolidge common stock to Hoover Company on that date and the payment of
cash in lieu of fractional shares, if any.

The board of directors of Solo Corporation is considering a merger with Mono Company.
The most recent financial statements and other financial data for the two companies, both
of which use the same accounting principles and practices, are shown below:

SOLO CORPORATION AND MONO COMPANY
Balance Sheets (prior to business combination)

October 31, 2005
Solo Mono
Corporation Company
Assets
Current assets $ 500,000 $ 200,000
Plant assets (net) 1,000,000 1,500,000
Other assets 300,000 100,000
Total assets $1,800,000 $1,800,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 400,000 $ 100,000
Long-term debt 500,000 1,300,000
Common stock, $10 par 600,000 100,000
Additional paid-in capital 100,000 100,000
Retained earnings 200,000 200,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,800,000 $1,800,000

SOLO CORPORATION AND MONO COMPANY
Statements of Income and Retained Earnings (prior to business combination)
For Year Ended October 31, 2005

Solo Mono

Corporation Company

Net sales $5,000,000 $1,000,000
Costs and expenses:

Cost of goods sold $3,500,000 $ 600,000

Operating expenses 1,000,000 200,000

Interest expense 200,000 50,000

Income taxes expense 120,000 60,000

Total costs and expenses $4,820,000 $ 910,000

Net income $ 180,000 $ 90,000

Retained earnings, beginning of year 20,000 110,000

Retained earnings, end of year $ 200,000 $ 200,000

Basic earnings per share $3.00 $9.00

Price-earnings ratio 10 5
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Solo’s directors estimated that the out-of-pocket costs of the merger would be as follows:

Finder's fee and legal fees for the merger $ 5,000
Costs associated with SEC registration statement 7,000
Total out-of-pocket costs of merger $12,000

The fair values of Mono’s liabilities on October 31, 2005, were equal to their carrying
amounts. Current fair values of Mono’s assets on that date were as follows:

Current assets (difference from balance sheet amount of $200,000

attributable to inventories carried at first-in, first-out cost that were

sold during the year ended October 31, 2006) $ 230,000
Plant assets (difference from balance sheet amount of $1,500,000

attributable to land—$60,000 and to depreciable assets with a

five-year remaining economic life—$40,000) 1,600,000
Other assets (difference from balance sheet amount of $100,000
attributable to leasehold with a remaining term of four years) 120,000

Solo’s board of directors is considering the following plan for effecting the merger, as
follows: Issue 15,000 shares of common stock with a current fair value of $20 a share,
$100,000 cash, and a 15%, three-year note for $200,000 for all the outstanding common
stock of Mono. The present value of the note would be equal to its face amount.

Under the plan, Mono would be liquidated but would continue operations as a division
of Solo.

Instructions

To assist Solo Corporation’s board of directors in their evaluation of the plan, prepare a

working paper to compute or prepare the following for the plan as though the merger had

been effected on October 31, 2005 (disregard income taxes):

a. Net income and basic earnings per share (rounded to the nearest cent) of Solo for the
year ended October 31, 2005.

b. Net income and basic earnings per share (rounded to the nearest cent) of Solo for the
year ending October 31, 2006, assuming the same sales and cost patterns for the year
ended October 31, 2005. Goodwill, if any, is not expected to become impaired.

c. Pro forma balance sheet of Solo following the business combination on October 31,
2005.




Chapter SIx

Consolidated Financial
Statements: On Date of
Business Combination

Scope of Chapter

Topics dealt with in Chapter 6 include the nature of consolidated financial statements; the
concept of control versus ownership as the basis for such financial statements; the problem
of variable interest entities; the preparation of consolidated financial statements involving
both wholly owned and partially owned subsidiaries; the nature of minority (noncontrol-
ling) interest and its valuation; and “push-down” accounting for separate financial state-
ments of subsidiaries.

PARENT COMPANY-SUBSIDIARY RELATIONSHIPS

Chapter 5 includes the terms investor and investee in the discussion of business combina-
tions involving a combinor’s acquisition of common stock of a combinee corporation. If the
investor acquires a controlling interest in the investee, a parent—subsidiary relationship is
established. The investee becomes a subsidiary of the acquiring parent company (investor)
but remains a separate legal entity.

Strict adherence to the legal aspects of such a business combination would require the
issuance of separate financial statements for the parent company and the subsidiary on the
date of the combination, and also for all subsequent accounting periods of the affiliation.
However, such strict adherence to legal form disregards the substance of most parent—
subsidiary relationships: A parent company and its subsidiary are a single economic entity.
In recognition of this fact, consolidated financial statements are issued to report the finan-
cial position and operating results of a parent company and its subsidiaries as though they
comprised a single accounting entity.

Nature of Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated financial statements are similar to the combined financial statements
described in Chapter 4 for a home office and its branches. Assets, liabilities, revenue, and
expenses of the parent company and its subsidiaries are totaled; intercompany transactions
and balances are eliminated; and the final consolidated amounts are reported in the consol-
idated balance sheet, income statement, statement of stockholders’ equity, and statement of
cash flows.

207
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However, the separate legal entity status of the parent and subsidiary corporations
necessitates eliminations that generally are more complex than the combination elimi-
nations described and illustrated in Chapter 4 for a home office and its branches. Before
illustrating consolidation eliminations, it is appropriate to examine some basic principles
of consolidation.

Should All Subsidiaries Be Consolidated?

In the past, a wide range of consolidation practices existed among major corporations in the
United States. For example, the forty-second edition of Accounting Trends & Techniques
(published in 1988), the AICPA’s annual survey of accounting practices in the published
financial statements of 600 companies, reported the following:'

1. A total of 456 companies consolidated all significant subsidiaries, but 136 companies ex-
cluded some significant subsidiaries from the consolidated financial statements. (The re-
maining eight companies surveyed did not issue consolidated financial statements.)

2. The principal types of subsidiaries excluded from consolidation were foreign subsidiaries,
finance-related subsidiaries, and real estate subsidiaries. “Finance-related subsidiaries” in-
cluded finance companies, insurance companies, banks, and leasing companies.

Such wide variations in consolidation policy were undesirable and difficult to justify
from a theoretical point of view. The purpose of consolidated financial statements is to pre-
sent for a single accounting entity the combined resources, obligations, and operating
results of a family of related corporations; consequently, there is no reason for excluding
from consolidation any subsidiary that is controlled. The argument that finance-related sub-
sidiaries should not be consolidated with parent manufacturing or retailing enterprises
because of their unique features is difficult to justify, considering the wide variety of pro-
duction, marketing, and service enterprises that are consolidated in a conglomerate or
highly diversified family of corporations.

In FASB Statement No. 94, “Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subsidiaries,” issued
in 1987, the Financial Accounting Standards Board required the consolidation of nearly all
subsidiaries, effective for financial statements for fiscal years ending after December 15,
1988. Only subsidiaries not actually controlled (as described in the following section) were
exempted from consolidation.

The Meaning of Controlling Interest

Traditionally, an investor’s direct or indirect ownership of more than 50% of an investee’s
outstanding common stock has been required to evidence the controlling interest underlying
a parent—subsidiary relationship. However, even though such a common stock ownership ex-
ists, other circumstances may negate the parent company’s actual control of the subsidiary.
For example, a subsidiary that is in liquidation or reorganization in court-supervised bank-
ruptcy proceedings is not controlled by its parent company. Also, a foreign subsidiary in a
country having severe production, monetary, or income tax restrictions may be subject to the
authority of the foreign country rather than of the parent company. Further, if minority
shareholders of a subsidiary have the right effectively to participate in the financial and
operating activities of the subsidiary in the ordinary course of business, the subsidiary’s
financial statements should not be consolidated with those of the parent company.?

It is important to recognize that a parent company’s control of a subsidiary might be
achieved indirectly. For example, if Plymouth Corporation owns 85% of the outstanding
common stock of Selwyn Company and 45% of Talbot Company’s common stock, and Selwyn

' Accounting Trends & Techniques, 42nd ed. (New York: AICPA, 1988), p. 45.
2 Emerging Issues Task Force (of FASB) Issue 96-16, “Minority Shareholder Veto Rights.”
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also owns 45% of Talbot’s common stock, both Selwyn and Talbot are controlled by Plymouth,
because it effectively controls 90% of Talbot. This effective control consists of 45% owned di-
rectly and 45% indirectly. Additional examples of indirect control are in Chapter 10.

Criticism of Traditional Concept of Control

Many accountants have criticized the traditional definition of control described in the pre-
ceding section, which emphasizes legal form. These accountants maintain that an investor
owning less than 50% of an investee’s voting common stock in substance may control the
affiliate, especially if the remaining common stock is scattered among a large number of
stockholders who do not attend stockholder meetings or give proxies. Effective control of
an investee also is possible if the individuals comprising management of the investor cor-
poration own a substantial number of shares of common stock of the investee or success-
fully solicit proxies from the investee’s other stockholders.

Furthering the foregoing views, in Financial Reporting Release No. 25, the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) required companies subject to its jurisdiction to emphasize eco-
nomic substance over legal form in adopting a consolidation policy.> Subsequently, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a Discussion Memorandum, “An Analysis of Is-
sues Related to Consolidation Policy and Procedures,” which dealt at length with the question
of ownership (legal form) versus control (economic substance) as a basis for consolidation.*

FASB's Proposed Redefinition of Control

Following the issuance of the Discussion Memorandum described in the preceding section,
the FASB issued a Proposed Statement that would have defined control of an entity as power
over its assets—power to use or direct the use of the individual assets of another entity in es-
sentially the same ways as the controlling entity can use its own assets.’ In the face of strenu-
ous objections by financial statement preparers to the foregoing definition, in 1999 the FASB
issued a revised Proposed Statement that would define control as a parent company’s non-
shared decision-making ability that enables it to guide the ongoing activities of its subsidiary
and to use that power to increase the benefits that it derives and limit the losses that it suffers
from the activities of that subsidiary.® The Proposed Statement further stated that:

... in the absence of evidence that demonstrates otherwise, the existence of control of a

corporation shall be presumed if an entity (including its subsidiaries):

(a) Has a majority voting interest in the election of a corporation’s governing body or a right
to appoint a majority of the members of its governing body

(b) Has a large minority voting interest [for example, exceeding 56% of the votes typically
cast] in the election of a corporation’s governing body and no other party or organized
group of parties has a significant voting interest

(c) Has a unilateral ability to (1) obtain a majority voting interest in the election of a corpo-
ration’s governing body or (2) obtain a right to appoint a majority of the corporation’s
governing body through the present ownership of convertible securities or other rights
that are currently exercisable at the option of the holder and the expected benefit from
converting those securities or exercising that right exceeds its expected cost.”

3 Codification of Financial Reporting Policies, Securities and Exchange Commission (Washington, 1986),
Sec. 105.

4 FASB Discussion Memorandum, “. . . Consolidation Policy and Procedures” (Norwalk: FASB, 1991), pars.
35-48.

> Proposed Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, “Consolidated Financial Statements: Policies
and Procedures” (Norwalk: FASB, 1995), par. 10.

6 Proposed Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, “Consolidated Financial Statements: Purpose
and Policy” (Norwalk: FASB, 1999), par. 10.

7 Ibid., par. 18.
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By the latter proposal, the FASB planned to repeal the long-standing requirement of ma-
jority ownership of an investee’s outstanding common stock as a prerequisite for consoli-
dation. Objectively determined legal form was to be replaced by subjectively determined
economic substance as the basis for consolidated financial statements.

After nearly two years of extensive consideration of this proposal, the FASB reported that,
“after careful consideration, the Board determined that, at this time, there is not sufficient
Board member support to proceed with . . . a final Statement on consolidation policy . . .
Accordingly, ownership of more than 50% of an investee’s outstanding common stock gener-
ally remains the basis for consolidation of financial statements in most circumstances.

The Problem of Variable Interest Entities

The FASB’s failure to issue a final Statement based on its 1999 proposal, as described in the
foregoing section, left unresolved the question of when—if at all—to consolidate special
purpose entities. That term was used throughout the 1999 Exposure Draft,’ but it was not
clearly defined therein.! However, two researchers at Emory University developed the fol-
lowing definition:

[Special purpose entities] typically are defined as entities created for a limited purpose, with
a limited life and limited activities, and designed to benefit a single company. They may take
the legal form of a partnership, corporation, trust, or joint venture.'!

Special purpose entities came into prominence with the massive accounting fraud at Enron
Corp., a Houston-based energy supplier, which was bankrupt following the fraud.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable In-
terest Entities,” to provide standards for consolidation of entities in which the controlling
financial interest may be achieved through arrangements that do not involve voting inter-
ests.'? Because the term special purpose entity had been used without being clearly defined,
the FASB referred to entities subject to the requirements of the Interpretation as variable
interest entities."’

In Interpretation No. 46, the FASB defined variable interest entity as “an entity subject
to consolidation according to the provisions of this Interpretation.”'* Thus, one has to look
to paragraph 5 of the Interpretation for guidance as to the nature of a variable interest en-
tity; in that paragraph the FASB sets forth two alternative conditions requiring consolida-
tion of such an entity.'> Elsewhere in the Interpretation, the FASB gave this opinion:

An enterprise shall consolidate a variable interest entity if that enterprise has a [contractual,
ownership, or other pecuniary interest in the entity that changes with changes in the entity’s
net assets value] and that will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses if they occur,
receive a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns if they occur, or both.'®

The ink was hardly dry on Interpretation No. 46, when, in October 2003, the FASB is-
sued a Proposed Interpretation, and in December 2003 a Revised Interpretation to clarify

8 Status Report, FASB, April 13, 2001.
91999 Exposure Draft, pars. 110, 124, 141, 167b, 242.
10 |bid., par. 6.

" Al L. Hartgraves and George J. Benston,“The Evolving Accounting Standards for Special Purpose
Entities and Consolidations,” Accounting Horizons Vol.16, no. 3 (Sept. 2002), p. 246.

2 FASB Interpretation No. 46, " Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (Norwalk: FASB, 2003), par. 1.
3 Ibid., par. C4.

4 bid., par. 2a.

5 |bid., par. 5.

16 |bid., pars. 14, 2c.
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some of the provisions of “FIN 46.” No less than 15 of the 29 basic paragraphs of FIN 46
were modified, deleted, or superseded by the Proposed Interpretation.

In view of the complexity of the accounting standards for variable interest entities and
the fluid state of their provisions, such entities are not discussed further in this textbook.

CONSOLIDATION OF WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY
ON DATE OF BUSINESS COMBINATION

Combinor’s Out-of-
Pocket Costs of
Business Combination

There is no question of control of a wholly owned subsidiary. Thus, to illustrate consoli-
dated financial statements for a parent company and a wholly owned subsidiary, assume
that on December 31, 2005, Palm Corporation issued 10,000 shares of its $10 par com-
mon stock (current fair value $45 a share) to stockholders of Starr Company for all the
outstanding $5 par common stock of Starr. There was no contingent consideration. Out-
of-pocket costs of the business combination paid by Palm on December 31, 2005, con-
sisted of the following:

Finder's and legal fees relating to business combination $50,000
Costs associated with SEC registration Statement for Palm common stock 35,000
Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination $85,000

Assume also that Starr Company was to continue its corporate existence as a wholly
owned subsidiary of Palm Corporation. Both constituent companies had a December 31 fis-
cal year and used the same accounting principles and procedures; thus, no adjusting entries
were required for either company prior to the combination. The income tax rate for each
company was 40%.

Financial statements of Palm Corporation and Starr Company for the year ended
December 31, 2005, prior to consummation of the business combination, follow:

PALM CORPORATION AND STARR COMPANY

Separate Financial Statements (prior to business combination)
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Palm Starr
Corporation Company
Income Statements
Revenue:
Net sales $ 990,000 $600,000
Interest revenue 10,000
Total revenue $1,000,000 $600,000
Costs and expenses:
Cost of goods sold $ 635,000 $410,000
Operating expenses 158,333 73,333
Interest expense 50,000 30,000
Income taxes expense 62,667 34,667
Total costs and expenses $ 906,000 $548,000
Net income $ 94,000 $ 52,000

(continued)
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PALM CORPORATION AND STARR COMPANY

Separate Financial Statements (prior to business combination) (concluded)
For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Palm Starr
Corporation Company
Statements of Retained Earnings
Retained earnings, beginning of year $ 65,000 $100,000
Add: Net income 94,000 52,000
Subtotals $ 159,000 $152,000
Less: Dividends 25,000 20,000
Retained earnings, end of year $ 134,000 $132,000
Balance Sheets
Assets
Cash $100,000 $ 40,000
Inventories 150,000 110,000
Other current assets 110,000 70,000
Receivable from Starr Company 25,000
Plant assets (net) 450,000 300,000
Patent (net) 20,000
Total assets $835,000 $540,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Payables to Palm Corporation $ 25,000
Income taxes payable $ 26,000 10,000
Other liabilities 325,000 115,000
Common stock, $10 par 300,000
Common stock, $5 par 200,000
Additional paid-in capital 50,000 58,000
Retained earnings 134,000 132,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $835,000 $540,000

The December 31, 2005, current fair values of Starr Company’s identifiable assets and
liabilities were the same as their carrying amounts, except for the three assets listed

below:
Current Fair Values of Current
Selected Assets of Fair Values,
Combinee Dec. 31, 2005
Inventories $135,000
Plant assets (net) 365,000
Patent (net) 25,000

Because Starr was to continue as a separate corporation and current generally accepted
accounting principles do not sanction write-ups of assets of a going concern, Starr did not



Combinor’s Journal
Entries for Business
Combination
(acquisition of 100%
of subsidiary’s
outstanding common
stock)

Ledger Accounts of
Combinor Affected by
Business Combination

Chapter 6 Consolidated Financial Statements: On Date of Business Combination 213

prepare journal entries for the business combination. Palm Corporation recorded the com-
bination on December 31, 2005, with the following journal entries:

PALM CORPORATION (COMBINOR)
Journal Entries
December 31, 2005

Investment in Starr Company Common Stock (10,000 X $45)
Common Stock (10,000 x $10)
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par

To record issuance of 10,000 shares of common stock for all the
outstanding common stock of Starr Company in a business
combination.

450,000
100,000
350,000

Investment in Starr Company Common Stock
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par

Cash
To record payment of out-of-pocket costs of business combination with
Starr Company. Finder's and legal fees relating to the combination are
recorded as additional costs of the investment; costs associated with the
SEC registration statement are recorded as an offset to the previously
recorded proceeds from the issuance of common stock.

50,000
35,000
85,000

The first journal entry is similar to the entry illustrated in Chapter 5 (page 173) for a
statutory merger. An Investment in Common Stock ledger account is debited with the
current fair value of the combinor’s common stock issued to effect the business combi-
nation, and the paid-in capital accounts are credited in the usual manner for any com-
mon stock issuance. In the second journal entry, the direct out-of-pocket costs of the
business combination are debited to the Investment in Common Stock ledger account,
and the costs that are associated with the SEC registration statement, being costs of is-
suing the common stock, are applied to reduce the proceeds of the common stock
issuance.

Unlike the journal entries for a merger illustrated in Chapter 5, the foregoing journal en-
tries do not include any debits or credits to record individual assets and liabilities of Starr
Company in the accounting records of Palm Corporation. The reason is that Starr was not
liquidated as in a merger; it remains a separate legal entity.

After the foregoing journal entries have been posted, the affected ledger accounts of
Palm Corporation (the combinor) are as follows:

Cash
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Dec. 31 Balance forward 100,000 dr
31 Out-of-pocket costs of business
combination 85,000 15,000 dr

(continued)
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Investment in Starr Company Common Stock

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Dec. 31 Issuance of common stock in
business combination 450,000 450,000 dr
31 Direct out-of-pocket costs of
business combination 50,000 500,000 dr

Common Stock, $10 Par

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Dec. 31 Balance forward 300,000 cr
31 Issuance of common stock in
business combination 100,000 | 400,000 cr

Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Dec. 31 Balance forward 50,000 cr
31 Issuance of common stock in
business combination 350,000 | 400,000 cr
31 Costs of issuing common stock in
business combination 35,000 365,000 cr

Preparation of Consolidated Balance Sheet without a Working Paper

Accounting for the business combination of Palm Corporation and Starr Company requires
a fresh start for the consolidated entity. This reflects the theory that a business combination
that involves a parent company—subsidiary relationship is an acquisition of the combinee’s
net assets (assets less liabilities) by the combinor. The operating results of Palm and Starr
prior to the date of their business combination are those of two separate economic—as well
as legal—entities. Accordingly, a consolidated balance sheet is the only consolidated fi-
nancial statement issued by Palm on December 31, 2005, the date of the business combi-
nation of Palm and Starr.

The preparation of a consolidated balance sheet for a parent company and its wholly
owned subsidiary may be accomplished without the use of a supporting working paper.
The parent company’s investment account and the subsidiary’s stockholder’s equity ac-
counts do not appear in the consolidated balance sheet because they are essentially reci-
procal (intercompany) accounts. The parent company (combinor) assets and liabilities
(other than intercompany ones) are reflected at carrying amounts, and the subsidiary
(combinee) assets and liabilities (other than intercompany ones) are reflected at current
fair values, in the consolidated balance sheet. Goodwill is recognized to the extent the
cost of the parent’s investment in 100% of the subsidiary’s outstanding common stock ex-
ceeds the current fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets, both tangible and
intangible.

Applying the foregoing principles to the Palm Corporation and Starr Company
parent—subsidiary relationship, the following consolidated balance sheet is produced:
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PALM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

Assets
Current assets:
Cash ($15,000 + $40,000) $ 55,000
Inventories ($150,000 + $135,000) 285,000
Other ($110,000 + $70,000) 180,000
Total current assets $ 520,000
Plant assets (net) ($450,000 + $365,000) 815,000
Intangible assets:
Patent (net) ($0 + $25,000) $ 25,000
Goodwill 15,000 40,000
Total assets $1,375,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Income taxes payable ($26,000 + $10,000) $ 36,000
Other ($325,000 + $115,000) 440,000
Total liabilities $ 476,000
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $10 par $400,000
Additional paid-in capital 365,000
Retained earnings 134,000 899,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,375,000

The following are significant aspects of the consolidated balance sheet:

1. The first amounts in the computations of consolidated assets and liabilities (except
goodwill) are the parent company’s carrying amounts; the second amounts are the sub-

sidiary’s current fair values.

2. Intercompany accounts (parent’s investment, subsidiary’s stockholders’ equity, and in-
tercompany receivable/payable) are excluded from the consolidated balance sheet.

3. Goodwill in the consolidated balance sheet is the cost of the parent company’s invest-
ment ($500,000) less the current fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets
($485,000), or $15,000. The $485,000 current fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
net assets is computed as follows: $40,000 + $135,000 + $70,000 + $365,000 +

$25,000 — $25,000 — $10,000 — $115,000 = $485,000.

Working Paper for Consolidated Balance Sheet

The preparation of a consolidated balance sheet on the date of a business combination usually
requires the use of a working paper for consolidated balance sheet, even for a parent com-
pany and a wholly owned subsidiary. The format of the working paper, with the individual
balance sheet amounts included for both Palm Corporation and Starr Company, is shown

on page 216.

Developing the Elimination

As indicated on page 214, Palm Corporation’s Investment in Starr Company Common
Stock ledger account in the working paper for consolidated balance sheet is similar to a
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home office’s Investment in Branch account, as described in Chapter 4. However, Starr
Company is a separate corporation, not a branch; therefore, Starr has the three conven-
tional stockholders’ equity accounts rather than the single Home Office reciprocal ac-
count used by a branch. Accordingly, the elimination for the intercompany accounts of
Palm and Starr must decrease to zero the Investment in Starr Company Common Stock
account of Palm and the three stockholder’s equity accounts of Starr. Decreases in assets
are effected by credits, and decreases in stockholder’s equity accounts are effected by
debits; therefore, the elimination for Palm Corporation and subsidiary on December 31,

Format of Working 2005 (the date of the business combination), is begun as shown at the bottom of this page
Paper for Consolidated ~ (a journal entry format is used to facilitate review of the elimination):

Balance Sheet for

Wholly Owned

Subsidiary on Date of

Business Combination

PALM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Working Paper for Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

Eliminations
Palm Starr Increase
Corporation Company (Decrease) Consolidated
Assets
Cash 15,000 40,000
Inventories 150,000 110,000
Other current assets 110,000 70,000
Intercompany receivable (payable) 25,000 (25,000)
Investment in Starr Company
common stock 500,000

Plant assets (net) 450,000 300,000
Patent (net) 20,000
Goodwill

Total assets 1,250,000 515,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Income taxes payable 26,000 10,000
Other liabilities 325,000 115,000
Common stock, $10 par 400,000
Common stock, $5 par 200,000
Additional paid-in capital 365,000 58,000
Retained earnings 134,000 132,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 1,250,000 515,000
Elimination of Common Stock—Starr 200,000
Intercompany Additional Paid-in Capital—Starr 58,000
Accounts Retained Earnings—Starr 132,000

Investment in Starr Company Common Stock—Palm

500,000
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The footing of $390,000 of the debit items of the foregoing partial elimination repre-
sents the carrying amount of the net assets of Starr Company and is $110,000 less than the
credit item of $500,000, which represents the cost of Palm Corporation’s investment in
Starr. As indicated on page 212, part of the $110,000 difference is attributable to the excess
of current fair values over carrying amounts of certain identifiable tangible and intangible
assets of Starr. This excess is summarized as follows (the current fair values of all other
assets and liabilities are equal to their carrying amounts):

Excess of
Current Fair
Values over

Current Carrying Carrying

Fair Values Amounts Amounts

Inventories $135,000 $110,000 $25,000
Plant assets (net) 365,000 300,000 65,000
Patent (net) 25,000 20,000 5,000
Totals $525,000 $430,000 $95,000

Generally accepted accounting principles do not presently permit the write-up of a go-
ing concern’s assets to their current fair values. Thus, to conform to the requirements of
purchase accounting for business combinations, the foregoing excess of current fair values
over carrying amounts must be incorporated in the consolidated balance sheet of Palm Cor-
poration and subsidiary by means of the elimination. Increases in assets are recorded by
debits; thus, the elimination for Palm Corporation and subsidiary begun above is continued
as follows (in journal entry format):

Common Stock—Starr 200,000

Additional Paid-in Capital—Starr 58,000

Retained Earnings—Starr 132,000

Inventories—Starr ($135,000 — $110,000) 25,000

Plant Assets (net)—Starr ($365,000 — $300,000) 65,000

Patent (net)—Starr ($25,000 — $20,000) 5,000
Investment in Starr Company Common Stock—Palm 500,000

The revised footing of $485,000 of the debit items of the foregoing partial elimination
is equal to the current fair value of the identifiable tangible and intangible net assets of
Starr Company. Thus, the $15,000 difference ($500,000 — $485,000 = $15,000) between
the cost of Palm Corporation’s investment in Starr and the current fair value of Starr’s iden-
tifiable net assets represents goodwill of Starr, in accordance with purchase accounting the-
ory for business combinations, described in Chapter 5 (pages 170—-171). Consequently, the
December 31, 2005, elimination for Palm Corporation and subsidiary is completed with a
$15,000 debit to Goodwill—Starr.
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Completed Elimination and Working Paper for Consolidated Balance Sheet

The completed elimination for Palm Corporation and subsidiary (in journal entry format)
and the related working paper for consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

Completed Working PALM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Paper Elimination for Working Paper Elimination
Wholly Owned December 31, 2005
Purchased Subsidiary
on Date of Business (@) Common Stock—Starr 200,000
Combination Additional Paid-in Capital—Starr 58,000
Retained Earnings—Starr 132,000
Inventories—Starr ($135,000 — $110,000) 25,000
Plant Assets (net)—Starr ($365,000 — $300,000) 65,000
Patent (net)—Starr ($25,000 — $20,000) 5,000
Goodwill—Starr (500,000 — $485,000) 15,000
Investment in Starr Company Common Stock—Palm 500,000
To eliminate intercompany investment and equity accounts of subsidiary
Working Paper for on date of business combination; and to allocate excess of cost over
Consolidated Balance carrying amount of identifiable assgts acquired, with remainder to
Sheet for Wholly goodwill. (Income tax effects are disregarded.)
Owned Subsidiary on
Date of Business
Combination
PALM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Working Paper for Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005
Eliminations
Palm Starr Increase
Corporation Company (Decrease) Consolidated
Assets
Cash 15,000 40,000 55,000
Inventories 150,000 110,000 (@ 25,000 285,000
Other current assets 110,000 70,000 180,000
Intercompany receivable (payable) 25,000 (25,000)
Investment in Starr Company common
stock 500,000 (a) (500,000)
Plant assets (net) 450,000 300,000 (@) 65,000 815,000
Patent (net) 20,000 (@) 5,000 25,000
Goodwill (@) 15,000 15,000
Total assets 1,250,000 515,000 (390,000) 1,375,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Income taxes payable 26,000 10,000 36,000
Other liabilities 325,000 115,000 440,000
Common stock, $10 par 400,000 400,000
Common stock, $5 par 200,000 (a) (200,000
Additional paid-in capital 365,000 58,000 (@) (58,000 365,000
Retained earnings 134,000 132,000 (a) (132,000 134,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 1,250,000 515,000 (390,000 1,375,000
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The following features of the working paper for consolidated balance sheet on the date

of the business combination should be emphasized:

1.

The elimination is not entered in either the parent company’s or the subsidiary’s ac-
counting records; it is only a part of the working paper for preparation of the consoli-
dated balance sheet.

. The elimination is used to reflect differences between current fair values and carrying

amounts of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets because the subsidiary did not write
up its assets to current fair values on the date of the business combination.

. The Eliminations column in the working paper for consolidated balance sheet reflects

increases and decreases, rather than debits and credits. Debits and credits are not
appropriate in a working paper dealing with financial statements rather than trial
balances.

. Intercompany receivables and payables are placed on the same line of the working pa-

per for consolidated balance sheet and are combined to produce a consolidated amount
of zero.

. The respective corporations are identified in the working paper elimination. The reason

for precise identification is explained in Chapter 8 dealing with the eliminations of in-
tercompany profits (or gains).

. The consolidated paid-in capital amounts are those of the parent company only. Sub-

sidiaries’ paid-in capital amounts always are eliminated in the process of consolidation.

. Consolidated retained earnings on the date of a business combination includes only

the retained earnings of the parent company. This treatment is consistent with the the-
ory that purchase accounting reflects a fresh start in an acquisition of net assets (as-
sets less liabilities).

. The amounts in the Consolidated column of the working paper for consolidated balance

sheet reflect the financial position of a single economic entity comprising two legal en-
tities, with all intercompany balances of the two entities eliminated.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

The amounts in the Consolidated column of the working paper for consolidated balance
sheet are presented in the customary fashion in the consolidated balance sheet of Palm
Corporation and subsidiary that follows. In the interest of brevity, notes to financial

PALM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 55,000
Inventories 285,000
Other 180,000
Total current assets $ 520,000
Plant assets (net) 815,000
Intangible assets:
Patent (net) $ 25,000
Goodwill 15,000 40,000
Total assets $1,375,000

(continued)
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PALM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Balance Sheet (concluded)
December 31, 2005

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Liabilities:
Income taxes payable $ 36,000
Other 440,000
Total liabilities $ 476,000
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $10 par $400,000
Additional paid-in capital 365,000
Retained earnings 134,000 899,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,375,000

statements and other required disclosures are omitted. The consolidated amounts are the

same as those in the consolidated balance sheet on page 215.

In addition to the foregoing consolidated balance sheet on December 31, 2005, Palm
Corporation’s published financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, in-
clude the unconsolidated income statement and statement of retained earnings illustrated

on pages 211 and 212 and an unconsolidated statement of cash flows.

CONSOLIDATION OF PARTIALLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY
ON DATE OF BUSINESS COMBINATION

The consolidation of a parent company and its partially owned subsidiary differs from the
consolidation of a wholly owned subsidiary in one major respect—the recognition of mi-
nority interest. Minority interest, or noncontrolling interest, is a term applied to the claims
of stockholders other than the parent company (the controlling interest) to the net income
or losses and net assets of the subsidiary. The minority interest in the subsidiary’s net in-
come or losses is displayed in the consolidated income statement, and the minority interest

in the subsidiary’s net assets is displayed in the consolidated balance sheet.

To illustrate the consolidation techniques for a business combination involving a par-
tially owned subsidiary, assume the following facts. On December 31, 2005, Post Corpora-
tion issued 57,000 shares of its $1 par common stock (current fair value $20 a share) to
stockholders of Sage Company in exchange for 38,000 of the 40,000 outstanding shares of
Sage’s $10 par common stock in a business combination. Thus, Post acquired a 95% inter-
est (38,000 + 40,000 = 0.95) in Sage, which became Post’s subsidiary. There was no con-
tingent consideration. Out-of-pocket costs of the combination, paid in cash by Post on

December 31, 2005, were as follows:

Combinor’s Out-of- Finder's and legal fees relating to business combination
Pocket Costs of Costs associated with SEC registration statement
Business Combination Total out-of-pocket costs of business combination

$ 52,250
72,750
$125,000

Financial statements of Post Corporation and Sage Company for their fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005, prior to the business combination, are on page 221. There were no in-

tercompany transactions prior to the combination.
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POST CORPORATION AND SAGE COMPANY
Separate Financial Statements (prior to business combination)

For Year Ended December 31, 2005

Post Sage
Corporation Company
Income Statements
Net sales $5,500,000 $1,000,000
Costs and expenses:
Costs of goods sold $3,850,000 $ 650,000
Operating expenses 925,000 170,000
Interest expense 75,000 40,000
Income taxes expense 260,000 56,000
Total costs and expenses $5,110,000 $ 916,000
Net income $ 390,000 $ 84,000
Statements of Retained Earnings
Retained earnings, beginning of year $ 810,000 $ 290,000
Add: Net income 390,000 84,000
Subtotals $1,200,000 $ 374,000
Less: Dividends 150,000 40,000
Retained earnings, end of year $1,050,000 $ 334,000
Balance Sheets
Assets

Cash $ 200,000 $ 100,000
Inventories 800,000 500,000
Other current assets 550,000 215,000
Plant assets (net) 3,500,000 1,100,000

Goodwill (net) 100,000
Total assets $5,150,000 $1,915,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Income taxes payable $ 100,000 $ 16,000
Other liabilities 2,450,000 930,000

Common stock, $1 par 1,000,000
Common stock, $10 par 400,000
Additional paid-in capital 550,000 235,000
Retained earnings 1,050,000 334,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $5,150,000 $1,915,000

The December 31, 2005, current fair values of Sage Company’s identifiable assets and
liabilities were the same as their carrying amounts, except for the following assets:

Current
Fair Values,
Dec. 31, 2005
Inventories $ 526,000
Plant assets (net) 1,290,000

Leasehold 30,000
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Combinor’s Journal
Entries for Business
Combination
(acquisition of 95% of
subsidiary’s outstanding
common stock)

Ledger Accounts of
Combinor Affected by
Business Combination

Sage Company did not prepare journal entries related to the business combination be-
cause Sage is continuing as a separate corporation, and current generally accepted account-
ing principles do not permit the write-up of assets of a going concern to current fair values.
Post recorded the combination with Sage by means of the following journal entries:

POST CORPORATION (COMBINOR)
Journal Entries
December 31, 2005

Investment in Sage Company Common Stock
(57,000 x $20)
Common Stock (57,000 X $1)
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par
To record issuance of 57,000 shares of common stock for
38,000 of the 40,000 outstanding shares of Sage
Company common stock in a business combination.

Investment in Sage Company Common Stock
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par
Cash

To record payment of out-of-pocket costs of business combination
with Sage Company. Finder’s and legal fees relating to the
combination are recorded as additional costs of the investment;
costs associated with the SEC registration statement are recorded
as an offset to the previously recorded proceeds from the issuance
of common stock.

1,140,000
57,000
1,083,000

52,250

72,750
125,000

After the foregoing journal entries have been posted, the affected ledger accounts of Post

Corporation are as follows:

Cash
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Dec. 31 Balance forward 200,000 dr
31 Out-of-pocket costs of business
combination 125,000 75,000 dr
Investment in Sage Company Common Stock
Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Dec. 31 Issuance of common stock in
business combination 1,140,000 1,140,000 dr
31 Direct out-of-pocket costs of
business combination 52,250 1,192,250 dr

(continued)
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Common Stock, $1 Par

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Dec. 31 Balance forward 1,000,000 cr
31 Issuance of common stock in
business combination 57,000 1,057,000 cr

Paid-In Capital in Excess of Par

Date Explanation Debit Credit Balance
2005
Dec. 31 Balance forward 550,000 cr
31 Issuance of common stock in
business combination 1,083,000 1,633,000 cr
31 Costs of issuing common
stock in business combination 72,750 1,560,250 cr

Working Paper for Consolidated Balance Sheet

Because of the complexities caused by the minority interest in the net assets of a partially
owned subsidiary and the measurement of goodwill acquired in the business combination,
it is advisable to use a working paper for preparation of a consolidated balance sheet for a
parent company and its partially owned subsidiary on the date of the business combination.
The format of the working paper is identical to that illustrated on page 216.

Developing the Elimination

The preparation of the elimination for a parent company and a partially owned sub-
sidiary parallels that for a wholly owned subsidiary described earlier in this chapter.
First, the intercompany accounts are reduced to zero, as shown below (in journal entry
format):

Common Stock—Sage 400,000
Additional Paid-in Capital—Sage 235,000
Retained Earnings—Sage 334,000
Investment in Sage Company Common Stock—Post 1,192,250

The footing of $969,000 of the debit items of the partial elimination above represents
the carrying amount of the net assets of Sage Company and is $223,250 less than the credit
item of $1,192,250. Part of this $223,250 difference is the excess of the total of the cost of
Post Corporation’s investment in Sage Company and the minority interest in Sage Com-
pany’s net assets over the carrying amounts of Sage’s identifiable net assets. This excess
may be computed as follows, from the data provided on page 221 (the current fair values of
all other assets and liabilities of Sage are equal to their carrying amounts):
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Differences between
Current Fair Values
and Carrying Amounts
of Combinee’s
Identifiable Assets

Use of Elimination to
Reflect Current Fair
Values of Identifiable
Assets of Subsidiary
on Date of Business
Combination

Computation of
Minority Interest in
Combinee’s
Identifiable Net Assets

Computation of
Goodwill Acquired by
Combinor

Excess of
Current Fair
Values over

Current Carrying Carrying

Fair Values Amounts Amounts

Inventories $ 526,000 $ 500,000 $ 26,000
Plant assets (net) 1,290,000 1,100,000 190,000
Leasehold 30,000 30,000
Totals $1,846,000 $1,600,000 $246,000

Under current generally accepted accounting principles, the foregoing differences are
not entered in Sage Company’s accounting records. Thus, to conform with the requirements
of purchase accounting, the differences must be reflected in the consolidated balance sheet
of Post Corporation and subsidiary by means of the elimination, which is continued below:

Common Stock—Sage 400,000
Additional Paid-in Capital—Sage 235,000
Retained Earnings—Sage 334,000
Inventories—Sage ($526,000 — $500,000) 26,000
Plant Assets (net)—Sage ($1,290,000 — $1,100,000) 190,000
Leasehold—Sage 30,000

Investment in Sage Company Common Stock—Post 1,192,250

The revised footing of $1,215,000 of the debit items of the above partial elimination repre-
sents the current fair value of Sage Company’s identifiable tangible and intangible net as-
sets on December 31, 2005.

Two items now must be recorded to complete the elimination for Post Corporation and
subsidiary. First, the minority interest in the identifiable net assets (at current fair values)
of Sage Company is recorded by a credit. The minority interest is computed as follows:

Current fair value of Sage Company’s identifiable net assets $1,215,000
Minority interest ownership in Sage Company'’s identifiable

net assets (100% minus Post Corporation’s 95% interest) 0.05
Minority interest in Sage Company’s identifiable net assets

($1,215,000 x 0.05) $

60,750

Second, the goodwill acquired by Post Corporation in the business combination with Sage
Company is recorded by a debit. The goodwill is computed below:

Cost of Post Corporation’s 95% interest in Sage Company $1,192,250
Less: Current fair value of Sage Company’s identifiable net assets
acquired by Post ($1,215,000 X 0.95) 1,154,250

Goodwill acquired by Post Corporation $ 38,000
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The working paper elimination for Post Corporation and subsidiary may now be com-
pleted as follows:

Completed Working POST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Paper Elimination for Working Paper Elimination
Partially Owned December 31, 2005
Subsidiary on Date of
Business Combination (a) Common Stock—Sage 400,000
Additional Paid-in Capital—Sage 235,000
Retained Earnings—Sage 334,000
Inventories—Sage ($526,000 — $500,000) 26,000
Plant Assets (net)—Sage ($1,290,000 — $1,100,000) 190,000
Leasehold—Sage 30,000
Goodwill—Post ($1,192,250 — $1,154,250) 38,000
Investment in Sage Company Common Stock—Post 1,192,250
Minority Interest in Net Assets of Subsidiary 60,750

To eliminate intercompany investment and equity accounts of
subsidiary on date of business combination; to allocate

excess of cost over carrying amount of identifiable assets
acquired, with remainder to goodwill; and to establish

minority interest in identifiable net assets of subsidiary on

date of business combination ($1,215,000 X 0.05 = $60,750).
(Income tax effects are disregarded.)

Working Paper for Consolidated Balance Sheet
The working paper for the consolidated balance sheet on December 31, 2005, for Post Cor-
poration and subsidiary is on page 226.

Nature of Minority Interest

The appropriate classification and presentation of minority interest in consolidated finan-
cial statements has been a perplexing problem for accountants, especially because it is rec-
ognized only in the consolidation process and does not result from a business transaction
or event of either the parent company or the subsidiary. Two concepts for consolidated fi-
nancial statements have been developed to account for minority interest—the parent com-
pany concept and the economic unit concept. The FASB has described these two concepts
as follows:

The parent company concept emphasizes the interests of the parent’s shareholders. As a
result, the consolidated financial statements reflect those stockholders’ interests in the
parent itself, plus their undivided interests in the net assets of the parent’s subsidiaries.
The consolidated balance sheet is essentially a modification of the parent’s balance sheet
with the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries substituted for the parent’s investment
in subsidiaries.

. . . [TThe stockholders’ equity of the parent company is also the stockholders’ equity of the
consolidated entity. Similarly, the consolidated income statement is essentially a modification
of the parent’s income statement with the revenues, expenses, gains, and losses of subsidiaries
substituted for the parent’s income from investment in the subsidiaries.

The economic unit concept emphasizes control of the whole by a single management. As
a result, under this concept (sometimes called the entity theory in the accounting literature),
consolidated financial statements are intended to provide information about a group of legal
entities—a parent company and its subsidiaries—operating as a single unit. The assets,
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POST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Working Paper for Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

Eliminations
Post Sage Increase
Corporation Company (Decrease) Consolidated
Assets
Cash 75,000 100,000 175,000
Inventories 800,000 500,000 (@) 26,000 1,326,000
Other current assets 550,000 215,000 765,000
Investment in Sage Company common stock 1,192,250 (@) (1,192,250)
Plant assets (net) 3,500,000 1,100,000 (@ 190,000 4,790,000
Leasehold (a) 30,000 30,000
Goodwill 100,000 @) 38,000 138,000
Total assets 6,217,250 1,915,000 (908,250) 7,224,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Income taxes payable 100,000 16,000 116,000
Other liabilities 2,450,000 930,000 3,380,000
Common stock, $1 par 1,057,000 1,057,000
Common stock, $10 par 400,000 (a) (400,000)
Additional paid-in capital 1,560,250 235,000 (@) (235,000) 1,560,250
Minority interest in net assets of subsidiary (a) 60,750 60,750
Retained earnings 1,050,000 334,000 (@) (334,000) 1,050,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 6,217,250 1,915,000 (908,250) 7,224,000

Working Paper for
Consolidated Balance
Sheet for Partially
Owned Subsidiary on
Date of Business
Combination

liabilities, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses of the various component entities are the
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses of the consolidated entity. Unless

all subsidiaries are wholly owned, the business enterprise’s proprietary interest (its residual
owners’ equity—assets less liabilities) is divided into the controlling interest (stockholders
or other owners of the parent company) and one or more noncontrolling interests in sub-
sidiaries. Both the controlling and the noncontrolling interests are part of the proprietary
group of the consolidated entity, even though the noncontrolling stockholders’ ownership
interests relate only to the affiliates whose shares they own.!”

In accordance with the foregoing quotation, the parent company concept of consol-
idated financial statements apparently treats the minority interest in net assets of a sub-
sidiary as a liability. This liability is increased each accounting period subsequent to the
date of a business combination by an expense representing the minority’s share of the
subsidiary’s net income (or decreased by the minority’s share of the subsidiary’s net
loss). Dividends declared by the subsidiary to minority stockholders decrease the liabil-
ity to them. Consolidated net income is net of the minority’s share of the subsidiary’s

net income.

In the economic unit concept, the minority interest in the subsidiary’s net assets is dis-
played in the stockholders’ equity section of the consolidated balance sheet. The consoli-
dated income statement displays the minority interest in the subsidiary’s net income as a

7 FASB Discussion Memorandum,” . . . Consolidation Policy and Procedures” (Norwalk: FASB, 1991),

pars. 63-64.
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subdivision of total consolidated net income, similar to the division of net income of a
partnership (see page 37).

Absent specific accounting standards dealing with minority interest in subsidiaries, in
prior years publicly owned companies used the parent company concept exclusively.
Nonetheless, in 1995 the FASB expressed a preference for the economic unit concept,
despite its emphasis on the legal form of the minority interest in a subsidiary.'® This action
was consistent with an earlier FASB rejection of the idea that the minority interest in net
assets is a liability:

Minority interests in net assets of consolidated subsidiaries do not represent present obliga-
tions of the enterprise to pay cash or distribute other assets to minority stockholders. Rather,
those stockholders have ownership or residual interests in components of a consolidated
enterprise."”

Having abandoned its attempts to issue a pronouncement on consolidation policy and pro-
cedure (see page 210), the FASB in 2000 included the following in a Proposed Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards, “Accounting for Financial Instruments with Charac-
teristics of Liabilities, Equity, or Both™:

An equity instrument that is issued by a less-than-wholly-owned subsidiary included in the
reporting entity to an entity outside the consolidated group and thus representing the noncon-
trolling equity interest in that subsidiary shall be reported in the consolidated financial state-
ments as a separate component of equity.?’

In view of the FASB’s actions described in the foregoing section, the economic unit con-
cept of displaying minority interest is stressed throughout this book.

Consolidated Balance Sheet for
Partially Owned Subsidiary

The consolidated balance sheet of Post Corporation and its partially owned subsidiary, Sage
Company, is on page 228. The consolidated amounts are taken from the working paper for
consolidated balance sheet on page 226.

The display of minority interest in net assets of subsidiary in the equity section of the
consolidated balance sheet of Post Corporation and subsidiary is consistent with the eco-
nomic unit concept of consolidated financial statements. It should be noted that there is no
ledger account for minority interest in net assets of subsidiary, in either the parent com-
pany’s or the subsidiary’s accounting records.

Alternative Methods for Valuing Minority Interest
and Goodwill

The computation of minority interest in net assets of subsidiary and goodwill on page 224
is based on two premises. First, the identifiable net assets of a partially owned subsidiary
should be valued on a single basis—current fair value, in accordance with purchase
accounting theory for business combinations. Second, only the subsidiary goodwill
acquired by the parent company should be recognized, in accordance with the cost method
for valuing assets.

18 “Consolidated Financial Statements: Policy and Procedure,” pars. 22-24.

19 Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 6, “Elements of Financial Statements” (Norwalk:
FASB, 1985), par. 254.

20 Proposed Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, " Accounting for Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Liabilities, Equity, or Both” (Norwalk: FASB, 2000), par. 36. (Note: The final Statement,
No. 150 issued in 2003, did not include the cited sentence.)
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POST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 175,000
Inventories 1,326,000
Other 765,000
Total current assets $2,266,000
Plant assets (net) $4,790,000
Intangible assets:
Leasehold $ 30,000
Goodwill 138,000 168,000
Total assets $7,224,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Income taxes payable $ 116,000
Other 3,380,000
Total liabilities $3,496,000
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $1 par $1,057,000
Additional paid-in capital 1,560,250
Minority interest in net assets of subsidiary 60,750
Retained earnings 1,050,000 3,728,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $7,224,000

Two alternatives to the procedure described on page 227 have been suggested. The first
alternative would assign current fair values to a partially owned subsidiary’s identifiable net
assets only to the extent of the parent company’s ownership interest therein. Under this
alternative, $233,700 ($246,000 X 0.95 = $233,700) of the total difference between cur-
rent fair values and carrying amounts of Sage Company’s identifiable net assets summa-
rized on page 224 would be reflected in the aggregate debits to inventories, plant assets, and
leasehold in the working paper elimination for Post Corporation and subsidiary on Decem-
ber 31, 2005. The minority interest in net assets of subsidiary would be based on the car-
rying amounts of Sage Company’s identifiable net assets, rather than on their current fair
values, and would be computed as follows: $969,000 X 0.05 = $48,450. Goodwill would
be $38,000, as computed on page 224. Supporters of this alternative argue that current fair
values of a combinee’s identifiable net assets should be reflected in consolidated financial
statements only to the extent (percentage) that they have been acquired by the combinor. The
balance of the combinee’s net assets, and the related minority interest in the net assets, should
be reflected in consolidated financial statements at the carrying amounts in the subsidiary’s
accounting records. Thus, identifiable net assets of the subsidiary would be valued on a hybrid
basis, rather than at full current fair values as required by purchase accounting theory.

The other alternative for valuing minority interest in net assets of subsidiary and good-
will is to obtain a current fair value for 100% of a partially owned subsidiary’s fotal net
assets, either through independent measurement of the minority interest or by inference
from the cost of the parent company’s investment in the subsidiary. Independent measure-
ment of the minority interest might be accomplished by reference to quoted market prices
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of publicly traded common stock owned by minority stockholders of the subsidiary. The
computation of minority interest and goodwill of Sage Company by inference from the cost
of Post Corporation’s investment in Sage is as follows:

Total cost of Post Corporation’s investment in Sage Company $1,192,250
Post's percentage ownership of Sage 0.95
Implied current fair value of 100% of Sage’s total net assets
($1,192,250 + 0.95) $1,255,000
Minority interest ($1,255,000 X 0.05) $ 62,750
Goodwill ($1,255,000 — $1,215,000, the current fair value of -
Sage’s identifiable net assets) $ 40,000

Supporters of this approach contend that a single valuation method should be used for
all net assets of a subsidiary—including goodwill—regardless of the existence of a minor-
ity interest in the subsidiary. They further maintain that the goodwill should be attributed to
the subsidiary, rather than to the parent company, as is done for a wholly owned subsidiary,
in accordance with the theory of purchase accounting for business combinations.

A summary of the three methods for valuing minority interest and goodwill of a par-
tially owned subsidiary (derived from the December 31, 2005, business combination of
Post Corporation and Sage Company) follows:

Minority
Interest
Total in Net
Identifiable Assets of
Net Assets Subsidiary  Goodwill

1. Identifiable net assets recorded at current

fair value; minority interest in net assets of

subsidiary based on identifiable net assets $1,215,000 $60,750 $38,000
2. Identifiable net assets recorded at current

fair value only to extent of parent company’s

interest; balance of net assets and minority

interest in net assets of subsidiary reflected

at carrying amounts 1,202,700* 48,450 38,000
3. Current fair value, through independent

measurement or inference, assigned to total

net assets of subsidiary, including goodwill 1,215,000 62,750 40,000

*$969,000 + ($246,000 X 0.95) = $1,202,700.

In 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board tentatively expressed a preference
for the method of valuing minority interest and goodwill set forth in method 1 above.?!
Accordingly, that method is illustrated in subsequent pages of this book.

Bargain-Purchase Excess in Consolidated Balance Sheet

A business combination that results in a parent company—subsidiary relationship may in-
volve an excess of current fair values of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the parent company’s investment in the subsidiary’s common stock. If so, the accounting

21 "Consolidated Financial Statements: Policy and Procedures,” par. 27.
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Current Fair Values of
Selected Assets of
Combinee

Working Paper
Elimination for Wholly
Owned Subsidiary
with Bargain-Purchase
Excess on Date of
Business Combination

standards described in Chapter 5 (page 171) are applied. The excess of current fair values
over cost (bargain-purchase excess) is applied pro rata to reduce the amounts initially as-
signed to noncurrent assets other than financial assets (excluding investments accounted for
by the equity method), assets to be disposed of by sale, deferred tax assets, and prepaid as-
sets relating to pensions and other postretirement benefit plans.

Illustration of Bargain-Purchase Excess: Wholly Owned Subsidiary

On December 31, 2005, Plowman Corporation acquired all the outstanding common stock
of Silbert Company for $850,000 cash, including direct out-of-pocket costs of the business
combination. Stockholders’ equity of Silbert totaled $800,000, consisting of common
stock, $100,000; additional paid-in capital, $300,000; and retained earnings, $400,000. The
current fair values of Silbert’s identifiable net assets were the same as their carrying
amounts, except for the following:

Current Carrying
Fair Values Amounts Differences
Inventories $ 339,000 $320,000 $19,000
Long-term investments in marketable
debt securities (held to maturity) 61,000 50,000 11,000
Plant assets (net) 1,026,000 984,000 42,000
Intangible assets (net) 54,000 36,000 18,000

Thus, the current fair values of Silbert’s identifiable net assets exceeded the amount
paid by Plowman by $40,000 [($800,000 + $19,000 + $11,000 + $42,000 + $18,000) —
$850,000 = $40,000]. This $40,000 bargain-purchase excess is offset against amounts
originally assigned to Silbert’s plant assets and intangible assets in proportion to their cur-
rent fair values ($1,026,000:$54,000 = 95:5). The December 31, 2005, working paper
elimination for Plowman Corporation and subsidiary is as follows:

PLOWMAN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Working Paper Elimination
December 31, 2005

(@) Common Stock—Silbert 100,000
Additional Paid-in Capital—Silbert 300,000
Retained Earnings—Silbert 400,000
Inventories—Silbert (339,000 — $320,000) 19,000
Long-Term Investments in Marketable Debt Securities—Silbert

($61,000 — $50,000) 11,000
Plant Assets (net)—Silbert
[($1,026,000 — $984,000) — ($40,000 X 0.95)] 4,000
Intangible Assets (net)—Silbert
[($54,000 — $36,000) — ($40,000 x 0.05)] 16,000
Investment in Silbert Company Common Stock—Plowman 850,000

To eliminate intercompany investment and equity accounts of
subsidiary on date of business combination; and to allocate
$40,000 excess of current fair values of subsidiary’s identifiable
net assets over cost to subsidiary’s plant assets and intangible
assets in ratio of $1,026,000:$54,000, or 95%:5%. (Income
tax effects are disregarded.)
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Illustration of Bargain-Purchase Excess: Partially Owned Subsidiary

The Plowman Corporation—Silbert Company business combination described in the fore-
going section is now changed by assuming that Plowman acquired 98 %, rather than 100%,
of Silbert’s common stock for $833,000 ($850,000 X 0.98 = $833,000) on December 31,
2005, with all other facts remaining unchanged. The excess of current fair values of
Silbert’s identifiable net assets over Plowman’s cost is $39,200 [($890,000 X 0.98) —
$833,000 = $39,200]. Under these circumstances, the working paper elimination for
Plowman Corporation and subsidiary on December 31, 2005, is as follows:

PLOWMAN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
Working Paper Elimination
December 31, 2005

(@) Common Stock—Silbert 100,000
Additional Paid-in Capital—Silbert 300,000
Retained Earnings—Silbert 400,000
Inventories—Silbert ($339,000 — $320,000) 19,000
Long-Term Investments in Marketable Debt Securities—Silbert
(61,000 — $50,000) 11,000
Plant Assets (net)—Silbert [($42,000 — ($39,200 X 0.95)] 4,760
Intangible Assets (net)—Silbert [$18,000 — ($39,200 X 0.05)] 16,040
Investment in Silbert Company Common Stock—Plowman 833,000
Minority Interest in Net Assets of Subsidiary ($890,000 X 0.02) 17,800

To eliminate intercompany investment and equity accounts of
subsidiary on date of business combination; to allocate parent
company’s share of excess ($39,200) of current fair values of
subsidiary’s identifiable net assets over cost to subsidiary’s
plant assets and intangible assets in ratio of 95%:5%; and

to establish minority interest in net assets of subsidiary on date
of business combination. (Income tax effects are disregarded.)

Disclosure of Consolidation Policy

Currently, the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” note to financial statements
required by APB Opinion No. 22, “Disclosure of Accounting Policies,” and by Rule 3A-03
of the SEC’s Regulation S-X, which is discussed in Chapter 13, generally includes a de-
scription of consolidation policy reflected in consolidated financial statements. The follow-
ing excerpt from an annual report of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., a publicly owned
corporation, is typical:

Principles of consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all
subsidiaries and the company’s share of earnings or losses of joint ventures and affiliated
companies under the equity method of accounting. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

International Accounting Standard 27
Among the provisions of I4S 27, “Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting
for Investments in Subsidiaries,” are the following:

1. Consolidation policy is based on control rather than solely on ownership. Control is de-
scribed as follows:

Control (for the purpose of this Standard) is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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Control is presumed to exist when the parent owns, directly or indirectly through sub-
sidiaries, more than one half of the voting power of an enterprise unless, in exceptional cir-
cumstances, it can be clearly demonstrated that such ownership does not constitute control.
Control also exists even when the parent owns one half or less of the voting power of an en-
terprise when there is:

(a) power over more than one half of the voting rights by virtue of an agreement with other
investors;

(b) power to govern the financial and operating policies of the enterprise under a statute or an
agreement;

(c) power to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors or equiv-
alent governing body; or

(d) power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the board of directors or equivalent
governing body.

2. Intercompany transactions, profits or gains, and losses are eliminated in full, regardless
of an existing minority interest.

3. The minority interest in net income of subsidiary is displayed separately in the consoli-
dated income statement. The minority interest in net assets of subsidiary is displayed
separately from liabilities and stockholders’ equity in the consolidated balance sheet.
Thus, the IASB rejected both the parent company concept and the economic unit con-
cept (see pages 225-226).

4. In the unconsolidated financial statements of a parent company, investments in sub-
sidiaries that are included in the consolidated statements may be accounted for by either
the equity method, as required by the SEC, or the cost method.

Advantages and Shortcomings of Consolidated
Financial Statements

Consolidated financial statements are useful principally to stockholders and prospective in-
vestors of the parent company. These users of consolidated financial statements are pro-
vided with comprehensive financial information for the economic unit represented by the
parent company and its subsidiaries, without regard for legal separateness of the individual
companies.

Creditors of each consolidated company and minority stockholders of subsidiaries
have only limited use for consolidated financial statements, because such statements do
not show the financial position or operating results of the individual companies compris-
ing the consolidated group. In addition, creditors of the constituent companies cannot as-
certain the asset coverages for their respective claims. But perhaps the most telling
criticism of consolidated financial statements has come from financial analysts. These
critics have pointed out that consolidated financial statements of diversified companies
(conglomerates) are impossible to classify into a single industry. Thus, say the financial
analysts, consolidated financial statements of a conglomerate cannot be used for com-
parative purposes. The problem of financial reporting by diversified companies is con-
sidered in Chapter 13.

“Push-Down Accounting” for a Subsidiary

A thorny challenge for accountants has been choosing the appropriate basis of ac-
counting for assets and liabilities of a subsidiary that, because of a substantial minority
interest, loan agreements, legal requirements, or other commitments, issues separate fi-
nancial statements to outsiders following the business combination. Some accountants
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have maintained that because generally accepted accounting principles do not permit
the write-up of assets by a going concern, the subsidiary should report assets, liabili-
ties, revenue, and expenses in its separate financial statements at amounts based on car-
rying amounts prior to the business combination. Other accountants have recommended
that the values assigned to the subsidiary’s net assets in the consolidated financial state-
ments be “pushed down” to the subsidiary for incorporation in its separate financial
statements. These accountants believe that the business combination is an event that
warrants recognition of current fair values of the subsidiary’s net assets in its separate
statements.

In Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 54, the Securities and Exchange Commission staff
sanctioned push-down accounting for separate financial statements of subsidiaries that
are substantially wholly owned by a parent company subject to the SEC’s jurisdiction.?
(The securities laws administered by the SEC, and the SEC’s own rules, sometimes re-
quire a parent company to include separate financial statements of a subsidiary in its
reports to the SEC.) This action by the SEC staff was followed several years later by the
FASB’s issuance of a Discussion Memorandum, “. . . New Basis Accounting,” which
solicited views on when, if ever, a business enterprise should adjust the carrying amounts
of its net assets, including goodwill, to current fair values, including push-down account-
ing situations.?

In the absence of definitive guidelines from the FASB, companies that have applied
push-down accounting apparently have used accounting techniques analogous to quasi-
reorganizations (which are discussed in intermediate accounting textbooks) or to reorgani-
zations under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (discussed in Chapter 14). That is, the restatement
of identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary and the recognition of goodwill are
accompanied by a write-off of the subsidiary’s retained earnings; the balancing amount is
an increase in additional paid-in capital of the subsidiary.>*

To illustrate push-down accounting, I return to the Post Corporation—Sage Company
business combination, specifically to the working paper for consolidated balance sheet on
page 226. To apply the push-down accounting techniques described in the previous para-
graph, the following working paper adjustment to the Sage Company balance sheet
amounts would be required:

Inventories 26,000
Plant Assets (net) 190,000
Leasehold 30,000
Goodwill 38,000
Retained Earnings 334,000
Additional Paid-in Capital 618,000

To adjust carrying amounts of identifiable net assets, to recognize
goodwill, and to write off retained earnings in connection with
push-down accounting for separate financial statements.

22 Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 54, Securities and Exchange Commission (Washington: 1983).
23 FASB Discussion Memorandum,”. . . New Basis Accounting (Norwalk: FASB, 1991), pars. 1-11.

24 Hortense Goodman and Leonard Lorensen, lllustrations of “Push Down” Accounting (New York:
AICPA, 1985).
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Sage Company’s separate balance sheet reflecting push-down accounting is the following:

SAGE COMPANY
Balance Sheet (push-down accounting)
December 31, 2005

Assets

Current assets:
Cash $ 100,000
Inventories ($500,000 + $26,000) 526,000
Other 215,000
Total current assets $ 841,000
Plant assets (net) ($1,100,000 + $190,000) 1,290,000
Leasehold 30,000
Goodwill 38,000
Total assets $2,199,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Liabilities:
Income taxes payable $ 16,000
Other 930,000
Total liabilities $ 946,000
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $10 par $400,000
Additional paid-in capital ($235,000 + $618,000) 853,000 1,253,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,199,000

A note to financial statements would describe Sage Company’s business combination
with Post Corporation and its adjustments to reflect push-down accounting in its balance
sheet.

Note that the $38,000 goodwill in Sage Company’s separate balance sheet is attributed
to Post Corporation in the working paper elimination on page 225. As explained in Chapter 7,
the attribution to Post Corporation is required to avoid applying any amortization of the
goodwill to minority stockholders’ interest in net income of Sage.

SEC ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS DEALING WITH
WRONGFUL APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

FOR CONSOLI

DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AAER 34

“Securities and Exchange Commission v. Digilog, Inc. and Ronald Moyer,” reported in
AAER 34 (July 5, 1984), deals with the issue of whether Corporation A, though ir form
not a conventional subsidiary, in substance was controlled by Corporation B and thus
should have been a party to consolidated financial statements with Corporation B, which
developed, manufactured, and sold electronic equipment. In reporting a federal court’s
entry of a permanent injunction against Corporation B and its CEO, the SEC opined that,
although Corporation A’s initial issuance of 50 shares of common stock was to the CEO of
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Corporation B (for $50,000), Corporation B nonetheless substantively controlled Corpo-
ration A for the following reasons:

1. Corporation B provided initial working capital of $450,000 to Corporation A in ex-
change for promissory notes convertible within five years to 90% of the authorized com-
mon stock of Corporation A.

2. Corporation B sublet office space and provided accounting, financial, and administrative
services to Corporation A.

3. Corporation B sold equipment, software, furniture, and other items to Corporation A for
cash and a $92,000 interest-bearing promissory note.

4. Corporation B ultimately made loans and extended credit to, and guaranteed bank loans
of, Corporation A that totaled $4.9 million.

5. All promissory notes issued by Corporation A to Corporation B were secured by the for-
mer’s accounts receivable, inventories, and equipment.

Despite Corporation B’s management’s having been informed by its independent auditors that
its financial statements need not be consolidated with those of Corporation A, the SEC ruled
to the contrary, maintaining that substance prevailed over form (Corporation B’s CEO, rather
than Corporation B itself, owned all 50 shares of Corporation A’s outstanding common stock).
In a related enforcement action, reported in AAER 45, ... In the Matter of Coopers &
Lybrand and M. Bruce Cohen, C.P.A.” (November 27, 1984), the SEC set forth its acceptance
of the undisclosed terms of a “Consent and Settlement” with the CPA firm and its engage-
ment partner that had audited Corporation B’s unconsolidated financial statements.

AAER 1762

“In the Matter of David Decker, CPA, and Theodore Fricke, CPA, Respondents,” reported
in AAER 1762 (April 24, 2003), describes the failed audit of an enterprise engaged in buy-
ing, selling, and leasing new and used transportation equipment such as trailers and trucks.
According to the SEC, the two auditors did not challenge the enterprise’s consolidating of
a subsidiary acquired in 7999 in its 1998 financial statements. The result was a 177% over-
statement of the enterprise’s revenues for 1998. The SEC enjoined the two auditors from
further violations of the federal securities laws and barred them from appearing or practic-
ing before the SEC for at least three years and two years, respectively.

Review
Questions

1. Discuss the similarities and dissimilarities between consolidated financial statements
for a parent company and its subsidiaries and combined financial statements for the
home office and branches of a single legal entity.

2. The use of consolidated financial statements for reporting to stockholders is common.
Under some conditions, certain subsidiaries may be excluded from consolidation. List
the conditions under which subsidiaries sometimes are excluded from consolidated
financial statements.

3. The controller of Pastor Corporation, which has just become the parent of Sexton
Company in a business combination, inquires if a consolidated income statement is re-
quired for the year ended on the date of the combination. What is your reply? Explain.

4. In abusiness combination resulting in a parent—subsidiary relationship, the identifiable net
assets of the subsidiary must be reflected in the consolidated balance sheet at their current
fair values on the date of the business combination. Does this require the subsidiary to en-
ter the current fair values of the identifiable net assets in its accounting records? Explain.
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S. Are eliminations for the preparation of consolidated financial statements entered in the
accounting records of the parent company or of the subsidiary? Explain.

6. Differentiate between a working paper for consolidated balance sheet and a consoli-
dated balance sheet.

7. Describe three methods that have been proposed for valuing minority interest and
goodwill in the consolidated balance sheet of a parent company and its partially owned
subsidiary.

8. Compare the parent company concept and the economic unit concept of consolidated
financial statements as they relate to the display of minority interest in net assets of
subsidiary in a consolidated balance sheet.

9. The principal limitation of consolidated financial statements is their lack of separate
information about the assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses of the individual com-
panies included in the consolidation. List the problems that users of consolidated
financial statements encounter as a result of this limitation.

10. What is push-down accounting?

Exercises
(Exercise 6.1) Select the best answer for each of the following multiple-choice questions:

1. A parent company’s correctly prepared journal entry to record the out-of-pocket costs
of the acquisition of the subsidiary’s outstanding common stock in a business combi-
nation was as follows (explanation omitted):

Investment in Sullivan Company Common Stock 36,800
Cash 36,800

The implication of the foregoing journal entry is that the consideration issued by the
parent company for the outstanding common stock of the subsidiary was:

a. Cash.

b. Bonds.

c. Common stock.

d. Cash, bonds, or common stock.

2. The traditional definition of control for a parent company—subsidiary relationship
(parent’s ownership of more than 50% of the subsidiary’s outstanding common stock)
emphasizes:

a. Legal form.

b. Economic substance.

c. Both legal form and economic substance.
d. Neither legal form nor economic substance.

3. An investor company that owns more than 50% of the outstanding voting common
stock of an investee may not control the investee if:

a. The investee is in reorganization in bankruptcy proceedings.
b. There is a large passive minority interest in the investee.

c¢. A part of the investor company’s ownership is indirect.

d. The investee is a finance-related enterprise.
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FASB Statement No. 94, “Consolidation of All Majority Owned Subsidiaries,” ex-
empts from consolidation:

a. No subsidiaries of the parent company.

b. Foreign subsidiaries of the parent company.

c. Finance-related subsidiaries of the parent company.
d. Subsidiaries not controlled by the parent company.

. If, on the date of the business combination, C = consideration given to the former

stockholders of wholly owned subsidiary Stacey Company by Passey Corporation;
DOP = direct out-of-pocket costs of the combination; CA = carrying amount,
and CFV = current fair value of Stacey’s identifiable net assets; and GW =
goodwill:

a. C+ DOP = CA + GW
b. C — DOP = CFV — GW
c. C+ DOP = CFV + GW
d. C=CA + GW — DOP

In a completed working paper elimination (in journal entry format) for a parent com-
pany and its wholly owned subsidiary on the date of the business combination, the total
of the debits generally equals the:

a. Parent company’s total cost of its investment in the subsidiary.
b. Carrying amount of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets.

c. Current fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets.

d. Total paid-in capital of the subsidiary.

In a working paper elimination (in journal entry format) for the consolidated balance
sheet of a parent company and its wholly owned subsidiary on the date of a business
combination, the subtotal of the debits to the subsidiary’s stockholders’ equity accounts
equals the:

a. Current fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets.

b. Current fair value of the subsidiary’s fofal net assets, including goodwill.
c. Balance of the parent company’s investment ledger account.

d. Carrying amount of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets.

In the working paper for consolidated balance sheet prepared on the date of the business
combination of a parent company and its wholly owned subsidiary, whose liabilities had
current fair values equal to their carrying amounts, the total of the Eliminations column
is equal to:

a. The current fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets.

b. The total stockholder’s equity of the subsidiary.

c. The current fair value of the subsidiary’s total net assets, including goodwill.
d. An amount that is not determinable.

On the date of the business combination of Pobre Corporation and its wholly owned
subsidiary, Sabe Company, Pobre paid (1) $100,000 to the former stockholders of Sabe
for their stockholders’ equity of $65,000 and (2) $15,000 for direct out-of-pocket costs
of the combination. Goodwill recognized in the business combination was $10,000.
The current fair value of Sabe’s identifiable net assets was:

a. $65,000 b. $75,000 c. $105,000 4. $115,000 e. $125,000

Differences between current fair values and carrying amounts of the identifiable net as-
sets of a subsidiary on the date of a business combination are recognized in a:

a. Working paper elimination.

b. Subsidiary journal entry.
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c. Parent company journal entry.
d. Note to the consolidated financial statements.

In a business combination resulting in a parent company—wholly owned subsidiary re-
lationship, goodwill developed in the working paper elimination is attributed:

a. In its entirety to the subsidiary.

b. In its entirety to the parent company.

¢. To both the parent company and the subsidiary, in the ratio of current fair values of
identifiable net assets.

d. In its entirety to the consolidated entity.

In a consolidated balance sheet of a parent company and its partially owned subsidiary,
minority interest in net assets of subsidiary is displayed as a:

a. Liability under the economic unit concept but a part of consolidated stockholders’
equity under the parent company concept.

b. Part of consolidated stockholders’ equity under the economic unit concept but a
liability under the parent company conc